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As Discovery Communications celebrates our 25th
anniversary in 2010, we are proud to report that the state of
the company is strong and we are well positioned to deliver
value for our shareholders by building upon our mission of
satisfying curiosity and making a difference as the world'’s
number one nonfiction media company.

This past year, in the face of the most challenging economic
environment in a generation, Discovery was able to
increase top-line revenue and diligently cut costs, leading to
double-digit adjusted OIBDA and free cash flow growth.

Overall, for the year, total revenue increased 2% to $3,516
million, primarily driven by 4% growth at U.S. Networks
and 3% growth at International Networks. Despite the
challenging economy, Discovery was able to grow revenue
every quarter in 2009. Adjusted OIBDA in 2009 increased
12% to $1,464 million led by 8% growth at U.S. Networks
and 16% growth at International Networks. Adding to
these accomplishments, Discovery Communications also
was named to FORTUNE magazine’s list of the “World's
Most Admired Companies.” Discovery ranked #2 in the
Entertainment Industry, demonstrating the strength of our
brand, workforce and leadership.

Discovery’s success in 2009 was a testament to the
company’s strong execution, as well as the fundamental
strategic advantages that we believe will contribute to
expanded growth in 2010. These include:

Balanced and Diverse Revenue Streams

Nearly 50% of Discovery'’s revenue is generated from
recurring subscriber fees through multi-year contractual
relationships with our distribution partners. This long-cycle
revenue provides top-line sturdiness and helps insulate the
company from choppy and difficult environments, such

as we experienced this past year. Importantly, Discovery’s
revenue is also geographically diverse with more than one
third generated outside of the U.S., including many of the
fastest-growing pay-TV markets in the world.

For 2009, Discovery U.S. networks capitalized on the
escalators embedded in our affiliate contracts, as well as
the 5% expansion of the subscriber base primarily from
further penetration of our digital networks, to deliver

6% affiliate revenue growth. Internationally, Discovery's
networks leveraged the continued secular growth trends of
pay-TV around the globe to expand its subscriber base and
deliver 9% affiliate revenue growth, excluding the impact of
foreign currency fluctuations.

Given the opportunities to further expand Discovery’s
leadership overseas, near the end of 2009, we announced
that 18-year veteran Mark Hollinger would assume total
oversight of our international businesses. Elevating this
function and placing it in the hands of one of our most
experienced and capable leaders demonstrates our
commitment and steadfast approach to expanding both our
international revenues and margins.

Brand Strength and Ratings Momentum

Another advantage for Discovery in 2009 was the strength
of the company’s brand portfolio and our investment in
high-quality content. In the U.S., every one of Discovery’s
rated channels grabbed additional viewers in 2009 and
ratings for the portfolio as a whole grew in every quarter.
Primetime ratings delivery across Discovery’s domestic
networks was up 8% among key demographics in 2009.
This ratings strength enabled Discovery to post U.S.
advertising revenue growth of 2% in 2009, despite the weak
ad market.

Helping to drive this growth was strong performance at
TLC, which had its highest audience in five years and is now
a top 10 network for women with 10 shows averaging over
one million total viewers. Animal Planet also performed
strongly, increasing its viewership 16% among adults

25-54 and delivering its best ratings in six years. Finally,
Investigation Discovery (ID) has grown its target audience
nearly 200% since its January 2008 debut. All of these
networks continue to perform strongly year-to-date in 2010.

Similarly, the international networks experienced
double-digit viewership increases in 2009 across EMEA,

Latin America and Asia-Pacific, which translated into 10%
advertising growth, excluding foreign currency. This
momentum positions the company to capture an even larger
share of international advertising revenue as local economies
around the world continue to improve in 2010.

With a goal of super-charging our brands and marketing
and accelerating our ratings momentum, we recruited Peter




Liguori, one of the best marketing minds and programming
talents in the industry, to serve as Chief Operating Officer.
Already, Peter’s creative leadership is taking hold, as
evidenced by the company'’s first-ever cross-network
simulcast of the premiere episode of LIFE, the follow-up
series to PLANET EARTH, across seven of our U.S.
networks, with an additional six HD simulcasts.

Operating Flexibility and Cost Management

The final strategic advantage that boosted Discovery in
2009 was the company’s operating flexibility and stringent
focus on reducing our cost structure. Throughout the
year, the company took significant steps to restructure the
workforce, refine marketing spending and reduce research
costs, while continuing to invest in quality content for our
networks.

The net result of these efforts was a 2% reduction in
operating expenses, with programming investments
more than offset by reductions in SG&A spending.

When combined with revenue growth, this resulted

in real operating leverage with our operating margins
expanding to 42%. In the year ahead, we plan to further
invest in our brands and original content, but the focus
will remain on success-based investment that generates

a return. As a result, we expect margins to continue to
rise driven primarily by revenue expansion and a focus on
maintaining a stable cost base, rather than largely through
cost reductions.

Looking Toward the Future

We also moved aggressively this past year to better
position Discovery for long-term growth. The highest
profile of these initiatives was the continuing preparation
for the January 1, 2011, launch of OWN: THE OPRAH
WINFREY NETWORK. In early 2010, OWN announced
five series that will be part of the network’s initial slate,
including a behind-the-scenes series featuring Oprah
Winfrey that will document the last season of The Oprah
Winfrey Show.

Additionally, in 2009, Discovery formed a joint venture
with Hasbro to launch a new children’s and family
entertainment network, The Hub, in 2010, on what

is currently Discovery Kids. Discovery also invested

in organic growth with successful new brands like
Investigation Discovery, with the goal of capitalizing on
our U.S. distribution strength with meaningful brands that
can sustain long-term growth.

Lastly, at the beginning of 2010, Discovery announced

a partnership with Sony and IMAX to launch the first
24-hour 3D television network. This announcement was

a continuation of Discovery’s long heritage of innovation,
which began with the launch of Discovery Channel in 1985,
the first suite of digital cable networks in 1996 and the first
24-hour HD channel in 2002.

This past year was challenging, but ultimately made the
company stronger, as Discovery delivered on expectations,
achieved real growth, outperformed our peers and
strengthened our brand portfolio to set the stage for the
next generation of growth. As we head into 2010, in what
we anticipate will be an improved operating environment,
we believe strongly that the company’s sustained ratings
momentum, distribution strength and the leaner cost
structure position Discovery to deliver another strong
performance in the year ahead.

Thank you for your continued support.
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U John S. Hendricks

Founder and Chairman

David M. Zaslav
President and Chief
Executive Officer
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Since the launch of Discovery Channel in 1985, Discovery
Communications has been dedicated to the original
mission of Founder and Chairman John Hendricks - to

satisfy curiosity and make a difference in people’s lives

with the highest quality content, services and products

that entertain, engage and enlighten.

Now, as Discovery embarks on its 25th anniversary

year, we celebrate the “wow” moments and milestones
that have taken us from a single network in fewer

than 200,000 U.S. homes to the world’s number one
nonfiction media company reaching nearly 1.5 billion
cumulative subscribers in nearly 40 languages and more

than 170 countries around the globe.
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RUSSIA: LIVE FROM THE INSIDE airs on Discovery
Channel, providing U.S. viewers with 66 hours of live
Soviet television.
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The 1,9§§-|aQﬂc& of SHARK'WEEK, .a week-long themed
event, fed viewers’ hunger for knowledge about

~one bj‘];kle ocean’s-most notorious predators.
. = Premiering during the time between traditional ~
,ﬁ, f’éleyision seasons, SHARK WEEK has enjoyed strong
/-‘[atlngs smqe its debut. -

f-CIassm S_HARK WEEK moments have mcluded footage ~
- of huge great whites bursting out of the water and 10.
T . % - fe"’ét into-the air — shown for the very first time during
i 7 \ o ,.r' SHARK WEEK. Since its debut, SHARK WEEK also
ARy ~ : _ﬁ has partnefed with the worlds ritost.renowned shark
- - - i i experts and experienced underwater cinematographers
- - * to bring viewers the latest information about protecting -

. - - . - and preserving these fascinating creatures.

o

- - - Now entering its 23rd year, SHARK WEEK remains one
. A . " of Discovery Channel’s most highly anticipated annual
. events. The iconic image of a great white shark stalking
the ocean for prey has become synonymous with
’ - - the channel; and the themed weekly event strategy
that SHARK WEEK successfully introduced is now a
. common practice across the industry.

' - SHARK
WEEK

aDlscovery

NETWORKS INTERNATIONAL
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The 1991 acquisition of TLC — then known as The Learning Channel — provided
Discovery with a second U.S. cable platform, presaging an aggressive growth
strategy that would see the company’s portfolio expand to 13 networks in the U.S.
and more than 100 networks in over 170 countries around the world.

Starting with a mission to bring a world of ideas to viewers, TLC has evolved into
cable’s premier platform for showcasing the unique and colorful human experience,
and bringing viewers into characters’ lives with great respect.

As a top 10 network with women, TLC provides an excellent complement to Discovery
Channel’s male-skewing audience demographic for Discovery’s advertising clients.

In 2009, TLC had an unprecedented 10 series that averaged a 1.0 household rating or
higher, including returning hits like WHAT NOT TO WEAR and new breakout series like
CAKE BOSS, which was a top five program for women 25-54 in its debut season.

TLc

of ideas accessible to viewers.




Discovery Networks International continues
global expansion with a weekly programming
block in Japan.
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In 1996, Animal Planet became Discovery thi
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g G - * . Discovery continued its heritage of innovation
Y : - : in 1996 with the launch of the industry’s first
5 suite of networks on digital cable. The suite
included Science Channel, the.only:network
devoted entirely to science and science news.

Iln.2009, Science Channel was the fastest
growing non-kids, non-sports, ad-sup'ported
éalc;le network in the U.S. among households.
F as recorded four consecutive quarters of
yearover-year growth in key demographics;

) peJU ing |ts best series debut ever among
“petdons 25- 84 with SCI FI' SCIENCE and

] -. ’ts I,arge program dgllvery ever among
househelds with PUI FUNKIN.
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1996
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Animal Planet, Discovery’s th

e i
Discovery announces plans to launch the first suite of

network, launches in the U.S digital cable networks, including Science Channel.
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In 1997, Discovery further embraced the original mission of Founder and Chairman
John Hendricks to satisfy curiosity and make a difference with the launch of the
Discovery Channel Global Education Partnership (DCGEP), a public nonprofit
organization dedicated to harnessing the power of television in under-resourced
schools around the world to improve student learning, teacher effectiveness, access
to information and community involvement in the schools.

Over the past 13 years, DCGEP has delivered educational opportunities to more
than 700,000 children. Through partnerships with Discovery, Chevron and the
Coca-Cola Africa Foundation, DCGEP now operates 241 learning centers in 16
countries. In 2009, DCGEP and Chevron were recognized for their work with the
2009 Partnership Award from the U.S. Chamber of Commerce Business Civic
Leadership Center.

In honor of its 25th anniversary in 2010, Discovery employees will be
conducting a global IMPACT volunteerism day and the company has launched (:D]scuvery
www.DiscoveryOurlmpact.com, a website dedicated to showcasing all of the

ways in which Discovery and its employees make a positive impact on the planet.

e LA

1 §| ﬁﬁ.

Discovery Channel. Global Education Partnership is .Discovery en Espanol launches as Discovery'’s

launched with the opening of its first learning center Spanish-language network in the U.S. In 2009,

O F ATriCa. Discovery en Espanol recorded double-digit growth
in key demographics, out-delivering many sports

EEGOUEI‘U and youth-driven music networks and ranking as the
 CHANNEL - . -
3 number two Hispanic pay-TV network in the U.S.

“iscovery

EN ESPANOL




and wellness issues.

student as “America’s Top Young Scientist.” The compe-
tition enters its 11th year in 2010 through a partnership
with 3M as the Discovery Education 3M Young Scientist
Challenge.
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An early entrant onto the international pay-TV landscape, Discovery has been on
the ground in international markets for over 20 years, building the relationships,
technical capabilities and scale required to grow a profitable and efficient global
business. Today, Discovery Networks International distributes a diversified portfolio

cumulative subscribers in 38 languages and more than 170 countries.

With regional operations in the UK, EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa),

i

- Asia-Pacific and Latin America that span some of the world’s fastest growing pay-TV
' markets, Discovery continues to grow its distribution base, build local advertising

sales capabilities and further strengthen the programming and category leadership
of its brands around the world.

~n 2009, Discovery's international audience increased 18% over the prior year and
ed more than one million adult 25-54 viewers in primetime around the world.
Y hip for the flagship Discovery Channel grew 15% and the channel remained
network in the majority of international markets. Discovery Kids and
& Health also remained top networks for women and childr

iy has begun the international rollout of TLC, its
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Discovery furthered its commitment to lifelong

learning and student ac'ievement in 2004 with the
launch of Discovery Educatio*,offering a suite of
curriculum-based tools designed to foster student
achievement, as well as educator enhancement
resources assessment services, professional

nationwide teacher community
that promotes integration of media and technology
in the classroom.

ay, Discovery Education streaming, an online
n-demand service, delivers approximately
9,000 digital videos and 70,000 content-specific video
clips correlated to state K-12 curriculum standards to
approximately 60,000 public and private K-12 schools

Discover?/ Education Science offers elementary and

serving over one million teachers in the U.S.

middle schools dynamic science content, virtu
simulati n ore. Discovery Education Hea
is a robust : revention library that focuses
on building life skills. Discovery Educatio
provides educational services globally a
corporate, nonprofit and foundation pa

curriculum programs and to support bre

student initiatives.

-

EDUCATION

TRADING SPACES: 100 GRAND draws over nine
the highest-rated program on the network at that time.

FitTV, the first 24-hour TV network devoted to fitness launches in the U.S.

is the leading provider to
U.S. K-12 schools.




MILITARY




4

Introduced in June 2008, Planet Green and its two

robust websites PlanetGreen.com and TreeHugger.
com, offer unique, original, insightful, inspiring and
entertaining content related to how we can evolve to
live a better, brighter future. Planet Green’s unique
programming, digital tools and content will enlighten,
empower and most certainly, rtain.

d CEO David Zaslav
were recognized as “Forces for Nature” by the Natural
Resources Defense Council (NFQC) for the launch

of Planet Green and Discovery’s 25-year tradition of

In 2009, Discovery and Presi

embracing “green” as a corporate value. Programming
highlights on Planet Green in 2009 included

OPERATION WILD, LIVING WITH ED, WA$TED and _
the REEL IMPACT weekly film series.

lanet
reen
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Since its debut in January 2008, Investigation Discovery (ID) has been the fastest growing ad-supported
cable network among women'25-54. ID is the source for fact-based investigative content about culture,
history and the human condlition. Providing the highest quality investigative programming focused

an nature from the past to the present, ID’s in-depth documentaries and
'_g 12 4» es shaping our culture and defining our world.

on fascinating stories of h

series challenge viewers

ID delivered a string of
CASE WITH PAULA
special premiere wif

: ={ ding its best original series debut with ON THE
] eason one finale of THE SHIFT and its best
RY. ID ala%:xpanded internationally,
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iscovery announces * The Questions
of Life,” a landmark, 60-episode television series
spearheaded by Discovery Founder and Chairman
John Hendricks and designed to tackle the
fundamental questions and underlying mysteries
of our time, debuting in 2011.

and IMAX announce joint venture to bring 3D to
the home with the launch of a dedicated 24/7 3D
television channel.

™




Continuing in the tradition of ground-breaking natural history documentary specials
like BLUE PLANET and PLANET EARTH, Discovery Channel premiered LIFE in 2010.
Narrated by global media leader and philanthropist Oprah Winfrey, the epic
television series LIFE is the definitive exploration of our planet’s living things and
their spectacular, bizarre and fascinating behaviors.

Epic in scope, yet intimate in its storytelling, LIFE was more than four years in the
making, with over 3,000 days of filming in the field, spanning every continent and
every habitat. Each episode focused on a different animal or plant group, engrossing
viewers with never-before-seen behaviors using the latest in state-of-the-art
high-definition filming techniques.

From strange creatures, such as the star-nosed mole that hunts underwater using
bubbles to smell its prey, to grand spectacles, like millions of fruit bats darkening

the Zambian sky, LIFE tells mind-blowing stories of survival with drama, humor
and suspense.

0 C | JISC ery cnann
r 0, O

Discovery Communications and Hasbro, Inc., launch
The Hub children’s network.

THE OPRAH WINFREY NETWORK
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PART I

ITEM 1. Business.

Overview

CEINT3

Discovery Communications, Inc. (“Discovery”, “we”, “us” or “our”) is a leading global media and entertainment company. We
were formed on September 17, 2008, in connection with Discovery Holding Company (“DHC”) and Advance/Newhouse
Programming Partnership (“Advance/Newhouse”) combining their respective ownership interests in Discovery Communications
Holding, LLC (“DCH”) and exchanging those interests with and into Discovery. Prior to September 17, 2008, DCH was a stand-alone
private company, which was owned approximately 66*/3% by DHC and 33 '/3% by Advance/Newhouse. As a result of this transaction
we became the successor reporting entity to DHC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

As one of the world’s largest nonfiction media companies, we provide original and purchased programming across multiple
distribution platforms in the United States (“U.S.”) and more than 170 other countries. Led by the flagship Discovery Channel, one of
the first nonfiction cable networks and our most widely distributed global brand, Discovery enables people to explore the world and
satisfy their curiosity through more than 100 worldwide networks offering customized programming in 38 languages. In addition to
Discovery Channel, our global portfolio includes prominent television brands such as TLC, Animal Planet, Science Channel,
Investigation Discovery, Planet Green, Discovery Travel and Living, Discovery Home and Health and HD Theater, as well as leading
consumer and educational products and services, and a diversified portfolio of digital media services including HowStuffWorks.com.

Our media content spans genres including science, exploration, survival, natural history, sustainability of the environment,
technology, anthropology, paleontology, history, space, archaeology, health and wellness, engineering, adventure, lifestyles and
current events. This type of programming tends to be culturally neutral and maintains its relevance for an extended period of time. As
a result, our content translates well across international borders and is made even more accessible through extensive use of dubbing
and subtitles in local languages, as well as the creation of local programming tailored to individual market preferences.

Our content is designed to target key audience demographics and the popularity of our programming offers a reason for
advertisers to purchase time on our channels. Our audience ratings are a key driver in generating advertising revenue and creating
demand on the part of cable television operators, direct-to-home (“DTH?”) satellite operators and other content distributors to deliver
our programming to their customers.

We have an extensive library of programming and footage that provides a source of content for creating new services and
launching into new markets and onto new platforms. Generally, we own most or all rights to the majority of this programming and
footage, which enables us to exploit our library to launch new brands and services into new markets quickly without significant
incremental spending. Our programming can be re-edited and updated in a cost-effective manner to provide topical versions of subject
matter that can be utilized around the world.

In addition to growing distribution and advertising revenue for our branded channels, we are focused on extending content
distribution across new distribution platforms, including brand-aligned web properties, mobile devices, video-on-demand and
broadband channels, which provide promotional platforms for our television programming and serve as additional outlets for
advertising and affiliate sales. We also operate internet sites including HowStuffWorks.com, Petfinder.com, and Treehugger.com that
provide supplemental news, information and entertainment aligned with our television programming.

We also are utilizing our programming assets to take advantage of the growing demand for high definition (“HD”) programming
in the U.S. and throughout the world. In 2009, we provided HD simulcasts of six of our U.S. Networks (Discovery Channel, TLC,
Animal Planet, Science Channel, Investigation Discovery and Planet Green), in addition to our stand-alone U.S. HD Theater channel.
In 2009, we also expanded our international HD operations to include HD channels (Discovery HD, Animal Planet HD and TLC HD)
in 61 markets outside of the U.S., making us one of the leading international providers of HD programming, based on the number of
markets we serve. We believe we are well positioned to take advantage of the accelerating growth in sales of HD televisions and the
expanding distribution of HD channels around the world. Where we operate HD simulcasts of our networks, we also benefit from the
ability to aggregate standard and HD audiences for advertising sales purposes. In January 2010, we announced our intent to form a
joint venture with Sony Corporation and IMAX Corporation to launch a 24-hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week, three-dimensional (“3-D”)
channel in the U.S., positioning us to capitalize on the recent success of 3-D feature films and projected growth in sales of 3-D
television sets.

Our strategy is to deliver sustainable long-term growth through the development of high-quality media brands that build
consumer viewership, optimize distribution revenue and capture advertising sales. In addition, we are focused on maximizing the
overall efficiency and effectiveness of our global operations through collaboration and innovation across operating units and regions
around the world, and across all television and digital media.



In line with this strategy, our specific priorities include:

*  Maintaining our focus on creative excellence in nonfiction programming and expanding the portfolio’s brand entitlement
by developing compelling content that promotes audience growth, builds advertising relationships and has global utility.

*  Leveraging our distribution strength in the U.S. — with three channels each reaching more than 95 million subscribers in
the U.S. and Canada and five channels each reaching between 50 million and 75 million subscribers in the U.S. and
Canada — to create or reposition additional branded channels and businesses that can sustain long-term growth and
occupy a desired programming niche with strong consumer appeal.

* Increasing the value of our distribution strength outside of the U.S. — with at least two channels in more than 170 countries
around the world — to maintain a leadership position in nonfiction entertainment in international markets and build
additional branded channels and businesses that can sustain long-term growth. This includes expanding local advertising
sales capabilities, creating licensing and digital growth opportunities, utilizing broadcast and other additional distribution
opportunities in select markets, and leveraging operating efficiencies through development and promotional collaboration
between the U.S. Networks and International Networks segments.

*  Developing and growing compelling content experiences on new platforms that are aligned with our core branded
channels. Specifically, extending ownership of nonfiction entertainment to new platforms and technologies around the
world to satisfy viewers’ curiosity and enhance the consumer entertainment experience, provide new cross-platform sales
and promotional opportunities with our television networks, and create additional reach for our content by leveraging the
economies realized through programs that can be produced once and used often in both long-term and short-term formats.

Recent Developments
Accounting for Variable Interest Entities

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) statement amending the
accounting for interests in a variable interest entity (“VIE”). Pursuant to the adoption of this statement, beginning January 1, 2010, we
will no longer consolidate the Oprah Winfrey Network (“OWN”) and Animal Planet Japan (“APJ”) joint ventures and will account for
our interest in these entities under the equity method of accounting. However, we continued to consolidate OWN and APJ through
December 31, 2009. Accordingly, the financial information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the financial position and
operating results of OWN and APJ for 2009 and 2008. Beginning in 2010, we will apply the provisions of the new statement
retrospectively to financial information for all periods presented by recasting prior period results to conform to the new presentation.
Additional financial information related to OWN and APJ as well as the impact of adopting the new statement is set forth in Item 7
and Note 2 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Reportable Segments

Effective January 1, 2010, we realigned the Discovery Commerce business from the Commerce, Education, and Other reporting
segment into the U.S. Networks reporting segment. In connection with this realignment we changed the name of our Commerce,
Education, and Other reporting segment to Education and Other. The financial information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
not been recast to reflect the realignment. Accordingly, the results of operations for the Discovery Commerce business are included in
the financial results for the Commerce, Education, and Other segment. Beginning in 2010, we will include the Discovery Commerce
business in the financial results for the U.S. Networks segment and will recast prior period results to conform to the new presentation.

Hasbro-Discovery Joint Venture

On May 22, 2009, we formed a 50-50 joint venture with Hasbro, Inc. (“Hasbro”) that will operate a television network and
website dedicated to high-quality children’s and family entertainment and educational programming. In connection with the
arrangement, Discovery contributed the U.S. Discovery Kids Network (“Discovery Kids”) to the joint venture. Additionally, Hasbro
acquired a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture for a cash payment of $300 million and a tax receivables agreement collectible
over 20 years valued at $57 million, which resulted in a total gain of $252 million. The rebranded network, the Hub, is scheduled to
premiere in late 2010. Additional information regarding the joint venture is set forth in Note 4 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Discovery Commerce Business

In April 2009, we completed the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model by outsourcing the commerce direct-
to-consumer operations including our commerce website, related marketing, product development and fulfillment to a third party in
exchange for royalties. The new structure for our commerce business enables us to continue offering high quality DVD programming
as well as many merchandise categories leveraging both licensed and make and sell products.



Segment Information

In 2009, we operated through three segments: (1) U.S. Networks, (2) International Networks, and (3) Commerce, Education, and
Other. Financial information related to our operating segments is set forth in Note 23 to our consolidated financial statements found in
Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

U.S. Networks

Reaching approximately 724 million cumulative subscribers (defined below) primarily in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009, and
having one of the industry’s most widely distributed portfolios of brands, U.S. Networks delivers 11 cable and satellite television
channels primarily in the U.S. The portfolio includes three channels that each reach more than 95 million subscribers (defined below)
and five channels that each reach between 50 and 75 million subscribers.

Our U.S. networks are wholly-owned except for Discovery Kids, which is operated through a 50-50 joint venture between us
and Hasbro. Currently, we own and operate the Discovery Health Channel. However, pursuant to our joint venture arrangement for
OWN, we will contribute our interest in the Discovery Health Channel to OWN, which is expected to occur in 2011.

Subscriber numbers set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include both wholly-owned networks and networks operated
by joint ventures and are according to The Nielsen Company, except for Discovery Kids, Planet Green, FitTV and HD Theater, where
Nielsen data is either not available and/or internal data are used. As used herein, a “subscriber” is a single household that receives the
applicable Discovery channel from its cable television operator, DTH satellite operator, or other television provider, including those
who receive our networks from pay-television providers without charge pursuant to various pricing plans that include free periods
and/or free carriage. The term “cumulative subscribers” refers to the collective sum of the total number of subscribers to each of our
channels. By way of example, two households that each receive five of our networks from their television provider represent two
subscribers, but 10 cumulative subscribers.

The networks operated by the U.S. Networks segment include:

~")DI SCOVG ry Discovery Channel

cHANNELT + Discovery Channel reached approximately 100 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31,

20009.

+ Discovery Channel is dedicated to creating high-quality nonfiction content that informs and
entertains viewers about the wonder and diversity of the world. The network offers a mix of genres
including science and technology, exploration, adventure, history and in-depth, behind-the-scenes
glimpses at the people, places and organizations that shape and share our world.

* Programming highlights on Discovery Channel include Deadliest Catch, MythBusters, Dirty Jobs,
Man Vs. Wild, Storm Chasers, Swamp Loggers, Pitchmen and Colony. Discovery Channel is also
home to specials and mini-series, including the critically acclaimed Planet Earth, When We Left
Earth: The NASA Missions and Discovering Ardi.

» Target viewers are adults ages 25-54, particularly men.

» Discovery Channel is simulcast in HD.

TLC

T L C * TLC reached approximately 99 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009. TLC also
reached approximately 8 million subscribers in Canada, according to internal data.

* TLC features docu-series and reality-based programming about the lives of real-life extraordinary
characters.

* Programming highlights on TLC include Cake Boss, Little Couple, What Not to Wear, Little People,
Big World, Police Women of Broward County, Say Yes to the Dress, LA Ink and 18 Kids and
Counting.

» Target viewers are adults ages 18-49, particularly women.

e TLC is simulcast in HD.
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Animal Planet

Animal Planet reached approximately 96 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009.

Animal Planet provides a full range of programming related to life in the animal kingdom with
content that offers animal lovers and pet owners access to a centralized online, television and
mobile community for entertainment and information.

Programming highlights on Animal Planet include Whale Wars, River Monsters, I'm Alive,
Monsters Inside Me, Pit Bulls and Parolees and Dogs 101.

Target viewers are adults ages 25-54.

Animal Planet is simulcast in HD.

Discovery Health

Discovery Health reached approximately 74 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31,
2009.

Discovery Health provides information that helps viewers better understand health and wellness
issues. From pregnancy and parenting to diet and disease prevention, Discovery Health delivers
real-life stories.

In 2011, Discovery Health will be repositioned as OWN through a 50-50 joint venture between
Discovery and Harpo, Inc. OWN will be a multi-platform venture, including the OWN television
network and Oprah.com, designed to entertain, inform and inspire people to live their best lives.

OWN will build on Discovery Health’s target audience of women ages 25-54.

Discovery Kids

Discovery Kids reached approximately 51 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009.

Discovery Kids allows kids of all ages (from preschoolers to ‘tweens and teens) to explore the
world from their point of view. The network provides programming that enables kids to learn about
science, adventure, exploration and natural history through documentaries, reality shows, scripted
dramas and animated stories.

In late 2010, Discovery Kids will be repositioned as THE HUB through a 50-50 joint venture
between Discovery and Hasbro. The network will feature original animation programming, game
shows and live-action series and specials, including content drawn from Hasbro’s portfolio of
entertainment and educational properties, content from Discovery’s extensive library of award-
winning children’s educational programming, and third-party acquisitions.

Target viewers are children ages 3-12 and families.
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Science Channel

Science Channel reached approximately 62 million subscribers in the U.S. as of
December 31, 2009.

Science Channel immerses viewers in the possibilities of science, from string theory and futuristic
cities to accidental discoveries and outrageous inventions. The network celebrates the trials, errors
and moments that change our human experience.

Programming highlights on Science Channel include How It’s Made, Space Week, Sci Fi Science:
Physics of the Impossible, How Do They Do It?, Build It Bigger, and Punkin Chunkin.

Target viewers are men ages 25-54.

Science Channel is simulcast in HD.

Planet Green

Planet Green reached approximately 48 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009.

Planet Green targets viewers who want to understand how humans impact the planet and how to
live a more environmentally sustainable lifestyle. The network offers unique, original and insightful
content related to how we can evolve to live a better, brighter future.

Programming highlights on Planet Green include Operation Wild, Living with Ed, Conviction
Kitchen, Blood, Sweat and Takeaways, Wasted, and the Reel Impact weekly film series.

Target viewers are adults ages 18-54.

Planet Green is simulcast in HD.

Investigation Discovery

Investigation Discovery reached approximately 55 million subscribers in the U.S. as of
December 31, 2009.

Investigation Discovery is a source for fact-based investigative content about culture, history and

the human condition, and provides investigative programming focused on stories of human nature
from the past to the present, documentaries, and series that challenge viewers on important issues

shaping our culture and defining our world.

Programming highlights on Investigation Discovery include On the Case with Paula Zahn, The
Bureau, Disappeared, I (Almost) Got Away With It, and Extreme Forensics.

Target viewers are adults ages 25-54.

Investigation Discovery is simulcast in HD.

Military Channel

Military Channel reached approximately 55 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31,
2009.

Military Channel brings viewers real-world stories of heroism, military strategy, technological
breakthroughs and turning points in history. The network takes viewers “behind the lines” to hear
the personal stories of servicemen and women and offers in-depth explorations of military
technology, battlefield strategy, aviation and history.

Programming highlights on Military Channel include At Sea, Special Ops Mission, Great Planes,
and Top Sniper.

Target viewers are men ages 35-64.



FitTV

f’ tw * FitTV reached approximately 46 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009.

FitTV is designed to inspire viewers to improve their fitness and well-being on their terms. FitTV
features approachable experts and shows that help real people learn how to incorporate fitness into
their busy lives.

» Target viewers are adults ages 25-54.

HD Theater
» HD Theater reached approximately 30 million subscribers in the U.S. as of December 31, 2009.

T HEATER + HD Theater was one of the first nationwide 24-hours-a-day, 7-days-a-week high definition
networks in the U.S. offering content in virtually all categories of entertainment from across
Discovery’s family of networks. The network showcases programming about adventure, nature,
wildlife, history, travel, science and technology, world culture and more.

* Programming highlights on HD Theater include World Rally Championship and Mecum Auto
Auctions: Muscle Cars.

» Target viewers are adults ages 25-54, particularly men.

U.S. Networks also includes our digital media businesses in the United States, which provide cross-platform sales and
promotional opportunities with our television networks and additional reach for our content by leveraging the economies realized
through programs that can be produced once and used often in both long-term and short-term formats across multiple platforms.
Digital media features three main components:

*  U.S. brand-aligned channel websites, such as Discovery.com, TLC.com and AnimalPlanet.com, and complementary
stand-alone websites: HowStuffWorks.com, an award-winning online source of explanations of how the world actually
works; Treechugger.com, an eco-lifestyle website that complements the Planet Green television network; and
Petfinder.com, a leading pet adoption destination that provides an additional promotional platform for the Animal Planet
brand. Together, these websites attracted an average of more than 36 million cumulative unique monthly visitors in 2009,
according to internal data. Discovery also offers content through a variety of online syndication partnerships.

+  Discovery Mobile, which offers unique made-for-mobile short-form content and long-form episodes of popular titles
through distribution arrangements with the majority of mobile carriers in the U.S., as well as a collection of smartphone
applications and direct-to-consumer mobile websites for multiple network brands including Discovery Channel, TLC, and
Animal Planet.

*  Discovery on-demand, a free video-on-demand service distributed across most major U.S. affiliates, which features full-
length programming and short-form content from Discovery’s portfolio of U.S. networks.

International Networks

Reaching approximately 685 million cumulative subscribers (defined below) in more than 170 countries outside the U.S. as of
December 31, 2009, International Networks operates one of the largest international multi-channel businesses in the media industry.
International Networks distributes a diversified portfolio of 22 brands designed to meet the needs of audiences, affiliates and
advertisers across multiple regions and markets. The segment maximizes the use of shared content and our global programming
pipeline in order to drive consumer engagement and efficiencies across all core brands, and delivers locally targeted customized
programming, on-air content and schedules in 38 languages via more than 100 localized feeds. International Networks encompasses
four locally-managed regional operations covering all major foreign pay television markets, including the United Kingdom (“U.K.”),
Europe (excluding the U.K.), Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”), Asia-Pacific, and Latin America, and has 29 international offices
with regional headquarters located in London, Miami and Singapore.



International subscriber statistics include both wholly-owned networks and networks operated by joint ventures and are derived
from internal data coupled with external sources when available. As used herein, an “international subscriber” is a single household
that receives the applicable Discovery network or programming service from its cable television operator, DTH satellite operator, or
other television provider, including those who receive our networks from pay television providers without charge pursuant to various
pricing plans that include free periods and/or free carriage. The term “cumulative subscribers” outside the U.S. refers to the collective
sum of the total number of international subscribers to each of our international channels or programming services outside of the
U.S. By way of example, two international households that each receive five of our networks from their television provider represent
two subscribers, but 10 cumulative subscribers outside the U.S.

In addition to our cumulative subscribers noted above, we provide branded programming blocks in China, which are generally
provided without charge to third-party channels and represented approximately 279 million viewers as of December 31, 2009. Such
viewers have been excluded from all subscriber amounts in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Our international networks are wholly owned by us except (1) the international Animal Planet channels which are generally 50-
50 joint ventures with the British Broadcasting Corporation (“BBC”), (2) People+Arts, which operates in Latin America and Iberia as
a 50-50 joint venture with the BBC, and (3) several channels in Canada and Japan, which operate as joint ventures with strategic local
partners and which are not consolidated in our financial statements.

International Networks is a leader across international markets in factual multi-channel television. The portfolio consists largely
of global brands led by Discovery Channel and Animal Planet, which each reach more than 100 million homes in international
markets. Newer global digital brands in the factual portfolio include Discovery Science, which is distributed in more than
90 countries, ID: Investigation Discovery, Discovery Turbo and Discovery World. In addition, International Networks offers HD
channels for Discovery, Animal Planet and TLC in 61 international markets and is one of the industry’s leading international providers
of HD.

The networks operated by the International Networks segment include:
Network Brand Subscribers Network Overview

Discovery Channel 187 million subscribers Discovery Channel’s international programming includes
documentaries, docudramas and reality formats covering topics and
themes, including human adventure and exploration, engineering,
science, history and world culture.

Animal Planet 141 million subscribers Animal Planet is the world’s only brand that immerses viewers in
content devoted to animals.

Discovery Travel & Living 87 million subscribers  Discovery Travel & Living provides content for adults who want to
experience the best the world has to offer by providing an eclectic
mix of programming on travel, food, design and décor.

DMAX 43 million subscribers  In Germany, DMAX targets a younger male audience with a mix of
fiction and nonfiction content. It has broad distribution throughout
the country’s cable systems, reaching approximately 85% of cable
homes, but does not get subscription fees and is therefore wholly
dependent on advertising revenue.

In the U.K., DMAX is a broad-based service that combines fiction
and non-fiction content. It is distributed without a subscription fee
by both major distributors in the U.K., but is positioned in the
Entertainment section of the electronic program guide of Sky, the
largest distributor, and is intended to be a strong advertising sales
vehicle because of the concentration of viewership in Entertainment
channels.

Discovery Science 41 million subscribers  Discovery Science network features programming that uncovers the
impact of science and technology.

Discovery Home & Health 36 million subscribers  Discovery Home & Health targets women who strive to be the very
best they can be in all the many demanding roles they play.

Discovery Kids 28 million subscribers ~ One of the leading channels in Latin America among preschoolers
and women, Discovery Kids provides a unique environment that
nurtures children’s curiosity and encourages life-long learning.

ID: Investigation Discovery 10 million subscribers  ID: Investigation Discovery offers programming that focuses on the
science of forensics and uses dramatic, fact-based storytelling to
provide in-depth analysis of investigations.

HD Services 6 million subscribers One of the leading international providers of HD networks,
International Networks offers HD services in 61 international
markets including Discovery HD, Animal Planet HD, TLC HD and
a Discovery Channel HD simulcast service in Japan and Italy.
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International Networks also distributes specialized brands developed for individual regions and markets to 106 million
subscribers including Discovery Knowledge, Shed and Quest in the U.K.; Discovery Civilization and People + Arts in Latin America
and Iberia; Discovery Real Time in the U.K., Italy and France; and Discovery Historia in Poland. In addition, International Networks
distributes two Spanish-language networks, Discovery en Espanol and Discovery Familia, that are distributed to a combined
10 million U.S. subscribers.

International Networks also operates Antenna Audio, which is the leading provider of audio, multimedia and mobile tours for
museums, exhibitions, historic sites and visitor attractions around the world. More than 19 million visitors take Antenna Audio tours
in various languages at well-known and frequented locations each year, including museums such as the Metropolitan Museum of Art,
the Musée du Louvre and Tate; historic and cultural sites including Graceland and Alcatraz; and popular destinations such as the
Statue of Liberty and Vatican.

Commerce, Education, and Other

Commerce

Commerce plays an important role in support of our overall strategic objectives by enhancing viewer loyalty through direct
interaction with our brands. Commerce is focused on extending our on-air brands and increasing the reach of our products through our
e-commerce platform and licensing arrangements. Commerce’s platforms include:

*  Direct-to-Consumer: includes a printed catalog and the DiscoveryStore.com e-commerce site where customers can shop
for a large assortment of our proprietary merchandise and other products. During the first quarter of 2009, we entered into
a licensing agreement with a third party for the direct-to-consumer component of our commerce business that includes a
catalog and e-commerce platform. Under the agreement, we receive royalties for merchandise sales and wholesale
payments for DVDs sold, while the third party has assumed management and operational responsibility for the
DiscoveryStore.com website and product development and fulfillment responsibility for merchandise.

*  Domestic Licensing and Merchandising: includes agreements with key manufacturers and retailers, including
Merchsource, Trau & Loevner, GAP Adventures, JAKKS, Toys R Us and others to develop long-term, strategic programs
that translate our network brands and signature properties into an array of merchandising opportunities. From Animal
Planet toy and pet products, Mythbusters books, DVDs and calendars to LA Ink apparel and accessories, domestic
licensing develops products that capture the look and feel of our core brands and programs.

Domestic home video/DVD licensing and merchandising also includes a strategic partnership with Gaiam, a video
distributor. Gaiam distributes Discovery’s high-quality on-air content in standard and Blu-ray format to mass and niche
retailers, including Walmart, Target and Borders.

Education

Education offers a suite of curriculum-based tools designed to foster student achievement, as well as enhancement resources
such as student assessment services, professional development and a nationwide educator community that promotes the integration of
digital media and technology in the classroom. Education services include:

*  Discovery Education Streaming: an online video-on-demand service that features over 10,000 digital videos and over
75,000 content-specific video clips correlated to state K-12 curriculum standards. The service is made available through
subscription services to over 55,000 public and private K-12 schools serving teachers nationwide.

*  Discovery Education Assessment: a service that enables K-12 educators to measure student progress toward meeting state
reading/language arts, math and science standards on an ongoing basis, provide differentiated instruction, predict student
performance, and improve student learning.

Education also works with corporate partners to create sponsored supplemental curriculum programs and to support education-
based student initiatives, such as the Discovery Education 3M Young Scientist Challenge and the Siemens We Can Change the World
Challenge.

Education also publishes and distributes content on DVD and CD-ROM through catalogs, an online teacher store, and a network
of distributors, participates in global licensing and sponsorship programs with corporate partners to create supplemental curriculum
programs and to support education-based student initiatives and supports our digital initiatives by providing educational content in
multiple formats that meet the needs of teachers and students.

10



Other

Our Creative Sound Services (“CSS”) business provides post-production sound, music, mixing sound effects and other related
services to major motion picture studios, independent producers, broadcast networks, cable channels, advertising agencies and
interactive producers. CSS services are marketed under the brand names Todd-AO, Sound One, Soundelux, POP Sound, Modern
Music, Soundelux Design Music Group and The Hollywood Edge, with facilities in Los Angeles, New York and London.

Content Development

Our content development strategy is designed to increase viewership, maintain innovation and quality leadership, and provide
value for our distributors and advertising customers. Our production agreements fall into three categories: commissions, co-
productions and acquisitions. Commissions refer to programming for which we generally own most or all rights for at least 10 years
and, in exchange for paying all production costs, retain all editorial control. Co-productions refer to programs where we retain
significant (but more limited) rights to exploit the programs. The rights retained by us are generally in proportion to the total project
costs we pay or incur, which generally ranges from 35% to 75% of the total project cost. Co-productions are typically high-cost
projects for which neither we nor our co-producers wish to bear the entire cost or productions in which the producer has already taken
on an international broadcast partner. Acquisitions are license agreements for films or series that have already been produced.

As network distribution and revenues have grown, our program mix has matured from acquired content to sharing in co-
productions to full commissions. To minimize programming expense in the early stages, as an audience base begins to form, we use
acquired programming to a greater extent and repeat it frequently. The transition from acquired content provides for more customized
use of programming for individual networks and broader rights for re-use on television networks and new platforms.

We source content from a wide range of producers, building long-standing relationships with some of the world’s leading
nonfiction production companies, as well as consistently developing and encouraging young independent producers.

The programming schedule on our most widely distributed networks is mostly a mix of high-cost “special event” programming
combined with miniseries and regular series. Large-scale programming events such as Planet Earth, When We Left Earth: The NASA
Missions, Nefertiti Resurrected, and Walking With Cavemen bring brand prestige, favorable media coverage and substantial cross-
promotional opportunities for other content platforms. Given the success of these global programming “tent-poles” we will continue to
invest in a mix of programs that have the potential to draw larger audiences while also increasing the investment in regularly
scheduled series.

We have an extensive library of programming and footage that provides a high-quality source of programming for debuting new
services quickly without significant incremental spending. Programming can be re-edited and updated to provide topical versions of
subject matter in a cost-effective manner. Library development also provides a mechanism to share content around the world and
repurpose for display on new digital and mobile platforms.

Sources of Revenue

We earn revenue principally from (1) the receipt of affiliate fees from the delivery of nonfiction programming pursuant to
affiliation agreements with cable television operators, DTH satellite operators, and other distributors of television programming,
(2) advertising sales on our television networks and websites, and (3) product, subscription sales and services in the commerce,
education and media sound services businesses. No single customer represented more than 10% of our total consolidated revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2009.

Distribution Revenues

Distribution revenues represented 49% of our consolidated total revenues in 2009. Distribution revenue in the U.S. represented
46% of U.S. Networks revenue, and international distribution fees represented 61% of International Networks revenue in 2009.
Distribution revenue is generated through affiliation agreements with cable operators, DTH satellite operators, and other television
distributors, which typically have a term of three to seven years. These affiliation agreements generally provide for the level of
carriage our networks will receive, such as channel placement and package inclusion (whether on more widely distributed, broader
packages or lesser-distributed, specialized packages), and for payment of a fee to us based on the numbers of subscribers that receive
our networks. Upon the launch of a new channel, we may initially pay distributors to carry such channel (such payments are referred
to as “launch incentives”), or may provide the channel to the distributor for free for a predetermined length of time. We have long-
term contracts with distributors representing most cable and satellite operators around the world, including the largest operators in the
U.S. and major international distributors. In the U.S., over 90% of distribution revenue comes from the top 10 distributors, with whom
we have agreements that expire at various times in 2010 through 2017. Outside of the U.S., less than 50% of distribution revenue
comes from the top 10 distributors.
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Advertising Revenue

Advertising revenues comprised 41% of our consolidated total revenues in 2009. Advertising revenue in the U.S. represented
51% of U.S. Networks revenue, and international advertising revenue represented 29% of International Networks revenue in 2009. We
typically build network brands by securing as broad a subscriber base as possible. After obtaining sufficient distribution to provide an
attractive platform for advertising, we increase our investment in programming and marketing to build audience share and drive strong
ratings performance in order to increase advertising sales opportunities. Advertising revenue depends on the number of subscribers
receiving the service, viewership demographics, the ability to sell commercial time over a group of networks, the brand appeal of the
network and ratings as determined by third-party research companies such as The Nielsen Company. Revenue from advertising is
subject to seasonality, market-based variations, and general economic conditions. Advertising revenue is typically highest in the
second and fourth quarters. Revenue can also fluctuate due to the popularity of particular programs and viewership ratings. In some
cases, advertising sales are subject to ratings guarantees that may require us to provide additional advertising time or refunds if the
guarantees are not met.

We sell advertising time in both the upfront and scatter markets. In the upfront market, advertisers buy advertising time for the
upcoming season, and by purchasing in advance, often receive discounted rates. In the scatter market, advertisers buy advertising time
close to the time when the commercials will be run, and often pay a premium. The mix between the upfront and scatter markets is
based upon a number of factors such as pricing, demand for advertising time and economic conditions.

Our two largest networks, Discovery Channel and TLC, target key demographics that historically have been considered
attractive to advertisers, notably viewers in the 18-54 age range who are viewed as having significant spending power. Discovery
Channel’s target audience skews toward male viewers, while TLC targets female viewers, providing a demographic balance in our
portfolio for distribution and advertising clients.

We benefit by having a portfolio of networks appealing to a broad range of demographics. This allows us to create advertising
packages that exploit the strength of our large networks to benefit smaller niche or targeted networks and networks on digital tiers.
Utilizing the strength of our diverse networks, coupled with our online and digital platforms, we seek to create innovative
programming initiatives and multifaceted campaigns for the benefit of a wide variety of companies and organizations who desire to
reach key audience demographics unique to each network. We deliver customized, integrated marketing campaigns to clients
worldwide by catering to the special needs of multi-regional advertisers who are looking for integrated campaigns that move beyond
traditional spot advertising to include sponsorships, product placements and other opportunities.

We also generate advertising revenue from our websites. We sell advertising on our websites both on a stand-alone basis and as
part of advertising packages with our television networks.

Commerce, Education, and Other Revenue

Commerce, education, and other revenues are principally generated from subscriptions to our educational streaming services,
royalty payments on the sale of products online and through catalogs, and other revenue including media sound services and
representation services.

Subscription sales to our educational streaming services are primarily sold at the beginning of each school year as school
budgets are appropriated and approved. The revenue derived from the subscription agreements is generally recognized ratably over the
school year. Sponsored strategic partnership programs are recognized as the campaigns are delivered. Education also provides
products that are sold throughout the school year.

In April 2009, we completed the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model by outsourcing the commerce direct-
to-consumer operations including our commerce website, related marketing, product development and fulfillment to a third party. As a
result, we now receive royalties on merchandise and wholesale payments for DVDs sold based upon a percentage of our licensees’
wholesale revenues, with an advance against future expected royalties. As part of our commerce business, we also have a domestic
consumer products licensing business which licenses our brands in connection with merchandise, DVDs, sponsored strategic
partnerships, videogames and publishing. E-commerce and catalog sales are highly seasonal with a majority of the sales occurring in
the fourth quarter due to the holiday season. Licensing revenue may vary from period to period depending upon the popularity of the
properties available for license and the popularity of licensed products in a particular period.

We have agreements to represent third parties for U.S. affiliate and advertising representation services. The fees for these
services are recorded as the services are provided.
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Operating Expenditures

Our principal operating costs consist of programming expense, personnel costs, sales and marketing expense, and general and
administrative expenses. Content expense is our largest expense category, representing 28% of our 2009 consolidated operating
expenses, as investment in maintaining high-quality editorial and production values is a key differentiator for our content. In
connection with creating original content, we incur production costs associated with acquiring new show concepts and retaining
creative talent, including actors, writers and producers. We incur sales and marketing expense to promote brand recognition and to
secure quality distribution channels worldwide.

Regulatory Matters

Our businesses are subject to and affected by regulations of U.S. federal, state and local government authorities, and our
international operations are subject to laws and regulations of local countries and international bodies such as the European Union.
Programming networks, such as those owned by us, are regulated by the Federal Communications Commission (“FCC”) in certain
respects if they are affiliated with a cable television operator. Other FCC regulations, although imposed on cable television operators
and satellite operators, affect programming networks indirectly. The rules, regulations, policies and procedures affecting our
businesses are constantly subject to change. These descriptions are summary in nature and do not purport to describe all present and
proposed laws and regulations affecting our businesses.

Program Access

The FCC’s program access rules prevent a satellite cable programming vendor in which a cable operator has an “attributable”
ownership interest under FCC rules, such as those owned by us, from entering into exclusive contracts for programming with a cable
operator and from discriminating among competing multichannel video programming distributors (“MVPDs”) in the price, terms and
conditions for the sale or delivery of programming. These rules also permit MVPDs to initiate complaints to the FCC against program
suppliers if an MVPD claims it is unable to obtain rights to programming on nondiscriminatory terms.

Effect of “Must-Carry” Requirements

The Cable Television Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992 imposed “must-carry” regulations on cable systems,
requiring them to carry the signals of most local broadcast television stations. Direct broadcast satellite (“DBS”) systems are also
subject to their own must-carry rules. FCC rules require cable systems to carry the digital signals of local television stations that have
must-carry status and to carry the same signal in analog format unless all subscribers have the necessary equipment to view the digital
broadcast signal. The FCC’s implementation of these “must-carry” obligations requires cable and DBS operators to give broadcasters
preferential access to channel space. This reduces the amount of channel space that is available for carriage of our networks by cable
television systems and DBS operators.

Closed Captioning and Advertising Restrictions on Children’s Programming

Certain of our networks must provide closed-captioning of programming for the hearing impaired, and our programming and
Internet websites intended primarily for children 12 years of age and under must comply with certain limits on advertising.

Regulation of the Internet

We operate several Internet websites which we use to distribute information about and supplement our programs and to offer
consumers the opportunity to purchase consumer products and services. Internet services are now subject to regulation in the U.S.
relating to the privacy and security of personally identifiable user information and acquisition of personal information from children
under 13, including the federal Child Online Protection Act (COPA) and the federal Controlling the Assault of Non-Solicited
Pornography and Marketing Act (CAN-SPAM). In addition, a majority of states have enacted laws that impose data security and
security breach obligations. Additional federal and state laws and regulations may be adopted with respect to the Internet or other
online services, covering such issues as user privacy, child safety, data security, advertising, pricing, content, copyrights and
trademarks, access by persons with disabilities, distribution, taxation and characteristics and quality of products and services. In
addition, to the extent we offer products and services to online consumers outside the U.S., the laws and regulations of foreign
jurisdictions, including, without limitation, consumer protection, privacy, advertising, data retention, intellectual property, and content
limitations, may impose additional compliance obligations on us.
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Competition

Cable and satellite network programming is a highly competitive business in the U.S. and worldwide. Our cable and satellite
networks and websites generally compete for advertising revenue with other cable and broadcast television networks, online and
mobile outlets, radio programming and print media. Our networks and websites also compete for their target audiences with all forms
of programming and other media provided to viewers, including broadcast networks, local over-the-air television stations,
competitors’ pay and basic cable television networks, pay-per-view and video-on-demand services, online activities and other forms of
news, information and entertainment. Our networks also compete with other television networks for distribution and affiliate fees
derived from distribution agreements with cable television operators, satellite operators and other distributors. Our commerce and
education divisions also operate in highly competitive industries with our e-commerce and catalogue business competing with brick
and mortar and online retailers and our education business competing with other providers of educational products to schools,
including providers with long-standing relationships, such as Scholastic.

Employees

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately 4,400 employees, including full-time and part-time employees of our wholly-
owned subsidiaries and consolidated ventures. Approximately 3,200 of our employees were employed in the United States, with the
remaining 1,200 employed outside the United States. Over 250 of CSS’ creative and technical personnel are subject to one of CSS’
collective bargaining agreements with the International Alliance of Theatrical Stage Employees. There are no active grievances,
strikes or work stoppages and we believe our relations with our union and non-union employees are strong.

Intellectual Property

Our intellectual property assets principally include copyrights in television programming, websites and other content,
trademarks in brands, names and logos, domain names and licenses of intellectual property rights of various kinds.

We are fundamentally a content company and the protection of our brands and content are of primary importance. To protect
our intellectual property assets, we rely upon a combination of copyright, trademark, unfair competition, trade secret and
Internet/domain name statutes and laws and contract provisions. However, there can be no assurance of the degree to which these
measures will be successful in any given case. Moreover, effective intellectual property protection may be either unavailable or
limited in certain foreign territories. Policing unauthorized use of our products and services and related intellectual property is often
difficult and the steps taken may not always prevent the infringement by unauthorized third parties of our intellectual property. We
seek to limit that threat through a combination of approaches.

Third parties may challenge the validity or scope of our intellectual property from time to time, and such challenges could result
in the limitation or loss of intellectual property rights. Irrespective of their validity, such claims may result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources which could have an adverse effect on our operations. In addition, piracy, which encompasses both the theft of
our signal and unauthorized use of our programming, including in the digital environment, continues to present a threat to revenues
from products and services based on intellectual property.

Financial Information about Segments and Geographic Areas

Financial information for segments and geographic areas in which we do business for the three years ended December 31, 2009
is set forth in Note 23 to our consolidated financial statements found in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Available Information

All of our filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), including reports on Form 10-K, Form 10-Q
and Form 8-K, and all amendments to those filings are available on our Internet website as soon as reasonably practical after we
electronically file such material with the SEC. Our corporate website address is www.discoverycommunications.com.

Our annual report, corporate governance guidelines, code of business conduct and ethics, audit committee charter, compensation
committee charter, and nominating and corporate governance committee charter are available on our website. In addition, we will
provide a printed copy of any of these documents, free of charge, upon written request or by calling Investor Relations, Discovery
Communications, Inc., 850 Third Avenue, 5th Floor, New York, NY 10022-7225, Telephone Number (212) 548-5882.

The information contained on our website is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is not incorporated by reference
herein.
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ITEM 1A. Risk Factors.

Investing in our securities involves risk. In addition to the other information contained in this report, you should consider the
following risk factors before investing in our securities.

Our business would be adversely affected if general economic conditions further weaken.

The current economic downturn in the U.S. and in other regions of the world in which we operate could adversely affect
demand for any of our businesses, thus reducing our revenue and earnings. We derive substantial revenues from the sale of advertising
on our networks. Expenditures by advertisers tend to be cyclical, reflecting overall economic conditions, as well as budgeting and
buying patterns. The current economic conditions and any continuation of these adverse conditions may adversely affect the economic
prospects of advertisers and could alter current or prospective advertisers’ spending priorities. A decrease in advertising expenditures
would have an adverse effect on our business. The decline in economic conditions has impacted consumer discretionary spending. A
continued reduction in consumer spending may impact pay television subscriptions, particularly to the more expensive digital service
tiers, which could lead to a decrease in our distribution fees and may reduce the rates we can charge for advertising.

Our success is dependent upon U.S. and foreign audience acceptance of our programming and other entertainment content
which is difficult to predict.

The production and distribution of pay television programs and other entertainment content are inherently risky businesses
because the revenue we derive and our ability to distribute our content depend primarily on consumer tastes and preferences that often
change in unpredictable ways. Our success depends on our ability to consistently create and acquire content and programming that
meet the changing preferences of viewers in general, viewers in special interest groups, viewers in specific demographic categories
and viewers in various overseas marketplaces. The commercial success of our programming and other content also depends upon the
quality and acceptance of competing programs and other content available in the applicable marketplace at the same time. Other
factors, including the availability of alternative forms of entertainment and leisure time activities, general economic conditions, piracy,
digital and on-demand distribution and growing competition for consumer discretionary spending may also affect the audience for our
content. Audience sizes for our media networks are critical factors affecting both (i) the volume and pricing of advertising revenue
that we receive, and (ii) the extent of distribution and the license fees we receive under agreements with our distributors.
Consequently, reduced public acceptance of our entertainment content may decrease our audience share and adversely affect all of our
revenue streams.

The loss of our affiliation agreements, or renewals with less advantageous terms, could cause our revenue to decline.

Because our networks are licensed on a wholesale basis to distributors such as cable and satellite operators which in turn
distribute them to consumers, we are dependent upon the maintenance of affiliation agreements with these operators. These affiliation
agreements generally provide for the level of carriage our networks will receive, such as channel placement and programming package
inclusion (widely distributed, broader programming packages compared to lesser distributed, specialized programming packages), and
for payment of a license fee to us based on the numbers of subscribers that receive our networks. These per-subscriber payments
represent a significant portion of our revenue. Our affiliation agreements generally have a limited term which varies from market to
market and from distributor to distributor, and there can be no assurance that these affiliation agreements will be renewed in the
future, or renewed on terms that are as favorable to us as those in effect today. A reduction in the license fees that we receive per
subscriber or in the number of subscribers for which we are paid, including as a result of a loss or reduction in carriage for our
networks, could adversely affect our distribution revenue. Such a loss or reduction in carriage could also decrease the potential
audience for our programs thereby adversely affecting our advertising revenue.

Consolidation among cable and satellite operators has given the largest operators considerable leverage in their relationships
with programmers, including us. The two largest U.S. cable television system operators provide service to approximately 39% of
U.S. households receiving television programming from a multi-channel provider and the two largest satellite television operators
provide service to an additional 32% of such households. In the U.S., over 90% of distribution revenues come from the top 10
distributors. We currently have agreements in place with the major U.S. cable and satellite operators which expire at various times
beginning in 2010 through 2017. A failure to secure a renewal or a renewal on less favorable terms may have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financial position. Our affiliation agreements are complex and individually negotiated. If we were to
disagree with one of our counterparties on the interpretation of an affiliation agreement, our relationship with that counterparty could
be damaged and our business could be negatively affected. In addition, many of the overseas markets in which we distribute our
networks also have a small number of dominant distributors. Continued consolidation within the industry could further reduce the
number of distributors available to carry our programming and increase the negotiating leverage of our distributors which could
adversely affect our revenue.
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We operate in increasingly competitive industries.

The entertainment and media programming industries in which we operate are highly competitive. We compete with other
programming networks for distribution, viewers, and advertising. We also compete for viewers with other forms of media
entertainment, such as home video, movies, periodicals and online and mobile activities. In particular, websites and search engines
have seen significant advertising growth, a portion of which is derived from traditional cable network and satellite advertisers. In
addition, there has been consolidation in the media industry and our competitors include market participants with interests in multiple
media businesses which are often vertically integrated. Our online businesses compete for users and advertising in the enormously
broad and diverse market of free internet-delivered services. Our commerce business competes against a wide range of competitive
retailers selling similar products. Our educational video business competes with other providers of educational products to schools.
Our ability to compete successfully depends on a number of factors, including our ability to consistently supply high quality and
popular content, access our niche viewerships with appealing category-specific programming, adapt to new technologies and
distribution platforms and achieve widespread distribution. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully in
the future against existing or new competitors, or that increasing competition will not have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

Our business is subject to risks of adverse laws and regulations, both domestic and foreign.

Programming services like ours, and the distributors of our services, including cable operators, satellite operators and other
MVPDs, are highly regulated by U.S. federal laws and regulations issued and administered by various federal agencies, including the
FCC, as well as by state and local governments, in ways that affect the daily conduct of our video programming business. See
discussion under “Business — Regulatory Matters” above. The U.S. Congress, the FCC and the courts currently have under
consideration, and may in the future adopt, new laws, regulations and policies regarding a wide variety of matters that could, directly
or indirectly, affect the operations of our U.S. media properties or modify the terms under which we offer our services and operate.
For example, any changes to the laws and regulations that govern the services or signals that are carried by cable television operators
or our other distributors may result in less capacity for other programming services, such as our networks, which could adversely
affect our revenue.

Similarly, the foreign jurisdictions in which our networks are offered have, in varying degrees, government laws and regulations
governing our businesses. Programming businesses are subject to regulation on a country by country basis. Changes in regulations
imposed by foreign governments could also adversely affect our business, results of operations and ability to expand our operations
beyond their current scope.

Increased programming production and content costs may adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

One of our most significant areas of expense is the production and licensing of content. In connection with creating original
content, we incur production costs associated with, among other things, acquiring new show concepts and retaining creative talent,
including actors, writers and producers. We also incur higher production costs when filming in HD than standard definition. The costs
of producing programming have generally increased in recent years. These costs may continue to increase in the future, which may
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition. We recently entered into a non-binding agreement to develop a
dedicated 3-D television network. Costs associated with 3-D programming, both in production and in distribution, are expected to be
significantly higher than those for both standard and HD television, which may adversely affect our results of operation and financial
condition.

Disruption or failure of satellites and facilities, and disputes over supplier contracts on which we depend to distribute our
programming, could adversely affect our business.

We depend on transponders on satellite systems to transmit our media networks to cable television operators and other
distributors worldwide. The distribution facilities include uplinks, communications satellites and downlinks. We obtain satellite
transponder capacity pursuant to long-term contracts and other arrangements with third-party vendors, which expire at various times
through 2022. Even with back-up and redundant systems, transmissions may be disrupted as a result of local disasters or other
conditions that may impair on-ground uplinks or downlinks, or as a result of an impairment of a satellite. Currently, there are a limited
number of communications satellites available for the transmission of programming. If a disruption or failure occurs, we may not be
able to secure alternate distribution facilities in a timely manner, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and
results of operations.
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We must respond to and capitalize on rapid changes in new technologies and distribution platforms, including their effect on
consumer behavior, in order to remain competitive and exploit new opportunities.

Technology in the video, telecommunications and data services industry is changing rapidly. We must adapt to advances in
technologies, distribution outlets and content transfer and storage to ensure that our content remains desirable and widely available to
our audiences while protecting our intellectual property interests. We may not have the right, and may not be able to secure the right,
to distribute some of our licensed content across these, or any other, new platforms and must adapt accordingly. The ability to
anticipate and take advantage of new and future sources of revenue from these technological developments will affect our ability to
expand our business and increase revenue.

Similarly, we also must adapt to changing consumer behavior driven by technological advances such as video-on-demand and a
desire for more user-generated and interactive content. Devices that allow consumers to view our entertainment content from remote
locations or on a time-delayed basis and technologies which enable users to fast-forward or skip advertisements may cause changes in
audience behavior that could affect the attractiveness of our offerings to advertisers and could therefore adversely affect our revenue.
If we cannot ensure that our content is responsive to the viewing preferences of our target audiences and capitalize on technological
advances, there could be a negative effect on our business.

We continue to develop new products and services for evolving markets. There can be no assurance of the success of these
efforts due to a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control.

There are substantial uncertainties associated with our efforts to develop new products and services for evolving markets, and
substantial investments may be required. Initial timetables for the introduction and development of new products and services may not
be achieved, and price and profitability targets may not prove feasible. External factors, such as the development of competitive
alternatives, rapid technological change, regulatory changes and shifting market preferences, may cause new markets to move in
unanticipated directions.

Risks associated with our international operations could harm our financial condition.

Our networks are offered worldwide. Inherent economic risks of doing business in international markets include, among other
things, longer payment cycles, foreign taxation and currency exchange risk. As we continue to expand the provision of our products
and services to overseas markets, we cannot assure you whether these risks and uncertainties will harm our results of operations.

Our international operations may also be adversely affected by export and import restrictions, other trade barriers and acts of
disruptions of services or loss of property or equipment that are critical to overseas businesses due to expropriation, nationalization,
war, insurrection, terrorism or general social or political unrest or other hostilities.

The loss of key talent could disrupt our business and adversely affect our revenue.

Our business depends upon the continued efforts, abilities and expertise of our corporate and divisional executive teams and
entertainment personalities. We employ or contract with entertainment personalities who may have loyal audiences. These individuals
are important to audience endorsement of our programs and other content. There can be no assurance that these individuals will
remain with us or retain their current audiences. If we fail to retain these individuals or if our entertainment personalities lose their
current audience base, our revenue could be adversely affected.

Piracy of our entertainment content, including digital piracy, may decrease revenue received from our programming and
adversely affect our business and profitability.

The success of our business depends in part on our ability to maintain the intellectual property rights to our entertainment
content. We are fundamentally a content company and piracy of our brands, DVDs, cable television and other programming, digital
content and other intellectual property has the potential to significantly affect us. Piracy is particularly prevalent in many parts of the
world that lack copyright and other protections similar to existing law in the U.S. It is also made easier by technological advances
allowing the conversion of programming into digital formats, which facilitates the creation, transmission and sharing of high quality
unauthorized copies. Unauthorized distribution of copyrighted material over the Internet is a threat to copyright owners’ ability to
protect and exploit their property. The proliferation of unauthorized use of our content may have an adverse effect on our business and
profitability because it reduces the revenue that we potentially could receive from the legitimate sale and distribution of our content.
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Financial market conditions may impede access to or increase the cost of financing our operations and investments.

The recent changes in U.S. and global financial and equity markets, including market disruptions and tightening of the credit
markets, may make it more difficult for us to obtain financing for our operations or investments or increase the cost of obtaining
financing. In addition, our borrowing costs can be affected by short and long-term debt ratings assigned by independent rating
agencies which are based, in significant part, on our performance as measured by credit metrics such as interest coverage and leverage
ratios. A low rating could increase our cost of borrowing or make it more difficult for us to obtain future financing.

Substantial leverage and debt service obligations may adversely affect us.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $3.4 billion of consolidated debt, excluding capital leases. Our substantial
level of indebtedness increases the possibility that we may be unable to generate cash sufficient to pay when due the principal of,
interest on, or other amounts due with respect to our indebtedness. In addition, we have the ability to draw down our revolving credit
facility in the ordinary course, which has the effect of increasing our indebtedness. We are also permitted, subject to certain
restrictions under our existing indebtedness, to obtain additional long-term debt and working capital lines of credit to meet future
financing needs. This would have the effect of increasing our total leverage.

Our substantial leverage could have significant negative consequences on our financial condition and results of operations,
including:
*  impairing our ability to meet one or more of the financial ratio covenants contained in our debt agreements or to generate

cash sufficient to pay interest or principal, which could result in an acceleration of some or all of our outstanding debt in
the event that an uncured default occurs;

* increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and market conditions;
+ limiting our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing;

*  requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service our debt, thereby reducing the
amount of cash flow available for other purposes;

*  requiring us to sell debt or equity securities or to sell some of our core assets, possibly on unfavorable terms, to meet
payment obligations;

+  limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the markets in which we compete; and

+  placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage with less leveraged competitors and competitors that may have better
access to capital resources.

Restrictive covenants in the loan agreements for our revolving credit facility and term loans, and the note purchase agreements
governing our private placement notes, could adversely affect our business by limiting flexibility.

The loan agreements for our revolving credit facility and term loans and the note purchase agreements governing the terms of
our private placement notes contain restrictive covenants, as well as requirements to comply with certain leverage and other financial
maintenance tests. These covenants and requirements limit our ability to take various actions, including incurring additional debt,
guaranteeing indebtedness and engaging in various types of transactions, including mergers, acquisitions and sales of assets. These
covenants could place us at a disadvantage compared to some of our competitors, who may have fewer restrictive covenants and may
not be required to operate under these restrictions. Further, these covenants could have an adverse effect on our business by limiting
our ability to take advantage of financing, mergers and acquisitions or other opportunities.

In addition, reporting and information covenants in our loan agreements and note purchase agreements require that we provide
financial and operating information within certain time periods. If we are unable to timely provide the required information, we would
be in breach of these covenants.

We are a holding company and could be unable in the future to obtain cash in amounts sufficient to service our financial
obligations or meet our other commitments.

Our ability to meet our financial obligations and other contractual commitments will depend upon our ability to access cash. We
are a holding company, and our sources of cash include our available cash balances, net cash from the operating activities of our
subsidiaries, any dividends and interest we may receive from our investments, availability under any credit facilities that we may
obtain in the future and proceeds from any asset sales we may undertake in the future. The ability of our operating subsidiaries,
including Discovery Communications, LLC, to pay dividends or to make other payments or advances to us will depend on their
individual operating results and any statutory, regulatory or contractual restrictions, including restrictions in our credit facility, to
which they may be or may become subject.
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Our directors overlap with those of Liberty Media Corporation and certain related persons of Advance/Newhouse, which may
lead to conflicting interests.

Our eleven-person board of directors includes three persons who are currently members of the board of directors of Liberty
Media Corporation (“Liberty”), including John C. Malone, the Chairman of the board of Liberty, three persons who are currently
members of the board of directors of Liberty Global, Inc. (“Liberty Global™), also including Mr. Malone, who is Chairman of the
board of Liberty Global, and three designees of Advance/Newhouse, including Robert J. Miron, the Chairman of Advance/Newhouse,
and Steven A. Miron, the Chief Executive Officer of Advance/Newhouse. Both Liberty and the parent company of
Advance/Newhouse own interests in a range of media, communications and entertainment businesses. Liberty does not own any
interest in us. Mr. Malone beneficially owns stock of Liberty representing approximately 35% of the aggregate voting power of its
outstanding stock, owns shares representing approximately 40% of the aggregate voting power of Liberty Global and owns shares
representing approximately 23% of the aggregate voting power (other than with respect to the election of the common stock directors)
of our outstanding stock. Mr. Malone controls approximately 32% of our aggregate voting power relating to the election of the eight
common stock directors, assuming that the preferred stock awarded by Advance/Newhouse has not been converted into shares of our
common stock. Those of our directors who are also directors of Liberty or Liberty Global own Liberty or Liberty Global stock and
stock incentives and own our stock and stock incentives. Advance/Newhouse will elect three directors annually for so long as it owns
a specified minimum amount of our Series A convertible preferred stock, and two of its directors are Chairman, Robert J. Miron, and
its Chief Executive Officer, Steven A. Miron. The Advance/Newhouse Series A convertible preferred stock, which votes with our
common stock on all matters other than the election of directors, represents approximately 26% of the voting power of our outstanding
shares. The Series A convertible preferred stock also grants Advance/Newhouse consent rights over a range of our corporate actions,
including fundamental changes to our business, the issuance of additional capital stock, mergers and business combinations and
certain acquisitions and dispositions. These ownership interests and/or business positions could create, or appear to create, potential
conflicts of interest when these individuals are faced with decisions that could have different implications for us, Liberty, Liberty
Global, and/or Advance/Newhouse. For example, there may be the potential for a conflict of interest when we, on the one hand, or
Liberty, Liberty Global, and/or Advance/Newhouse, on the other hand, look at acquisitions and other corporate opportunities that may
be suitable for the other.

The members of our board of directors have fiduciary duties to our stockholders. Likewise, those persons who serve in similar
capacities at Liberty, Liberty Global, or Advance/Newhouse have fiduciary duties to those companies. Therefore, such persons may
have conflicts of interest or the appearance of conflicts of interest with respect to matters involving or affecting both respective
companies. Although the terms of any transactions or agreements will be established based upon negotiations between employees of
the companies involved, there can be no assurance that the terms of any transactions will be as favorable to us or our subsidiaries as
would be the case where the parties are at arms’ length.

We may compete with Liberty for business opportunities.

Liberty owns interests in various U.S. and international programming companies that have subsidiaries that own or operate
domestic or foreign programming services that may compete with the programming services we offer. We have no rights in respect of
U.S. or international programming opportunities developed by or presented to the subsidiaries or Liberty, and the pursuit of these
opportunities by such subsidiaries may adversely affect our interests and those of our stockholders. Because we and Liberty have
overlapping directors, the pursuit of business opportunities may serve to intensify the conflicts of interest or appearance of conflicts of
interest faced by the respective management teams. Our charter provides that none of our directors or officers will be liable to us or
any of our subsidiaries for breach of any fiduciary duty by reason of the fact that such individual directs a corporate opportunity to
another person or entity (including Liberty), for which such individual serves as a director or officer, or does not refer or communicate
information regarding such corporate opportunity to us or any of our subsidiaries, unless (x) such opportunity was expressly offered to
such individual solely in his or her capacity as a director or officer of us or any of our subsidiaries and (y) such opportunity relates to a
line of business in which we or any of our subsidiaries is then directly engaged.

The personal educational media, lifelong learning, and travel industry investments by John S. Hendricks, a common stock
director and our Founder, may conflict with or compete with our business activities.

Our Founder, John S. Hendricks, manages his non-Discovery, personal business investments through Hendricks Investment
Holdings LLC (“HIH”), a Delaware limited liability company of which he is the sole owner and member. HIH owns a travel club and
travel-related properties including a resort in Gateway, Colorado with plans to create a learning academy for guests that includes
online and advanced media offerings in the area of informal and lifelong learning. Certain video productions and offerings of this
academy may compete with our educational media offerings. We and the academy may enter into a business arrangement for the
offering of our video products for sale by the academy and/or for the joint-production of new educational media products or co-
production agreements for programming to be aired on our networks, such as the Curiosity series.

Through HIH, Mr. Hendricks owns a number of business interests in the automotive field, some of which are involved in
programming offered by us, in particular the “Turbo” programming series.
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From time to time, HIH or its subsidiaries may enter into transactions with us or our subsidiaries. Although the terms of any
such transactions or agreements will be established based upon negotiations between employees of the companies involved, there can
be no assurance that the terms of any such transactions will be as favorable to us or our subsidiaries as would be the case where the
parties are at arms’ length.

It may be difficult for a third party to acquire us, even if doing so may be beneficial to our stockholders.

Certain provisions of our charter and bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control that a stockholder may
consider favorable. These provisions include the following:

« authorizing a capital structure with multiple series of common stock: a Series B that entitles the holders to ten votes per
share, a Series A that entitles the holders to one vote per share and a Series C that, except as otherwise required by
applicable law, entitles the holders to no voting rights;

« authorizing the Series A convertible preferred stock with special voting rights, which prohibits us from taking any of the
following actions, among others, without the prior approval of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of such
stock:

» increasing the number of members of the Board of Directors above 11;

* making any material amendment to our charter or bylaws;

*  engaging in a merger, consolidation or other business combination with any other entity;
»  appointing or removing our Chairman of the Board or our CEO;

+ authorizing the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock, which could be issued by our board of directors to increase the
number of outstanding shares and thwart a takeover attempt;

» classifying our common stock directors with staggered three year terms and having three directors elected by the holders
of the Series A convertible preferred stock, which may lengthen the time required to gain control of our board of directors;

* limiting who may call special meetings of stockholders;

+  prohibiting stockholder action by written consent (subject to certain exceptions), thereby requiring stockholder action to
be taken at a meeting of the stockholders;

+ establishing advance notice requirements for nominations of candidates for election to our board of directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted upon by stockholders at stockholder meetings;

+  requiring stockholder approval by holders of at least 80% of our voting power or the approval by at least 75% of our board
of directors with respect to certain extraordinary matters, such as a merger or consolidation, a sale of all or substantially
all of our assets or an amendment to our charter;

*  requiring the consent of the holders of at least 75% of the outstanding Series B common stock (voting as a separate class)
to certain share distributions and other corporate actions in which the voting power of the Series B common stock would
be diluted by, for example, issuing shares having multiple votes per share as a dividend to holders of Series A common
stock; and

» the existence of authorized and unissued stock which would allow our board of directors to issue shares to persons
friendly to current management, thereby protecting the continuity of our management, or which could be used to dilute the
stock ownership of persons seeking to obtain control of us.

We have also adopted a shareholder rights plan in order to encourage anyone seeking to acquire us to negotiate with our board
of directors prior to attempting a takeover. While the plan is designed to guard against coercive or unfair tactics to gain control of us,
the plan may have the effect of making more difficult or delaying any attempts by others to obtain control of us.

Holders of any single series of our common stock may not have any remedies if any action by our directors or officers has an
adverse effect on only that series of common stock.

Principles of Delaware law and the provisions of our charter may protect decisions of our board of directors that have a
disparate impact upon holders of any single series of our common stock. Under Delaware law, the board of directors has a duty to act
with due care and in the best interests of all of our stockholders, including the holders of all series of our common stock. Principles of
Delaware law established in cases involving differing treatment of multiple classes or series of stock provide that a board of directors
owes an equal duty to all common stockholders regardless of class or series and does not have separate or additional duties to any
group of stockholders. As a result, in some circumstances, our directors may be required to make a decision that is adverse to the
holders of one series of common stock. Under the principles of Delaware law referred to above, stockholders may not be able to
challenge these decisions if our board of directors is disinterested and adequately informed with respect to these decisions and acts in
good faith and in the honest belief that it is acting in the best interests of all of our stockholders.
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The exercise by Advance/Newhouse of its registration rights could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

As part of the Newhouse Transaction, Advance/Newhouse has been granted registration rights covering all of the shares of
common stock issuable upon conversion of the convertible preferred stock issued to Advance/Newhouse in the Newhouse
Transaction. Advance/Newhouse’s preferred stock is convertible into a number of shares equal to one-half of the number of shares of
common stock that were issued to former DHC stockholders in the merger, subject to anti-dilution adjustments. The registration
rights, which are immediately exercisable, are transferrable with the sale or transfer by Advance/Newhouse of blocks of shares
representing 10% or more of the preferred stock it received in the Newhouse Transaction. The exercise of the registration rights, and
subsequent sale of possibly large amounts of our common stock in the public market, could materially and adversely affect the market
price of our common stock.

John C. Malone and Advance/Newhouse will each have significant voting power with respect to corporate matters considered by
our stockholders.

John C. Malone and Advance/Newhouse beneficially own shares of our stock representing approximately 23% and 26%,
respectively, of the aggregate voting power represented by our outstanding stock (other than voting power relating to the election of
directors). With respect to the election of directors, Mr. Malone is expected to control approximately 32% of the aggregate voting
power relating to the election of the eight common stock directors (assuming that the convertible preferred stock owned by
Advance/Newhouse (the “A/N Preferred Stock”) has not been converted into shares of our common stock). The A/N Preferred Stock
carries with it the right to designate the three preferred stock directors to our board (subject to certain conditions), but will not vote
with respect to the election of the eight common stock directors. Also, under the terms of the A/N Preferred Stock,
Advance/Newhouse has special voting rights with respect to certain enumerated matters, including material amendments to the
restated charter and bylaws, fundamental changes in our business, mergers and other business combinations, certain acquisitions and
dispositions and future issuances of capital stock. Although there is no stockholder agreement, voting agreement or any similar
arrangement between Mr. Malone and Advance/Newhouse, by virtue of their respective holdings, each of Mr. Malone and
Advance/Newhouse likely will have significant influence over the outcome of any corporate transaction or other matter submitted to
our stockholders.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

ITEM 2. Properties.

We own and lease over 1.5 million square feet of building space at more than 40 locations throughout the world, which are
utilized in the conduct of our businesses. In the U.S. alone, we own and lease approximately 597,000 and 850,000 square feet of
building space, respectively, at 21 locations. Principal locations in the U.S. include: (i) our world headquarters located at One
Discovery Place, Silver Spring, Maryland, where approximately 543,000 square feet is used for executive offices and general office
space by our U.S. Networks, International Networks, and Commerce, Education, and Other segments, (ii) general office space at 850
Third Avenue, New York, New York, where approximately 132,000 square feet is primarily used for sales by our U.S. Networks
operating segment, (iii) general office space and a production and post production facility located at 8045 Kennett Street, Silver
Spring, Maryland, where approximately 145,000 square feet is primarily used by our U.S. Networks operating segment, (iv) general
office space and a production and post production facility at 1619 Broadway, New York, New York, where approximately
85,000 square is used by our Commerce, Education, and Other operating segment, (v) general office space located at 10100 Santa
Monica Boulevard, Los Angeles, California, where approximately 55,000 square feet is primarily used for sales by our U.S. Networks
operating segment, (vi) general office space at 6505 Blue Lagoon Drive, Miami, Florida, where approximately 91,000 square feet is
primarily used by our International Networks Operating Segment, and (vii) an origination facility at 45580 Terminal Drive, Sterling,
Virginia, where approximately 53,000 square feet of space is used to manage the distribution of domestic network television
programming by our U.S. Networks operating segment.

We also own and lease over 250,000 square feet of building space at more than 20 locations outside of the U.S. Principal
locations outside the U.S. include the U.K., Germany and Singapore.

Each property is considered to be in good condition, adequate for its purpose, and suitably utilized according to the individual
nature and requirements of the relevant operations. Our policy is to improve and replace property as considered appropriate to meet
the needs of the individual operation.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings.

We experience routine litigation in the normal course of our business. We believe that none of the pending litigation will have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated financial condition, future results of operations, or liquidity.
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ITEM 4.

None.

Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Executive Officers of Discovery Communications, Inc.

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K, the information regarding our executive officers required by Item 401(b) of
Regulation S-K is hereby included in Part I of this report.

The following table sets forth the name and date of birth of each of our executive officers and the office held by such officer as

of February 11, 2010.

Name

Position

John S. Hendricks
Born March 29, 1952

David M. Zaslav
Born January 15, 1960

Bradley E. Singer
Born July 11, 1966

Peter Ligouri
Born July 6, 1960

Mark G. Hollinger
Born August 26, 1959

Joseph A. LaSala, Jr.
Born November 5, 1954

Adria Alpert-Romm
Born March 2, 1955

Bruce L. Campbell
Born November 26, 1967

Thomas R. Colan
Born July 21, 1955

Chairman and a common stock director. Mr. Hendricks is our Founder and has served as Chairman of
Discovery since September 1982. Mr. Hendricks served as our Chief Executive Officer from
September 1982 to June 2004; and our Interim Chief Executive Officer from December 2006 to
January 2007. Mr. Hendricks continues to provide leadership vision for our major content initiatives
that reinforce and enhance brand and value, have long shelf life, and have global appeal.

President, Chief Executive Officer and a common stock director. Mr. Zaslav has served as our
President and Chief Executive Officer since January 2007. Mr. Zaslav served as President, Cable &
Domestic Television and New Media Distribution of NBC Universal, Inc., a media and entertainment
company (NBC), from May 2006 to December 2006. Mr. Zaslav served as Executive Vice President
of NBC, and President of NBC Cable, a division of NBC, from October 1999 to May 2006.

Mr. Zaslav is a director of TiVo Inc.

Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer. Mr. Singer has served as our
Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since July 2008. Mr. Singer served as Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer of American Tower Corporation, a wireless and broadcast
communications infrastructure company, from December 2001 to June 2008.

Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Ligouri joined the Company as Senior
Executive Vice President, Chief Operating Officer in January 2010. From March 2009 to December
2009, Mr. Ligouri was a consultant to Comcast Corp. Prior to that, Mr. Ligouri served as Chairman,
Entertainment for Fox Broadcasting Company from July 2007 until March 2009 and had served as
President, Entertainment for Fox since 2005. Prior to that, Mr. Ligouri served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of FX Networks from 1998 until 2005.

President and Chief Executive Officer of Discovery Networks International. Mr. Hollinger became
President and CEO of Discovery Networks International in December 2009. Prior to that, Mr.
Hollinger served as our Chief Operating Officer and Senior Executive Vice President, Corporate
Operations from January 2008 through December 2009; and as our Senior Executive Vice President,
Corporate Operations from January 2003 through December 2009. Mr. Hollinger served as our
General Counsel from 1996 to January 2008, and as President of our Global Businesses and
Operations from February 2007 to January 2008.

Senior Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Mr. LaSala has served as our Senior
Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary since January 2008. Mr. LaSala served as
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary for Novell, Inc., a provider of enterprise
software and related services, from January 2003 to January 2008.

Senior Executive Vice President, Human Resources. Ms. Romm has served as our Senior Executive
Vice President of Human Resources since March 2007. Ms. Romm served as Senior Vice President of
Human Resources of NBC from 2004 to 2007. Prior to 2004, Ms. Romm served as a Vice President in
Human Resources for the NBC TV network and NBC staff functions.

President, Digital Media & Corporate Development. Mr. Campbell has served as our President of
Digital Media & Corporate Development since March 2007. Mr. Campbell served as Executive Vice
President, Business Development of NBC from December 2005 to March 2007, and Senior Vice
President, Business Development of NBC from January 2003 to November 2005.

Executive Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer. Mr. Colan has served as our Executive Vice
President, Chief Accounting Officer since March 2008. Mr. Colan served as Senior Vice President —
Controller and Treasurer at America Online/Time Warner from September 2001 to March 2008.
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Our Series A, Series B, and Series C common stock are listed and traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbols
DISCA, DISCB, and DISCK, respectively. Our common stock began trading on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on September 18,
2008. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low daily sales prices per share of our Series A,
Series B, and Series C common stock as reported on the Nasdaq Global Select Market.

Series A Series B Series C
Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock
High Low High Low High Low

2009

FOUrth UATLET .......ovevevieiietceceecececeeeee et $ 32,69 § 2664 § 3399 § 2700 $§ 2848 § 2333
ThIrd QUATTET ....c.eeteiiriiierieeieeeet ettt $ 2985 $§ 2142 $ 3044 $ 20.10 $ 2675 $ 19.54
SECONA QUATTET .....vevieieeietiieteerieeee ettt ettt es et eseasenas $ 2408 § 1600 $§ 2509 $§ 1437 $§ 2195 $ 1441
FIrSt QUATTET ..ottt $ 1729 § 1246 § 1819 § 1011 $§ 1568 $ 12.03
2008

FOUIth UATLET .......ovevvieeietieceececcceeee et $ 1529 § 1002 § 2089 § 950 $ 1525 $ 8.50
September 18, 2008 through September 30, 2008.............c.cevnnnene. § 2275 § 1359 § 3130 $ 1896 $ 20.00 § 12.80
Holders

As of February 11, 2010, there were approximately 2,325, 109, and 2,427 record holders of our Series A, Series B, and Series C
common stock, respectively (which amounts do not include the number of shareholders whose shares are held of record by banks,
brokerage houses or other institutions, but include each institution as one shareholder).

Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends on our Series A, Series B, or Series C common stock, and we have no present intention to
do so. Payment of cash dividends, if any, in the future will be determined by our Board of Directors in light of our earnings, financial
condition, and other relevant considerations. Our credit facility restricts our ability to declare dividends.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph sets forth the cumulative total shareholder return on our Series A, Series B, and Series C common stock as
compared with the cumulative total return of the companies listed in the Standard and Poor’s 500 Stock Index (“S&P 500 Index”) and
a peer group of companies comprised of CBS Corporation Class B common stock, News Corporation Class A Common Stock,
Scripps Network Interactive, Inc., Time Warner, Inc., Viacom, Inc. Class B common stock, and The Walt Disney Company. The
graph assumes $100 originally invested on September 18, 2008 in each of our Series A, Series B, and Series C common stock, the
S&P 500 Index, and the stock of our peer group companies, assuming reinvestment of dividends, for each calendar quarter through
December 31, 2009.

£240
£220
5200
S180
$160
S140
$120
100
$80
560
9/18/08 12/31/08 12/31/09
September 18, December 31, December 31,
2008 2008 2009

DISCA ...t s $ 100.00 $ 102.53 $ 222.09

DISCB ...ttt $ 100.00 $ 7853 § 162.82

DISCK ...ttt s $ 100.00 $ 83.69 $ 165.75

S&P 500 ...t e $ 100.00 $ 74.86 $ 92.42

PEEr GIOUP ........covoeveieeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 100.00 $ 68.79 $ 100.70

ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data.

The table set forth below presents our selected financial information for each of the past five years. The selected statement of
operations information for each of the three years during the period ended December 31, 2009 and the selected balance sheet
information as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 have been derived from and should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements and other financial information included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The
selected statement of operations information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the selected balance sheet
information as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 have been derived from audited consolidated financial statements not included
in the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The selected financial information set forth below reflects the Newhouse Transaction, including the spin-off of Ascent Media
Corporation (“AMC”), as though it was consummated on January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the selected financial information includes
the results of operations and financial position of both DHC and DCH since January 1, 2008. The selected financial information for
years prior to 2008 reflect only the results of operations and financial position of DHC, as our predecessor. Prior to the Newhouse
Transaction, DHC accounted for its ownership interest in DCH using the equity method. Because the Newhouse Transaction is
presented as of January 1, 2008, the selected financial information for years prior to 2008 include DCH’s results of operations as a
component of Equity in earnings of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC. Information regarding the Newhouse Transaction and
DHC'’s investment in DCH prior to Newhouse Transaction is disclosed in Note 1 and Note 3, respectively, to the audited consolidated
financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected financial information also reflects certain
reclassifications of each company’s financial information to conform to the combined Company’s financial statement presentation, as
follows:

*  The consolidated financial statements for 2008 have been adjusted to eliminate the separate presentation of DHC’s
investment in DCH and the portion of DCH’s earnings recorded by DHC using the equity method during the period
January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008.

*  Advance/Newhouse’s interest in DCH’s earnings for the period January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008 has been
recorded as a component of Net income attributable to non-controlling interests in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

*  All DHC share and per share data have been adjusted for all periods presented to reflect the exchange into our shares.
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Selected Statement of Operations Information:
ReVENUES.....ccooiiiiiii
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and

AMOTEIZATION ..ottt
Restructuring and impairment charges ............ccoeceevveeenenne.
Gains on diSPOSIHIONS.......ceerureriieiieieriieieeieee e
Operating iNCOME (10SS).......erveruerieieieiesiese et
Equity in earnings of Discovery Communications

Holding, LLC....c.ooiiiiieiieee e
Equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates...........

Income from continuing operations, net of taxes..................
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes ....
Net iNCOME (J0SS).uvveeriieiieeiii e eeeeee et e
Less net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling
L1111 (o] SRS
Net income (loss) attributable to Discovery
Communications, INC. .....cccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiicceceeeeeee e

Stock dividends to preferred interests @ ...........ccoeevevverieenen.

Net income (loss) available to Discovery Communications,
Inc. stockholders ........ccoveiiiinieiieeeeeeee e
Income per share from continuing operations available to

Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations
available to Discovery Communications, Inc.
stockholders:

Net income (loss) per share available to Discovery
Communications, Inc. stockholders:

Selected Balance Sheet Information:
Cash and cash equivalents ...........ccceceeveerreeciiecienienieeie e
Investment in Discovery Communications Holding, LLC ...
GOOAWIIL ..o
Intangible assets, Net.........cooeereriirierieeeeee e
TOtal @SSELS ..ottt
Long-term debt:

CUITENt POTLION ....veeeerieeirieeiieereerveenereesireeseeesveeenaeeeens

Long-term portion ...........cceceeveerieenienienienieneeeeeee
Total lHabilities .......ceereeieieiee e
Redeemable non-controlling interests in subsidiaries...........
Equity attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc........
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests ....................
TOtal @QUILY...cvveivieiieeecie et

Years Ended December 31,

2009 (V2O 2008 2007 2006 2005
(in millions, except per share amounts)

§ 3,516 $§ 3443 3§ 76 $ 80 § 82
1,065 1,024 60 63 64
66 61 — 2 —
(252) — ) — —
1,235 1,057 ®) (11) (8)
— — 142 104 80
8 (61) — — —
559 402 86 52 25
— 43 (154) (98) 8
559 445 (68) (46) 33
1 (128) — _ _
560 317 (68) (46) 33
®) — — — —
552 317 (68) (46) 33
$ 1.30 $ 085 $ 031 § 0.19 $ 0.09
$ 1.30 $ 085 $ 031 § 0.19 $ 0.09
$ — $ 013 $ 0.55) $ 0.35) $ 0.03
A $ 013 $ 0.55) $ 0.35) $ 0.03
$ 130 $ 099 $ 0.24) $ 0.16) $ 0.12
$ 130 $ 098 $ 0.24) $ 0.16) $ 0.12
423 321 281 280 280
425 322 281 280 280
$ 623 $ 100 § 8 8 — 5 1
— — 3,272 3,129 3,019
6,433 6,891 1,782 1,782 1,782
643 716 1 592 592
10,965 10,484 5,866 5,871 5,819
38 458 — — —
3,457 3,331 — — —
4,697 4,874 1,371 1,322 1,244
49 49 — — —
6,208 5,536 4,495 4,549 4,575
11 25 — — —
6,219 5,561 4,495 4,549 4,575
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(1) During fiscal 2008, the Company concluded the spin-off of AMC and as a result reports AMC as discontinued operations for all
periods presented. See Note 5 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion. In addition, the
Discovery Kids network was deconsolidated in May 22, 2009 but the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of
Discovery Kids recorded through May 21, 2009 was not presented as discontinued operations. See Note 4 of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

(2) The fiscal 2009 results include a non-cash gain related to the formation of the Hasbro-Discovery Joint Venture. See Note 4 in
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for further discussion.

(3) During fiscal 2009, the Company recognized approximately $8 million of non-cash stock dividends for the release of shares of
preferred stock from escrow. Additional information regarding dividends is set forth in Note 13 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

Management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition is a supplement to and should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes. This information provides additional
information regarding Discovery Communications, Inc.’s (“Discovery,” “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our”) businesses, recent

developments, results of operations, cash flows, financial condition, and critical accounting policies.

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, including statements regarding our business, marketing and operating strategies, integration
of acquired businesses, new service offerings, financial prospects, and anticipated sources and uses of capital. Words such as
“anticipates,” “estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes” and words and terms of similar substance used in
connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance identify forward-looking statements. Where, in any
forward-looking statement, we express an expectation or belief as to future results or events, such expectation or belief is expressed in
good faith and believed to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief will result or be
achieved or accomplished. The following include some but not all of the factors that could cause actual results or events to differ
materially from those anticipated: continued deterioration in the macroeconomic environment; the inability of advertisers or affiliates
to remit payment to us in a timely manner or at all; general economic and business conditions and industry trends including the timing
of, and spending on, feature film, television and television commercial production; spending on domestic and foreign television
advertising and spending on domestic and foreign first-run and existing content libraries; the regulatory and competitive environment
of the industries in which we, and the entities in which we have interests, operate; continued consolidation of the broadband
distribution and movie studio industries; uncertainties inherent in the development of new business lines and business strategies;
integration of acquired operations; uncertainties associated with product and service development and market acceptance, including
the development and provision of programming for new television and telecommunications technologies; changes in the distribution
and viewing of television programming, including the expanded deployment of personal video recorders, video on demand and
Internet protocol television and their impact on television advertising revenue; rapid technological changes; future financial
performance, including availability, terms and deployment of capital; fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and political
unrest in international markets; the ability of suppliers and vendors to deliver products, equipment, software and services; the outcome
of any pending or threatened litigation; availability of qualified personnel; the possibility of an industry-wide strike or other job action
affecting a major entertainment industry union, or the duration of any existing strike or job action; changes in, or failure or inability to
comply with, government regulations, including, without limitation, regulations of the FCC, and adverse outcomes from regulatory
proceedings; changes in the nature of key strategic relationships with partners and joint venturers; competitor responses to our
products and services, and the products and services of the entities in which we have interests; threatened terrorist attacks and ongoing
military action in the Middle East and other parts of the world; reduced access to capital markets or significant increases in costs to
borrow; and a failure to secure affiliate agreements or renewal of such agreements on less favorable terms. For additional risk factors,
refer to 1A. Risk Factors. These forward-looking statements and such risks, uncertainties, and other factors speak only as of the date
of this Annual Report, and we expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any updates or revisions to any
forward-looking statement contained herein, to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto, or any other change in
events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based.

29 < 99 ¢ EENT3 EENT3

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We are a leading global media and entertainment company that provides original and purchased programming across multiple
distribution platforms in the U.S. and over 170 other countries, including over 100 television networks offering customized
programming in 38 languages. Our strategy is to optimize the distribution, ratings and profit potential of each of our branded channels.
Additionally, we own and operate a diversified portfolio of website properties and other digital services and develop and sell
consumer and educational products as well as media sound services in the U.S. and internationally.
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Our media content is designed to target key audience demographics and the popularity of our programming creates a reason for
advertisers to purchase commercial time on our channels. Audience ratings are a key driver in generating advertising revenue and
creating demand on the part of cable television operators, direct-to-home (“DTH”) satellite operators and other content distributors to
deliver our programming to their customers.

In addition to growing distribution and advertising revenue for our branded channels, we are focused on extending content
distribution across new distribution platforms, including brand-aligned web properties, mobile devices, video-on-demand and
broadband channels, which provide promotional platforms for our television programming and serve as additional outlets for
advertising and affiliate sales. We also operate websites including HowStuffWorks.com, Petfinder.com and Treehugger.com that
provide supplemental news, information and entertainment aligned with our television programming.

We were formed in connection with Discovery Holding Company (“DHC”) and Advance/Newhouse Programming Partnership
(“Advance/Newhouse”) combining their respective ownership interests in Discovery Communications Holding, LLC (“DCH”) and
exchanging those interests with and into Discovery, which was consummated on September 17, 2008 (the “Newhouse Transaction”).
Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DCH was a stand-alone private company, which was owned approximately 66%;% by DHC and
33'/;% by Advance/Newhouse. The Newhouse Transaction was completed as follows:

. On September 17, 2008, DHC completed the spin-off to its shareholders of Ascent Media Corporation (“AMC”), a subsidiary
holding the cash and businesses of DHC except for certain businesses that provide sound, music, mixing, sound effects, and
other related services (the “AMC spin-off”). Such businesses remain with us following the completion of the Newhouse
Transaction.

. On September 17, 2008, immediately following the AMC spin-off, DHC merged with a transitory merger subsidiary of
Discovery, with DHC’s existing shareholders receiving common stock of Discovery; and

. On September 17, 2008, immediately following the exchange of shares between Discovery and DHC, Advance/Newhouse
contributed its interests in DCH and Animal Planet to Discovery in exchange for shares of Discovery’s Series A and Series C
convertible preferred stock that are convertible at any time into our common stock, which at the transaction date represented
one-third of the outstanding shares of our common stock.

As a result of the Newhouse Transaction, DHC and DCH became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Discovery, with Discovery
becoming the successor reporting entity to DHC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”).
Pursuant to guidance from the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) on issues relating to accounting for business
combinations, for accounting purposes the Newhouse Transaction was treated as a non-substantive merger, and therefore, the
Newhouse Transaction was recorded at the investors’ historical bases. Refer to Note 1 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements for further description of the Newhouse Transaction.

We manage and report our operations in three segments: U.S. Networks; International Networks; and Commerce, Education,
and Other.

U.S. Networks

U.S. Networks is our largest segment, which owns and operates 11 cable and satellite channels primarily throughout the U.S.
including Discovery Channel, TLC, and Animal Planet, as well as a portfolio of website properties and other digital services. The
segment’s channels are wholly-owned except for Discovery Kids, which is operated through a 50-50 joint venture between us and
Hasbro, Inc. Currently, we own and operate the Discovery Health Channel. However, pursuant to our joint venture arrangement with
Harpo, Inc. for the Oprah Winfrey Network (“OWN?”), we will contribute our interest in the Discovery Health Channel to OWN,
which is expected to occur in 2011.

U.S. Networks derives revenues primarily from distribution fees and advertising sales, which comprised 46% and 51%,
respectively, of revenues for this segment for the year ended December 31, 2009. During the year ended December 31, 2009,
Discovery Channel, TLC, and Animal Planet collectively generated 77% of U.S. Networks’ total revenues. U.S. Networks earns
distribution fees under multi-year affiliation agreements with cable operators, DTH satellite operators, and other distributors of
television programming. Distribution fees are based on the number of subscribers receiving our programming. Upon the launch of a
new channel, we may initially pay distributors to carry such channel (such payments are referred to as “launch incentives”), or may
provide the channel to the distributor for free for a predetermined length of time. Launch incentives are amortized on a straight-line
basis as a reduction of revenues over the term of the affiliation agreement. U.S. Networks generates advertising revenues by selling
commercial time on our networks and websites. The number of subscribers to our channels, viewership demographics, the popularity
of our programming, and our ability to sell commercial time over a group of channels are key drivers of advertising revenue.
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U.S. Networks’ largest single cost is the cost of programming, including production costs for original programming. U.S.
Networks amortizes the cost of original or purchased programming based on the expected realization of revenue, resulting in an
accelerated amortization method for Discovery Channel, TLC, and Animal Planet content and straight-line amortization method over a
maximum of four years for the remaining networks.

International Networks

International Networks manages a portfolio of channels, led by the Discovery Channel and Animal Planet brands that are
distributed in virtually every pay-television market in the world through an infrastructure that includes major operational centers in
London, Singapore, and Miami. International Networks’ regional operations cover most major markets and are organized into four
locally-managed regional operations: the United Kingdom (“U.K.”); Europe (excluding the U.K.), Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”);
Asia-Pacific; and Latin America. International Networks currently operates over 100 unique distribution feeds in 38 languages with
channel feeds customized according to language needs and advertising sales opportunities. Most of the segment’s channels are wholly-
owned with the exception of the international Animal Planet channels, which are generally joint ventures in which the British
Broadcasting Corporation (“BBC”) owns 50%, People+Arts, which operates in Latin America and Iberia as a 50-50 joint venture with
the BBC, and several channels in Japan and Canada, which operate as joint ventures with strategically important local partners.

Similar to our U.S. Networks segment, the primary sources of revenues for International Networks are distribution fees and
advertising sales, and the primary cost is programming. International Networks executes a localization strategy by offering shared
programming with U.S. Networks, customized content, and localized schedules via our distribution feeds. For the year ended
December 31, 2009, distribution revenues represented approximately 61% of the segment’s operating revenues.

Advertising sales are increasingly important to the segment’s financial success, representing 29% of the segment’s total
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009. International television markets vary in their stages of development. Some, notably
the U.K., are more advanced digital multi-channel television markets, while others remain in the analog environment with varying
degrees of investment from operators in expanding channel capacity or converting to digital.

In developing pay television markets, we expect advertising revenue growth will result from subscriber growth, our localization
strategy, and the shift of advertising spending from broadcast to pay television. In relatively mature markets, such as the UK., the
growth dynamic is changing. Increased market penetration and distribution are unlikely to drive rapid growth in those markets.
Instead, growth in advertising sales will come from increasing viewership and advertising pricing on our existing pay television
networks and launching new services, either in pay television or free television environments.

Commerce, Education, and Other

Our commerce business engages with licensees, manufacturers, publishers and retailers to design, develop, publish, promote and
sell a wide variety of products based on our intellectual property. We primarily engage in catalog sales and online distribution of
products through DiscoveryStore.com. In April 2009, we completed the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model by
outsourcing the commerce direct-to-consumer operations including our commerce website, related marketing, product development
and fulfillment to a third party in exchange for royalties. The new structure for our commerce business enables us to continue offering
high quality DVD programming as well as many merchandise categories leveraging both licensed and make and sell products. We
expect a reduction in our year over year top-line revenue contribution, as well as a reduction in direct operating expenses through the
first fiscal quarter of 2010.

Our education business is focused on our domestic and international direct-to-school K-12 online streaming distribution
subscription services, as well as our professional development services for teachers, benchmark student assessment services, and
publishing hardcopy content through a network of distribution channels including online, catalog and dealers. Our education business
also participates in a growing sponsorship, global brand, and content licensing business with leading non-profits, foundations, trade
associations, and Fortune 500 companies.

Other businesses primarily include sound, music, mixing sound effects, and other related services to major motion picture
studios, independent producers, broadcast networks, cable channels, advertising agencies, and interactive producers.
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Recent Developments
Accounting for Variable Interest Entities

Effective January 1, 2010, we adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB”) statement amending the
accounting for interests in a variable interest entity (“VIE”). Pursuant to the adoption of this statement, beginning January 1, 2010 we
will no longer consolidate the Oprah Winfrey Network (“OWN”) and Animal Planet Japan (“APJ”) joint ventures and will account for
our interest in these entities under the equity method of accounting. However, we continued to consolidate OWN and APJ through
December 31, 2009. Accordingly, for the periods in which we were required to consolidate OWN and APJ under the existing
accounting standards, the financial information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the financial position and operating
results of these entities. Beginning in 2010, we will apply the provisions of the new statement retrospectively to financial information
for all periods presented.

In accordance with the existing accounting guidance that required us to consolidate OWN, half of the operating losses generated
during 2009 by OWN were allocated to Harpo, Inc. (“Harpo”), our joint venture partner, as a component of Loss (income) attributable
to non-controlling interests. In connection with the change in our method of accounting for our interest in OWN from consolidation to
the equity method, because of our obligation to fund OWN’s operations up to $100 million we will absorb all of the joint venture’s
losses up to our funding commitment. Similarly, upon adoption we will record $17 million of OWN’s 2009 operating losses that were
previously allocated to Harpo as a component of Other non-operating income (expense), net.

Reportable Segments

Effective January 1, 2010, we realigned the Discovery Commerce business from the Commerce, Education, and Other reporting
segment into the U.S. Networks reporting segment. In connection with this realignment, we changed the name of our Commerce,
Education, and Other reporting segment to Education and Other. The financial information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has
not been recast to reflect the realignment. Accordingly, the results of operations for the Discovery Commerce business are included in
the financial results for the Commerce, Education, and Other segment. Beginning in 2010, we will include the Discovery Commerce
business in the financial results for the U.S. Networks segment and will recast prior period results to conform to the new presentation.

Hasbro-Discovery Joint Venture

On May 22, 2009, we formed a 50-50 joint venture with Hasbro, Inc. (“Hasbro”) that will operate a television network and
website dedicated to high-quality children’s and family entertainment and educational programming. In connection with the
arrangement, Discovery contributed the U.S. Discovery Kids Network (“Discovery Kids”) to the joint venture. Additionally, Hasbro
acquired a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture for a cash payment of $300 million and a tax receivables agreement collectible
over 20 years valued at $57 million, which resulted in a total gain of $252 million. The rebranded network is scheduled to premiere in
late 2010. Additional information regarding the joint venture is disclosed in Note 4 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Items Impacting Comparability

Beginning May 22, 2009, we ceased to consolidate the operating results of Discovery Kids. However, as we continue to be
involved in the operations of the joint venture, we have not presented the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of
Discovery Kids recorded through May 21, 2009 as discontinued operations. Our interest in the joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Accordingly, our consolidated results of operations and our U.S. Networks segment include the
operating results of Discovery Kids through May 21, 2009, whereas for subsequent periods we record only our proportionate share of
the joint venture’s net operating results. The following table presents total revenues and operating expenses recognized by Discovery
for Discovery Kids prior to deconsolidation (in millions).

January 1, 2009
through Year Ended
May 21, 2009 December 31, 2008

REVEINUES ...ttt $ 19 § 42
Operating costs and eXPenses..........cccvecveeverreeneeeruereennns $ 7 $ 24

Our results of operations were also impacted by the effects of consolidating OWN, beginning in July 2008, and to a lesser extent
the change in our commerce business model to a licensing model in April 2009. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
OWN incurred operating expenses of $26 million and $6 million, respectively.
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Results of Operations — 2009 vs. 2008

The following table presents our consolidated results of operation for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in
millions):

Years Ended December 31, % Change
Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DISEIIDULION ...ttt ettt ettt seesae e $ 1,713 $ 1,640 4%
AQVETLISINZ ...ttt ettt ettt e et e ens 1,428 1,396 2%
ORET <ttt ettt ee 375 407 )%
TOtAL TEVEIMUES. ...ttt et e et e e et e e e eaaeeeeenteeesernaeeeenenes 3,516 3,443 2%
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization listed below ........ 1,065 1,024 4)%
Selling, general and adminiStrative. ..........coeereereeienieneereee e 1,247 1,115 (12)%
Depreciation and amortiZation...........oceereereeiesienieie e 155 186 17%
Restructuring and impairment Charges ...........ccoevereereerenieneeneere e 66 61 )%
GaiNS 0N AISPOSTEION ...euveeeieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt ee st et eneeeneeeneens (252) — —
2,281 2,386 4%
OPETAtiNG INCOIMNE ...e.eveeieeieieeieeteeeeretesteeteetesseeseesessessaesseesseenseensesseesseensenns 1,235 1,057 17%
INtEIESt EXPENSE, MO ..eouveeiiieiieiieieiete ettt ettt et et e bt et e seeseeeseeeneeeneeenee e (250) (256) 2%
Other non-operating income (EXPense), NEt.........cecueevereereereererieereereeeneeeeenns 46 47) NM
Income from continuing operations before income taxes..........ccoevvevvveverreenens 1,031 754 37%
Provision fOr INCOME TAXES ......cveveerieriieiieienieesieeieeteseesteeseeaeseesreesseessesnnens 472) (352) (B4H%
Income from continuing operations, net 0f taXes.........ccceevvereiereereeriencereeeane 559 402 39%
Income from discontinued operations, net of taXes .........ccceeeeveeneereerieneeneene — 43 (100)%
INEE INCOMIE. ...ttt ettt ettt b e bt bt e e et st e b sbeeaeeneennan 559 445 26%
Less net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling interests ........................ 1 (128) NM
Net income attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc...........ccccceevennennee. 560 317 77%
Stock dividends to preferred iNterests........oovvuerierieriere e () — —
Net income available to Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders........... $ 552§ 317 74%

NM = not meaningful.
Revenues

Distribution revenues increased $73 million for 2009 as compared to distribution revenues for 2008 due primarily to contractual
rate increases, subscriber growth, and a reduction in amortization for launch incentives at our U.S. Networks segment and subscriber
growth at our International Networks segment. These increases were partially offset by the deconsolidation of Discovery Kids in May
2009, which resulted in a decline of $20 million, and the absence of a one-time revenue correction recorded in 2008 that increased
revenues $8 million. Distribution revenues were also adversely affected by unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates of
$37 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates, the
deconsolidation of Discovery Kids, and the one-time revenue correction in 2008, distribution revenues increased 9% or $138 million.

Advertising revenues for 2009 increased $32 million over advertising revenues for 2008. The increase in advertising revenues
was principally due to higher ratings and overall price increases at our U.S. Networks segment and increased viewership and
subscriber growth at our International Networks segment. Advertising revenues in 2009 also benefited from a $6 million settlement of
a prior contract dispute at our U.K. operations. The increases were partially offset by unfavorable impacts of foreign currency
exchange rates of $26 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange
rates and the contract dispute settlement, advertising revenues grew 4% or $52 million.
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Other revenues, which primarily consist of sales of educational services and content, distribution and advertising sales services,
license fees, DVDs, merchandise, and sound and music services, decreased $32 million for 2009 as compared with 2008. The decline
is attributable to decreasing merchandise sales as a result of changing our business model from direct-to-consumer to a licensing
model where we receive royalties, lower sales of hard copy educational content as purchasers migrate to online distribution, a decline
in sales of the Planet Earth DVD series, and a $6 million unfavorable impact from foreign currency exchange rates. These decreases
were partially offset by an increase in online streaming distribution revenues from our education business and $6 million recorded in
2009 in connection with renegotiating our agreements to provide programming to a joint venture. We expect a reduction in our year
over year commerce revenues and direct operating costs through the first fiscal quarter of 2010 due to the transition of our commerce
business to a licensing model.

Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues, which consist primarily of content amortization expense, production costs, distribution costs, and sales
commissions, increased $41 million for 2009 when compared to costs of revenues for 2008. The increase was primarily due to higher
content amortization expense and write-offs primarily at our U.S. Networks and Internal Networks segments as well as higher
distribution costs at our International Networks segment. Total content amortization increased $53 million, of which $17 million was
attributable to a higher content asset balance while a $36 million was due to an increase in write-offs was due to the decision not to
proceed with certain programs or lower than expected revenues. These increases were partially offset by the effect of deconsolidating
Discovery Kids, which resulted in a decline of $12 million, a $6 million reduction in our music rights accrual at the International
Networks segment, the reduction in costs of goods sold as a result of transitioning our commerce business to a license model, and a
$30 million favorable impact from foreign currency exchange rates. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange
rates, programming write-offs, the deconsolidation of Discovery Kids, and the music rights accrual reduction, costs of revenues
increased 6% or $53 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which are principally comprised of employee costs, marketing costs, research
costs, and occupancy and back office support fees, increased $132 million for 2009 as compared to 2008 due primarily to a $294
million increase in employee costs related to share-based compensation programs and the impact of consolidating OWN beginning in
July 2008, which increased costs by $19 million. The increase was partially offset by lower marketing costs, consulting fees, non-
share-based employee costs, all of which reflect targeted cost savings initiatives and improvements in operating efficiencies, and a $5
million reduction due to the deconsolidation of Discovery Kids in May 2009. Additionally, selling, general, and administrative
expenses were down as a result of favorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates of $25 million.

Employee costs include share-based compensation expense arising from equity awards to employees under our incentive plans.
Total share-based compensation expense was $228 million for 2009 as compared to a net benefit of $66 million for 2008. The increase
in share-based compensation primarily reflects an increase in the fair value of outstanding cash-settled equity awards and to a lesser
extent an increase in stock options outstanding. A portion of our equity awards are cash-settled and, therefore, the value of such
awards outstanding must be remeasured at fair value each reporting date based on changes in the price of our Series A common stock.
Compensation expense for cash-settled equity awards, including changes in fair value, was $205 million for 2009 as compared to a net
benefit of $69 million for 2008. Increased compensation expense for cash-settled awards was due to an increase in fair value, which
reflects the increase in the price of our Series A common stock of 117% during the year ended December 31, 2009. We do not intend
to grant additional cash-settled equity awards, except as may be required by contract or to employees in countries in which stock
option awards are not permitted. We are evaluating our equity-based compensation program and considering changing our current mix
of awards to include performance-based restricted stock unit grants.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $31 million for 2009 as compared to the depreciation and amortization
expense for 2008. The decrease was due to a decline in amortization expense resulting from lower intangible asset balances in 2009
compared to 2008.

Restructuring and Impairment Charges

Restructuring and impairment charges increased $5 million for 2009 as compared to 2008. We recorded $32 million and
$30 million of impairment charges related to intangible assets, goodwill, and capitalized software during 2009 and intangible assets in
2008, respectively, primarily for certain asset groups at our Other U.S. Networks reporting unit due to declines in expected operating
performance.
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We also recorded exit and restructuring charges of $34 million and $31 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively, in connection
with a reorganization of portions of our operations to reduce our cost structure. The charges for 2009 were primarily incurred by our
U.S. Networks and International Networks segments as well as our corporate operations and include $29 million of severance costs
and $5 million of contract termination costs. We expect the majority of these charges to be paid within the next year. We do not expect
material future charges associated with these restructuring programs.

The charges incurred in 2008 were primarily related to TLC’s repositioning strategy, the termination of a production group, and
the closure of our commerce distribution center and our store headquarters offices along with the transition of the remaining
commerce distribution services to third-party service providers.

Gain on Disposition

In connection with the formation of the Hasbro-Discovery joint venture, we recorded a $252 million gain during 2009, which
included $127 million as a result of “stepping up” our basis for the 50% retained interest in Discovery Kids and $125 million for the
sale of 50% of our ownership interest to Hasbro.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net decreased $6 million for 2009 when compared to 2008 primarily due to a decrease in average debt
outstanding partially offset by an increase in the average effective interest rate on our borrowings.

Other Non-Operating Income (Expense), Net

Other non-operating income (expense), net includes our realized and unrealized gains and losses from derivative transactions
that are not accounted for as hedging instruments, realized gains and losses from sale of available-for-sale securities, gains and losses
from equity method investments, and other non-operating expenses net of non-operating income. Other non-operating income
(expense), net improved $93 million for 2009 as compared to 2008. The improvement was due to the absence of a $57 million charge
recorded in 2008 for the other-than-temporary decline in the value of our equity method investment in HSWI, which was partially
offset by the absence of a corresponding one-time adjustment of $47 million recorded in 2008 to reduce the liability related to the
value of shares in HSWI to be exchanged to its former shareholders. Additionally, we recognized net realized and unrealized gains on
derivatives not designated as hedging instruments of $20 million during 2009 as compared to net realized and unrealized losses of
$31 million during 2008 due to increased market values. The improvements were also driven by the sale of certain investments in
2009 that resulted in pre-tax gains of $15 million and a net increase of $12 million in income from investments accounted for using
the equity method excluding the HSWI impairment.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes was $472 million and $352 million for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The effective tax rates were
46% and 47% for 2009 and 2008. The effective tax rate for 2009 differed from the federal statutory rate of 35% due primarily to a
permanent difference on the $252 million gain from the sale of a 50% interest in and deconsolidation of Discovery Kids in May 2009,
state income taxes and to a lesser extent, deductions for domestic production activities.

The effective tax rate for 2008 differed from the federal statutory rate of 35% principally due to the presentation of the
Newhouse Transaction as though it was consummated on January 1, 2008. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements include
the gross combined financial results of both DHC and DCH since January 1, 2008. Prior to the Newhouse Transaction on
September 17, 2008, DHC owned 667%/; % of DCH and, therefore, recognized a portion of DCH’s operating results. As a result, the tax
provision for the year ended December 31, 2008 includes the taxes recognized by both DCH and DHC related to the portion of DCH’s
operating results recognized by DHC. DHC recognized $91 million of deferred tax expense related to its investment in DCH prior to
the Newhouse Transaction for 2008. The provision for income taxes for 2008 was partially offset by the release of an $18 million
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets of CSS and the release of a $10 million valuation allowance for deferred tax assets related
to net operating loss carry-forwards for AMC.

Net Loss (Income) Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests

Net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling interests represents the portion of net operating results allocable to the non-
controlling partners, which was $1 million for 2009 and $(128) million for 2008. The change in net loss (income) attributable to non-
controlling interests is primarily a result of allocating a portion of DCH’s 2008 profits to Advance/Newhouse for its ownership interest
in DCH prior to the Newhouse Transaction.
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Income from Discontinued Operations, Net of Taxes

In September 2008, as part of the Newhouse Transaction, DHC completed the spin-off to its shareholders of AMC, which did
not result in a gain or loss.

In September 2008, prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC sold its ownership interests in Ascent Media Systems &
Technology Services, LLC (“AMSTS”) and Ascent Media CANS, LLC (DBA “AccentHealth”) for approximately $7 million and
$119 million, respectively, in cash. The sale of these companies resulted in pre-tax gains of $3 million for AMSTS and $64 million for
AccentHealth.

Also in September 2008, prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC disposed of certain buildings and equipment for
approximately $13 million in cash. DHC recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $9 million in connection with the asset disposals.
The disposed assets were part of the AMC business.

The following table presents summary financial information for discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2008
(in millions)

Year Ended
December 31, 2008
REVENMUES......vivietiitieieiiiieeetest ettt ettt sa et ettt e se b s ns $ 484
Loss from the operations of discontinued operations before income
BAKES e et et et eee et e e ettt ettt e e enes $ (6)
Loss from the operations of discontinued operations, net of taxes....... $ 4
Gains on dispositions, Net Of tAXES .....cccvevverierierierere e $ 47
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ..........c.ccveeverveenene $ 43
Income per share from discontinued operations available to
Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders, basic and diluted... $ 0.13
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
BaaSIC ettt 321
DIIULEd. .. 322

Stock Dividends to Preferred Interests

During 2009, the Company recognized $8 million for non-cash stock dividends for the release of approximately 500,000 shares
of preferred stock from escrow. Additional information regarding the stock dividend is set forth in Note 13 in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Segment Results of Operations

As noted above, we manage and report our operations in three segments: U.S. Networks; International Networks; and
Commerce, Education, and Other. Corporate primarily consists of corporate functions, executive management, administrative support
services, and ancillary revenues and expenses from a consolidated joint venture. Corporate expenses are excluded from segment
results to enable executive management to evaluate segment performance based upon decisions made directly by segment executives.
Operating results exclude mark-to-market share-based compensation, restructuring and impairment charges, and gains (losses) on
business and asset dispositions, consistent with our segment reporting. Additional financial information related to our segments is set
forth in Note 23 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We evaluate the operating performance of our segments based on financial measures such as revenues and adjusted operating
income before depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted OIBDA”). Adjusted OIBDA is defined as revenues less costs of revenues and
selling, general and administrative expenses excluding: (i) mark-to-market share-based compensation, (ii) depreciation and
amortization, (iii) amortization of deferred launch incentives, (iv) exit and restructuring charges, (v) impairment charges, and
(vi) gains (losses) on business and asset dispositions. We use this measure to assess operating results and performance of our
segments, perform analytical comparisons, identify strategies to improve performance and allocate resources to each segment. We
believe Adjusted OIBDA is relevant to investors because it allows them to analyze the operating performance of each segment using
the same metric management uses and also provides investors a measure to analyze the operating performance of each segment
against historical data. We exclude mark-to-market share-based compensation, exit and restructuring charges, impairment charges, and
gains (losses) on business and asset dispositions from the calculation of Adjusted OIBDA due to their volatility or non-recurring
nature. We also exclude the amortization of deferred launch incentive payments because these payments are infrequent and the
amortization does not represent cash payments in the current reporting period. Because Adjusted OIBDA is a non-GAAP measure, it
should be considered in addition to, but not a substitute for, operating income, net income, cash flows provided by operating activities
and other measures of financial performance reported in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
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The following table presents our revenues by segment and certain consolidated operating expenses, contra revenue amounts, and
Adjusted OIBDA (in millions):

% Change
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
U.S. NEtWOIKS ...oovieiiieiiciiecieeeee ettt $ 2,142 $ 2,062 4%
International NetWorks........c.occveeievieriieieiieneee et 1,189 1,158 3%
Commerce, Education, and Other ..........c.cccceeeveevieeniieneeenn. 176 196 (10)%
Corporate and intersegment eliminations.............cc.cecevuereeneene 9 27 (67)%
TOtAl TEVEIUES......eeiuieiieniieeieetieeteete e eee et e e e teesbeseae e e steesseesaesseeees 3,516 3,443 2%
CoStS OF TEVENUES 1) ..ot (1,065) (1,024) @)%
Selling, general and administrative @ ...........cccccvevieierieneeeeeene (1,042) (1,184) 12%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives @ ............ccccc....... 55 75 27%
Adjusted OIBDA ..ottt $ 1,464 § 1,310 12%

o Costs of revenues and selling, general and administrative expenses exclude mark-to-market share-based compensation,
depreciation and amortization, exit and restructuring charges, impairments of intangible assets, goodwill, capitalized software
costs, and a gain on a business disposition.

@ Amortization of deferred launch incentives are included as a reduction of distribution revenues for U.S. GAAP reporting, but are
excluded from Adjusted OIBDA.

The following table presents our Adjusted OIBDA by segment with a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to consolidated
operating income (in millions):

% Change
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Adjusted OIBDA:
U.S. NEEWOTKS .ottt $ 1,196 $ 1,111 8%
International Networks.........ccoevevvieciinienieieieeieeeene 450 387 16%
Commerce, Education, and Other ...............ccccoeeeeveeenn. 22 13 69%
Corporate and intersegment eliminations....................... (204) (201) (H%
Total Adjusted OIBDA ........cccooieirieieieieeee e 1,464 1,310 12%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives..........ccccceeeveennennen. (55) (75) 27%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation.............c..ccveeueennen. (205) 69 NM
Depreciation and amortization..............cc.eeeevveecveeeeneenreenennens (155) (186) 17%
Restructuring and impairment charges ............cocceeeeeeeecenenne. (66) (e1) (8)%
Gain on diSPOSIION ......veererieiiieieeiee ettt 252 — —
Total Operating iNCOME .......c.eevereerreerrerrerierreereeaeseeseeesseennas $ 1,235 $ 1,057 17%

NM = not meaningful.
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U.S. Networks

The following table presents, for our U.S. Networks segment, revenues by type, certain operating expenses, contra revenue
amounts, Adjusted OIBDA, and a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income (in millions).

% Change
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DiStITDULION......coevivieietiiccetee ettt $ 982 $ 927 6%
AVEITISING ..ottt 1,082 1,058 2%
OthET .ttt 78 77 1%
TOtAl TEVEINUES ...t e e e 2,142 2,062 4%
COSES OF TEVEIULS ...eeeuveeeiiieeiieeiiieeieeeeieesreeeeeesereeeeeeteeebeesaeeensee e (533) (509) 5)%
Selling, general and administrative ............cceceveeeeeeieiieneieeene (434) (476) 9%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives............c.c.cceene.. 21 34 (38)%
Adjusted OIBDA .....c.cooiiiiiieeeeeee et 1,196 1,111 8%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives...........cccceeveverevenrennnne. (21) (34) 38%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation ............cceceevvereervennennne. ) “) 75%
Depreciation and amortiZation ............ceecververeeerieeeieseesieeiesveneeeens (30) (56) 46%
Restructuring and impairment charges............ccoeveeveevvereerieecveneennens (37 (51) 27%
Gain ON dISPOSTHION ...vveeeviieieiieieeeie ettt e teebe e eeae e esseesseeenas 252 — —
Operating iNCOME ..........cevveveriiereeieeteteeeseeee et $ 1,359 $ 966 41%
Revenues

Total revenues for 2009 increased $80 million as compared to total revenues for 2008. The increase in total revenues was due
primarily to increases in distribution revenues of $55 million and advertising revenues of $24 million.

Increased distribution revenues for 2009 were due to annual contractual rate increases, an increase in paying subscribers,
principally for networks carried on the digital tier, and a decline of $13 million for the amortization of launch incentives. These
increases were partially offset by the effect of deconsolidating Discovery Kids in May 2009, which resulted in a decline of
$20 million, and the absence of a one-time revenue correction recorded during the second quarter of 2008 that increased revenues $8
million.

Advertising revenues for 2009 increased as a result of higher ratings and overall increased pricing, which were partially offset
by lower cash sellouts due to softness in the economy.

Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues, which consist primarily of content amortization expense, sales commissions, production costs, and
distribution costs, increased $24 million for 2009 as compared to costs of revenues for 2008. The increase in costs of revenues was
driven by an increase of $30 million in content amortization expense, of which $18 million was due to a higher content asset balance,
reflecting our continued investment in content, and $12 million was attributable to higher write-offs of certain programming costs that
are included as content amortization, partially offset by decreases in production and distribution costs. The increase in costs of
revenues is net of a $12 million decline due to the effect of deconsolidating Discovery Kids.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which are principally comprised of employee costs, marketing costs, research
costs, and occupancy and back office support fees, decreased $42 million for 2009 when compared to selling, general and
administrative expenses for 2008. The decrease was attributable primarily to lower marketing and overhead costs, which reflects our
cost reduction efforts. Also contributing to the decline was the effect of deconsolidating Discovery Kids in May 2009, which resulted
in a decline of $5 million. These decreases were partially offset by higher employee costs and an additional $19 million of costs
related to OWN, which we began consolidating in July 2008.
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Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA increased $85 million for 2009 in comparison to Adjusted OIBDA for 2008. The improved performance is
primarily due to higher distribution revenues driven by annual contractual rate increases and subscriber growth, an increase in
advertising revenues due to increased ratings and overall pricing, and lower marketing and overhead costs. These improvements were
partially offset by an increase in content amortization and write-offs and costs associated with OWN.

International Networks

The following table presents, for our International Networks segment, revenues by type, certain operating expenses, contra
revenue amounts, Adjusted OIBDA, and a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income (in millions).

% Change
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DASEIDULION ... $ 731§ 713 3%
AAVEITISING . ...eeeeiiieiieie ettt 345 336 3%
ONET ..t 113 109 4%
TOtal TEVENMUES. ....c.eviiiieiiie ettt e 1,189 1,158 3%
COStS OF TEVENUES ....eeuvieeieeiie ettt ettt se e ennas (422) (394) (M%
Selling, general and adminiStrative............cceeeveeeereeneerieecieneeneennens (351) (418) 16%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives............ccocvevenenne. 34 41 (17)%
Adjusted OIBDA ......ccooiiiriniereeteeeteneese et 450 387 16%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives...........ccccoeevveviveenneennnnne. 34) (41) 17%
Depreciation and amortization.............cc.eevevveerreeeeseeseerreeeeseesneennes 41 (43) 5%
Restructuring and impairment charges ...........cccoevceeveveeiiecenceneenne (22) 2) NM
OPErating INCOME........c.eevirveeiereeetiereeeteeteeeteeteeeetesteaseseesesseseesesseseanas $ 353§ 301 17%

NM = not meaningful.

Revenues

Total revenues for 2009 increased $31 million as compared to total revenues for 2008. The increase in total revenues was due
primarily to operational increases in distribution revenues and advertising revenues, which were partially offset by unfavorable
impacts of foreign currency exchange rates of $69 million. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates,
total revenues increased 10% or $100 million.

Distribution revenues increased $18 million for 2009 when compared to distribution revenues for 2008, net of unfavorable
impacts of foreign currency exchange rates of $37 million. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates,
distribution revenues increased 9% or $55 million. The increase in distribution revenues was attributable to growth in the number of
paying subscribers in Latin America, EMEA and Asia-Pacific, which reflect the growth in pay television services in these regions.

Advertising revenues increased $9 million for 2009 in comparison to advertising revenues for 2008, including the unfavorable
impacts of foreign currency exchange rates of $26 million. Excluding the unfavorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates,
advertising revenues increased 12% or $35 million. Increased advertising revenues was primarily due to growth in the U.K., EMEA,
and Latin America, which reflects higher viewership combined with an increased subscriber base. Increased viewership was
attributable to growth in pay television in certain markets and expanded distribution of our networks. Advertising revenues in 2009
also benefited from a $6 million settlement of a prior contract dispute at our U.K. operations. In October 2009, we renewed an
agreement with our advertising sales representative in the U.K. resulting in our ability to increase the monetization of our audience,
primarily on a go-forward basis.

Other revenues for 2009 include $6 million recorded in connection with renegotiating our agreements to provide content to a
joint venture.
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Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues, which consist primarily of content amortization expense, distribution costs, sales commissions, and
production costs, increased $28 million for 2009 as compared to costs of revenues for 2008. The increase was driven by higher content
amortization expense and distribution costs, partially offset by a $6 million reduction in our music rights accrual related to a change in
estimate in the third quarter of 2009. Content amortization expense increased 8% or $20 million, driven by an increase of $13 million
due to a higher content asset balance, reflecting our continued investment in original content production and language customization
to support additional local feeds for growth in local advertising sales, $24 million more in write-offs of programming costs, partially
offset by favorable changes in foreign currency exchange rates of $17 million. Distribution costs increased $10 million as a result of
expanding the distribution of our networks in certain markets. The increases in costs of revenues were net of favorable impacts of
foreign currency exchange rates of $30 million. Excluding the favorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates, costs of revenues
increased 17% or $58 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which are principally comprised of employee costs, marketing costs, occupancy
and back office support fees, decreased $67 million for 2009 when compared to selling, general, and administrative expenses for 2008.
The decrease is attributable to lower marketing and employee costs as a result of cost saving initiatives and improvements in operating
efficiencies and a $25 million benefit due to favorable impacts of foreign currency exchange rates. Excluding the favorable impacts of
foreign currency exchange rates, selling, general and administrative expenses declined 11% or $42 million.

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA increased $63 million for 2009 as compared to Adjusted OIBDA for 2008. Excluding the impacts of foreign
exchange rate fluctuations, Adjusted OIBDA increased 24% or $83 million. The improvement in performance reflects growth in
distribution revenues resulting from subscriber growth, an increase in advertising due to higher viewership and subscribers, and a
decline in marketing and personnel costs. These increases were partially offset by increases in content amortization and write-offs and
distribution costs.

Commerce, Education, and Other

The following table presents, for our Commerce, Education, and Other segment, revenues, certain operating expenses, Adjusted
OIBDA, and a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating income (loss) (in millions).

% Change
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
AAVETHSING ...t $ 1 3 — —
OFNET ..ttt 175 196 (1D)%
TOtAl TEVEMUES. .. .ccuveeeiieieiieere et eeiteeite et et eetee e e sbeeeaeesebaesaneees 176 196 (10)%
COStS OF TEVENUES ....eeeuvieeiieeiieeieeeieeeiee ettt steesbeeseaeesaaeessbeenaaeenes (103) (116) 11%
Selling, general and administrative...........ocoeeevereeeeieienieieieeene (&2))] 67) 24%
Adjusted OIBDA ......coooiiiiieieeeteeee e 22 13 69%
Depreciation and amortization...........c.eceereeevereieseeneeneeeseeseeseeneeenns 6) Q) 33%
Restructuring and impairment charges .............ccoocveveeneeeceereeneenenne, 2) (6) 67%
Operating inCOmME (10SS)......veeveruieririeieieriesieeie sttt $ 14 3 (2) NM

NM = not meaningful.

Revenues

Total revenues for 2009 decreased $20 million as compared to total revenues for 2008 principally driven by a decrease of $25
million in commerce sales reflecting the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model in early 2009, a decrease in sound
services, and a decline in sales of hardcopy education content. These decreases were partially offset by growth in our education online
streaming distribution revenues as a result of the continued migration from hardcopy to online distribution of our education content.
We expect the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model will result in a reduction in our year-over-year commerce
revenues and direct operating costs through the first fiscal quarter of 2010.
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Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues, which consist principally of production costs, royalty payments, and content amortization expense, decreased
$13 million for 2009 as compared to costs of revenues for 2008 primarily due to a reduction in direct operating costs as a result of the
transition of our commerce business to a licensing model in early 2009 and to a lesser extent reductions in production costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which are principally comprised of employee costs, occupancy expenses, and
marketing costs, decreased $16 million for 2009 when compared to selling, general and administrative expenses for 2008 primarily
due to cost reductions in the commerce business. The decline in expenses in the commerce business was attributable to lower
employee costs as a result of the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model in early 2009.

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA for 2009 increased $9 million as compared to Adjusted OIBDA for 2008. The increase principally reflects
growth in education online streaming distribution revenues as users migrate from hard copy education content and cost reductions
from the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model, partially offset by a decrease from the sound services business.

Corporate and Intersegment Eliminations

The following table presents, for our unallocated corporate amounts, revenues, certain operating expenses, Adjusted OIBDA,
and a reconciliation of Adjusted OIBDA to operating loss (in millions).

Years Ended December 31, Z;‘S)l;:gig;
2009 2008 (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

ONET ..t $ 9 3 27 (67)%
TOtAl TEVENUES. ... eetieeiieieeie ettt ettt ettt enbeseaesnaeneeas 9 27 (67)%
COStS OF TEVEINUES ....eeeviieiiieiieeiieeteeetee et et e e e sveesbeesereesebeensaeenes N &) (40)%
Selling, general and adminiStrative.............ccceceereenieneeneeriesieseeens (206) (223) 8%
Adjusted OIBDA ......ooiiiiiieeeee e (204) (201) (1)%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation (204) 73 NM
Depreciation and amortization...................... (78) (78) —
Restructuring and impairment charges .............ccoceeveevieeceeseeneenenn 5) 2 NM
OPETAtiNG L0SS ....voveviveeieriieieetit ettt ettt ettt esess s beaseseenas $ (491) $ (208) NM

NM = not meaningful.

Corporate primarily consists of corporate functions, executive management, administrative support services, and ancillary
revenues and expenses from a consolidated joint venture. Consistent with our segment reporting, corporate expenses are excluded
from segment results to enable executive management to evaluate business segment performance based upon decisions made directly
by business segment executives.

Corporate revenues for the year ended December 31, 2009 decreased $18 million, when compared with the corresponding
period in 2008, primarily due to decreased ancillary revenues from a consolidated joint venture, whose primary sales were of the
Planet Earth DVD. Corporate selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $17 million for 2009 driven by lower personnel
and consulting costs as a result of cost savings initiatives.

2008 vs. 2007
Consolidated Results of Operations

The following discussion of our results of operations is presented in three parts to assist the reader in better understanding our
operations. The table below reconciles our and DHC’s prior year income statements presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP to the
financial information discussed in our adjusted results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2007. The second section is an
overall discussion of our consolidated operating results. The third section includes a more detailed discussion of revenue and expense
activity of our three operating divisions: U.S. Networks, International Networks, and Commerce, Education, and Other.
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The following table represents the year ended December 31, 2007 on an as adjusted basis (in millions). The information in the
“DHC Historical” and “DCH Historical” columns is derived from the historical statement of operations of DHC included elsewhere
herein (and has been adjusted to conform to Discovery’s presentation) and the historical statement of operations for DHC included in
Part IV of the 2008 Form 10-K. The adjustments column reflects specific adjustments required to present the “Discovery As
Adjusted” column as if the Newhouse Transaction occurred on January 1, 2007. We believe that the 2007 as adjusted presentation will
assist the reader in better understanding our operations as this presentation is on a comparable basis with the 2008 Statement of
Operations, therefore operating trends are more clearly presented. However, the actual results of operations for 2007 could have been
significantly different than the 2007 as adjusted results had the Newhouse Transaction actually closed on January 1, 2007.

Year Ended December 31, 2007

Discovery
Discovery Communications Discovery
Holding Holding, LLC Communications, Inc.
Company (A) Historical Adjustments As Adjusted
Revenues:
DiStribution.......ccooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ — 3 1,477 $ — $ 1,477
AdVEIrtiSING ...ccveeeveeiieieeieeiereeee e — 1,345 — 1,345
Other.....coovviiiieiece e, 76 305 — 381
Total revenues........c.ccoeeeveveninieninineeecreienenn, 76 3,127 — 3,203
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and

amortization listed below .............ccccceueeneene, 60 1,167 — 1,227
Selling, general and administrative.................... 22 1,296 — 1,318
Depreciation and amortization..............ceceeuee.e. 3 131 — 134
Restructuring and impairment charges............... — 46 — 46
Gains on diSPOSItioNS .........ccvreververeerierieeriennnns (D (135) — (136)

84 2,505 — 2,589
Operating (10SS) INCOME........cccvereerreerrrerierrennas ®) 622 — 614
Equity in earnings of Discovery

Communications Holding, LLC..................... 142 — (142)(B) —
Interest eXpense, Net........ccceevveeveeeereeeneenieeeennns — (249) — (249)
Other non-operating income (expense), net....... 8 ) — 7
Income from continuing operations before

INCOME LAXES . eeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeennes 142 372 (142) 372
Provision for income taxes...........ccoocveeverreennennn. (56) 77) — (133)
Income from continuing operations, net of

FAXES +eeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e seeeeeaeaee e 86 295 (142) 239
Loss from discontinued operations,

N OF EAXES vt eeee et eee e e e (154) (65) — (219)
Net (10SS) INCOME .....ccuveererieeeieeriiieie e eiee e (68) 230 (142) 20
Less net income attributable to non-controlling

INEETESES .ttt e e et e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeas — () (80)(C) (88)
Net (loss) income attributable to Discovery

Communications, Inc. stockholders .............. $ (68) $ 222 $ (222) $ (68)

(A) Amounts in this column represent DHC’s results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2007, recast to reflect the
operating results of Ascent Media Corporation, Ascent Media CANS, LLC and Ascent Media Sytems & Technology Services,
LLC as discontinued operations.
The continuing operations of DHC represent corporate costs and the operating results of Creative Sound Services.

(B) Represents the elimination of the portion of DCH’s earnings allocated to and recognized by DHC under the equity of accounting
for the year ended December 31, 2007.

(C) Represents the allocation of the portion DCH’s earnings not recognized by DHC to non-controlling interests for the year ended
December 31, 2007.
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The following table presents our operating results for the year ended December 31, 2008 and our adjusted results for the year
ended December 31, 2007 (in millions).

Years Ended December 31, % Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (D) (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DISEIDULION ..ot $ 1,640 $ 1,477 11%
AVEITISING ...eveeeieiieiieie ettt ettt ettt aesnaesseeseenseennes 1,396 1,345 4%
ONET ...ttt 407 381 7%
TOtAl TEVEIIUES....veeeeeeeeie ettt et e e e e e e e eaaeeean 3,443 3,203 7%
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization
TIStEA DEIOW ... 1,024 1,227 17%
Selling, general and adminiStrative.........ocuveeveeceerierierieeieeeeseesveeveeenns 1,115 1,318 15%
Depreciation and amortiZation............c.ecueeeveeeesieesieesieereseeseesseessesnenenns 186 134 (39)%
Restructuring and impairment charges ...........ccoceeveviveeieneenieneeienneeen. 61 46 33)%
Gains 0N diSPOSILIONS .....eveereeierierieiieie ettt ebe e seese s — (136) (100)%
2,386 2,589 8%
OPErating IMNCOIME. .....eeiieiiiriieitieriierieete ettt et e 1,057 614 72%
INLETESt EXPENSE, NEL...eeueieiiieiieeiieeieeeite ettt et et esreesteeesaneens (256) (249) 3)%
Other non-operating (eXpense) iNCOME, NEt........c.evveeerercrereereerueeresnennes (47) 7 NM
Income from continuing operations before income taxes........................ 754 372 NM
Provision for iNCOME taXeS.........ccvvevviriereeriieriieieeieereseesreeseeaeseneseneeas (352) (133) NM
Income from continuing operations, net of taXxes........cccceevereereenennennen. 402 239 68%
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes........................ 43 (219) NM
INET INCOIMIC ...ttt sttt ettt et st e et e 445 20 NM
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests ....................... (128) (88) (45)%
Net income (loss) attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc.
StOCKROIAETS ...t $ 317 $ (63) NM

NM = not meaningful.

(D) In order to enhance comparability, unaudited adjusted financial information for the year ended December 31, 2007 is provided
as if the Newhouse Transaction had occurred on January 1, 2007.

Revenues

Our consolidated revenues increased $240 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007, as
adjusted. Distribution revenues increased $163 million during the year primarily due to International Networks subscriber growth
combined with annual contract increases for the fully distributed U.S. Networks, offset by the disposition of Travel Channel.
Advertising revenues increased $51 million for the period, and is primarily attributed to higher pricing and cash sellout rates in U.S.
Networks. Other revenues increased $26 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007, as adjusted,
primarily due to an increase in licensing revenues in the International Networks, increase in sales of the Planet Earth DVD through a
joint venture, and increases in revenues from our representation of the Travel Channel through our U.S. Networks segment, offset by a
decline in revenues from the direct to consumer business in our Commerce, Education, and Other business segment.

Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues, which includes content amortization and other production related expenses in addition to distribution and
merchandising costs, decreased $203 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared to 2007, as adjusted. The
decrease in costs of revenues was primarily due to the effect of content impairment charges in the fourth quarter 2007 of $139 million
primarily in U.S. Networks coupled with a $76 million decrease in related amortization expense. These decreases were partially offset
by increases in costs of revenue in the International Networks and content impairment related to TLC.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses, which include certain personnel, marketing and other general and administrative
expenses, decreased $203 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 from 2007, as adjusted, primarily attributable to a $210
million decrease in expenses arising from long-term incentive plans, which were partially offset by slight increases in costs incurred in
conjunction with DCH preparing to become a consolidated subsidiary of ours as a result of the Newhouse Transaction and an increase
in personnel costs in International Networks. Expenses arising from long-term incentive plans are largely related to DCH’s unit-based,
long-term incentive plan, the Discovery Appreciation Plan or the “DAP”, or “LTIP”, which was modified to reflect our capital
structure following the Newhouse Transaction. Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, the value of units in the LTIP was indexed to the
value of DHC Series A common stock. After the Newhouse Transaction, the units remained outstanding and were converted at the
effective time of the Newhouse Transaction to track changes in the value of our Series A common stock. The change in unit value of
LTIP awards outstanding is recorded as expenses arising from long-term incentive plans over the period outstanding. Primarily due to
the decrease in both the DHC Series A common stock and our Series A common stock price during the year ended December 31,
2008, we recorded a benefit of $69 million to expenses arising from long-term incentive plans in 2008 compared to expenses arising
from long-term incentive plans of $141 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, as adjusted. In the fourth quarter 2008, eligible
new hires and promoted employees received stock options that vest in four equal installments, and those employees with LTIP units
that vest between September 18, 2008 and March 14, 2009 will receive cash-settled stock appreciation awards that expire in
March 2010. We do not intend to make additional cash-settled stock appreciation awards, except as may be required by contract or to
employees in countries where stock option awards are not permitted.

Depreciation and Amortization

The increase in depreciation and amortization for the year ended December 31, 2008 is due to an increase in intangible assets
resulting from the reclassification of DHC intangibles following the Newhouse Transaction and the HowStuffWorks.com acquisition.

Restructuring and Impairment Charges

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded $31 million in restructuring charges, of which $11 million relates to the
relocation and severance costs related to TLC’s repositioning strategy, $6 million for the termination of a production group, and
$6 million due to the closure of our commerce distribution center and our store headquarters offices along with the transition of the
remaining commerce distribution services to third-party service providers. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded
restructuring charges of $20 million related to a number of organizational and strategic adjustments. The purpose of these adjustments
was to better align our organizational structure with our new strategic priorities and to respond to continuing changes within the media
industry.

During the fourth quarter of 2008, we recorded a write-off of intangible assets of $30 million related to our
HowStuffWorks.com business. This write-off of intangible assets was due to the decline in the cash flows projected to be generated by
the HowStuffWorks.com business. During the second quarter of 2007, DCH recorded an asset impairment of $26 million which
represents write-offs of intangible assets related to the education business.

Gains on Dispositions

In 2007, we exchanged the capital stock of a subsidiary that held the Travel Channel and travelchannel.com (collectively, the
“Travel Business”) for Cox Communications Holdings, Inc.’s 25% ownership interest in us and $1.3 billion in cash. The distribution
of the Travel Business, which was valued at $575 million, resulted in a $135 million tax-free gain.

Interest Expense, Net

On May 14, 2007, we entered into a $1.5 billion term loan in conjunction with the transaction with Cox Communications
Holdings, Inc., offset by a $180 million payment for a senior note that matured. The increase in interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007, as adjusted, is primarily a result of the term loan.

Other Non-Operating (Expense) Income, Net

Other non-operating (expense) income, net includes our equity in the operating results of unconsolidated affiliates, other non-
operating income net of non-operating expenses, as well as unrealized losses from derivative instruments. Equity in loss of
unconsolidated affiliates in 2008 consisted primarily of a $57 million other-than-temporary decline in the value of our equity method
investment in HSWi, coupled with $13 million in equity losses recorded during 2008, which is offset by equity in income from our
joint ventures in Canada and Japan. In 2007, we recognized $9 million of equity in income primarily from our joint ventures in
Canada and Japan.
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Other non-operating income consisted of a $47 million reduction of a liability related to the value of shares in HSWi to be
exchanged to its former shareholders, which was recorded in December 2008. Offsetting this non-operating income is unrealized
losses from derivative transactions. Unrealized losses from derivative transactions relate primarily to our use of derivative instruments
to modify our exposure to interest rate fluctuations on our debt. These instruments include a combination of swaps, caps, collars and
other structured instruments. As a result of unrealized mark to market adjustments, we recognized unrealized losses of $31 million and
$9 million during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The foreign exchange hedging instruments used by us
are spot, forward and option contracts. Additionally, we enter into non-designated forward contracts to hedge non-dollar denominated
cash flows and foreign currency balances.

Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 47% and 36% for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, as adjusted, respectively. Our
effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2008 differed from the federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to DHC’s
recognition of deferred tax expense related to its investment in DCH (net of tax benefit from intangible amortization related to the
spin-off of the Travel Channel in 2007), which is partially offset by the release of a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets of
Ascent Media Sound, Inc. Other items impacting the effective tax rate include the following: our conversion from deducting foreign
taxes to claiming foreign tax credits, foreign unrecognized tax positions, and other miscellaneous items. Our effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2007, as adjusted, was not materially different than the federal income tax rate of 35%. However, during this
period we benefited from the tax-free treatment of the gain recognized on the disposition of the Travel Channel and the release of
Travel Channel deferred tax liabilities, offset by the tax impact of discontinued operations.

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations, Net of Taxes

Summarized financial information included in discontinued operations is set forth in the following table (in millions).

Years Ended December 31,
2007
2008 As Adjusted
REVEIIUES........eiuiveiiititiietetet ettt ettt te st b et et b tese s et e st s et e s e s esese s ebese s esesesseb et et esesess b et ese s esese s s esnse st esesensne $ 484 S 689
Loss from the operations of discontinued operations before inCOmMe taxes..........cceeverrieviiereeiereenreereseennen $ ©6) $ (250)
Loss from the operations of discontinued operations, Net Of tAXES .......cc.eevverieriieriieiicieieeeee e $ 4 3 (219)
Gains on diSPOSItIONS, NEL OF TAXES ......euertiiteitietieeet ettt ettt et et e s te et ebeebeeseeneense e eneensenseneenseneens $ 47 3 —
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations, NEt OF tAXES.........eeirieierierieie ettt $ 43 % (219)
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations available to Discovery Communications, Inc.
stockholders, basic and IULEd...........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e s e e et e e e eeaaeeseaaeeeans $ 0.13 $ (0.78)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
BaSIC .ttt h e ettt h e bt e h e a e h e st et e b bbbt bbbt en b e st et et e neenten 321 281
DHIUEEA. ..ottt et h bt bbbt st e st et e bbbt b e bt e bt aeen s et et et et enten 322 281

On September 17, 2008, as part of the Newhouse Transaction, DHC completed the spin-off to its shareholders of AMC, a
subsidiary holding the cash and businesses of DHC, except for CSS, which provides sound, music, mixing, sound effects and other
related services under brand names such as Sound One, POP Sound, Soundelux and Todd A-O (which businesses remained with us
following the completion of the Newhouse Transaction). The AMC spin-off was structured such that there was no gain or loss related
to the transaction.

Just prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC sold its ownership interests in Ascent Media CANS, LLC (D/B/A AccentHealth) to
AccentHealth Holdings LLC, an unaffiliated third party, for approximately $119 million in cash. It was determined that AccentHealth
was a non-core asset, and the sale of AccentHealth was consistent with DHC’s strategy to divest non-core assets. DHC recognized a
pre-tax gain of approximately $64 million in connection with the sale of AccentHealth, which is recorded as a component of
discontinued operations. As there is no continuing involvement in the operations of AMC or AccentHealth, the financial results of
their operations have been presented as discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Following a comprehensive strategic review of our businesses, we closed 103 mall-based and stand-alone Discovery Stores in
the third quarter of 2007. As there is no continuing involvement in the retail stores or significant migration of retail customers to e-
commerce, the results of the Retail business are accounted for as discontinued operations in the as-adjusted results of operations for
the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Net Loss (Income) Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests

Non-controlling interests primarily represent our and consolidated entities’ portion of earnings which are allocable to the non-
controlling partners. The increase in net income attributable to non-controlling interests during the year ended December 31, 2008 is
primarily a result of our increased profits allocated to non-controlling partners prior to the Newhouse Transaction and reporting of our
financial results in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 810, Consolidations (“ASC 810”).

Segment Results of Operations

Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
U.S. NEEWOTKS ..ottt $ 2,062 $ 1,941 6%
International NetWorks............oooviiiiiiiiieiiiicece e 1,158 1,030 12%
Commerce, Education, and Other ..............cccccooeeiiiieieneeien. 196 225 (13)%
Corporate and intersegment eliminations..............cceceeevereeennen. 27 7 NM
TOtal TEVENUES. ....cuvviiieiiie et 3,443 3,203 7%
CoStS OF TEVENUES Y ..ottt (1,024) (1,227) 17%
Selling, general and administrative ¢V ..........cccceevieeieeceeneerieeieenenn, (1,184) (1,177) (H%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives.............ccccoeueeunn.. 75 100 (25)%
Adjusted OIBDA ......coooiiie ettt $ 1,310 $ 899 46%

NM = not meaningful.

@ Costs of revenue and selling, general and administrative expenses exclude depreciation and amortization, income
(expense) arising from long-term incentive plan awards (mark-to-market), gains on dispositions, exit and restructuring charges,
and intangible asset impairments.
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Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Adjusted OIBDA:
ULS. NEEWOTKS .ottt ee s eeee e $ 1,111 $ 830 34%
International NetwWorks.........cccceeeierieiiieieieiee e 387 254 52%
Commerce, Education, and Other ...........cccooeevviiveieeeiiieeeens 13 4 NM
Corporate and intersegment eliminations..........c..cecceceeeeeneee. (201) (189) 0)%
Total Adjusted OIBDA ........cocoiiiieiiieeeeee e 1,310 899 46%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives...........cccceeevvrevereenenen. (75) (100) 25%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation.............ccecververcreeenennen. 69 (141) NM
Depreciation and amortization..............cuevvereeereereereerieeieneeneeeens (186) (134) 39%
Restructuring and impairment charges ............ccecceevervecieeeeneennen. (61) (46) (33)%
Gains on diSPOSILIONS .......eevereieriieiieiieieeiieteeieeie e see e ae e — 136 (100)%
Total OPEerating INCOME ........ccuereieeiriieeieieieeseeee et eeseeeens $ 1,057 $ 614 72%

NM = not meaningful.

U.S. Networks
Years Ended December 31, % Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DiStHDULION ...t $ 927 $ 862 8%
AAVEITISING....vieeiieiieieeieeie et eie et sreebeeee e sreebeessesnaens 1,058 1,015 4%
OheT .. 77 64 20%
TOtAl TEVEIUES. ....ccvveeeeeeeeee et eeeanee s 2,062 1,941 6%
COStS Of TEVEIUES ....eecuvieieiieeiieciieee et e eve e sveeeib e e seae e (509) (699) 27%
Selling, general and administrative.............ccoceereeeieneeneeceeeieeene (476) (468) 2)%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives.............c............ 34 56 (39)%
Adjusted OIBDA ......c.ooiiieee et 1,111 830 34%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives..........ccccceevvrevervenennen. (34) (56) 39%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation.............cceeververreennenen. “4) — —
Depreciation and amortization............cccvevveeeveeeeseeseenseecseseeseennens (56) (28) (100)%
Restructuring and impairment Charges ............cceeveeveevereerreecnennnns (&2))] — —
OPErating INCOIME........ceeviiereeriiereerieeseereseseesessesessesseseesessessesessenes $ 966 $ 746 29%

As noted above, in May 2007, we exchanged our subsidiary holding the Travel Channel, travelchannel.com and approximately
$1.3 billion in cash for Cox’s interest in DCH. Accordingly, DCH’s 2007 results of operations do not include Travel Channel after
May 14, 2007. The disposal of Travel Channel does not meet the requirements for discontinued operations presentation. The following
table represents U.S. Networks results of operations excluding Travel Channel for all periods. Although this presentation is not in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, we believe this presentation provides a more meaningful comparison of the U.S. Networks results of
operations and allows the reader to better understand the U.S. Networks ongoing operations.
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U.S. Networks without Travel Channel

Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DISIEDULON «..vvveievcieteeevet et $ 927 $ 840 10%
AAVETHISING ...t 1,058 975 9%
ONET .. 77 64 20%
TOtAl FEVEIIUES. ...veeeeveieeeeeee ettt et e e enaeee s 2,062 1,879 10%
COStS OF TEVENUES .....eeveiieiieieeie ettt eees (509) (673) 24%
Selling, general and adminiStrative............cceevveeeeervereeneeeeeeseeeenes (476) (447) (6)%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives............ccccceenene.. 34 51 (33)%
Adjusted OIBDA ......c.ooiieeeiee e 1,111 810 37%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives.............ccoeveevvievenneenen. (34) 51) 33%
Mark-to-market share-based compensation.............ccccveveerreennenen. 4 — —
Depreciation and amortization..............c.eeveereerreecreeeeseeseerneeneenens (56) (28) (100)%
Restructuring and impairment charges ............cccceeereresenesenennens (51) — —
OPErating INCOIME........cveviieeeirireeieteeteeeeree e etese e ereseteesesereeseasenes $ 966 $ 731 32%

Since the disposal of Travel Channel in 2007 did not meet the requirements of discontinued operations presentation, and the
results of Travel Channel are not consolidated with DCH post transaction, the following discussion excludes the results of Travel
Channel for all periods so as to facilitate comparability of the U.S. Networks segment data.

Revenues

Total revenues increased $183 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007. Distribution revenue
increased $87 million over the period, driven by annual contractual rate increases for fully distributed networks combined with
subscription units, principally from networks carried on the digital tier. Distribution revenue includes a one-time $8 million
adjustment resulting from improvements in our methodology of estimating accrued revenue for certain distribution operators. The
adjustment was recorded in its entirety in the second quarter of 2008 and is not material to the current or prior periods. Contra revenue
items included in distribution revenue, such as launch amortization and marketing consideration, decreased $19 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007. This decrease includes $3 million for replacement decoder boxes to support the
digitization of an analog transponder recorded as contra revenue in the second quarter of 2007.

Advertising revenue increased $83 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with the prior year, primarily
due to higher pricing in the up-front and scatter markets, as well as higher cash sellouts, which were partially offset by under-delivery
of committed audience levels, when compared with the corresponding prior year periods.

Other revenue increased $13 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, primarily from our representation of the Travel
Channel, which increased $11 million during the period, coupled with an increase of $5 million in revenue from How Stuff Works,
which was acquired in December 2007. These increases were partially offset by a decrease of $6 million of international program
sales revenue, which is now reported in the International Networks segment.

Costs of Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2008, costs of revenues decreased $164 million when compared with 2007, primarily due to a
decrease in content amortization expense of $156 million. The decrease in content amortization expense was primarily a result of the
effect of the $129 million content impairment charge recorded in 2007 following a change in management and related changes in
strategy. This charge coupled with the related $76 million decrease in content amortization expense was offset by $17 million of
content impairment charges for TLC programs following a change in management and related changes in strategy in the second half of
2008, and content amortization expense for new programming on Discovery Channel, TLC, Planet Green and Science Channel.
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Selling, General and Administrative

Total selling, general and administrative expenses increased $29 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared
with 2007, which was primarily a result of a $34 million increase in personnel costs, primarily driven by continued investment in
digital media, including acquisitions made during the third and fourth quarters of 2007. This increase was partially offset by decreased
marketing expense of $12 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared with the corresponding prior year period.

Adjusted OIBDA

The U.S. Networks segment’s operating performance improved as reflected by an increase in adjusted OIBDA of $301 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007. The improved performance is primarily due to revenue growth
driven by subscriber growth coupled with higher pricing and lower costs of revenue due to declines in content amortization expense.

International Networks

Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
DISIEIDULON «..vveeveieveieeeeie et $ 713§ 615 16%
AAVETHISING ..ot 336 330 2%
ONET .. 109 85 28%
TOtAl FEVEIUES. ...veeeieeeeeeeeeeie ettt e eeeaer e enaeees 1,158 1,030 12%
COStS OF TEVEINUES ....eeevvieiiieiiieciieeeieeeiteeetreeiee e e eeaeeebaeeree s (394) (373) (6)%
Selling, general and adminiStrative.............ceveeereereeeceeneeneesee e (418) (447) 6%
Add: Amortization of deferred launch incentives............ccccceenenee. 41 44 (M%
Adjusted OIBDA ......ccoooiiieeeieee e 387 254 52%
Amortization of deferred launch incentives..........cccceeeververeenenen. (41) (44) 7%
Depreciation and amortization..............c.eeveeeerreeereeeeseeneeneeneennns (43) (36) (19)%
Restructuring and impairment charges ............ccoceeeeeeeeceeeieneennn. 2) 2) —
OPErating INCOIME........ceeviriereiriieeierieereeseseseesessesessesseseesesseseesessens $ 301 $ 172 75%

Revenues

Total revenues increased $128 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007, driven by an increase
in distribution revenue of $98 million. Distribution revenue increased $76 million in EMEA, Latin America, and Asia-Pacific
primarily as a result of a 16% increase in average paying subscription units. In addition, foreign exchange had a favorable impact of
$13 million on distribution revenues for the year ended December 31, 2008 when compared with 2007.

Advertising revenue increased $6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007. Advertising
revenue increased $42 million in EMEA and Latin America primarily due to higher viewership combined with an increased subscriber
base in most markets worldwide. These increases were offset by a $35 million decrease in the U.K. due to an interpretation of a
contract provision resulting in a limitation in our ability to monetize our audience in the U.K., as well as a deterioration in market
conditions. Advertising revenue decreased $4 million due to the impact of unfavorable foreign exchange.

Other revenue increased $24 million mainly due to improvement in licensing and sales of programs primarily in the U.K. offset
by a $2 million unfavorable foreign exchange impact.

Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues increased $21 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007, driven by a
$40 million increase in content amortization expense due to continued investment in original productions and language customization
to support additional local feeds for growth in local ad sales partially offset by favorable foreign exchange of $10 million and a
reduction in sales commissions of $5 million.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $29 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with
2007. This decrease was driven by a $26 million reduction in marketing expenditures coupled with the favorable impact of $3 million
from foreign exchange.
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Adjusted OIBDA

The International Networks segment’s operating performance improved as reflected in an increase in adjusted OIBDA of
$133 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007. The improved performance reflects revenue growth
driven by subscription growth in EMEA, Latin America and Asia-Pacific and a reduction in marketing expenditures, partially offset
by increased content amortization expense due to continued investment in original productions and language customization.

Commerce, Education, and Other

Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
[0 115 T<) TSR $ 196 § 225 (13)%
TOtal TEVENMUES. .. .eeuteiieiiieiieieee et 196 225 (13)%
COStS OF TEVENUES ....ecvviieieiieiieie ettt ettt eae s saeeaeennes (116) (151) 23%
Selling, general and adminiStrative.............c.eeverreerieereeeeseeneenennnn. (67) (70) 4%
Adjusted OIBDA ..ot 13 4 NM
Depreciation and amortization.............ccveevereereerneeveeieeseesreeneenene 9) (17) 47%
Restructuring and impairment charges ...........ccocoeeeveeneeienieneenenne (6) 27 78%
OPETAtING LOSS ....vovvviiieieticiieietiet ettt ettt r et $ 2 $ (40) 95%

NM = not meaningful.

Revenues

Commerce, Education, and Other total revenues decreased $29 million for the year ended 2008 when compared with the prior
year. A challenging retail environment in 2008 coupled with the success of the Planet Earth DVD in 2007 contributed to a year over
year decline of 48% in revenue from the direct to consumer business, which was partially offset by higher licensing revenue.
Education revenue increased by $6 million as the core streaming business continued to grow. New revenue streams in licensing and
sponsorships were slightly offset by the decline in the hardcopy business as customers shifted to our digital services. Revenues
generated by the CSS business were relatively flat compared with 2007.

Costs of Revenues

Costs of revenues decreased $35 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, commensurate with the decrease in
Commerce’s product revenue coupled with a decrease in Education’s content amortization, which resulted from the fourth quarter
2007 write-off of capitalized content costs that were not aligned with Education’s product offerings.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased $3 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was
primarily due to lower personnel and marketing costs incurred in Commerce and Education coupled with a $2 million legal expense in
2007 for a legal settlement. These decreases were partially offset by a slight increase in selling, general and administrative expense
from the CSS business.

Adjusted OIBDA

Adjusted OIBDA increased $9 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared to 2007, which reflects our
efforts to reduce costs in response to the challenging retail environment during the year, reflected by a decline in revenue.
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Corporate and Intersegment Eliminations

Years Ended December 31,

% Change
2007 Favorable/
2008 As Adjusted (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
OUNET ...ttt ettt eb et eses $ 27 $ 7 NM
TOtal TEVENMUES. .....coveeeieiiiiiiiiercrierece e 27 7 NM
COStS OF TEVENMUES .....eveeieeieeiieeiie sttt ettt neeas &) 4 25)%
Selling, general and adminiStrative.............ccoeceeveenieneeseeieeeneeeen (223) (192) (16)%
Adjusted OIBDA ......ooiiiiiiieieeee e (201) (189) (6)%
Market-to-market share-based compensation.............ccceevuveveeeeennnnne. 73 (141) NM
Depreciation and amortizZation............eecueevereerverereseeseesesseesneseeennes (78) (53) 4N%
Restructuring and impairment charges ..........cccocoevvevvereereeceeeeennnnn, 2) 17 88%
Gains 0N diSPOSILIONS .......eeviruierrieiieiieieeeeseeieere e e sree e aeeeeeeees — 136 (100)%
OPETAtING L0SS ....vvvvireeietiieeietit ettt ettt et ssesseaeebeaseseanas $ (208) $ (264) 21%

NM = not meaningful.

Corporate is mainly comprised of ancillary revenue and expenses from a joint venture, corporate functions, executive
management and administrative support services. Consistent with our segment reporting, corporate expenses are excluded from
segment results to enable executive management to evaluate business segment performance based upon decisions made directly by
business segment executives.

Corporate revenues increased $20 million for the year ended December 31, 2008, when compared with 2007, primarily due to
increased ancillary revenue from a joint venture, whose primary sales were of the Planet Earth DVD; current sales volume is not
expected to continue. Corporate costs increased $32 million, for the year ended December 31, 2008, driven by increased costs incurred
in conjunction with our preparing to become a public entity as a result of the Newhouse Transaction and costs related to the start-up of
OWN.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
This section provides a description of our primary sources and uses of cash, as well as significant transactions affecting
liquidity, for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

The following table represents a comparison of the components of the statement of cash flows, as reported for the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 with a reconciliation of historical DCH statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2007 (in millions).

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008(2) 2007 (1)Q2)
Cash provided by operating aCtiVities.........ocvevervevieerieieririeeerieeeeee e § 608 $ 569 § 300
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities ...........cccveveeveiireereiireiereeeeeeerenies $ 266 $ 98 § (4406)
Cash (used in) provided by financing activities...........c.cevveevveeiriveeeireieresieeeenns $ (356) $ (774 $ 187

(1) The 2007 amounts reflect the gross combined cash flow activities of both DHC and DCH as though the Newhouse Transaction
was completed January 1, 2007. The 2007 amounts include net operating cash inflows of $58 million and $242 million from
DHC and DCH, respectively, investing cash outflows of ($15) million and ($431) million from DHC and DCH, respectively,
and financing cash inflows of $12 million for DHC and $175 million for DCH.

(2) The cash flow activity also includes cash flows for AMC for both the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, including cash
provided by operating activities of $28 million, cash provided by investing activities of $128 million, and cash used in financing
activities of $2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008. AMC cash provided by operating activities was $61 million, cash
used in investing activities was $15 million, and cash provided by financing activities was $2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2007.
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Sources of Cash

Our principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents on hand, cash flows from operations, proceeds from business
dispositions, available borrowing capacity under our revolving credit facility, and access to capital markets. We anticipate that our
existing cash and cash equivalents on hand and cash generated by or available to the Company should be sufficient to meet our
anticipated cash requirements for at least the next twelve months.

As of December 31, 2009, we had approximately $2.2 billion of total liquidity, comprised of $623 million of cash and cash
equivalents on hand and the ability to borrow approximately $1.6 billion under our revolving credit facility.

Operating Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2009, our cash provided by operating activities was $608 million, as compared to $569 million
and $300 million for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, driven by a decrease in cash provided by working
capital primarily due to cash paid for income taxes of $444 million, $194 million, and $75 million for the years ended December 31,
2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The increase for the year ended December 31, 2009 was primarily due to higher operating income
and $108 million in taxes paid related to the sale of our 50% interest in Discovery Kids. The amount for the year ended December 31,
2008 includes $17 million for taxes paid by discontinued operations.

Investing Activities

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2009 was $266 million compared to $98 million
and $(446) million during the corresponding periods in 2008 and 2007, respectively. The increase primarily reflects $300 million we
received from Hasbro in exchange for a 50% ownership interest in a new joint venture that operates the Discovery Kids business and a
decrease in capital expenditures of $45 million and $71 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 as compared to 2008 and 2007,
respectively.

Financing Activities

At December 31, 2009, our committed debt facilities included two term loans, a revolving credit facility, and various senior
notes. Total commitments under these facilities were $5.0 billion at December 31, 2009, of which $3.4 billion of indebtedness was
outstanding under these facilities at December 31, 2009, providing additional borrowing capacity of $1.6 billion.

On August 19, 2009, DCL issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Senior Notes maturing on August 15,
2019 (the “August 2019 Notes”). DCL received net proceeds of $492 million from the offering after deducting the issuance costs.
DCL used the net proceeds of the offering to repay $428 million of indebtedness outstanding under its Term Loan A, prior to final
maturity on October 31, 2010. The remaining proceeds are for general corporate purposes.

The August 2019 Notes are unsecured and rank equally in right of payment with all of DCL’s other unsecured senior
indebtedness. The August 2019 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on an unsecured and unsubordinated basis by
Discovery.

On May 14, 2009, DCH entered into Credit Agreement Supplement No. 1 (“Term Loan C”) to its Term Loan B. Pursuant to
Term Loan C, DCH incurred $500 million of indebtedness, which matures on May 14, 2014. DCH received net proceeds of
$478 million from the borrowing after deducting issuance costs. DCH used the net proceeds of the borrowing to repay $163 million
and $315 million of indebtedness outstanding under DCL’s Term Loan A and the revolving credit facility, respectively.

The Term Loan C indebtedness is repayable in equal quarterly installments of $1.25 million beginning June 30, 2009 through
March 31, 2014, with the balance due on the maturity date. Term Loan C bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus an applicable margin
of 3.25%, with a LIBOR floor of 2.00%, which was 5.25% at December 31, 2009. From May 14, 2009 through December 31, 2009,
the weighted average effective interest rate for Term Loan C was 6.03%.

We currently hold fixed rate swaps that economically hedge the interest rate risk on all of our outstanding variable rate debt. The
anticipated interest payments, together with the scheduled principal payments, due over the next year are within the available capacity
on our committed facilities. Although we have adequate liquidity to fund our operations and to meet our debt service obligations over
the next twelve months, we may seek to arrange new financing.

Term Loan B and Term Loan C are secured by DCH’s assets, excluding assets held by its subsidiaries. The revolving credit
facility and senior notes are unsecured. The debt facilities contain covenants that require the respective borrowers to meet certain
financial ratios and place restrictions on the payment of dividends, sale of assets, additional borrowings, mergers, and purchases of
capital stock, assets and investments. We were compliant with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2009 and have sufficient excess
capacity to draw on existing debt commitments or incur additional debt.
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Uses of Cash

Our primary uses of cash include the creation and acquisition of new content, commitments to equity affiliates, and debt and
related interest payments. We expect our cash used to acquire content to continue to increase as we continue to invest in high quality
programming.

Investing Activities

We and the BBC have formed several cable and satellite television network joint ventures to develop and distribute
programming content. Under the terms of our agreements with the BBC, it has the right, every three years starting December 31, 2002,
to require us to purchase its ownership interests in those joint ventures. Due to the complexities of the redemption formula, we have
accrued the value of the redemption, or put right, at approximately $49 million as of December 31, 2009. We are currently discussing
with the BBC potential revisions to all of our contractual relationships, including the ownership of the joint ventures. While there can
be no assurance that these or other negotiations would result in a definitive agreement, we expect that the cost of a negotiated
acquisition of the BBC’s interests in the joint ventures could substantially exceed the value of the put right.

On July 23, 2008, we formed a 50-50 joint venture with Oprah Winfrey and Harpo, Inc. Pursuant to the venture agreement,
Discovery is committed to loan up to $100 million to the venture through September 30, 2011 to fund operations, of which
$35 million has been funded as of December 31, 2009. We anticipate that sufficient funds will be available to meet funding needs
under our obligation in 2010. To the extent that funding the joint venture in excess of $100 million is necessary, we may provide
additional funds through a member loan or require the joint venture to seek third party financing. We expect to recoup the entire
amount contributed in future periods provided that the joint venture is profitable and has sufficient funds to repay us. We are currently
discussing with Harpo a number of matters regarding the OWN Network, including digital strategy, the programming and
development pipeline, and increases in our funding commitment, which is currently $100 million.

Financing Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2009, $356 million of cash was used in financing activities as compared to $774 million
used for the year ended December 31, 2008 and $187 million provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31,
2007. Our primary use of cash for financing activities during 2009 was principal payments under our debt facilities totaling
$1.3 billion. This outflow was partially offset by $970 million in net cash proceeds from Term Loan C and the August 2019 Notes
discussed previously. During the year ended December 31, 2008, our primary uses of cash for financing activities were $356 million
in cash disbursed in connection with the spinoff of Ascent Media Corporation and principal repayments of $382 million under our
debt facilities.

In 2010, we expect our uses of cash to include a minimum of $20 million for debt repayments, between $210 million and
$240 million for interest expense, and approximately $50 million for capital expenditures. Additionally, we expect to make payments
to settle vested employee cash-settled equity awards. Actual amounts expensed and payable for cash-settled equity awards are
dependent on future calculations of fair value which are primarily affected by changes in our stock price, changes in the number of
awards outstanding, and changes to the plan. The current portion accrued for these cash-settled awards was $117 million as of
December 31, 2009.

Factors Affecting Liquidity and Capital Resources

If we were to experience a significant decline in operating performance, or have to meet an unanticipated need for additional
liquidity beyond our available commitments, there is no certainty that we would be able to access the needed liquidity. While we have
established relationships with U.S. and international banks and investors which continue to participate in our various credit
agreements, the current state of the credit markets may cause some lenders to have to reduce or withdraw their commitments if we
were to seek to negotiate a refinancing or an increase in our total commitments. Covenants in existing debt agreements may constrain
our capacity for additional debt or there may be significant increases in costs to refinance existing debt to access additional liquidity.
As a public company, we may have access to other sources of capital such as the public bond and equity markets. However, access to
sufficient liquidity in these markets is not assured given our substantial debt outstanding and the continued volatility in the equity and
credit markets.

On June 17, 2009, we filed a Registration Statement on Form S-3 (“shelf registration”) with the SEC in which we registered
securities, including debt securities, common stock, and preferred stock. The August 2019 Notes were issued under this shelf
registration. While we are not required to issue additional securities under this shelf registration, we may issue additional securities at
a future date.

Our access to capital markets can be affected by factors outside of our control. In addition, our cost to borrow is impacted by
market conditions and our financial performance as measured by certain credit metrics defined in our credit agreements, including
interest coverage and leverage ratios.
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We expect to have sufficient cash flow from operations in 2010, combined with $623 million of cash on hand at December 31,
2009, to meet future needs including mandatory principal repayments of debt, interest payments, expected capital expenditures, and
payments to settle vested employee cash-settled equity awards. In addition, we have $1.6 billion of available capacity on our existing
revolving credit facility if our cash flow from operations is less than anticipated. Our revolving credit facility expires in October 2010.
We are currently assessing our options to extend or enter into a new facility.

We were compliant with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2009 and have sufficient excess capacity to draw on existing
debt commitments or incur additional debt. We have no indication that any of our lenders would be unable to perform under the
requirements of our credit agreements should we seek additional funding. Although our leverage and interest coverage covenants limit
the total amount of debt we might incur relative to our operating cash flow, we expect we would continue to maintain compliance with
our debt covenants with a 50% reduction in our current operating performance.

Contractual Obligations

We have agreements for leases of satellite transponders, facilities and equipment. These agreements expire at various dates
through 2028. We are obligated to license programming under agreements with content suppliers that expire over various dates. We
also have other contractual commitments arising in the ordinary course of business.

A summary of all of the expected payments for these commitments as well as future principal payments under the current debt
arrangements and minimum payments under capital leases at December 31, 2009 is as follows (in millions).

Payments Due by Period(1)

Less than 1 More than
Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Long-term debt ........ccocivvivieiiieeieiicieeeieeeee e $ 3,394 $ 20 $ 585 % 1,899 § 890
Interest paymMents(2) .....ccecevevveevreeieeiereeieeeeeee e ese e 976 205 358 257 156
Capital [€ASES .....ueevveerieieeieriiete ettt 153 27 49 27 50
OPErating LeaSeS. ......ccuevvereeriieieiienreerie e eee st esre e eae e nes 337 70 105 70 92

CONLENL ..ot et eree e e sre e e ear e e e eareeas 440 287 111 42 —
Other(3) cvveeeeiieieeieseee ettt 445 128 121 57 139
TOtal ..o $ 5,745 ' $ 737 $ 1,329 §$ 2,352 § 1,327

(1) Table does not include certain long-term obligations reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as the timing of the payments
cannot be predicted or the amounts will not be settled in cash. The most significant of these obligations include $148 million
accrued under our cash-settled equity awards and $71 million related to unrecognized tax benefits.

(2) Amounts (i) are based on our outstanding debt at December 31, 2009, (ii) assume the interest rates on our floating rate debt and
associated interest rate swaps remain constant at the December 31, 2009 rates, (iii) assume that our existing debt is repaid at
maturity and (iv) excludes interest payments on capital leases which are included in Capital leases.

(3) Represents our obligations to purchase goods and services whereby the underlying agreements are enforceable, legally binding
and specify all significant terms. The more significant purchase obligations include: obligations to purchase goods and services,
employment contracts, sponsorship agreements and transmission services. Amounts related to employment contracts include
base compensation and do not include compensation contingent on future events.

We are subject to a contractual agreement that may require us to acquire the non-controlling interest of certain of our
subsidiaries. The amount and timing of such payments are not currently known and, accordingly, are not included in the table above.
We have recorded a $49 million liability as of December 31, 2009 for this redemption right. Refer to Note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements for additional information.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K) that have or are
reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses,
results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing
basis, we evaluate estimates, which are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions believed reasonable under the
circumstances. The results of these evaluations form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
and the reported amount of expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions. Critical accounting policies impact the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations
and require significant judgment and estimates. An appreciation of our critical accounting policies facilitates an understanding of our
financial results. Unless otherwise noted, we applied our critical accounting policies and estimates methods consistently in all material
respects and for all periods presented. For further information regarding these critical accounting policies and estimates, please see the
Notes to our consolidated financial statements.

For financial reporting purposes, we are the successor reporting entity to DHC. Because there is no effective change in
ownership, in accordance with ASC 810, both DHC and DCH have been consolidated in our financial statements as if the transaction
had occurred January 1, 2008. Our critical accounting policies were adopted from DCH following the Newhouse Transaction. For
purposes of analyzing our critical accounting policies, we present associated 2008 financial information consistent with our financial
statement presentation and present associated 2007 financial information consistent with the financial statement presentation of DCH.

Revenues

We derive revenues from (i) distribution revenues from cable systems, satellite operators and other distributors, (ii) advertising
aired on our networks and websites, and (iii) other, which is largely educational sales, e-commerce sales, and post-production sound
and service sales.

Distribution

Distributors generally pay a per-subscriber fee for the right to distribute our programming under the terms of long-term
distribution contracts (“distribution revenues”). Distribution revenues are reported net of incentive costs or other consideration, if any,
offered to system operators in exchange for long-term distribution contracts. We recognize distribution revenues over the term of the
contracts based on contracted monthly license fee provisions and reported subscriber levels. Network incentives have historically
included upfront cash incentives referred to as “launch incentive” in connection with the launch of a network by the distributor within
certain time frames. Any such amounts are capitalized as assets upon launch of our programming by the distributor and are amortized
on a straight-line basis as a reduction of revenue over the terms of the contracts. In instances where the distribution agreement is
extended prior to the expiration of the original term, we evaluate the economics of the extended term and, if it is determined that the
deferred launch asset continues to benefit us over the extended term, then we will adjust the launch amortization period accordingly.
Other incentives are recognized as a reduction of revenue as incurred.

The amount of distribution revenues due to us is reported by distributors based on actual subscriber levels. Such information is
generally not received until after the close of the reporting period. Therefore, reported distribution revenues are based upon our
estimates of the number of subscribers receiving our programming for the month, plus an adjustment for the prior month estimate. Our
subscriber estimates are based on the most recent remittance or confirmation of subscribers received from the distributor.

Advertising

We record advertising revenues net of agency commissions and audience deficiency liabilities in the period advertising spots are
broadcast. A substantial portion of the advertising sold in the United States includes guaranteed levels of audience that either the
program or the advertisement will reach. Deferred revenue is recorded and adjusted as the guaranteed audience levels are achieved.
Audience guarantees are initially developed by our internal research group and actual audience and delivery information is provided
by third party ratings services. In certain instances, the third party ratings information is not received until after the close of the
reporting period. In these cases, reported advertising revenues and related deferred revenue are based on our estimates for any under-
delivery of contracted advertising ratings based on the most current data available from the third party ratings service. Differences
between the estimated under-delivery and the actual under-delivery have historically been insignificant. Online advertising revenues
are recognized as impressions are delivered.

Certain of our advertising arrangements include deliverables in addition to commercial time, such as the advertiser’s product
integration into the programming, customized vignettes, and billboards. These contracts that include other deliverables are evaluated
as multiple element revenue arrangements under FASB ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition (“ASC 605”).
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Other

Other revenues primarily consist of revenues from our Education, CSS, advertising representation, and Commerce businesses.
Educational service sales are generally recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. CSS services revenues are recognized when
services are performed. Revenues from post-production, advertising representation, and certain distribution related services are
recognized when services are provided. Prepayments received for services to be performed at a later date are deferred. Commerce
revenues are recognized upon product shipment, net of estimated returns, which are not material to our consolidated financial
statements.

Content Rights

Costs incurred in the direct production, co-production or licensing of content rights are capitalized and stated at the lower of
unamortized cost, fair value, or net realizable value. In accordance with FASB’s position on accounting by producers or distributors of
films, FASB ASC Topic 926, Entertainment- Films (“ASC 926), we amortize our content assets based upon the ratio of current
revenue to total estimated revenue (“ultimate revenue”). To determine this ratio, we analyze historical and projected usage for similar
programming and apply such usage factors to projected revenues by network, adjusted for any future significant programming strategy
changes.

The result of this policy is an accelerated amortization pattern for the fully distributed U.S. Networks segment (Discovery
Channel, TLC, Animal Planet) and Discovery Channel in the International Networks segment over a period of no more than four
years. The accelerated amortization pattern results in the amortization of approximately 40% to 50% of the program cost during the
first year. Topical or current events programming is amortized over shorter periods based on the nature of the programming and may
be expensed upon its initial airing. All other networks in the U.S. Networks segment and International Networks segment utilize up to
a five year useful life. For these networks, with programming investment levels lower than the established networks and higher reuse
of programming, straight-line amortization is considered a reasonable estimate of the use of content consistent with the pace of
earning ultimate revenue.

Ultimate revenue assessments include advertising and affiliate revenue streams. Ancillary revenue is considered immaterial to
the assessment. Changes in management’s assumptions, such as changes in expected use, could significantly alter our estimates for
amortization.

On a periodic basis, management evaluates the net realizable value of content in conjunction with our strategic review of the
business. If we expect to alter the planned use of programming because of a change in network strategy, the unamortized balance is
adjusted to net realizable value when we identify the need to alter the planned use. Changes in management’s assumptions, such as
changes in expected use, could significantly alter our estimates for write-offs.

Share-Based Compensation

We have incentive plans under which cash-settled unit awards, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), stock options, and restricted
stock units (“RSUs”) were issued.

We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for cash-settled unit awards and SARs based on the fair value
of the award less estimated forfeitures. Because unit awards and SARs are cash-settled, we remeasure the fair value of outstanding
unit awards and SARs each reporting period until settlement. Compensation expense, including changes in fair value, for unit awards
and SARs is recognized during the vesting period in proportion to the requisite service that has been rendered at the reporting date.
For grants of unit awards with graded vesting, we measure fair value and record compensation expense for the grant as a single award.
For grants of SARs with graded vesting, we measure fair value and record compensation expense separately for each tranche. Changes
in the fair value of outstanding unit awards and SARs that occur subsequent to the vesting period are recorded as adjustments to
compensation costs in the period in which the changes occur.

We measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for stock options and RSUs based on the fair value of the award
on the date of grant less estimated forfeitures. For awards that vest based on service, compensation expense is recognized ratably
during the vesting period. Vesting of certain RSUs is also subject to satisfying operating performance conditions. At the time that we
determine that it is probable that the performance targets will be achieved, compensation expense is recorded for such awards.

When recording compensation cost for share-based awards, we are required to estimate the number of awards granted that are
expected to be forfeited. Forfeitures are estimated on the date of grant based on historical forfeiture rates. On an ongoing basis, we
adjust compensation expense based on actual forfeitures and revise the forfeiture rate as necessary.
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The fair value of unvested cash-settled unit awards, unvested SARs, and all stock options are estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Because the Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the use of subjective assumptions, changes in these
assumptions can materially affect the fair value of awards. The risk-free interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues
with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the award. For cash-settled award units and RSUs, the expected term is the period
from the grant date to the vesting date of the award. For SARs, the expected term is estimated to be the contractual term of the award.
For stock options, the expected term is estimated to be the period from the date of grant through the mid-point between the vesting
date and the end of the contractual term of the award. Expected volatility is based on a combination of implied volatilities from traded
options on our common stock and historical realized volatility of our common stock, and considers other factors deemed relevant. The
dividend yield is assumed to be 0% because we have no present intention to pay dividends.

The fair value of RSUs is determined based on the fair value of our common stock as of the grant date.

Share-based compensation expense is recorded as a component of Selling, general and administrative expense. We classify as a
current liability the intrinsic value of cash-settled award units and SARs that are vested or will become vested within one year.

Excess tax benefits realized from the exercise of stock options are reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction
of taxes paid in cash flow from operations on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets
2009 Impairment Testing

The majority of our goodwill balance is the result of the Newhouse Transaction in 2008 and a transaction with
Advance/Newhouse and Cox Communications Holdings, Inc. in 2007 (the “Cox Transaction”). As a result of the Newhouse
Transaction, we allocated $1.8 billion of goodwill previously allocated to DHC’s equity investment in DCH and $251 million of
goodwill for the basis differential between the carrying value of DHC’s and Advance/Newhouse’s investments in DCH to our
reporting units. The formation of DCH as part of the Cox Transaction required “pushdown” accounting of each shareholder’s basis in
DCH. The result was the pushdown of $4.6 billion of additional goodwill previously recorded on the investors’ books to DCH
reporting units.

We performed our annual goodwill impairment testing in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and
Other (“ASC 350”) on November 30, 2009. Under the guidelines established by FASB ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC
280”), we have aggregated our operating segments into the following three reportable segments: U.S. Networks, International
Networks, and Commerce, Education, and Other. However, the goodwill impairment analysis, under the requirements of ASC 350, is
performed at the reporting unit level. A reporting unit is the same as, or one level below, an operating segment as defined in ASC 280.

The following table presents our goodwill balances, by reporting unit, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in millions).

As of
December 31,
2009 2008
DiSCOVETY CRANNEL......cvvieieieiiieieieieteetececee ettt $ 2284 $§ 2284
T C e ettt e e ettt e et et e e e et e e eatr e sanaaes 1,551 1,551
ANIMAL PIANET ....ooiiiiiiiieec et 313 313
Other U.S. NEIWOTKS. ....cuvviiiiieieeeeeee ettt e e eeaaee s e eaaee s 967 1,421
TOtal U.S. INEEWOTIKS ...eeeeiiiiiieiiiee ettt eee e e e e e e e e e e e seenaaaeeeeas 5,115 5,569
L SRR 181 181
EMEA ..o et 695 693
7153 W2V 0 1<) o (o SRR 231 230
ASIA-PACITIC. ... e 164 164
ANLENNA AUAIO ...oiiieiiii et e — 5
Total International NEtWOTKS .......c..ooiioiiiiiiiiee et 1,271 1,273
COMMMICICR ...vvvveeeeeeeeeirieeeeeeeeeetee e e e e eeeeetaeeeeeeeeeeeaaareeeeeeeeetsreeeeeeeeesnnreeeeeeeennnsnes 20 22
BEQUCALION ...t 16 16
Creative SOUNA SEIVICES ......ccuvieeeeurieeeeteeeeeeeee e eeeee e e et e eeeaeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeenneeeeennens 11 11
Total Commerce, Education, and Other............cccevvveiierieciiiieceee e 47 49
TOtal GOOAWILL.....c..eviiiiiiee ettt e $ 6433 $§ 6,891
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We utilized a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model and market approach to estimate the fair value of our reporting units. The
DCF model utilizes projected financial results for each reporting unit. The projected financial results are created from critical
assumptions and estimates which are based on management’s business plans and historical trends. The market approach relies on data
from publicly traded guideline companies. Determining fair value requires the exercise of significant judgments, including judgments
about appropriate discount rates, perpetual growth rates, the amount and timing of expected future cash flows, and relevant
comparable company earnings multiples.

A summary of the critical assumptions utilized for our annual impairment tests in 2009 and 2008 are outlined below. We believe
this information coupled with our sensitivity analysis considering reporting units whose fair value would not exceed carrying value
following a hypothetical reduction in fair value of 10% and 20% provide relevant information to understand our goodwill impairment
testing and evaluate our goodwill balances.

During 2009, we did not change our reporting units. However, Discovery Kids, a component of the Other U.S. Networks
reporting unit, was deconsolidated in 2009 and was not included in the 2009 impairment testing. For the annual goodwill impairment
test performed on November 30, 2009, we did not significantly change the methodology from 2008 to determine the fair value of our
reporting units. Due to the improvement in the global economic environment, we made changes to certain of the assumptions utilized
in the DCF model for 2009 compared with the prior year. Generally we decreased discount rates in our 2009 DCF calculations. Our
assumed growth rates in 2009 were generally consistent with growth rates used in 2008. The following is a summary analysis of the
significant assumptions used in our DCF model, as well as a sensitivity analysis on the impact of changes in certain assumptions to
our overall conclusion concerning impairment of our goodwill balances.

Discount rate: The discount rate represents the expected return on capital. Each of the U.S. Networks’ reporting units used a
discount rate of 11% for 2009, which represents a decrease from a rate of 12% utilized in 2008. The International Networks’ reporting
units’ discount rates were a weighted average of 14% and 16% for the years 2009 and 2008, respectively. For our remaining reporting
units, discount rates were a weighted average of 15% for the years 2009 and 2008. We used the average interest rate of a 20-year
government security over a one year period to determine the risk free rate in our weighted average cost of capital calculation. The
difference between our discount rate and the risk free rate was 7% and 8% in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Growth assumptions: Projected annual growth is primarily driven by assumed advertising sales and cable subscriber trends
offset by expected expenses. Other considerations include historical performance and anticipated economic conditions for the current
period and long term.

We use a five year period of assumed cash flows to assess short-term company net free cash flow for our DCF calculation. The
projected revenue growth for the U.S. Networks’ reporting units was a weighted average of 5% for both the 2009 and 2008 DCF
calculations. U.S. Networks experienced actual revenue growth of 4% and 10% in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The projected expense
growth for the U.S. Networks’ reporting units was a weighted average of 1% in 2009, compared with 5% in 2008. The projected
revenue growth for the International Networks’ reporting units was a weighted average of 7% for both the 2009 and 2008 DCF
calculations. International Networks experienced actual revenue growth of 10% and 12% in 2009 and 2008, respectively, when
excluding the impacts of foreign exchange. The projected expense growth for the International Networks’ reporting units was a
weighted average of 3% in 2009, compared with 6% in 2008. The projected revenue growth for our other reporting units was a
weighted average of 5% for the 2009 DCF calculation, compared with 4% in 2008. Other reporting units experienced actual revenue
decreases of 10% and 19% in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The historical revenue declines for our other reporting units are not
relevant due to the transition of our commerce business to a licensing model in 2009 and the closure of retail stores in the second half
of 2007. The projected expense growth for other reporting units was 2% in 2009, compared with a decrease of 1% in 2008.

We used a weighted average terminal value growth rate of 4% for the U.S. Networks’ reporting units in both our 2009 and 2008
DCEF calculations. We used a weighted average terminal value growth rate of 4% and 5% for the International Networks’ reporting
units in our 2009 and 2008 DCF calculations, respectively. We used a weighted average terminal value growth rate of 6% and 7% for
our other reporting units in our 2009 and 2008 DCF calculations, respectively. The terminal values used in our DCF model are
calculated using the dividend discount model. As a result, the terminal values used for our reporting units are a function of their
respective discount rates and terminal value growth rates.

Market approach assumptions: We used Earnings Before Interest Depreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”), revenue, and
price per subscriber multiples to estimate fair value using a market approach. The U.S. Networks’ reporting units’ weighted average
EBITDA multiples were 13 and 10 in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The International Networks’ reporting units’ weighted average
EBITDA multiples were 13 and 12 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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The U.S. Networks’ reporting units made up 75% of the fair value of our Company in both 2009 and 2008. At the date of
impairment testing, the carrying value of our U.S. Networks’ reporting units made up 74% and 77% of the carrying value of net assets
allocated for purposes of goodwill impairment testing in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The International Networks’ reporting units
made up 24% and 23% of the fair value of our Company in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The carrying value of the International
Networks’ reporting units made up 25% and 22% of the carrying value of net assets allocated for purposes of goodwill impairment
testing in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The fair value of our other reporting units made up 1% and 2% of the fair value of our
Company in 2009 and 2008, respectively. The carrying value of our other reporting units made up 1% of the carrying value of net
assets allocated for purposes of goodwill impairment testing in both 2009 and 2008.

Impairment: As of November 30, 2009, the fair value of our CSS and Antenna Audio reporting units did not exceed their
carrying values due to declines in operating cash flows as a result of adverse market conditions. We performed the second step of the
goodwill impairment test as required by ASC 350, which requires calculation of the reporting units implied goodwill and comparing to
the book value of goodwill, and determined that $6 million of goodwill of the Antenna Audio reporting unit was impaired. The change
in the goodwill balance from December 31, 2008 to the date of the 2009 impairment test was due to foreign exchange. The impairment
was recorded as a component of Restructuring and impairment charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Sensitivity Analysis: In order to analyze the sensitivity our assumptions have on our overall impairment assessment, we
determined the impact that a hypothetical 10% and 20% reduction in fair value would have on our conclusions.

*  The fair value of the CSS reporting unit does not exceed its carrying value. After performing the second step of the
goodwill impairment test, we did not record an impairment for CSS. However, a further 20% decline in fair value would
result in a goodwill impairment. As of December 31, 2009, the carrying value of goodwill for the CSS reporting unit is
$11 million.

*  There were no other reporting units for which a 20% decline in fair value would result in the reporting unit’s carrying
value to be in excess of its fair value.

Reductions of approximately 47% and 51% in the fair value of our largest reporting units, Discovery Channel and TLC,
respectively, would result in their carrying values exceeding their fair values. Given the reductions required and the assumptions used
in our fair value modeling at the time of our impairment review, there did not appear to be any likely changes or trigger events that
would indicate an impairment of these reporting units.

If changes in the fair value of our reporting units caused the carrying value of a reporting unit to exceed its fair value, the second
step of the goodwill impairment test would be required to be performed to determine the ultimate amount of impairment loss to record.

2010 Impairment Testing

We will perform our annual impairment testing of goodwill as of November 30, 2010, unless there is a triggering event, which
would require the performance of impairment testing before our annual impairment testing date. We monitor our anticipated operating
performance to ensure that no event has occurred requiring goodwill impairment testing. As part of our annual impairment testing or
any interim impairment test deemed necessary, we will evaluate whether our assumptions and methodologies require changes as a
result of the current global economic environment.

The determination of recoverability of goodwill requires significant judgment and estimates regarding future cash flows and fair
values. Such estimates are subject to change and could result in impairment losses being recognized in the future. If different reporting
units or different valuation methodologies had been used, the impairment test results could have differed.

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets (e.g., amortizing trademarks, customer lists, other intangibles and property, plant and equipment) do not
require that an annual impairment test be performed; instead, long-lived assets are tested for impairment upon the occurrence of a
triggering event. Triggering events include the likely (i.e., more likely than not) disposal of a portion of such assets or the occurrence
of an adverse change in the market involving the business employing the related assets. Once a triggering event has occurred, the
impairment test employed is based on whether the intent is to hold the asset for continued use or to hold the asset for sale. If the intent
is to hold the asset for continued use, the impairment test first requires a comparison of undiscounted future cash flows against the
carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, the asset would be deemed to not be
recoverable. Impairment would then be measured as the difference between the fair value of the asset and its carrying value. Fair value
is generally determined by discounting the future cash flows associated with that asset. If the intent is to hold the asset for sale and
certain other criteria are met (e.g., the asset can be disposed of currently, appropriate levels of authority have approved the sale, and
there is an active program to locate a buyer), the impairment test involves comparing the asset’s carrying value to its fair value. To the
extent the carrying value is greater than the asset’s fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for the difference.
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Significant judgments in this area involve determining whether a triggering event has occurred, determining the future cash
flows for the assets involved and determining the proper discount rate to be applied in determining fair value.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded long-lived asset impairments of $26 million primarily related to our
HowStuffWorks.com business, a component of the Other U.S. Networks reporting unit, due to declines in expected operating
performance.

The determination of recoverability of long-lived assets requires significant judgment and estimates regarding future cash flows,
fair values, and the appropriate grouping of assets. Such estimates are subject to change and could result in impairment losses being
recognized in the future. If different asset groupings or different valuation methodologies had been used, the impairment test results
could have differed.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the
net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not such
assets will be unrealized.

Recently Issued Accounting and Reporting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
for a discussion of recently issued accounting standards.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Our earnings and cash flows are exposed to market risk and can be affected by, among other things, economic conditions,
interest rate changes, foreign currency fluctuations, and changes in the market values of investments. We have established policies,
procedures and internal processes governing our management of market risks and the use of financial instruments to manage our
exposure to such risks. We use derivative financial instruments to modify our exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates. We do not hold or enter into financial instruments for speculative trading purposes.

Interest Rates

The nature and amount of our long-term debt are expected to vary as a result of future requirements, market conditions and other
factors. Our interest expense is exposed to movements in short-term interest rates. Of our $3.4 billion of debt excluding capital leases,
$2.0 billion was floating rate debt at December 31, 2009. We use derivative instruments, including variable to fixed and fixed to
variable interest rate instruments, to modify this exposure. The variable to fixed interest rate instruments had a notional amount of
$1.8 billion and $2.3 billion and had a weighted average interest rate of 4.27% and 4.68% at December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The fixed to variable interest rate agreements had a notional amount of $50 million and had a weighted average interest
rate of 4.67% and 7.90% at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. As of December 31, 2009, we have a notional amount of
$300 million of forward starting variable to fixed interest rate swaps, which will start in June 2010. The fair value of our interest rate
derivative contracts, adjusted for our credit risk and our counterparties’ credit risk, aggregate a net loss position of $33 million and
$107 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Of the total notional amount of $2.2 billion in interest rate derivatives, $1.8 billion of these derivative instruments are highly
effective cash flow hedges. The fair value of these hedges at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was a net loss position of $17 million and
$71 million, respectively, with changes in the mark-to-market value recorded as a component of Other comprehensive income (loss).
We do not expect material hedge ineffectiveness in the next twelve months. As of December 31, 2009, a parallel shift in the interest
rate yield curve equal to one percentage point would change the fair value of our interest rate derivative portfolio by approximately
$40 million. In addition, a change of one percentage point in interest rates on our variable rate debt would impact interest expense by
approximately $3 million on an annual basis.

We continually monitor our positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial institutions that are counterparties to our
derivative instruments and do not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties. In addition, we limit the amount of derivative
counterparty credit exposure with any one institution.

Refer to Note 11 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our interest rate
derivative instruments.
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Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

We continually monitor our economic exposure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates and may enter into foreign
exchange agreements when appropriate. Substantially all of our foreign transactions are denominated in foreign currencies, including
the liabilities of our foreign subsidiaries. The majority of our foreign currency exposure is to the British pound and the Euro. Although
our foreign transactions are not generally subject to significant foreign exchange transaction gains or losses, the financial statements of
our foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars as part of our consolidated financial reporting. As a result, fluctuations in
exchange rates affect our financial position and results of operations.

Our objective in managing exposure to foreign currency fluctuations is to reduce volatility of earnings and cash flows.
Accordingly, we may enter into foreign currency derivative instruments that change in value as foreign exchange rates change. We did
not hold significant foreign currency derivative instruments at December 31, 2009. At December 31, 2008, the notional amount of
foreign currency derivative instruments was $75 million and the fair value was $5 million.

Refer to Note 11 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements for additional information regarding our foreign
currency derivative instruments.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Discovery Communications, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate
internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and Rule 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of the assets of the
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and provide reasonable assurance that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and the directors of the Company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements prepared for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Because of the inherent limitations in any internal control, no matter how well designed, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

The Company’s management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an
evaluation of the effectiveness of our system of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 based on the
framework set forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on its evaluation, management concluded that, as of December 31, 2009, the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is effective based on the specified criteria.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report in Item 8 of Part II of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.”
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Discovery Communications, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of equity
and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Discovery Communications, Inc. and its subsidiaries
at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements, and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits (which was an integrated
audit in 2009). We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for non-
controlling interests and the manner in which it accounts for collaborative arrangements effective January 1, 2009.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 19, 2010
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Discovery Holding Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, cash flows, and equity of Discovery Holding
Company and subsidiaries (DHC) for the year ended December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of DHC’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC (a 66 */3 percent owned investee
company as of December 31, 2007). DHC’s equity in the earnings of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC was $141,781,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2007. The financial statements of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC and its predecessor were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Discovery Communications Holding, LLC, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Discovery Holding Company and subsidiaries for the
year ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
February 14, 2008, except as to note 25,
which is as of June 11, 2009
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except par value)

As of December 31,
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and Cash @QUIVALENLS ..........ccierieiieieeie ettt ettt et et e et e e nsesneesseesseenseensesneenseensenes $ 623 $ 100
Receivables, net of allowances of $15 and $16, resSpectiVely.......ceceveririreririneniniereeeeee e 810 780
L0703 1173 U Fd £ 1 AP URRRRt 76 73
DEfeITEA INCOME tAXES .. ccuviiitieeiieiiieeiie et erte e sttt estteeseteestteestseeseeesaeasseasssaeassessssaassseessseesssseaseessseeasseensns 71 49
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENT @SSELS........c.icuicierrierieeieeiesteesteeteeteeeesreesteeseesseeseesseesseesseesseessesseens 100 107
TOLAL CUITENE ASSELS ....vveeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeteeeeeete e e eee e e e ettt eeeeaeee e e teeeeeeaaeeeeeaeeeeeenaeeeeesseeeensseeesesnneesennseeeensneeeennseeeennneeeas 1,680 1,109
Noncurrent CONLENt TIZNES, NEL.........ieiiiieiieiee ettt ettt ettt et e st e et e e e en e e s e e sse e teeneesseesseeseeneesneas 1,217 1,163
Property and qUIPIMENE, TEL ......cc.eiuiitiieietieiieiet ettt ettt ettt et et st e bt s bt etees e et atesteebeebeeeeeseeneeneeseeneensensensensaeens 411 395
GOOAWILL ...ttt bttt eh e st ea et et et e e et e bt e st eb e emeem b e se s e abeebe et e eneeneeneeneensenseneeneeaes 6,433 6,891
INtANGIDIE ASSELS, MEL .. .viivieitieiieieiie ettt ettt e ete et e et e et e e te e teesbeessesstesseeseesseessesssesseesseesssesssesseassesssesseenseensennns 643 716
Other NONCUITENT ASSELS.....evveiuietietieteeteettesteeseeteesessaesseesseesseassesseesseesseesseassesssessseseessesssesssessesssesssesseesseessenses 581 210
TOLAL ASSEES. ..ottt e e et ee e e et e et et e e et eeueeeseeesee e e s eeeseeeneeeseseesatenaeeeseeeeeaeeeneeaneeeneeneeneaneeeneeeneseeneenaeeanenaee $ 10,965 §$§ 10,484
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNLS PAYADIE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e st e s et et s et st ese s et esess et et een s esessesesesese s $ 63 $ 71
ACCTUCA HADIIIEIES. .. euvieeiieeiietieti ettt ettt ettt e e et et et e et e esbeesbesaaesreesaeesseesseesseessesseenseessesssesseans 394 350
DETEITEA TEVEIUES. ....cuviiviieeiieeietiete ettt ettt ettt e e e et e e teeste e be e beesbeesseesaesssesseeseasseessesssensseseenseassens 91 93
Current portion of share-based compensation Habilities ...........cceeevieriieiieiierienieireeie e 117 8
Current portion of 1ong-term dEDL ..........cccueiieriiriiiiecieceee ettt e sreesseeseeseenes 38 458
Other CUITENt HADIIITIES ... veiviiitieiieiieieeeeete ettt ete st et este et esbeesaeseseeseessaesseesseessesssessaesseesseesseessenseenns 87 90
TOtAl CUITENT LHADIIITIES ...ttt e et e e et e e e e e s eaeaeeeeneeeesaaaseesesaaeessnnaeessnnaeessaaeeeas 790 1,070
LONG-LEITI AEDLE ..evviiiieiiieiieeiieeteetee ettt ettt e sttt e e b e etbeete et e esbeesseesbesseesseesseenseenseesseeseenseenseenseessensaens 3,457 3,331
DEfErred INCOME TAXES ...ivviiuiesiieiietieeieeiesteeteetestesee st esseesbeeseeeseesseesseesseessasssessaesseassesssessseessesseenseessenssanseensenns 274 246
Other NONCUITENT LHADIIITIES ... .eeveiieiieiieit ettt ettt et e et e s st e st e st e enseensessaesseensesneesseenseennennns 176 227
TOTAL THADILIITIES ....vveeieeeee ettt ettt e e et e e e e e e eaae e e eemaeeeeeaaaeeesnaeeeeaneseesaaeeesanaaeesansaeesennseessnsaeeeas 4,697 4,874
Commitments and contingencies (Note 22)
Redeemable non-controlling interests in SUDSIAIATIES ........c.veviererieriieiieteeieseesieeie e seestee e eeeeneesseesseeneeeneeas 49 49
Equity:
Series A preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 75 shares; issued and outstanding 71 shares at
December 31, 2009 and 70 shares at December 31, 2008 ..........cooovviiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 1 1
Series C preferred stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 75 shares; issued and outstanding 71 shares at
December 31, 2009 and 70 shares at December 31, 2008 ...........cooviiieiieieeiiiieeeeeee e 1 1
Series A common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 1,700 shares; issued and outstanding 135 shares
at December 31, 2009 and 134 shares at December 31, 2008 ...........ccceeveivieeeiieieeeieeeeeeee e 1 1
Series B common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 100 shares; issued and outstanding 7 shares at
December 31,2009 and 2008 .........oooneiiiieee e e e e — —
Series C common stock, $0.01 par value; authorized 2,000 shares; issued and outstanding 142 shares
at December 31, 2009 and 141 shares at December 31, 2008 ..........oooveiiiiiiiiiiiieiieee e 2 2
Additional paid-In CAPITAL.........cceeviiiiiiiiieieeeeteet ettt ete e eae st e st este e b e esbeeteeese e beesseesseeseesbeesseessenreens 6,600 6,545
ACCUMUIAEA AETICIE ....viiviiiiiiiieiecic ettt e st e et e e saesseesteesbeenseesseessesseenseessenseensenns (376) (936)
Accumulated other COMPreNeNSIVE 10SS ......cciiriieiiieiiiiiriereee ettt ettt eeaessae e essenseens (21) (78)
Equity attributable to Discovery Communications, INC. ........c.ceueiuiiiiriiiieiiereee e 6,208 5,536
Equity attributable to NON-CONtrOIlING INEETESES. ........eeuieieieeiiteeteite ettt ei et e e e e see e ebe e 11 25
0] T 1L RSP SS 6,219 5,561
Total liabilities, redeemable non-controlling interests in subsidiaries and €qUity ...........cccceeverercererienienenenenne $ 10965 $ 10,484

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

Revenues:

DDISEIIDULION. ¢ttt ettt et et eeeeeae et ee e et et eeeeeeseeaeeseanesateneeeeneenseneennenns $ 1,713 § 1,640 $ —

AVETLISIIIZ ..ttt ettt ee et e te st e e bt e bt eb e en e en b et et eebeebeebeeneent et e neeeeee 1,428 1,396 —

L@ 13 1 < SO SRSU SR 375 407 76
TOLAL TEVEIIUES .....eeeeeeeiee et eee e et e e et e e e e e eeaaeeeeeaaeeeeenteeeeeeaneeeensseeeeenneeesnnneeeennreeeeanns 3,516 3,443 76
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization listed below..........ccccocvevvvenieciiriennnns, 1,065 1,024 60
Selling, general and adMINISIIALIVE ........c.coviervieieeierieieeie et ereeaesee e esaeebessaeseeesseessesssesseennen, 1,247 1,115 22
Depreciation and amoOrtiZatiON ..........ccveeruieevercieiiereesteeteeteeteesseesseesseesesssesseessaessessesssesseesseesseessenn, 155 186 3
Restructuring and impairment CRATZES...........ccueivierieriieriieiecierieeie et et eesreebesaeseeesaeesaeesseenne s, 66 61 —
GAINS ON AISPOSTLIONS ...evvieeveeereeereetiesieesteeteeteeteeseesseeseesseesseessessaesseesseesseessesssesssesseessesssesssenssesssenns (252) — €8

2,281 2,386 84

Operating iNCOME (10SS) ...veruveruiereieriieiieieetesterte et eteste st et eeesseessee st enseensesssesneesseeseensesnsenseensennns 1,235 1,057 ®)
Equity in earnings of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC ..........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiniiceeee — — 142
INEETEST EXPEIISE, TEL...eeuiieeeiieiiieeiieeiee et e st e ettt esteeeaeesebeessaeessseessseessseessseeasseessseesseenssaenseeenssesseean (250) (256) —
Other non-operating inCOME (EXPENSE), ML .....ccueeruierurreerieriertteieeeeeeesteesteeeeeeeseeesseesseenseeeeeneenne 46 47) 8
Income from continuing operations before iNCOME taXEeS ........ceoveveereerieiieeieriee e 1,031 754 142
Provision fOr INCOME tAXES.....cccuiiiiiieriieiiieeieeeieeriteesiteeteeesteeebeeeteesseesseessseessseessseessseessseessseenseeas (472) (352) (56)
Income from continuing Operations, NEt OF tAXES ......cccvervirrieriierierieie et eae e neeens 559 402 86
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, Net Of tAXES......c.eccvereeriereierieriee e — 43 (154)
INEt INCOME (LOSS) ..nvreuvieuieeieiiieeiieete ettt e et e st et et et e et e s see st eseensesssesaeesseeseenseanseessassaenseensennsesnsesnnes 559 445 (68)
Less net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling interests............ccceverererenienereneneneneenees 1 (128) —
Net income (loss) attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc. ........ccccoeeeveeiieienoeneeneeeeee. 560 317 (68)
Stock dividends to preferred INTETESES ......couveruieriiiiieiertiee ettt et et () — —
Net income (loss) available to Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders............c.ccoevvvevennn, $ 552§ 317 $ (68)
Amounts available to Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders:

Income from continuing Operations, NEt Of tAXES .........cvevirirveririereriiriereeeeereeeeerere e esenns $ 552 $ 274§ 86

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, Net 0f taXeS ......c.cccvereeruieveeeieieerieeee e — 43 (154)

NEt INCOME (10SS) 1.vvrvirieriitiieeietiteteetet ettt ettt et te et et eteeb et etesbeseetesseseetesseseetesseseeseseseesensans $ 552§ 317 $ (68)
Income per share from continuing operations available to Discovery Communications, Inc.

stockholders:

BSIC cttiuitetiiieteteiete ittt b et b et b et bt st b et st b s ne bt ese s bese s ebese s ebena. $ 130 $ 085 $§ 031

DIIUEEA. ..ottt b ettt $ 130 $§ 085 § 031
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations available to Discovery Communications,

Inc. stockholders:

BaSIC ..ttt ettt et b et et b sttt bessete b e st ete et e st ere et enseseeaene e $ — $ 013 $ (055

DHIULEA. ..ottt sttt et ettt e st e be st et e e st e st et e b e teereereeneentenneseneene $ — $ 013 $ (0.55)
Net income (loss) per share available to Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders:

BaaSIC . bbbttt b e bbbttt $ 130 § 099 § (029

DHIULEA. ..ottt ettt et e et e be st et e ent e st e s et e te st eteeneentens e seneene $ 130 $§ 098 $ (0.24)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

BaaSIC . bttt b ettt 423 321 281

DHIULEA. ..ottt ettt et e et e be st et e ent e st e s et e te st eteeneentens e seneene 425 322 281

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Operating Activities
NEL INCOME (1OSS) v.evvivieieeeteee et ettt ettt et et et et et et ete et et ere et e e eteese st eseese s eteeseneeseesenseteeseneesesens $ 559 $ 445 $ (68)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by operating activities:
Share-based compensation expense (DeNefit).........ccoveerieririiirienieeeeeeeee e 228 (66) 1
Depreciation and amortiZation ...........cooeeruieiieieniesiete et ee et st eesaeenseens 155 232 68
IMPAITMENt CRATZES .....vevieiieie ettt e et esae e sseenseenseensesnsenseens 32 30 165
GAINS ON AISPOSTEIONS. ....eevvieeieeieeieeeieritertteteeteetestesseesseesseesseessesseenseenseensesssesssesseesseenseensennns (252) (76) 1)
Gains on Sales Of INVESTMENLS. ........eceeriieriieieeie ettt teseeesse et e esessaesseesseenseensesnes (15) — —
Equity in earnings of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC ..........c.cccoevveiiniieniennnnen. — — (142)
Deferred INCOME tAXES .....iecverieiieeiierieeteete e ette st et et e eaesaesseesteeseeaessaesseesseenseenseensensnenseens @) 190 56
Other noncash exXpenses (INCOME), NEL ........c.evuerieriieriieiieiertieeeeeaeseesree e esseeeesneesseesseenes 32 130 ®)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of discontinued operations: ............c.ccoceeuenee.
RECEIVADIES, MET ....oeuiieiiieiiicie ettt ettt st s e seebeenseeneesnaessaeseens 37 (45) 4
L0703 417U Fd V£ 1 SRR (55) (145) —
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities .........cccvevierierircieiie e 40 (46) (11
Share-based compensation Habilities ...........ccvereereerieiiieiiereee e, (81) (49) —
OhET, NMET ..e.eiiiieiieie ettt sttt et eetb e s ta e ta e b e esbeesbessaessaesseenseesseessenssensen, 9 3D 6)
Cash provided by Operating aCtiVIti€S ........cueeeuerierieriieieeiesieseeteeeesseesseeseesesaesseessessesneesseenseenns 608 569 58
Investing Activities
Purchases of property and eqUIPMENt ...........ccoiiiiiiiiieeieeee e (57) (102) (47)
Net cash acquired from Newhouse Transaction.............cc.eeveieerreenieeriieeeeieereesreereeeeeee e esaeesneeenas — 45 —
Business acquisitions, net of cash aCqUIred .............cooeeiiriiiiieiiei e — (8) —
Proceeds from diSPOSILIONS .........ceeuieriieriieieeie ettt sttt et et et e s eeesaeesseeeeeneeeneesneenaeans 300 139 2
Other INVeStiNG ACIVITIES, IO ......eertieiieiieiieetieste ettt rte ettt et ettt e et e st e e beentesseesseeseeenneeeeenes 23 24 30
Cash provided by (used in) INVESHNEZ ACHIVILIES ....veoverueruietieiieieieieie e ete e eeeeteese et e e nee e see e seeeeeas 266 98 (15)
Financing Activities
Ascent Media Corporation SPIn-0ff ...........cceeviiiiiiiiiiiieii e, — (356) —
Net repayments Of TEVOIVET 10ANS ......ccviiiiriieiiiiiicieeieere ettt sreesseeaeesaeseeesseense s, (315) (125) —
Borrowings from long-term debt, net of discount and iSSUANCE COSES......ccvrrvrrrerieriierieriereeieenean, 970 — —
Principal repayments of 1ong-term debt...........ccciiciieiiiierieiieiicieriereee e, (1,012) (257) —
Principal repayments of capital 1ease obligations ..........c.cecuvevieieriieriieieeienieseeie e seeesae e, (14) (29) —
Cash distributions to NON-CONtIOIING INTETEST........c.cccveriiriiiiieieeierte ettt sre e s eeee e, (13) — —
Proceeds from StOCK OPLION EXETCISES .....cvirviirrierrierieieeiiesteereereestesteeteesseesesssesseesesssesssesseesseessenn, 28 — 13
Other fINancing aCtIVILIES, NEL .......c.eeiiiirieiteite ettt ettt ettt e e b e ee b eeeese et enseneeseensenaeas — (7 (1)
Cash (used in) provided by financing aCtiVILIES .......ccueeeverieriieriieieeieseeieeie e seesre e seee e ees (356) (774) 12
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents.............ccoeveeiiecieninnieciieieeeeeeene 5 2) —
Change in cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .........c.cecvieiiiiieiiericie et es, 523 (109) 55
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations, beginning of period ..........c.cccceevevvereiervennnnnn, 100 8 1
Cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations, beginning of period...........ccccccererircenrnens — 201 153
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of PETIOQ ..........c.ceivvevieieiereiieteeeeec ettt $ 623 $ 100 $ 209

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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As of December 31, 2006

Net 10SS..eevieriiereeieeneane

Other comprehensive
INCOME.....oovivrereennnns

Total comprehensive loss
Share-based compensation....
Cumulative effect of
accounting change
Issuance of common stock in
connection with share-
based plans and other
(2 Series A shares)

As of December 31, 2007
Non-controlling interests of

Total comprehensive
Income........cccoeeveuenne.

Share-based

compensation ............
Ascent Media Corporation
spin-off........cccoceeiine
Issuance of preferred stock
(70 Series A shares and
70 Series C shares)
Reversal of deferred tax
liability related to DHC’s
investment in DCH

As of December 31, 2008

Net income (loss)............

Other comprehensive
INCOME.....eonvrnieeannnns

Total comprehensive
income (loss).............

Stock dividends declared to
preferred interests (0.3
Series A shares and 0.2

Series C shares)

Stock dividends paid to
preferred interests
Cash distributions to non-
controlling interest
Share-based compensation....
Issuance of common stock in
connection with share-
based plans and other (1
Series A share) ..........
Reversal of deferred tax
liability related to DHC’s
investment in DCH

As of December 31, 2009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
(in millions)

Discovery Communications, Inc. Stockholders

Accumulated Equity Attributable
Additional Other Equity Attributable to Non-
Preferred Common Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive to Discovery controlling Total
Stock Stock Capital Deficit (Loss) Income Communications, Inc. Interests Equity
$ — 3 $ 5,714 $ (1,184) $ 16 $ 4,549 $ — $ 4,549
— — — (68) — (68) — (68)
— — — — 1 1 — 1
(67) — 67)
— — 1 — — 1 — 1
— — — M — (O] — M
— — 13 — — 13 — 13
— 3 5,728 (1,253) 17 4,495 — 4,495
— — — — — — 9 9
— — — 317 — 317 128 445
— — — — (84) (84) — (84)
233 128 361
— — 6 — — 6 — 6
— — (709) — (11) (720) — (720)
2 — 208 — — 210 (112) 98
— — 1,312 — — 1,312 — 1,312
2 3 6,545 (936) (78) 5,536 25 5,561
— — — 560 — 560 €)) 559
— — — — 57 57 — 57
617 (1) 616
— — ®) — — ® — ®)
— — 7 — — 7 — 7
— — — — — — (13) (13)
— — 23 — — 23 — 23
— — 28 — — 28 — 28
— — 5 — — 5 — 5
$ 2 3 $ 6,600 $ (376) $ (21) $ 6,208 $ 11 $ 6,219




DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

Discovery Communications, Inc. (“Discovery” or the “Company”) is a leading global media and entertainment company that
provides original and purchased programming across multiple distribution platforms in the United States (“U.S.”) and more than 170
other countries, with over 100 television networks offering customized programming in 38 languages. Discovery also develops and
sells consumer and educational products and services as well as media sound services in the U.S. and internationally. In addition, the
Company owns and operates a diversified portfolio of website properties and other digital services. The Company manages and
reports its operations in three segments: U.S. Networks, consisting principally of domestic cable and satellite television network
programming, web brands, and other digital services; International Networks, consisting principally of international cable and satellite
television network programming; and Commerce, Education, and Other, consisting principally of e-commerce, catalog, sound
production, and domestic licensing businesses. Financial information for Discovery’s reportable segments is set forth in Note 23.

Discovery was formed in connection with Discovery Holding Company (“DHC”) and Advance/Newhouse Programming
Partnership (“Advance/Newhouse”) combining their respective ownership interests in Discovery Communications Holding, LLC
(“DCH”) and exchanging those interests with and into Discovery, which was consummated on September 17, 2008 (the “Newhouse
Transaction”). Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DCH was a stand-alone private company, which was owned approximately 66 * /;
% by DHC and 33 ' /; % by Advance/Newhouse. The Newhouse Transaction was completed as follows:

*  On September 17, 2008, DHC completed the spin-off to its sharcholders of Ascent Media Corporation (“AMC”), a
subsidiary holding the cash and businesses of DHC, except for certain businesses that provide sound, music, mixing,
sound effects, and other related services (“Creative Sound Services” or “CSS”) (the “AMC spin-off”). Such businesses
remain with the Company following the completion of the Newhouse Transaction. The AMC spin-off was effected as a
distribution by DHC to holders of its Series A and Series B common stock. In connection with the AMC spin-off, each
holder of DHC Series A common stock received 0.05 of a share of AMC Series A common stock and each holder of DHC
Series B common stock received 0.05 of a share of AMC Series B common stock. The AMC spin-off did not involve the
payment of any consideration by the holders of DHC common stock and was structured as a tax free transaction under
Sections 368(a) and 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. There was no gain or loss related to the spin-
off. Subsequent to the AMC spin-off, the companies no longer have any ownership interests in each other and operate
independently.

¢ On September 17, 2008, immediately following the AMC spin-off, DHC merged with a transitory merger subsidiary of
Discovery, with DHC continuing as the surviving entity and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Discovery. In connection
with the merger, each share of DHC Series A common stock was converted into the right to receive 0.50 of a share of
Discovery Series A common stock and 0.50 of a share of Discovery Series C common stock. Similarly, each share of
DHC Series B common stock was converted into the right to receive 0.50 of a share of Discovery Series B common stock
and 0.50 of a share of Discovery Series C common stock.

*  On September 17, 2008, immediately following the exchange of shares between Discovery and DHC, Advance/Newhouse
contributed its ownership interests in DCH and Animal Planet to Discovery in exchange for Discovery Series A and
Series C convertible preferred stock. The preferred stock is convertible at any time into Discovery common stock
representing 33 ' /5 % of the Discovery common stock issued in connection with the Newhouse Transaction, subject to
certain anti-dilution adjustments.

As a result of the Newhouse Transaction, DHC and DCH became wholly-owned subsidiaries of Discovery, with Discovery
becoming the successor reporting entity to DHC.

Basis of Presentation
Newhouse Transaction and AMC Spin-off

Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810,
Consolidation (“ASC 810”), the consolidated financial statements and notes present the Newhouse Transaction as though it was
consummated on January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements and notes as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 include the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of both DHC and DCH since
January 1, 2008. The consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2007 include only the results of
operations and cash flows of DHC as the predecessor company to Discovery.
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Pursuant to FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”), Discovery accounted for the Newhouse Transaction as
a non-substantive merger. Accordingly, the assets and liabilities of DCH and DHC were accounted for at the investors’ historical
bases prior to the Newhouse Transaction. The Newhouse Transaction was determined to be a non-substantive merger because of the
following: (i) as Advance/Newhouse was a 33 '/3% owner of DCH prior to the completion of the Newhouse Transaction and is a
33 '/3% owner of Discovery (whose only significant asset is 100% of DCH) immediately following completion of the Newhouse
Transaction, there was no effective change in ownership, (ii) the Company’s convertible preferred stock does not provide
Advance/Newhouse any special dividend rights and only provides a de minimis liquidation preference, effectively resulting in no
additional economic interest being obtained by Advance/Newhouse as compared to its interest in DCH, and (iii) Advance/Newhouse
retains significant participatory special class voting rights with respect to the Company’s matters that are consistent with the voting
rights it held with respect to DCH prior to the Newhouse Transaction.

Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC accounted for its ownership interest in DCH using the equity method. Therefore, DHC
previously recorded its portion of DCH’s earnings through income and as an adjustment to the carrying value of its investment in
DCH. Because the accompanying consolidated financial statements present the Newhouse Transaction as though it occurred on
January 1, 2008 and include the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of both DHC and DCH since January 1, 2008,
the financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been adjusted to eliminate DHC’s investment in DCH
and the portion of DCH’s earnings recorded by DHC during the period January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008. Additionally, the
financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been adjusted to allocate a portion of DCH’s earnings for
the period from January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008 to Advance/Newhouse as a component of Net loss (income) attributable
to non-controlling interests. The financial information for the year ended December 31, 2007 include the continuing results of
operations and cash flows of DHC, as the predecessor company to Discovery, and, therefore, continue to present DHC’s interest in
DCH under the equity method.

As aresult of the AMC spin-off, the results of operations of AMC are presented as Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. Cash flows from AMC
have not been segregated as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Summarized financial information
for AMC for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 is set forth in Note 5.

Other Discontinued Operations

During 2008, DHC sold its ownership interests in Ascent Media CANS, LLC (DBA “AccentHealth”) and Ascent Media
Systems & Technology Services, LLC (“AMSTS”). The results of operations of AccentHealth and AMSTS are presented as Income
(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007. Cash flows from AccentHealth and AMSTS have not been segregated as discontinued operations in the Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows. A description of the transactions and summarized financial information for AccentHealth and AMSTS is
set forth in Note 5.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and notes thereto. Management continually re-evaluates its estimates, judgments, and assumptions and
management’s assessments could change. Actual results may differ from those estimates, judgments, and assumptions and could have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant estimates, judgments, and assumptions inherent in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements include
consolidation of variable interest entities, accounting for business acquisitions, dispositions, allowances for doubtful accounts, content
rights, asset impairments, redeemable interests in subsidiaries, fair value measurements, revenue recognition, depreciation and
amortization, share-based compensation, income taxes, and contingencies.

Consolidation and Accounting for Investments

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Discovery, all majority-owned subsidiaries in which a controlling
interest is maintained, and variable interest entities (“VIE”) for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. Controlling interest is
determined by majority ownership interest and the ability to unilaterally direct or cause the direction of management and policies of an
entity after considering any third-party participatory rights. The Company applies the guidelines set forth in ASC 810 in evaluating
whether it has interests in VIEs and in determining whether to consolidate any such entities. All significant inter-company accounts
and transactions between consolidated companies have been eliminated in consolidation.
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The Company’s foreign subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,
while results of operations are translated at average exchange rates for the respective periods. The resulting asset and liability
translation adjustments are included as a separate component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Inter-company accounts of a trading nature are revalued at exchange rates in effect at each month-end and are included as part
of operating income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Investments in entities of 20% to 50%, without a controlling interest, and other investments over which the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence but not control are accounted for using the equity method. Investments in entities of less than
20% over which the Company has no significant influence are accounted for at fair value or using the cost method.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial information for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 to
conform to the December 31, 2009 financial information presentation.

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the time of filing this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Except as disclosed
in Note 14 and Note 17, no material subsequent events have occurred since December 31, 2009 that should be recorded or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting and Reporting Pronouncements Adopted
The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

In June 2009, the FASB issued a statement that establishes the FASB ASC as the source of authoritative accounting principles
recognized by the FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S.
GAAP. The statement modified the GAAP hierarchy to include only two levels of GAAP: authoritative and nonauthoritative. All
guidance contained in the ASC carries an equal level of authority. The provisions of this statement allow for rules and interpretive
releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws to also serve as sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. The
provisions became effective for Discovery on September 30, 2009. The only impact to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements was to revise references to accounting pronouncements from those of the precodification standards to the references used in
the codified hierarchy of GAAP.

Fair Value Measurements

In August 2009, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2009-05, Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value
(“ASU 2009-05”), which amends the guidance for measuring the fair value of liabilities included in FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosure (“ASC 820”). The update reinforces that fair value of a liability is the price that would be paid to
transfer the liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Additionally, the update clarifies
how the price of an identical or similar debt security that is traded or the price of the liability when it is traded as an asset should be
considered in estimating the fair value of the issuer’s liability and that the reporting entity must consider its own credit risk in
measuring the liability’s fair value. Effective September 30, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-05 for all
liabilities measured at fair value, which are being applied prospectively. The adoption of ASU 2009-05 resulted in changing the
priority level of inputs used to measure the fair value of liabilities associated with the Company’s deferred compensation plan from
Level 2 to Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy in ASC 820. However, this ASU did not change the Company’s valuation techniques
or impact the amounts or classifications recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued a statement which establishes the authoritative definition of fair value, sets out a
framework for measuring fair value, and expands the required disclosures about fair value measurement. The provisions of the
statement related to financial assets and liabilities as well as non-financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value on a recurring basis
were adopted prospectively on January 1, 2008 and did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of this statement for non-financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, which are being applied prospectively. The adoption of this statement did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The relevant disclosures required by ASC 820 are included in
Note 6.
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Subsequent Events

In May 2009, the FASB issued a statement which establishes general standards of accounting for and disclosure of events that
occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. The provisions of this
statement, located within FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events (“ASC 855”), require disclosure of the date through which an
entity has evaluated subsequent events, which for Discovery is the date the financial statements were issued. Effective June 30, 2009,
the Company adopted the provisions of this new statement, which are being applied prospectively. The adoption of this statement did
not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The relevant disclosures required by this new
statement are included in Note 1.

Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities

In June 2008, the FASB issued a statement on determining whether instruments granted in share-based payment transactions are
participating securities. The provisions of the statement, found under FASB ASC Topic 260, Earnings Per Share (“ASC 260),
became effective for the Company on January 1, 2009. The statement provides that all outstanding unvested share-based payment
awards that contain rights to non-forfeitable dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are considered participating
securities. Because such awards are considered participating securities, the issuing entity is required to apply the two-class method of
computing basic and diluted earnings per share retrospectively to all prior period earnings per share computations. The adoption of the
statement did not impact the Company’s computation of earnings per share for the periods presented.

Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets

In April 2008, the FASB issued a statement which amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or
extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company
adopted the provisions of this statement, found under FASB ASC Topic 350, Intangibles- Goodwill and Other (“ASC 350”), which
are being applied prospectively to intangible assets acquired on or subsequent to the effective date. The Company’s policy is to
expense costs incurred to renew or extend the contractual terms of its intangible assets. The adoption of the statement did not impact
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Disclosures about Derivative Investments and Hedging Activities

In March 2008, the FASB issued a statement which requires entities to include information in interim and annual financial
statements about how and why an entity uses derivative instruments; how derivative instruments and related hedged items are
accounted for; and how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance,
and cash flows. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of this statement, found under FASB ASC Topic 815,
Derivatives and Hedging (“ASC 815”), which are being applied prospectively. The adoption of the statement did not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The relevant disclosures required by the statement are included in Note
11.

Non-controlling Interests

In December 2007, the FASB issued a statement which establishes accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling
interest in a subsidiary, commonly referred to as minority interest. Among other matters, this statement requires that non-controlling
interests be reported within the equity section of the balance sheet and that the amounts of consolidated net income or loss and
consolidated comprehensive income or loss attributable to the parent company and the non-controlling interests are clearly presented
separately in the consolidated financial statements. Also, pursuant to this statement, where appropriate, losses will be allocated to non-
controlling interests even when that allocation may result in a deficit balance. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the
provisions of this statement, found under ASC 810, which are being applied prospectively, except for the presentation and disclosure
requirements, which are being applied retrospectively to all periods presented. Upon adoption of this statement, non-controlling
interests of $25 million as of December 31, 2008 have been reclassified from Other noncurrent liabilities to Equity attributable to
non-controlling interests in the equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Additionally, $128 million previously recorded as
Minority interests, net of tax for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been reclassified to Net loss (income) attributable to non-
controlling interests and excluded from the caption Net income (loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The computation
of earnings per share for all prior periods is not impacted.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB issued a statement on business combinations that requires, among other matters, companies
expense business acquisition transaction costs; record an asset for in-process research and development; record at fair value amounts
for contingencies, including contingent consideration, as of the purchase date with subsequent adjustments recognized in operating
results; recognize decreases in valuation allowances on acquired deferred tax assets in operating results; and measure at fair value any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of this statement, ASC
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805, which will be applied prospectively to new business combinations consummated on or subsequent to the effective date. While
this statement applies to new business acquisitions consummated on or subsequent to the effective date, the amendments to the
guidance on accounting for income taxes with respect to deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties,
applies to changes in deferred tax valuation allowances and liabilities for income tax uncertainties recognized in prior business
acquisitions. In April 2009, the FASB issued a position which amends and clarifies the accounting, recording and measurement of
certain contingent assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. The provisions of this position, also located
within ASC 805, were effective immediately and required to be applied retrospectively to business combinations that occurred on or
after January 1, 2009. The initial adoption of the statement and position, effective January 1, 2009, did not impact the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. Generally, the impact of ASC 805 will depend on future acquisitions.

Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements

In December 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued a statement which defines collaborative arrangements and
establishes accounting and reporting requirements for transactions between participants in the arrangement and third parties. A
collaborative arrangement is defined as a contractual arrangement that involves a joint operating activity, such as an agreement to co-
produce and distribute programming with another media company. Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of
this statement, found under FASB ASC Topic 808, Collaborative Arrangements (“ASC 808”’) which are being applied retrospectively
to all periods presented for all collaborative arrangements as of the effective date. The adoption of the statement did not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The relevant disclosures required by ASC 808 are included in
Note 7.

Accounting and Reporting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted
Revenue Recognition for Multiple-Element Revenue Arrangements

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (“ASU 2009-13”), which
revises the existing multiple-element revenue arrangements guidance included in FASB ASC Topic 605, Revenue Recognition (“ASC
605”). The revised guidance changes the determination of when the individual deliverables included in a multiple-element revenue
arrangement may be treated as separate units of accounting, modifies the manner in which the transaction consideration is allocated
across the separately identified deliverables, and expands the disclosures required for multiple-element revenue arrangements. ASU
2009-13 will be effective for Discovery on January 1, 2011, and may be applied retrospectively for all periods presented or
prospectively to arrangements entered into or materially modified after the adoption date. The adoption of ASU 2009-13 will not have
a significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In June 2009, the FASB issued a statement which amends certain requirements for interests in a VIE. Among other matters, the
statement requires a qualitative rather than a quantitative analysis to determine the primary beneficiary of a VIE; amends the
consideration of related party relationships in the determination of the primary beneficiary of a VIE; amends certain guidance for
determining whether an entity is a VIE, which may change an entity’s assessment of which entities with which it is involved are VIEs;
requires continuous assessments of whether an entity is the primary beneficiary of a VIE; and requires enhanced disclosures about an
entity’s involvement with a VIE. The provisions of this statement will be effective for Discovery on January 1, 2010, and will be
applied retrospectively to all periods presented. The adoption of this statement will result in the Company no longer consolidating the
Oprah Winfrey Network (“OWN”) and Animal Planet Japan joint ventures effective January 1, 2010. Through retrospective
implementation of the statement, the Company will record, through Other non-operating income (expense), net, the $17 million in
OWN losses allocated to Harpo, Inc. as a non-controlling interest during 2009. As the Company will account for OWN as an equity
method investment for which Discovery is obligated to fund, Discovery is required to absorb all of the joint venture’s losses up to the
Company’s $100 million funding commitment. The Company will deconsolidate $11 million and $30 million of revenues and
operating losses, respectively, of the ventures for the year ended December 31, 2009. The Company will deconsolidate $8 million and
$4 million of revenues and operating losses, respectively, of the ventures for the year ended December 31, 2008. The impact of
deconsolidating the ventures is not material to the Company’s consolidated financial position or net cash flows as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-06, Improving Disclosures About Fair Value Measurements (“ASU 2010-
06”), which requires new disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements including significant transfers into and
out of Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and information on purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements on a gross basis in
the reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements. ASU 2010-06 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2009, except for Level 3 reconciliation disclosures which are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15,
2010. The adoption of ASU 2010-06 will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments with original maturities of ninety days or less are recorded as cash equivalents. There were no
material amounts of bank or book overdrafts or restricted cash as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Cash and cash equivalents include
$40 million and $38 million of cash related to consolidated ventures as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, that is only
available for use by the ventures.

Content Rights

Costs incurred in the direct production, co-production, or licensing of content rights are capitalized and stated at the lower of
unamortized cost, fair value, or net realizable value. The Company periodically evaluates the net realizable value of content by
considering expected future revenue generation.

The costs of produced and co-produced content airing on the Company’s networks are capitalized and amortized based on the
expected realization of revenues, resulting in an accelerated basis over four years for developed networks (Discovery Channel, TLC
and Animal Planet in the U.S. Networks segment and Discovery Channel in the International Networks segment), and a straight-line
basis over a period up to five years for developing networks (all other networks in the U.S. Networks and International Networks
segments). The cost of licensed content is capitalized and amortized over the term of the license period based on the expected
realization of revenues, resulting in an accelerated basis for developed networks, and a straight-line basis for all developing networks
and educational ventures. The costs of produced educational content for electronic, video and hardcopy supplements are amortized on
a straight-line basis over a three to five year period.

All produced and co-produced content is classified as long-term. The portion of the unamortized licensed content balance that
will be amortized within one year is classified as a current asset. The Company’s co-production arrangements generally represent the
sharing of production cost. The Company records its share of costs and records no amounts for the portion of costs borne by the other
party as the Company does not share any associated economics of exploitation.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairments. Depreciation is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, which is 15 to 39 years for buildings and three to five years for fixtures and
equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of their estimated useful lives or the terms
of the related leases, beginning on the date the asset is put into use. Equipment under capital lease represents the present value of the
minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, net of accumulated depreciation.

Capitalized Software Costs

All capitalized software costs are for internal use. Capitalization of costs occurs during the application development stage. Costs
incurred during the preliminary project and post implementation stages are expensed as incurred. Capitalized costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of two to five years.

Goodwill and Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill impairment is determined using a two-step process. The first step of the process is to compare the fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying amount, including goodwill. In performing the first step, the Company determines the fair value of a
reporting unit by using two valuation techniques: a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) analysis and a market-based approach. Determining
fair value requires the exercise of significant judgments, including judgments about appropriate discount rates, perpetual growth rates,
relevant comparable company earnings multiples and the amount and timing of expected future cash flows. The cash flows employed
in the DCF analyses are based on the Company’s budget and long-term business plan. In assessing the reasonableness of its
determined fair values, the Company evaluates its results against other value indicators such as comparable company public trading
values, research analyst estimates and values observed in market transactions. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying
amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is not impaired and the second step of the impairment test is not necessary. If the carrying
amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, the second step of the goodwill impairment test is required to be performed to
measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined in the same
manner as the amount of goodwill recognized in a business combination. In other words, the estimated fair value of the reporting
unit’s identifiable net assets excluding goodwill are compared to the fair value of the reporting unit as if the reporting unit had been
acquired in a business combination and the fair value of the reporting unit was the purchase price paid. If the carrying amount of the
reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that
excess.
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The impairment test for other intangible assets not subject to amortization involves a comparison of the estimated fair value of
the intangible asset with its carrying value. If the carrying value of the intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is
recognized in an amount equal to that excess. The estimates of fair value of intangible assets not subject to amortization are
determined using a DCF valuation analysis, a market-based valuation analysis, or both.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually for impairment during the fourth quarter or earlier upon the
occurrence of certain events or substantive changes in circumstances. The Company’s 2009 annual impairment analysis, which was
performed during the fourth quarter, resulted in impairment charges of $6 million. Additional information regarding the annual
goodwill impairment test is disclosed in Note 9.

Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets such as amortizing trademarks, customer lists, other intangible assets, and property and equipment do not
require that an annual impairment test be performed; instead, long-lived assets are tested for impairment upon the occurrence of a
triggering event. Triggering events include the likely disposal of a portion of such assets or the occurrence of an adverse change in the
market involving the business employing the related assets. Once a triggering event has occurred, the impairment test employed is
based on whether the intent is to hold the asset for continued use or to hold the asset for sale. If the intent is to hold the asset for
continued use, the impairment test first requires a comparison of undiscounted future cash flows against the carrying value of the
asset. If the carrying value of the asset exceeds the undiscounted cash flows, the asset would not be deemed to be recoverable.
Impairment would then be measured as the difference between the fair value of the asset and its carrying value. Fair value is generally
determined by discounting the future cash flows associated with that asset. If the intent is to hold the asset for sale and certain other
criteria are met, the impairment test involves comparing the asset’s carrying value to its fair value less costs to sell. To the extent the
carrying value is greater than the asset’s fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to the difference. During the
year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recorded $26 million of long-lived asset impairments. Additional information is
included in Note 9.

Significant judgments in this area involve determining whether a triggering event has occurred, determining the future cash
flows for the assets involved and determining the proper discount rate to be applied in determining fair value.

Discontinued Operations

In determining whether a group of assets disposed of should be presented as a discontinued operation, the Company makes a
determination as to whether the group of assets being disposed of comprises a component of the entity, which requires cash flows that
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the entity. The Company also determines whether the cash flows associated with the
group of assets have been or will be significantly eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company as a result of the disposal
transaction and whether the Company has no significant continuing involvement in the operations of the group of assets after the
disposal transaction. If these determinations can be made affirmatively, the results of operations of the group of assets being disposed
of (as well as any gain or loss on the disposal transaction) are aggregated for separate presentation apart from continuing operating
results of the Company in the consolidated financial statements. The Company has elected not to segregate the cash flows from
discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company records the fair value of every derivative instrument on the balance sheet as either an asset or a liability. The
Company uses financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges. The effective changes in fair value of derivatives designated as
cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive loss. Amounts are reclassified from Accumulated other
comprehensive loss as interest expense is recorded for debt. The Company uses the cumulative dollar offset method to assess
effectiveness. To be highly effective, the ratio calculated by dividing the cumulative change in the value of the actual swap by the
cumulative change in the hypothetical swap must be between 80% and 125%. The ineffective portion of a derivative’s change in fair
value is immediately recognized in earnings. The changes in fair value of derivatives not designated as cash flow hedges are
immediately recognized in earnings. The Company uses derivative instruments principally to manage the risk associated with the
changes in interest rates that will affect the cash flows of its debt transactions. See Note 11 for additional information regarding
derivative instruments held by the Company and risk management strategies.

Redeemable Interests in Subsidiaries

For those instruments with an estimated redemption value, redeemable interest in subsidiaries is accreted or amortized to an
estimated redemption value ratably over the period to the redemption date. Accretion and amortization are recorded to Accumulated
deficit. Cash receipts and payments for the sale or purchase of redeemable interests in subsidiaries are included as a component of
financing cash flows on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Share-Based and Other Long-term Incentive Compensation

The Company has incentive plans under which cash-settled unit awards, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), stock options, and
restricted stock units (“RSUs”’) were issued.

The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for cash-settled unit awards and SARs based on the
fair value of the award less estimated forfeitures. Because unit awards and SARs are cash-settled, the Company remeasures the fair
value of outstanding unit awards and SARs each reporting period until settlement. Compensation expense, including changes in fair
value, for unit awards and SARs is recognized during the vesting period in proportion to the requisite service that has been rendered at
the reporting date. For grants of unit awards with graded vesting, the Company measures fair value and records compensation expense
for the grant as a single award. For grants of SARs with graded vesting, the Company measures fair value and records compensation
expense separately for each tranche. Changes in the fair value of outstanding unit awards and SARs that occur subsequent to the
vesting period are recorded as adjustments to compensation costs in the period in which the changes occur.

The Company measures the cost of employee services received in exchange for stock options and RSUs based on the fair value
of the award on the date of grant less estimated forfeitures. For awards that vest based on service, compensation expense is recognized
ratably during the vesting period. Vesting of certain RSUs is also subject to satisfying operating performance conditions. At the time
that the Company determines that it is probable that the performance targets will be achieved, compensation expense is recorded for
such awards.

When recording compensation cost for share-based awards, the Company is required to estimate the number of awards granted
that are expected to be forfeited. Forfeitures are estimated on the date of grant based on historical forfeiture rates. On an ongoing
basis, the Company adjusts compensation expense based on actual forfeitures and revises the forfeiture rate as necessary.

The fair value of unvested cash-settled unit awards, unvested SARs, and all stock options are estimated using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Because the Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires the use of subjective assumptions, changes in these
assumptions can materially affect the fair value of awards. The fair value of unvested cash-settled unit awards, unvested SARs, and all
stock options are estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Because the Black-Scholes option-pricing model requires
the use of subjective assumptions, changes in these assumptions can materially affect the fair value of awards. The risk-free interest
rate is based on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term of the award. For cash-settled
award units and RSUs, the expected term is the period from the grant date to the vesting date of the award. For SARs, the expected
term is estimated to be the contractual term of the award. For stock options, the expected term is estimated to be the period from the
date of grant through the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual term of the award. Expected volatility is
based on a combination of implied volatilities from traded options on our common stock and historical realized volatility of our
common stock, and considers other factors deemed relevant. The dividend yield is assumed to be 0% because the Company has no
present intention to pay dividends.

The fair value of RSUs is determined based on the fair value of the Company’s common stock as of the grant date.

Share-based compensation expense is recorded as a component of Selling, general and administrative expense. The Company
classifies as a current liability the intrinsic value of cash-settled award units and SARs that are vested or will become vested within
one year.

Excess tax benefits realized from the exercise of stock options are reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction
of taxes paid in cash flows from operations on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues from: (i) distribution revenue from cable systems, satellite operators and other distributors,
(ii) advertising aired on the Company’s networks and websites, and (iii) other, which is largely e-commerce, educational, and post-
production sound services sales.

Distribution

Distributors generally pay a per-subscriber fee for the right to distribute the Company’s programming under the terms of long-
term distribution contracts (“distribution revenue”). Distribution revenue is reported net of incentive costs or other consideration, if
any, offered to system operators in exchange for long-term distribution contracts. The Company recognizes distribution revenue over
the term of the contracts based on contracted monthly license fee provisions and reported subscriber levels. Network incentives have
historically included upfront cash incentives referred to as “launch support” in connection with the launch of a network by the
distributor within certain time frames. Any such amounts are capitalized as assets upon launch of the Company’s programming by the
distributor and are amortized on a straight line basis as a reduction of revenue over the terms of the contracts. In instances where the
distribution agreement is extended prior to the expiration of the original term, the Company evaluates the economics of the extended
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term and, if it is determined that the deferred launch asset continues to benefit the Company over the extended term, then the
Company will adjust the launch amortization period accordingly. Other incentives are recognized as a reduction of revenue as
incurred. Following the renewal of a distribution agreement, the remaining deferred consideration is amortized over the extended
period. Amortization of deferred launch incentives for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $55 million and $75 million,
respectively.

The amount of distribution revenue due to the Company is reported by distributors based on actual subscriber levels. Such
information is generally not received until after the close of the reporting period. Therefore, reported distribution revenue is based
upon the Company’s estimates of the number of subscribers receiving the Company’s programming for periods for which the
distributor has not yet reported. The Company’s subscriber estimates are based on the most recent remittance or confirmation of
subscribers received from the distributor. Historical differences between actual amounts and estimates have not been material.

Advertising

The Company records advertising revenue net of agency commissions and audience deficiency liabilities in the period
advertising spots are broadcast. A substantial portion of the advertising sold in the U.S. includes guaranteed levels of audience that
either the program or the advertisement will reach. Deferred revenue is recorded and adjusted as the guaranteed audience levels are
achieved. Audience guarantees are initially developed by the Company’s internal research group and actual audience and delivery
information is provided by third party ratings services. In certain instances, the third party ratings information is not received until
after the close of the reporting period. In these cases, reported advertising revenue and related deferred revenue is based on the
Company’s estimates for any under-delivery of contracted advertising ratings based on the most current data available from the third
party ratings service. Differences between the estimated under-delivery and the actual under-delivery have historically been
insignificant. Online advertising revenues are recognized as impressions are delivered.

Certain of the Company’s advertising arrangements include deliverables in addition to commercial time, such as the advertiser’s
product integration into the programming, customized vignettes, and billboards. These contracts are evaluated as multiple element
revenue arrangements under ASC 605.

Other

Educational service sales are recognized ratably over the term of the agreement. Revenue from post-production, advertising
representation, and certain distribution related services is recognized when services are provided. Commerce revenue is recognized
upon product shipment, net of estimated returns, which are not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Prepayments received for services to be performed at a later date are deferred. Program license sales are recognized when the third
party has possession and rights to distribute the programming.

Significant Customers

For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, no single customer accounted for more than 10% of total consolidated
revenues.

Adbvertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs to third parties during the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 totaled $104 million and $145 million, respectively. No material advertising costs were recorded by DHC during the
year ended December 31, 2007.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the
net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not such
assets will be unrealized.
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3. DISCOVERY HOLDING COMPANY INVESTMENT IN DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC

Prior to the Newhouse Transaction described in Note 1, DCH was a stand-alone private company. Through May 14, 2007, DCH
was owned by DHC (50% ownership interest), Advance/Newhouse (25% ownership interest), and Cox Communications Holdings,
Inc. (“Cox”) (25% ownership interest). On May 14, 2007, DCH was reorganized. Immediately following the reorganization, DHC,
Advance/Newhouse, and Cox each held the same ownership interests in DCH. On May 14, 2007, subsequent to the reorganization of
DCH, Cox exchanged its 25% ownership interest in DCH for all of the capital stock of a DCH subsidiary that held Travel Channel and
travelchannel.com (collectively, the “Travel Business™) and approximately $1.3 billion in cash (the “Cox Transaction”). DCH retired
the membership interest previously owned by Cox. Accordingly, the ownership interests in DCH held by DHC and
Advance/Newhouse were increased to 66° /3 % and 33' /3 %, respectively. DHC accounted for its interest in DCH using the equity
method, including the period May 14, 2007 through September 17, 2008 when it owned 66° /3 % of DCH, because of certain
governance rights held by Advance/Newhouse that restricted DHC’s ability to control DCH.

From January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, DHC recorded its 50% share of the earnings of DCH and from May 15, 2007
through September 17, 2008, DHC originally recorded its 66 /3% share of DCH’s earnings. As previously disclosed in Note, 1, the
financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 has been presented as though the Newhouse Transaction was
consummated on January 1, 2008 and include the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of both DHC and DCH since
January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been adjusted to
eliminate DHC’s investment in DCH and the portion of DCH’s earnings recorded by DHC during the period January 1, 2008 through
September 17, 2008. Additionally, the financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008 have been adjusted to
allocate a portion of DCH’s earnings for the period from January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008 to Advance/Newhouse as a
component of Net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling interests. The financial information for the year ended December 31,
2007 includes the continuing results of operations and cash flows of DHC, as the predecessor company to Discovery, and, therefore,
continue to present DHC’s interest in DCH under the equity method.

The Cox Transaction resulted in no additional investments in DCH. However, the Cox Transaction resulted in a new basis of
accounting that created a combined basis differential of $929 million between the carrying values of DHC’s and Advance/Newhouse’s
investments in DCH and their share of the underlying net assets of DCH. The following table presents a summary of the allocation of
the basis differential (in millions, except for useful life).

Account Allocation Useful Life

(Years)
CONtENt TIGNTS ....oviivieeieiicici ettt b b e ene, $ 32 14
Customer relationShiPs ........cccveevieeiiiieiiieriei e 491 8-29
Trademarks..........ooviiiiiieieece e, 155 Indefinite
GOOAWIIL...cceeiiiiiiieeiecceeee ettt e eb e ae e eb e e s abe e abeeeane s, 251 Indefinite
7Y OO $ 929

In connection with the Newhouse Transaction, Discovery recorded the total basis differential of $929 million to the respective
asset accounts in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The portions of the total basis differential allocated to content rights and customer
relationships are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Separate consolidated financial statements for DCH for the year ended December 31, 2007 are included in a separate schedule in
Part IV of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in accordance with SEC Regulation S-X Rule 3-09, Separate Financial Statements of
Subsidiaries not Consolidated and 50 Percent or Less Owned Persons.

4. INVESTMENTS
Investments in Variable Interest Entities

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into joint ventures or makes investments with business partners that
support its underlying business strategy and provide it the ability to enter new markets, to expand the reach of its brands, develop new
programming and/or distribute its existing content. In certain instances, an entity in which the Company makes an investment may
qualify as a variable interest entity. In determining whether Discovery is the primary beneficiary of those variable interest entities
pursuant to ASC 810, the Company considers quantitative and qualitative factors. Information about significant VIEs is set forth
below.

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

For consolidated ventures, $1 million of net losses and $11 million of net income generated by the ventures was allocated to
other venture partners during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Amounts allocated to other venture partners
are recorded in Net loss (income) attributable to non-controlling interests in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Oprah Winfrey Network

Discovery formed a 50-50 joint venture with Oprah Winfrey and Harpo, Inc. (“Harpo”) to rebrand Discovery Health Channel as
OWN, which was consummated on July 23, 2008. Pursuant to the arrangement, Discovery will contribute its interest in the Discovery
Health Channel and certain DiscoveryHealth.com content and Harpo will contribute the Oprah.com website (which will serve as the
platform for the venture website) and certain Oprah.com content. Discovery and Harpo are required to make these contributions on the
launch date unless it is mutually agreed that certain contributions will be made prior to the launch date for the benefit of the venture.
The equity interests of OWN owned by Harpo are reported as non-controlling interests.

Pursuant to the venture agreement, Discovery is committed to loan up to $100 million to the venture through September 30,
2011 to fund operations, of which $35 million has been funded through December 31, 2009. To the extent funding the joint venture in
excess of $100 million is necessary, the Company may provide additional funds through a member loan or require the venture to seek
third party financing. Discovery expects to recoup the entire amount contributed in future periods provided that the joint venture is
profitable and has sufficient funds to repay the Company. The parties are currently discussing a number of matters regarding the OWN
Network, including digital strategy, the programming and development pipeline, and increases in our funding commitment, which is
currently $100 million.

Pursuant to the venture agreement, Harpo has the right to require the Company to purchase its interest in the OWN venture if
certain conditions are not met. Additional information regarding Harpo’s put right is disclosed in Note 12.

Based upon the level of equity investment at risk, the Company has determined that OWN is a variable interest entity. The
Company quantitatively calculated the expected losses to be absorbed by each variable interest holder and determined that the variable
interest it held, which included the initial funding requirement, would result in the Company absorbing the majority of the expected
losses of OWN. Based on the quantitative analysis and after considering qualitative factors such as the nature and purpose of the joint
venture, the Company determined that it was the primary beneficiary and consolidates OWN.

In connection with the adoption of the new accounting rules for VIEs, effective January 1, 2010 the Company will deconsolidate
OWN. Refer to Note 2 for additional information regarding the adoption of the new accounting rules for VIEs.

Ventures with the British Broadcasting Corporation

The Company and the British Broadcasting Corporation (“BBC”) formed several cable and satellite television network ventures
to produce and acquire factual-based content. Additionally, Discovery and the BBC formed a venture to provide debt funding to the
other operating ventures. In addition to its own funding requirements, Discovery has assumed the BBC’s funding requirements, giving
the Company preferential cash distribution for these joint ventures.

Typically, the Company’s ownership interest in the ventures is 50%, with lower ownership interests in certain ventures. The
equity interests of the ventures owned by the BBC are reported as non-controlling interests. No cumulative operating losses generated
by the ventures were allocated to the BBC’s non-controlling interests. In accordance with the venture arrangement, no losses can be
allocated to the BBC in excess of distributable cash to the BBC for each joint venture.

Pursuant to the venture agreements, the BBC has the right to require the Company to purchase the BBC’s interests in the
People+Arts Latin America venture and the Animal Planet ventures (the “Channel Groups”) if certain conditions are not met. The
Company and the BBC are currently discussing potential revisions to all of their contractual relationships, including the ownership
interests in the Channel Groups. While there can be no assurance that these or other negotiations would result in an definitive
agreement, the Company expects that the cost of a negotiated acquisition of the BBC’s interests in the Channel Groups could
substantially exceed the value of the put right described above. Additional information regarding the BBC’s put right is disclosed in
Note 12.

Based upon the level of equity investment at risk, the Company has determined that each of the ventures with the BBC is a
variable interest entity. With respect to each venture, the Company has determined whether it will absorb the majority of the expected
losses and received a majority of the expected returns. In each case, the Company is the primary beneficiary because of the limits on
losses that can be allocated to the BBC.

In connection with the adoption of the new accounting rules for VIEs, effective January 1, 2010 the Company will deconsolidate
Animal Planet Japan, an operating joint venture with the BBC. Refer to Note 2 for additional information regarding the new
accounting rules for VIEs.

Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities

The Company has a number of unconsolidated investments in which it holds a non-controlling ownership interest. These
arrangements are typically entered into with strategic partners and contain the following governance provisions: (i) the funding of the
venture is provided by the equity holders pro rata based on their ownership interest; (ii) the investments are initially funded to meet
short-term working capital requirements with funding commitments provided by the partners to fund future operating needs;

(ii1) commercial arrangements between the Company, the venture and other related parties are negotiated between the parties and are
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believed to be at market rates; and (iv) voting rights are consistent with the equity holders’ rights and obligations to share in the profits
and losses of the variable interest entity. In connection with these investment arrangements the Company does not hold a majority of
the equity interest, it does not absorb a majority of the expected losses or residual returns, and therefore does not qualify as the
primary beneficiary. Accordingly, these investments are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and are included in
Other noncurrent assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. In these arrangements, the Company’s risk of loss is typically limited to
its carrying value, which was $395 million as of December 31, 2009, primarily related to the investment in the U.S. Discovery Kids
Network (“Discovery Kids”), which was $35 million as of December 31, 2008, and future funding commitments.

Hasbro-Discovery Joint Venture

On May 22, 2009, Discovery and Hasbro, Inc. (“Hasbro”) formed a 50-50 joint venture that will operate a television network
and website dedicated to children’s and family entertainment and educational programming. Hasbro acquired a 50% ownership
interest in the joint venture, which will hold the assets related to Discovery Kids in the U.S., for which Discovery received
consideration of $300 million and a tax receivables agreement collectible over 20 years valued at $57 million. Upon purchase of its
ownership interest, Hasbro received a step-up in tax basis for its portion of the joint venture assets. To the extent Hasbro has the
ability to amortize this tax basis, it is contractually obligated to share the tax benefit as part of the purchase consideration. As part of
the transaction, Discovery provided Hasbro a guarantee of performance valued at less than $1 million. The maximum exposure to loss
under this guarantee of performance is below $255 million. The Company believes the likelihood is remote that this performance
guarantee could have a material adverse impact on the Company.

Hasbro and Discovery have equal representation on the joint venture’s board of directors that oversees a management team
responsible for programming, scheduling and operations. Programming for the joint venture will include animation, game shows, and
live-action series and specials. The television network and online presence also will include content from Discovery Kids’ existing
library. Discovery provides certain advertising sales services, distribution, origination and other operational requirements for the joint
venture, while Hasbro provides studio-produced programming and merchandising for intellectual property associated with the
network. Hasbro is providing the joint venture a $125 million licensing revenue guarantee over a period of ten years, which is
expected to be earned over the licensing term.

Based upon the level of equity investment at risk, the Company has determined that Discovery Kids is a variable interest entity.
The Company quantitatively calculated the expected losses to be absorbed by each variable interest holder and determined that the
variable interest held by Hasbro, which included the licensing revenue guarantee, would result in Hasbro absorbing the majority of the
expected losses of Discovery Kids. Based on the quantitative analysis and after considering qualitative factors such as the nature and
purpose of the joint venture, the Company determined that it was not the primary beneficiary and, accordingly, accounts for its interest
in Discovery Kids under the equity method of accounting.

Beginning May 22, 2009, Discovery ceased to consolidate the gross operating results of Discovery Kids. However, as Discovery
continues to be involved in the operations of the joint venture, the Company has not presented the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of Discovery Kids recorded through May 21, 2009 as discontinued operations. The Company’s interest in
the joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of accounting, which was initially valued at $357 million. Accordingly, the
Company’s consolidated results of operations include the gross operating results of Discovery Kids through May 21, 2009, whereas
for subsequent periods Discovery records only its proportionate share of the joint venture’s net operating results.

In connection with the formation of the joint venture, the Company recognized a gain of $252 million, which included $127
million as a result of “stepping up” its basis for the 50% retained interest in Discovery Kids and $125 million for the sale of 50% of its
ownership interest to Hasbro.

As of December 31, 2009 the carrying value of the Company’s investment in Discovery Kids was $361 million.

Equity Method and Fair Value Investments

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s investments (in millions).

As of December 31,

2009 2008
Investment in DiSCOVEry KidS .........cooveiiiieuiiiieiieieieieeceeeeeeee e $ 361 § —
Other equity-method INVESTMENLS ........ccveeverieriieieeie et 34 35
TTAdING SECUTIICS ...vvevvieiveeiieeieeiieie et ettt et et et e enteesaessaesseeseensessaesneesseenseennennns 37 36
Available-for-sale SECUTILICS. ......c.evverierieiieie et — 15

$§ 432 § 86
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Other Equity-Method Investments

As of December 31, 2009, other equity method investments primarily included Discovery Japan, Inc. (50% owned), a cable and
satellite television network joint venture, Discovery Channel Canada (20% owned), a cable and satellite television network joint
venture, and HSW International, Inc. (“HSWI”) (43% owned), an online source with a perpetual royalty free license to exploit
HowStuffWorks.com, Inc. (“HSW?”) online content in certain foreign markets.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recognized pretax impairment charges of $57 million related to the
investment in HSWI, which is recorded as a component of Other non-operating income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. The impairment charge for HSWI reflects an other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of HSWI’s common stock
following lower than expected operating performance. As of December 31, 2008, the stock price for HSWI was below its liquidation
value, and the Company utilized the HSWI liquidation value per share to determine the equity investment asset value.

The carrying value of the Company’s equity-method investments approximates its portion of the underlying net assets of the
investees.

Based on the quoted market prices as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair value of the Company’s investments in publicly
traded companies accounted for using the equity method approximates the Company’s carrying value.

Trading Securities

Trading securities primarily include investments in mutual funds owned as part of the Company’s supplemental retirement plan.
Refer to Note 15 for additional information regarding the Company’s supplemental retirement plan.

Available-for-Sale Securities

Available-for-sale securities primarily include investments in common stock of publicly traded companies. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, the Company sold available-for-sale securities for $22 million, which resulted in a pretax gain of
$13 million. Approximately $6 million of unrealized pretax gains were reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)
income.

During the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, AMC, which is reflected as discontinued operations, sold securities for
$24 million and $28 million in cash, respectively. There were no gains or losses associated with these sales.

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In September 2008, as part of the Newhouse Transaction, DHC completed the spin-off to its shareholders of AMC, a subsidiary
holding the cash and businesses of DHC, except for certain businesses that provide sound, music, mixing, sound effects and other
related services. The AMC spin-off did not involve the payment of any consideration by the holders of DHC common stock and was
structured as a tax free transaction under Sections 368(a) and 355 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. There was no
gain or loss related to the spin-off. Subsequent to the AMC spin-off, the companies no longer have any ownership interests in each
other and operate independently.

In September 2008, prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC sold its ownership interests in AMSTS and AccentHealth for
approximately $7 million and $119 million, respectively, in cash. The sale of these companies resulted in pre-tax gains of $3 million
for AMSTS and $64 million for AccentHealth. AMSTS and AccentHealth were components of the AMC business. It was determined
that AMSTS and AccentHealth were non-core assets, and the sale of these companies was consistent with DHC’s strategy to divest
non-core assets. The Company has no continuing involvement in the operations of AMSTS or AccentHealth.

In September 2008, prior to the Newhouse Transaction, DHC disposed of certain buildings and equipment for approximately
$13 million in cash. DHC recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $9 million in connection with the asset disposals. The disposed
assets were part of the AMC business.

As there is no continuing involvement in the operations of AMC, AMSTS, or AccentHealth, their results of operations and the
gains from the business and asset dispositions are presented as Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008. Cash flows from these entities have not been
segregated as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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The following table presents summary financial information for discontinued operations for the two years ended December 31,
2008 and 2007 (in millions).

Years Ended December 31,

2008 2007

REVEIIUES ...ttt bttt a ettt s e sa et e s esene s $ 484 $ 631
Loss from the operations of discontinued operations before

INCOIME TAXES 1.vvvrvreisisieiiieteseseseseseesssstt st besesesetesesssesssssssesesesesesesasesas (6) (151)
Gains on diSPOSTHIONS(A) ....eevrervrerieirreieriieriiereeieeeeeee s erae e e eeeseeeseeeeeenes 67 —
Income (loss) from discontinued operations(b)..........cceecveveeveerververerennnne 61 (151)
Provision for iNCOME taXeS.........ecverrereeriieiieieeiesitesieeie e seeseeeseeeeesaens (18) 3)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax ..........ccceeeverevennnnne 43 (154)

(a) Gains on dispositions include $3 million from the sale of AMSTS and $64 million from the sale of Accent Health, which were
part of the AMC business.

(b) AMC’s operating results for the year ended December 31, 2008 include $9 million in gains from asset disposals. Operating
results for AMC for the year ended December 31, 2007 include goodwill impairment charges of $165 million.

No interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations for the periods presented herein since there was no debt
specifically attributable to discontinued operations or that was required to be repaid following the spin-off.

6. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In accordance with ASC 820, a fair value measurement is determined based on the assumptions that a market participant would
use in pricing an asset or liability. ASC 820 also established a three-tiered hierarchy that draws a distinction between market
participant assumptions based on: (i) observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets (Level 1), (ii) inputs other than quoted
prices in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly (Level 2), and (iii) unobservable inputs that require the
Company to use present value and other valuation techniques in the determination of fair value (Level 3).

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following tables present information about assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in millions).

Fair Value Measurements
as of December 31, 2009 Using:

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Total Fair Value as of Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2009 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Trading SECUrities.........coovovevevevevevernnnen. $ 37 % 37 3 —  § —
Derivatives (Note 11).....ccccvevvvenrennnenn. 7 — 7
Liabilities:
Derivatives (Note 11)....ccccceeecvverveennnnn. (40) — (40)
Deferred compensation plan.................. (37) 37 — —
HSWI liability......cccoovvverieienieseeieen, %) — (5) —
Redeemable non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries (Note 12).......cccceevevvecernerennene (49) — — (49)
$ (G — 3 (38) $ (49)
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As disclosed in Note 2, the adoption of ASU 2009-05 resulted in changing the priority level of inputs used to measure the fair
value of liabilities associated with the Company’s deferred compensation plan from Level 2 to Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy
in ASC 820 as of September 30, 2009. However, this ASU did not change the Company’s valuation techniques or impact the amounts
or classifications recorded in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements
as of December 31, 2008 Using:

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Total Fair Value as of Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
December 31, 2008 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Trading securities. ...........ccoveveverrererenenene, $ 36 $ 36 $ — 3 —
Available-for-sale securities .................. 15 15 — —
Liabilities:
DerivativesS.......cccuveecveeecieeeiee e, (112) — (112) —
Deferred compensation plan................... (36) — (36) —
HSWI Hability.....ovvveeeoeeeeeeseeeereee ) — 7) —
Redeemable non-controlling interests in
SUDSIAIATIES ..., (49) (49)
$ (153) $ 518 (155) $ 49)

For assets that are measured using quoted prices in active markets, the total fair value is the published market price per unit in
active markets multiplied by the number of units held without consideration of transaction costs.

The fair value of derivative instruments, which consist of interest rate and foreign currency hedges, is determined using the
published market price of similar instruments with similar maturities and characteristics, interest rate yield curves, and measures of

interest rate volatility, adjusted for any terms specific to the asset or liability and nonperformance risk. Additional information
regarding derivative instruments is available in Note 11.

The fair value of the deferred compensation plan liability is determined based on the fair value of the related investments elected
by employees.

The Company currently owns approximately 23 million shares (or 43%) of HSWI. The investment is accounted for using the
equity method. The Company has agreed to either: (i) distribute approximately 18 million of the HSWI shares to the former
shareholders of HSW, or (ii) sell approximately 18 million HSW shares and distribute substantially all proceeds in excess of $0.37 per
share to the former shareholders of HSW. The fair value of the liability is determined using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

The fair value of the redeemable non-controlling interests in subsidiaries is an estimated negotiated value considering the
exercise of the BBC put right and an estimate of the proceeds from a hypothetical sale of interests in certain ventures and a
distribution of the proceeds to the venture partners based on various rights and preferences. Additional information regarding the
redeemable non-controlling interests in subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 12.
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The following table reconciles the beginning and ending balances of Level 3 measurements and identifies the net income the
Company recorded (in millions).

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Redeemable Redeemable
Non-controlling Non-controlling
Interests in HSWI Interests in
Subsidiaries Liability Subsidiaries
$ 49) $ (54) $ (49)
— 47 _
Included in other comprehensive income ....... — — —
Purchases, sales, issuances, settlements, net ............ — — —
Transfers (in) and/or out of Level 3 ...........c.ccueee. — 7 —
Ending balance...........cccceveveveeeerueuerereeeeecceee oo, $ 49) $ — 3 (49)

Gains recognized for liabilities valued using significant unobservable inputs were reported as a component of Other non-
operating income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-Recurring Basis

The majority of the Company’s non-financial instruments, which include goodwill, intangible assets, property and equipment,
and equity method investments, are not required to be carried at fair value on a recurring basis but are subject to fair value adjustments
only in certain circumstances. If certain triggering events occur such that a non-financial instrument is required to be evaluated for
impairment, a resulting asset impairment would require that the non-financial instrument be recorded at the lower of historical cost or

its fair value.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, certain assets with carrying values of $53 million were written down to fair value of
$21 million resulting in pretax charges totaling $32 million. The assets consisted of certain intangible assets, goodwill, and capitalized
software costs. Fair value measurements were required due to a decline in expected future operating results and as part of our annual
goodwill impairment testing.

The fair values of these assets were determined by the application of a DCF model and market based approach, which used
Level 3 inputs. Cash flows were determined based on Company estimates of future operating results and discounted using an internal
rate of return consistent with that used by the Company to evaluate cash flows of other assets of a similar nature. The market approach
relied on public information related to certain financial measures. Additional information regarding the fair value measurements is

disclosed in Note 9.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company’s investment in HSWI with a carrying value of $67 million was
written down to a fair value of $10 million resulting in a pretax charge of $57 million. The impairment charge for HSWI reflects an
other-than-temporary decline in the fair value of HSWI’s common stock following lower than expected operating performance. As of
December 31, 2008, the stock price for HSWI was below its liquidation value, and the Company utilized the HSWI liquidation value
per share to determine the equity investment asset value.
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7. CONTENT RIGHTS

The following table presents a summary of the components of content rights (in millions).

As of December 31,
2009 2008

Produced content rights:

COMPIELEd......c.ooviieeiiriieiicteee ettt ettt vesseeees $ 1,712 $ 1,420

IN-PrOQUCHION .....eeiiieiieciieieee et 212 270
Co-produced content rights:

L0710 1110) (<1157« B SUS 448 462

IN-PrOQUCHION ...ttt es &5 63
Licensed content rights:

ACQUITEA ...ttt nne e ens 266 218

Prepaid.....ccceeeieeieeee e 13 17
Content riZhtS, At COST...euiiiiiriiiieii ettt 2,736 2,450
Accumulated amOrtiZation ..........cc.eeiveerieeiieecie ettt (1,443) (1,214)
Content TIZILS, NEL....cc.eeviieieeietieieiee ettt 1,293 1,236
LeSS: CUITENE POTLION ..veevvrieiiieeiieeiieeteeniieesteeteeeieeebeesteesaeesebeensneessneenseaens 76 73
NONCUITENE POTTION ....vvieteeietiieeeetitete ettt reebeseere s eseeresseseebessesens $ 1,217 $ 1,163

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company recorded amortization expense related to content rights of
$711 million and $658 million, respectively. Amortization expense was recorded as a component of Costs of revenues in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 included charges of
$75 million and $39 million, respectively, related to the decision not to proceed with certain completed and in-process content at the
Company’s U.S. Networks and International Networks segments. The charges were the result of management evaluating the
Company’s programming portfolio assets and concluding that certain programming was no longer aligned with the Company’s
strategy and would no longer be aired.

The Company estimates that approximately 96% of unamortized costs of content rights at December 31, 2009 will be amortized
within the next three years. The Company expects to amortize $512 million of unamortized content rights, excluding in-process, not
released, and prepaid productions, during the next twelve months.

The Company enters into collaborative co-produced content right arrangements (“co-productions”) whereby it obtains certain
editorial and distribution rights to content assets in return for funding production costs. The Company’s level of involvement in co-
productions ranges from review of the initial production plan to detailed editorial oversight through each stage of the production
process. As the Company shares in the variable risks and rewards of content creation, these co-productions are within the scope of
ASC 808.

The Company capitalizes the net cost of co-productions and amortizes them in accordance with its content amortization policy.
The Company’s policy is to record cash receipts for distribution, advertising and royalty revenue that result from the use of co-
produced content as gross revenue in accordance with ASC 605 as it relates to reporting revenue gross as a principal versus net as an
agent. The Company generally does not allocate revenue to specific content rights, and there were no royalty revenues or expenses
associated with co-production partners during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. For the years ended December 31, 2009
and 2008, participation costs of $123 million and $88 million, respectively were capitalized as part of co-production content, which
included payments of $30 million and $12 million to a co-production partner that is consolidated.
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8. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table presents a summary of the components of property and equipment of the Company’s continuing operations
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and (in millions).

As of December 31,

2009 2008
LANG .ttt ettt ettt b et seseneenas $ 29§ 29
BUILAINGS ...ttt ettt et e e s e eneenseennesneas 162 169
EQUIPIMENL ...ttt ettt et e e s et et enneensessaenneas 541 466
Capitalized SOTEWALE. .......ccveriieiieieeiecieeee et neees 164 151
Leasehold IMProvVemMeNts ..........cccocverieriieriieiienieseete et eee e ete e sseese e seees 90 82
Total property and equipment, at COSt........eoourrierierierieieeieeeeeee e 986 897
Accumulated depreciation.............cceveerierieiieiereee e (575) (502)
Total property and eqUIPMENt, NET.........cccvevveerieriieiieieeiereeie e se e eveeeees $ 411 $ 395

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment, including amortization of assets acquired under capital lease, of
continuing operations was $105 million, $109 million, and $2 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007,
respectively. Amortization expense related to property and equipment acquired under capital lease of continuing operations was $17
million and $12 million during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. There was no amortization expense related
to property and equipment acquired under a capital lease of continuing operations during the year ended December 31, 2007.
Accumulated amortization for property and equipment acquired under a capital lease of continuing operations was $27 million and
$30 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment, including amortization of assets acquired under capital lease, of
discontinued operations was $46 million and $64 million during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The net book value of capitalized software costs totaled $43 million and $46 million as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Software costs of $20 million and $12 million were capitalized during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Amortization of capitalized software costs totaled $24 million and $21 million during the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively. There were no material amounts of software costs capitalized during the year ended December 31, 2007.

9. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 (in millions).

Commerce, DHC
U.S. International Education, Discovery
Networks Networks and Other Investment Total

Balance as of December 31, 2007 .....ccveeveeveeeeenenn, $ — 3 — 3 11 $ 1,771  $ 1,782
Newhouse Transaction .........cccccveeeeeecreeesreescreesneenn, 5,382 1,221 38 (1,771) 4,870
Excess investor basis goodwill (Note 3)................... 187 64 — — 251
Purchase accounting adjustment.............ccoecereenennns (13) — — — (13)
Foreign currency translation and other

AAJUSEMENTS ..o, 13 (12) — — 1
Balance as of December 31, 2008 ........ccccccveeuvennnne.. $ 5,569 $ 1,273 § 49 3 — 3 6,891
Disposition of Discovery Kids ..........ccceevevrieirnnennnen, (437) — — — 437)
Purchase accounting adjustment............c...cceevennnen, 17 — — — 17
IMPaITMENt .....coccveeiieieeie e, — (6) — — (6)
Foreign currency translation and other

AdJUSTIMENTS ..., — 4 2) — 2
Balance as of December 31, 2009 ..........ccccverireennnn $ 5115 § 1,271  $ 47 $ —  $ 6,433
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Goodwill decreased $458 million during the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was primarily attributable to the U.S.
Discovery Kids network disposition, an adjustment to the purchase price for the acquisition of HSW, and an impairment in the
International Networks segment.

As disclosed in Note 4, in May 2009, Discovery and Hasbro formed a joint venture that will operate a television network and
website to deliver children’s and family entertainment and educational programming. In connection with the formation of the joint
venture, the Company transferred Discovery Kids to the venture, which was previously a component of the Other U.S. Networks
reporting unit. For its contribution, the Company received a 50% ownership interest in the joint venture and Hasbro acquired the
remaining 50% ownership interest for $357 million. It was determined that Discovery Kids met the definition of a business under ASC
805 and, therefore, the Company allocated $437 million of the Other U.S. Networks reporting unit goodwill to Discovery Kids
pursuant to ASC 350. The allocation of goodwill was based on the relative fair values of Discovery Kids and the portion of the Other
U.S. Networks reporting unit that was retained.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company reversed a deferred tax liability for losses incurred for other-than-
temporary declines during 2008 in the value of the equity investment in HSWI, which resulted in an $17 million reduction of
goodwill.

Intangible Assets

The following table presents a list of the gross carrying value of the Company’s intangible assets and related accumulated
amortization by major category (in millions, except years).

Weighted As of December 31, 2009 As of December 31, 2008
Average
Amortization Accumulated Accumulated
Period (Years) Gross Amortization Net Gross Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to
amortization:
Trademarks ............ 73 328 (16) $ 16 $ 55§ 23) $ 32
Customer lists .......... 25 526 (68) 458 611 (107) 504
(671115 S 5 2 (1) 1 36 (24) 12
X01E) ST 560 (85) 475 702 (154) 548
Intangible assets not
subject to amortization:.
Trademarks .............. 168 — 168 168 — 168
EROLE) D $ 728 $ (85) $ 643 $ 870 $ (154) $ 716

Intangible assets, net decreased $73 million during the year ended December 31, 2009 due primarily to amortization expense
and noncash impairment charges. Excluding impairment charges, amortization expense related to intangible assets was $50 million
and $77 million during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. There was no amortization expense related to
intangible assets of continuing operations in 2007. Amortization expense related to intangible assets of discontinued operations was $1
million for the year end December 31, 2007.

The following table presents the Company’s estimate of its aggregate annual amortization expense for intangible assets subject
to amortization for each of the next five years and thereafter based on the amount of intangible assets as of December 31, 2009 (in
millions).

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter
AMOTtIZAtioN EXPENSE ....vovvevevierereieerereeeeeereeeeeeaeaeas $ 40 $ 31 § 28§ 26 $ 26 $ 324

The amount and timing of the estimated expenses in the above table may vary due to future acquisitions, dispositions, or
impairments.

Impairments

As disclosed in Note 4, Discovery sold a 50% interest in the U.S. Discovery Kids network, which required the Company to test
long-lived assets, including definite lived intangible assets, for impairment for the remaining portion of the Other U.S. Networks
reporting unit as of June 30, 2009.
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The Company used the purchase consideration provided by Hasbro to determine the fair value of Discovery Kids. In
determining the fair value of the portion of the reporting unit remaining, the Company used a DCF model and market based approach.
The significant assumptions used in the DCF models to determine the fair value of the remaining components of the Other U.S.
Networks reporting unit were generally consistent with those used during 2008, except that the expected cash flows of certain
components declined causing long-term growth rates to increase slightly. The market approach relied on public information and
involved the exercise of judgment in identifying the relevant comparable company market multiples. The Company multiplied certain
financial measures of the Other U.S. Networks reporting unit by the market multiples identified in determining the estimated fair
value. Based on a decline in expected future operating performance and market multiples for certain asset groups of the Other U.S.
Networks reporting unit, the carrying values of certain definite lived intangible assets and capitalized software exceeded their fair
values. Accordingly, the Company recorded impairment charges of $17 million and $3 million related to certain definite lived
intangible assets and capitalized software, respectively, of the Other U.S. Networks reporting unit as a component of Restructuring
and impairment charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Despite the decline in fair value of the definite lived intangible
assets and capitalized software for certain asset groups, the overall fair value of the Other U.S. Networks reporting unit exceeded its
carrying amount and, therefore, goodwill of the reporting unit was not impaired.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, it was determined that the expected future operating performance for one of the asset
groups in the Europe (excluding the United Kingdom), Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”) reporting unit was lower than expected. As
a result, the Company tested long lived assets, including definite lived intangible assets, for impairment. The Company used a DCF
model to estimate fair value. The DCF model utilized projected financial results, which were generally below those used during 2008.
Based on the decline in expected future operating performance, it was determined that the carrying value of certain definite lived
intangible assets exceeded their fair values. Accordingly, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $6 million at the EMEA
reporting unit as a component of Restructuring and impairment charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Despite the
decline in fair value of the definite lived intangible assets, the overall fair value of the EMEA reporting unit exceeded its carrying
amount and, therefore, goodwill of the reporting unit was not impaired.

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment testing in accordance with ASC 350 on November 30, 2009. The
Company determined that goodwill for the Antenna Audio reporting unit, a component of the International Networks reportable
segment, was impaired. As a result, the Company recorded an impairment charge of $6 million as a component of Restructuring and
impairment charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The fair value of the reporting unit was determined using a DCF
model. Cash flows were determined based on Company estimates of future operating results and discounted using an internal rate of
return consistent with that used by the Company to evaluate cash flows of other assets of a similar nature.

10. DEBT
The following table presents the components of the Company’s outstanding debt by instrument type (in millions).
December 31, December 31,
2009 2008

$1.6 billion Revolving Credit Facility, due October 2010 ................ $ — 3 315
$1.0 billion Term Loan A, due quarterly December 2008 to

OCtODEr 2010 . ..ueiiiiiieiieeiee ettt e e ere e — 938
$1.5 billion Term Loan B, due quarterly September 2007 to

MaAY 2014ttt enea 1,463 1,478
$500 million Term Loan C, due quarterly June 2009 to May 2014..... 496 —
7.45% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due September 2009....... — 55
8.37% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due March 2011............. 220 220
8.13% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due September 2012 ...... 235 235
Floating Rate Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due

December 2012 (1.23% at December 31, 2009 and 3.3% at

December 31, 2008) .....ocviiiiiieiieieeieeeeee e 90 90
6.01% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due December 2015....... 390 390
5.625% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due August 2019.......... 500 —
Other notes payable..........ccooveiiiiriieiieeeeeeee e — 1
Capital lease obligations...........eeeeeeieierieiese e 114 67
Total long-term debt.........cccovevieeiiiiiiiecieeeeee e, 3,508 3,789
Unamortized diSCOUNT .......cceevieriieriieieiieiieie e ees 13) —
Long-term debt, Net........cccvevvieriiriiiieriee et 3,495 3,789
Less: Current portion of long-term debt..........cocceviervenienencieniennns 38 458
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt ...........ccevvvveirinieiiiiecieiriennes $ 3,457 $ 3,331
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Term Loans

On May 14, 2009, DCH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into Amendment No. 1 (the “Amendment”) to its
Credit, Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of May 14, 2007 with Bank of America, N.A. (as administrative agent and a lender)
and the other lenders named therein (“Term Loan B”). The Amendment revises Term Loan B to permit any indebtedness otherwise
permitted to be incurred by any restricted subsidiary, as defined in Term Loan B, or DCH to contain restrictions similar to provisions
in DCH’s and its subsidiaries’ existing credit facility and privately placed notes, subject to certain conditions. These provisions
include restrictions on limitations on guarantees, liens and restricted payments. Term Loan B was further amended in order to
eliminate DCH’s obligation to give existing lenders ten business days to commit to any additional term facility.

On May 14, 2009, DCH entered into Credit Agreement Supplement No. 1 (“Term Loan C”) to its Term Loan B with Bank of
America N.A. (as administrative agent and lender). Pursuant to Term Loan C, DCH incurred $500 million of indebtedness, which
matures on May 14, 2014. DCH received net proceeds of $478 million from the borrowing after deducting issuance expenses of $12
million recorded as a discount and $10 million of expenses recorded as deferred financing costs. DCH used the net proceeds of the
borrowing to repay $163 million and $315 million of indebtedness outstanding under DCL’s Term Loan A and the revolving credit
facility, respectively.

The Term Loan C indebtedness is repayable in equal quarterly installments of $1.25 million beginning June 30, 2009 through
March 31, 2014, with the balance due on the maturity date. Term Loan C bears interest at a rate of LIBOR plus an applicable margin
of 3.25%, with a LIBOR floor of 2.00%, which was 5.25% at December 31, 2009. From May 14, 2009 through December 31, 2009,
the weighted average effective interest rate for Term Loan C was 6.03%.

Term Loan C contains customary representations and warranties, events of default, affirmative covenants and negative
covenants (which impose restrictions and limitations on, among other things, dividends, investments, additional indebtedness, asset
sales and capital expenditures) and a total leverage ratio financial maintenance covenant, each of which are identical to Term Loan B.
DCH is permitted to prepay Term Loan C in whole or in part at any time at its option with prior notice with no prepayment penalty.

The events of default under Term Loan C are identical to those under Term Loan B. Discovery’s $1.5 billion Term Loan B and
$500 million Term Loan C are each secured by the assets of DCH, excluding assets held by DCH’s subsidiaries.

Senior Notes

On August 19, 2009, Discovery Communications, LLC (“DCL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $500
million aggregate principal amount of 5.625% Senior Notes maturing on August 15, 2019 (the “August 2019 Notes”). The August
2019 Notes were issued in an underwritten public offering at a price of 99.428% of the principal amount. DCL received net proceeds
of $492 million from the offering after deducting the issuance discount of $3 million and issuance expenses of $5 million recorded as
deferred financing costs. DCL used the net proceeds of the offering to repay $428 million of indebtedness outstanding under its Term
Loan A, prior to final maturity on October 31, 2010. The remaining proceeds are used for general corporate purposes.

DCL may, at its option, redeem some or all of the August 2019 Notes at any time by paying a make-whole premium, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of repurchase. Interest on the August 2019 Notes is payable on August 15 and
February 15 of each year, beginning on February 15, 2010. The August 2019 Notes are unsecured and rank equally in right of
payment with all of DCL’s other unsecured senior indebtedness. The August 2019 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed on
an unsecured and unsubordinated basis by Discovery.

The August 2019 Notes were issued pursuant to an indenture and a supplemental indenture, dated as of August 19, 2009, among
DCL, Discovery and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The indenture and supplemental indenture contain certain covenants
and events of default and other customary provisions.

Other Debt

The Company has private placement fixed rate and floating rate unsecured senior notes. The notes pay interest semi-annually
and are due at various dates between 2011 and 2015. The interest rates on the fixed rate private placement senior notes range from
6.01% to 8.37%. The interest rate on the floating rate private placement senior note was 1.23% at December 31, 2009.

The Company also has access to a $1.6 billion revolving line of credit, which is undrawn as of December 31, 2009. The
revolving line of credit expires in October 2010. If the Company were to draw on the line of credit, the debt would be due in October
2010 and interest would be payable at least quarterly based on either (i) LIBOR plus a margin which would range from 0.40% to
0.95% based on the Company’s leverage ratio or (ii) the prime lending rate.

The Company has various lease obligations that are accounted for as capital leases. The obligations primarily consist of leases
for transponders and office equipment. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company entered into $61 million of new
capital lease obligations, primarily for transponders. The terms of the capital leases expire between 2015 and 2021.
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Debt Payments
The following table presents a summary of scheduled and estimated debt payments, excluding capital lease obligations and other
notes payable for the succeeding five years based on the amount of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2009 (in millions).

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 Thereafter
Long-term debt payments .............ccccceveeeriereerennennn. $ 20 $ 240 $ 345 $ 20 $ 1,879 $ 890

Future minimum payments under capital leases are as follows: $27 million in 2010, $27 million in 2011, $22 million in 2012,
$15 million in 2013, $12 million in 2014 and $50 million thereafter. Total interest to be paid in relation to these future minimum
payments is approximately $39 million.

Covenants

The term loans, revolving loan, and senior notes contain covenants that require the Company to meet certain financial ratios and
place restrictions on the payment of dividends, sale of assets, borrowing level, mergers, and purchases of capital stock, assets, and
investments. The Company was compliant with all debt covenants as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.

Fair Value of Debt

The fair value of the Company’s borrowings was $3.6 billion and $3.4 billion at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
which was estimated based on current market rates and credit pricing for similar debt types and maturities.

11. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses derivative financial instruments principally to modify its exposure to market risks from changes in interest
rates. The Company does not hold or enter into financial instruments for speculative trading purposes.

The Company’s interest expense is exposed to movements in short-term interest rates. Derivative instruments, including both
fixed to variable and variable to fixed interest rate swaps, are used to modify this exposure. The majority of the Company’s debt is
variable rate and the Company uses derivatives to effectively fix the amount of interest paid. The variable to fixed interest rate
instruments are based on the three-month LIBOR rate and have a total notional amount of $1.8 billion and effectively result in a
weighted average fixed interest rate of 4.27% at December 31, 2009. The fixed to variable interest rate agreements have a total
notional amount of $50 million and a weighted average variable interest rate of 4.67% at December 31, 2009. In addition, the
Company has forward starting variable to fixed interest rate instruments with a total notional amount of $300 million and a weighted
average fixed interest rate of 2.90% at December 31, 2009, which will start in June 2010.

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company has entered into forward starting interest rate swaps with a total
notional amount of $300 million, starting June 30, 2010 and maturing on March 31, 2014. The swaps have a weighted average fixed
pay rate of 2.90%, and the Company is required to make payments at the three-month LIBOR rate. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, the Company has terminated and allowed to mature interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $1.0
billion and a net fair value in a loss position of $3 million.

Of the Company’s total notional amount of $2.2 billion in interest rate derivatives, a notional amount of $1.8 billion of these
derivative instruments are highly effective cash flow hedges as of December 31, 2009. The change in the fair value of derivatives
designated as hedging instruments is reported as a component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Should any portion of these instruments become ineffective due to a restructuring in the Company’s debt, the cumulative fair
value, which is in a net loss position of $17 million as of December 31, 2009, would be reclassified from Accumulated other
comprehensive loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheets to Other non-operating income (expense), net on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. In addition, subsequent monthly changes in fair value would be reported as a component of Other non-operating
income (expense), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company does not expect material hedge ineffectiveness in
the next twelve months. The remaining $425 million in interest rate derivatives have not been designated for hedge accounting under
ASC 815. The change in the fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments is reported as a component of Other non-
operating income (expense), net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The Company presents all derivative fair values on a
gross basis on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The foreign exchange instruments used to hedge foreign currency fluctuations for the Company’s non-U.S. operations are spot,
forward, and option contracts. Additionally, the Company enters into non-designated forward contracts to hedge non-dollar
denominated cash flows and foreign currency balances. At December 31, 2009, the notional amount of foreign exchange derivative
contracts was $1 million. These derivative instruments have not been designated for hedge accounting under ASC 815.
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The following tables present the notional amount and fair value of the Company’s derivatives as of December 31, 2009 (in
millions).

Asset Derivatives

Balance Sheet Location Notional Fair Value
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Interest rate cONtracts..........ccoevveeeeeevcineeeeeeeeeneene. Other noncurrent assets  $ 760 $ 4
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Interest rate CONTIaCtS.....covumneeeeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeean. Other noncurrent assets 50 3
Total asset derivatiVesS. .......coueveueveeieecieeeeeeeeeeeeee e, $ 810 $ 7

Liability Derivatives

Balance Sheet Location Notional Fair Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:

Interest rate contracts Other current liabilities $ 900 $ 21

Interest rate contracts Other noncurrent liabilities 100 —
TOtAL ..o 1,000 21
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Foreign exchange contracts ........c..cccceceeveienieniennens Other current liabilities 1 —

INterest Tate CONTTACES.....eoverereereeeeereeeeereeeereeneeens Other noncurrent liabilities 375 19
0] 7Y SRR 376 19
Total liability derivatives .........ccccceveereeniereeieeceeeee $ 1,376 $ 40

The following table presents the impact of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the
Company’s derivatives in cash flow hedging relationships, all of which are interest rate contracts, for the year ended December 31,
2009 (in millions).

Amount recognized in Other comprehensive income (loss), gross of tax............... $ 3)
Amount reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive loss into Interest

CXPCISC, TNCL .......eevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s e e e e s e s sttt es e s et eas et esenn s etensana $ (57
Amount excluded from effectiveness testing and recorded as Other non-

OPEFALiNG TNCOME (EXPENSE), NEL ........eoeeeveeeereeeeeereeererereeseeeeeeeseeeese e s $ 1

Gains (losses) from changes in fair values of derivatives that are not designated as hedges are recognized as a component of
Other non-operating income (expense), net. The Company recorded net gains of $21 million from interest rate contracts not
designated as hedging instruments for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Credit-Risk Related Contingencies

Certain of the Company’s derivative instruments contain credit-risk related contingent features, such as requirements that the
Company comply with its credit agreements and cross-default provisions under which the Company will be in default upon the
occurrence of certain cross-default events, such as failure to make payments when due in respect to any indebtedness exceeding
certain threshold amounts. If the Company were to trigger any of these provisions, the derivative contracts would be in default and the
counterparties could request immediate settlement on all of their outstanding derivative contracts with the Company. As of
December 31, 2009, the aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk related contingent features that are in a
liability position was $40 million.
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12. REDEEMABLE NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
People+Arts Latin America and Animal Planet Channel Group

As disclosed in Note 4, Discovery and the BBC have formed several cable and satellite television network joint ventures to
develop and distribute programming content. Under certain terms outlined in the contract, the BBC has the right every three years,
commencing December 31, 2002, to put to the Company its interests in the Channel Groups, in each case for a value determined by a
specified formula. In January 2009, the BBC requested that a determination be made whether such conditions have occurred with
respect to both Channel Groups as of December 31, 2008. The contractual redemption value is based upon the exercise of the BBC put
right and an estimate of the proceeds from a hypothetical sale of the Channel Groups and a distribution of the proceeds to the venture
partners based on various rights and preferences. As the Company has funded all operations from inception of the ventures through
December 31, 2009, the Company believes that it has accumulated rights and preferences in excess of the fair market value of the
Channel Groups. However, due to the complexities of the redemption formula, the Company has accrued the non-controlling
redeemable interests to an estimated negotiated value of $49 million as of both December 31, 2009 and 2008. Changes in the
assumptions used to estimate the redemption value could materially impact current estimates. The Company recorded no accretion to
the redemption value during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

The Company and the BBC are currently discussing potential revisions to all of their contractual relationships, including the
ownership interests in the Channel Groups. While there can be no assurance that these or other negotiations would result in an
definitive agreement, the Company expects that the cost of a negotiated acquisition of the BBC’s interests in the Channel Groups
could substantially exceed the value of the put right described above.

OWN Network

As disclosed in Note 4, Discovery and Harpo formed a venture to rebrand Discovery Health Channel as OWN: The Oprah
Winfrey Network. Pursuant to the venture agreement, Discovery provided a put right to Harpo which is exercisable on four separate
put exercise dates within 12.5 years of the venture’s formation date. The put arrangement provides Harpo with the right to require
Discovery to purchase its 50% ownership interest at fair market value up to a maximum put amount. The maximum put amount ranges
between $100 million on the first put exercise date up to $400 million on the fourth put exercise date. As of December 31, 2009, no
amounts have been recorded for this put right as the Company has not yet contributed its interest in Discovery Health Channel and
Harpo has not yet contributed the Oprah.com website to the OWN Network venture.

13. EQUITY
Common Stock

In connection with the Newhouse Transaction, the existing shareholders of DHC received shares of Discovery’s common stock.
DHC Series A common stockholders and DHC Series B common stockholders received 0.50 shares of the same series of Discovery
common stock and 0.50 shares of Discovery Series C common stock. As a result of this transaction, Discovery issued 134 million,
7 million, and 141 million shares of its Series A common stock, Series B common stock, and Series C common stock, respectively.

All three series of Discovery common stock (Series A, B and C) have the same rights and preferences, except: (i) the Series B
common stock is convertible into the Series A common stock on a one-for-one basis, and (ii) the Series B common stock has 10 votes
per share, the Series A common stock has one vote per share, and (iii) the Series C common stock does not have any voting rights
except as required by Delaware law.

Subject to any preferential rights of any outstanding series of Discovery’s preferred stock created by Discovery’s board from
time to time, the holders of Discovery’s common stock are entitled to such dividends as may be declared from time to time by
Discovery’s board from available funds. Generally, when a dividend is paid to the holders of one series of common stock, Discovery
will also pay to the holders of the other series of common stock an equal per share dividend.

In the event of Discovery’s liquidation, dissolution, or winding up, after payment or provision for payment of Discovery’s debts
and liabilities and subject to the prior payment in full of any preferential amounts to which Discovery’s preferred stock holders may be
entitled including the liquidation preference granted to holders of Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible
preferred stock, the holders of Series A common stock, Series B common stock, Series C common stock, Series A convertible
preferred stock and Series C convertible preferred stock will share equally, on a share for share basis (and in the case of holders of
Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible preferred stock, on an as converted into common stock basis), in
Discovery’s assets remaining for distribution to the holders of Discovery’s common stock.
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Preferred Stock

In connection with the Newhouse Transaction, Advance/Newhouse received shares of Discovery’s Series A convertible
preferred stock and Series C convertible preferred stock. As a result of this transaction, Discovery issued 70 million of each of its
Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible preferred stock.

Both series of Discovery preferred stock (Series A and C) are convertible at any time into Discovery common stock initially
representing 33 '/3 % of the outstanding shares of Discovery common stock and 26% of the aggregate voting power of Discovery
(other than with respect to the election of directors and select matters) based upon the number of shares of common stock issued in
connection with the Newhouse Transaction. The Series A convertible preferred stock is convertible into a number of shares of
Discovery Series A common stock equal to 50% of the aggregate number of shares of Discovery Series A and Series B common stock
issued in the Newhouse Transaction, and the Series C convertible preferred stock is convertible into a number of shares of Discovery
Series C common stock equal to 50% of the shares of Discovery Series C common stock issued in the Newhouse Transaction, in each
case subject to anti-dilution adjustments. Advance/Newhouse is entitled to additional shares of the same series of convertible preferred
stock if the DHC stock options and stock-settled stock appreciation rights that were converted into stock options and stock
appreciation rights of Discovery in connection with the Newhouse Transaction are exercised for Discovery common stock. The
Company placed approximately 1.6 million shares of preferred stock into an escrow account upon the closing of the Newhouse
Transaction for this anti-dilution provision. In the event that shares are released from escrow to Advance/Newhouse, the distribution is
accounted for as a noncash dividend measured at the fair value of the underlying shares as of the Newhouse Transaction date. During
2009, the Company recognized $8 million for non-cash stock dividends for the release of approximately 500,000 shares of preferred
stock from escrow.

The Discovery preferred stock has a right to vote with holders of common stock on an as-converted to common stock basis,
voting together as a single class on all matters submitted for vote to the common stockholders of Discovery, except for the election of
directors. The Discovery preferred stock has the right to elect three directors (preferred stock directors), and has special voting rights
on select matters for so long as Advance/Newhouse or its permitted transferee owns at least 80% of the shares of Series A convertible
preferred stock outstanding immediately following the closing of the Newhouse Transaction, including fundamental changes in the
business of Discovery, mergers and business combinations, certain acquisitions and dispositions and future issuances of Discovery
capital stock.

Subject to the prior preferences and other rights of any senior stock, whenever a cash dividend is paid to the holders of
Discovery common stock, Discovery will also pay to the holders of the Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible
preferred stock an equal per share cash dividend on an as converted to common stock basis.

In the event of Discovery’s liquidation, dissolution and winding up, after payment or provision for payment of Discovery’s
debts and liabilities and subject to the prior payment with respect to any stock ranking senior to Series A convertible preferred stock or
Series C convertible preferred stock, the holders of Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible preferred stock will
receive, before any payment or distribution is made to the holders of any common stock or other junior stock, an amount (in cash or
property) equal to $0.01 per share. Following payment of such amount and the payment in full of all amounts owing to the holders of
securities ranking senior to Discovery’s common stock, holders of Series A convertible preferred stock and Series C convertible
preferred stock will be entitled to share ratably, on an as-converted to common stock basis, with the holders of Discovery’s common
stock, as to any amounts remaining for distribution to such holders.
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Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes included in the Consolidated Statements of Equity reflects the aggregate of
foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized holding gains and losses on available-for-sale securities and derivatives.

The change in the components of Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes, is summarized as follows (in millions):

Unrealized
Holding
Foreign (Losses) Gains Accumulated
Currency on Securities Other
Translation and Derivative Comprehensive
Adjustments Instruments (Loss) Income
As of December 31, 2006 .....c.ooveeereeeeeeeeeeeeenes $ 15 8 1 $ 16
Other comprehensive income (10ss)................ 8 (7 1
As of December 31, 2007 ......cocvevieieeieieeieeienen. 23 (6) 17
Other comprehensive 10SS .........ccoeeveeverieennnne (59) (25) (84)
Ascent Media Corporation spin-off................ (11) — (11)
As of December 31, 2008 ........cccevveierienieieeeen, (47) 3D (78)
Other comprehensive income.............cecveen.... 27 30 57
As of December 31,2009 ........c.ccooevereeveeeeieereenenne $ (20) $ 1 $ 21)

The components of Other comprehensive (loss) income are reflected in Discovery’s Consolidated Statements of Equity. The
following table summarizes the tax effects related to each component of Other comprehensive (loss) income (in millions).

Tax
Before-tax (Expense) Net-of-tax
Amount Benefit Amount
Year ended December 31, 2007:
Foreign currency translation adjustments................ccccevevevennene, $ 13§ 3 $ 8
Unrealized holding losses on SeCUrities...........cecvevereeriererenennn. (11) 4 7
Other comprehensive INCOME ..........ccvvveveeirierereiriereieeereeeseeeseaesesenns $ 2 3 1 $ 1
Year ended December 31, 2008:
Foreign currency translation adjustments...............cceeeevevevennnn. $ 94) $ 35 % (59)
Unrealized holding losses on securities and derivative
INSTTUITIEIIES vttt e e e s e e e e e e e eeaeee s (38) 13 (25)
Other comprenenSIVE L0SS........cviieveviiieeieieeereeeeeeteeeeee e $ (132) $ 48 $ (84)
Year ended December 31, 2009:
Foreign currency translation adjustments................cccceveveveunene, $ 42 8 (15) $ 27
Unrealized holding gains on securities and derivative
TOSEIUIMIEIES .ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeeane 47 (17) 30
Other comprehensive INCOME ..........covveveviiererieeeeeieeeeereeeeeeesenereenans $ 89 $ 32 $ 57

14. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has various plans it assumed from DCH and DHC in connection with the Newhouse Transaction. Prior to
September 18, 2008, DCH maintained the Discovery Appreciation Plan (the “DAP Plan”), which is a long-term incentive plan under
which eligible employees receive cash-settled unit awards. The DAP Plan continues to exist subsequent to the Newhouse Transaction.
However, the Company does not intend to grant additional cash-settled unit awards, except as may be required by contract or to
employees in countries in which stock option awards are not permitted.

Prior to September 18, 2008, DHC maintained the Discovery Holding Company 2005 Incentive Plan, the Discovery Holding
Company 2005 Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan (collectively the “Incentive Plans”), and the Discovery Holding Company
Transitional Stock Adjustment Plan (the “Transitional Plan”). There are outstanding awards under the Transitional Plan, but the
Company does not have the ability to issue new awards under this plan. The Company grants awards to its employees and
nonemployee directors under the Incentive Plans, which may include stock options, restricted shares, restricted stock units (“RSUs”),
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stock appreciation rights (“SARs”), and cash awards. Most awards previously granted by DHC under these plans that were
outstanding at the time of the Newhouse Transaction were fully vested and were converted into securities of Discovery in connection
with the Newhouse Transaction. The Incentive Plans and the Transitional Plan continue to exist subsequent to the Newhouse
Transaction.

As of December 31, 2009, the Company has reserved a total of 50 million shares of its Series A and Series C common stock for
future exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted shares and RSUs. Upon exercise of stock options or vesting of restricted
shares and RSUs the Company issues new shares from its existing authorized but unissued shares. There were 48 million common
shares available for future grant under the Incentive Plans as of December 31, 2009.

DAP Plan

DAP Plan awards consist of units which represent the right to receive a cash payment for the amount by which the grant price
exceeds the vesting price. The grant price is based on the average closing price of the Company’s common stock over the 10 trading
days immediately preceeding and including the grant date and the 10 trading days immediately following the grant date. The vesting
price is the average closing price at the Company’s common stock over the 10 trading days immediately preceeding and including the
vesting date and the 10 trading days immediately subsequent to the vesting date. For certain awards the average grant price and
average vesting price include a premium. Unit awards vest ratably in increments of 25% per year over four years beginning one year
from the grant date based on continuous service and are generally settled within thirty days of vesting. Unit award holders would not
receive payments or accruals of dividends or dividend equivalents in the event the Company was to pay regular cash dividends while a
unit award is outstanding.

The fair value of each unvested unit award is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following table
presents a summary of the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the fair value of each unvested unit award as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

As of December 31,
2009 2008
Risk-free intereSt Tate.......ccvervieriieiieieeiieieeie e 0.68% 0.56%
Expected term (YEAIS) ...ccveveereierieieeeieiieieeieeaeseenieeseseeseresneenseeneeens 1.08 1.38
Expected VOLatility .......cccevverieeiieiieceere et 38.80% 37.89%

Dividend Yield .....cocveeiiiierieieeeeeee e e — —

The weighted-average fair value of unit awards outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $15.53 and $1.62,
respectively.

A summary of the unit awards activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is presented below (in millions, except price and
years).

Weighted-Average

Remaining
Unit Weighted-Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Awards Grant Price (years) Intrinsic Value
Unvested as of December 31, 2008 ....................... 200 $ 18.95
Granted........c.ocveveeereiriieieieeete e, 1.8 $ 16.48
VESted...oouieiieiieiecieeeeee e, 7.7 $ 17.53 $ 63
Forfeited .......coooovveieiieicieieeeeeeeeee e, 1.7 3 19.79
Unvested as of December 31, 2009 ....................... 124§ 19.36 1.08 $ 176
Expected to vest as of December 31, 2009............ 11.7 3 19.37 1.08 § 166

During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 the Company made cash payments totaling $58 million and $49 million,
respectively, to settle vested unit awards. In January 2010, approximately two million unit awards vested requiring a payment of
$34 million in the first quarter of 2010. As of December 31, 2009, there was $89 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of
estimated forfeitures, related to unvested unit awards, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.08
years.

Incentive Plans

The Company has issued stock options, SARs, and RSUs under its Incentive Plans, which are disclosed below.
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Stock Options

Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to or in excess of the closing market price of the Company’s common
stock on the date of grant. Generally, stock options vest ratably either in 33 '/3% increments each year over three years or in 25%
increments each year over four years beginning one year from the grant date based on continuous service and expire three to ten years
from the date of grant. Certain stock option awards provide for accelerated vesting upon an election to retire pursuant to the Incentive
Plans or after reaching a specified age and years of service. Option holders would not receive payments or accruals of dividends or
dividend equivalents in the event the Company was to pay regular cash dividends while a unit award is outstanding.

The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following
table presents a summary of the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the fair value of each option on the date of grant
during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
RiSK-free iNterest Tate .....cueeevviiiiiieiiieciieeiee ettt 1.70% 3.15% 4.57%
EXpected term (YEAIS)...cvevvieireeieeiierieereeieseeseesteeveseeesseeseeseesnesseenseens 3.71 6.05 5.50
Expected VOIAtility.......cccvieveeieriieieeie ettt 45.60% 39.32% 25.50%

Dividend Yield .......cooiiviieiieiieiecieeee e — — —

The weighted-average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was
$6.45, $6.11, and $6.43, respectively, per option.

A summary of option activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is presented below (in millions, except price and years).

Weighted-Average

Remaining
Weighted-Average Contractual Term Aggregate
Options Exercise Price (years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2008.................. 109 $ 14.47
Granted .........oovveveevieeieieeeeeeeee e 97 $ 17.68
EXEICISEd ..o, 27N $ 14.11 $ 25
Forfeited ......ooovovvieiieieeiieiceceeeeeeeeeee e 0.7) § 15.16
Outstanding as of December 31, 2009.................. 172 $ 16.31 575§ 247
Expected to vest as of December 31, 2009........... 16.6 $ 16.32 6.05 § 237
Exercisable as of December 31, 2009................... 24 % 14.28 7.18 $ 39

During the year ended December 31, 2009 the Company received cash payments totaling $28 million from the exercise of stock
options. There were no significant option exercises during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. As of December 31, 2009,
there was $68 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of expected forfeitures, related to unvested stock options, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.65 years.

Stock Appreciation Rights

SARs entitle the holder to receive a cash payment for the amount by which the price of the Company’s common stock exceeds
the base price establish on the grant date. SARs are granted with a base price equal to or greater than the closing market price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Most outstanding SARs consist of two separate vesting tranches with the first tranche
that vested 100% on March 15, 2009 and the second tranche vesting 100% on March 15, 2010. Vesting is based on continuous service.
Holders can exercise the first tranche of SARs at their election until they expire one year from the date of vesting. The payment to
settle exercises of the first tranche of SARs is based on the amount by which the price of the Company’s common stock at exercise
exceeds the base price establish on the grant date. All SARs in the second tranche will be automatically exercised as of March 15,
2010. The payment to settle exercises of the second tranche of SARs is based on the amount by which the twenty day average closing
price of the Company’s common stock as of the vest date exceeds the base price establish on the grant date.
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The fair value of each unvested SAR is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The following table presents a
summary of the weighted-average assumptions used to determine the fair value of each unvested SAR as of December 31, 2009 and
2008.

Years ended December 31,

2009 2008
Risk-free iNterest rate .........ocvevireierierieri et 0.23% 0.37%
Expected term (YEArS) ....ccveevveerierierieriienieeie e eeeneeeee e seeesseeneeeneens 0.27 1.20
Expected VOLatility .....ccocveeveeieeiieiieieee e 26.95% 39.89%

Dividend yield........ccoeiieiieiieiee e — —
The weighted-average fair value of SARs outstanding as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $16.25 and $2.39, respectively.
A summary of the SAR activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 is presented below (in millions, except price and years).

Weighted-Average

Remaining
Weighted-Average Contractual Term Aggregate
SARs Grant Price (years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2008................... 55 % 14.40
Granted .........oooooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 07 $ 14.79
EXEICISEd ...vvvvieeeveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 25 $ 14.42 $ 23
Forfeited ......ooovivveieieiiiieeeeeeeeee e 0.6) $ 14.34
Outstanding as of December 31, 2009................... 31§ 14.48 027 $ 50
Expected to vest as of December 31, 2009............ 29 $ 14.48 027 $ 47
Exercisable as of December 31, 2009.................... 05 $ 14.47 020 $ 8

During the year ended December 31, 2009 the Company made cash payments totaling $23 million to settle vested SARs. As of
December 31, 2009 there was $4 million of unrecognized compensation cost, net of estimated forfeitures, related to unvested SARs,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.28 years.

Restricted Stock Units

The Company issued an insignificant number of RSUs during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. Certain RSUs vest
over a period of one to four years in equal annual installments based on continuous service. Vesting of certain RSUs is also subject to
satisfying operating performance conditions.

Share-Based Compensation Expense (Benefit)

The following table presents a summary of shared-based compensation expense and the related tax expense, by award type,
recognized by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Stock options and RSUS ........ccoeviieriiiiieiiieiciiieeeteieee et seeis $ 23 $ 4 3 1
SARS .ttt bbbttt 61 4 —
DAP UNIt @WATS.......eouiiiiiiiiniinieneeecetet ettt 143 (78) —
(1515, SRR 1 4 —
Total share-based compensation expense (benefit) ..........ccoeevevvereecreenennen. $ 228 $ (66) $ 1
Tax (benefit) expense recoZNIZEd. .........evververeereieeeeeieieieieiee e $ (80) $ 24 $ —

Compensation expense for all share-based awards is recorded as a component of Selling, general and administrative in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company has recorded total liabilities of $143
million and $20 million, respectively, for outstanding DAP award units and SARs. The Company classifies as a current liability the
intrinsic value of DAP unit awards and SARs that are vested or will become vested within one year. The intrinsic value of DAP unit
awards and SARs that were classified as a current liability at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was $115 million and $5 million,
respectively.
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15. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLANS
Defined Contribution Plans

Discovery has certain domestic and international defined contribution savings plans. Under the plans, employees may elect to
contribute a portion of their eligible compensation, subject to certain statutory limitations. The Company pays a discretionary
matching contribution up to a certain percentage of the participant’s eligible compensation depending on the terms of the plan. The
Company paid matching contributions of $15 million, $12 million, and $3 million during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008,
and 2007, respectively, which is classified as a component of Selling, general and administrative in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Supplemental Retirement Plan

The Company administers the Supplemental Retirement Plan (the “SRP”’) through which members of the Company’s
management team may elect to defer for contribution to the SRP up to 50% of their compensation. A Rabbi Trust has been established
to hold and provide a measure of security for the investments that finance benefit payments. Distributions from the SRP are made
upon retirement, termination, death, or total disability.

SRP obligations due to participants totaled $37 million at December 31, 2009, which is included in Accrued liabilities in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. SRP obligations increased by $1 million during the year ended December 31, 2009,
consisting of participant compensation deferrals of $7 million, Company contributions of $1 million and investment gains of $2
million, offset by $9 million of distributions.

The Company maintains investment assets in a Rabbi Trust to offset the obligations under the SRP. Such investments are
recorded at fair value as a component of Other current assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Discovery records gains or losses
from the change in fair value of trading securities, offset by gains or losses from changes in the value of the supplemental retirement
plan liability, as a component of Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The value
of the investments in the Rabbi Trust was $37 million at December 31, 2009. Investment gains were $2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

16. RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s restructuring charges expensed, by segment, for the year ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008

LS. NEEWOTKS ...ttt reev e ere e eneeneenean $ 17 $ 21
International NetWOTKS .........coooviiiiiiieeeeie e 10 2
Commerce, Education, and Other ..............cocveiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeee e 2 6
COTPOTALE. ...eouvieeniieetie ettt ettt ettt e st e st e st e sateesabeesabeesabeesaneens 5 2
Total exit and restructuring charges ...........cecceeeereereererie e $ 34§ 31

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s exit and restructuring charges that were expensed, by major category,
for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008
Contract termination COSES........ceririruriririeiririereireeretseeeeseseeseseeeseseseesesesennns $ 583 7
Employee relocation/terminations..............cevvereereeeseeeeeneeneeseeiesnesnenenes 29 22
ASSCt IMPAITINECIL ...e.vveevieieeeieeiiesiiesteesteeeesteseeesseeseeseeseesseeseenseessessaesseenses — 2
Total exit and restructuring charges ...........cecceeeereereereree e $ 34§ 31
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The following table presents a summary of changes in the Company’s liability with respect to exit and restructuring charges
during years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (in millions).

Employee
Contract Relocations/
Termination Costs Terminations Total
Liability as of January 1, 2008..........ccccovveeirirrerenienennn, $ —  § 11 3 11
NEt ACCIUALS ..o, 7 22 29
Cash Paid .....ccoveeiieiiiieeeeee e (1 (15) (16)
Liabilities as of December 31, 2008 .......c.covveeveeeveeveenennn, $ 6 $ 18 $ 24
NEt aCCIUALS ..o 5 29 34
Cash Paid .....cccveeiieieieeeee e 3) (29) (32)
Liabilities as of December 31,2009 ......cccoveeveeveereeennnn, $ 8 3 18 3 26

The Company reorganized portions of its operations to better align its organizational structure with the Company’s strategic
priorities and to reduce its cost structure, which resulted in exit and restructuring charges primarily for changes in management
structure and employee terminations. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, exit and restructuring related accruals expected to be paid
within one year totaling $18 million were classified as a component of Accrued liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The
Company does not expect to incur a significant amount of additional costs with respect to these particular activities.

17. INCOME TAXES

The Company’s income tax expense is as follows (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Current:
FOACTAL .ottt et ettt et eae e $ 389 $ 84 $ —
] 721 TR RSRORT 41 15 —
FOT@IGN.....ciiiiiiiii e 57 73 —
487 172 —
Deferred:
Federal ........oooiiiieeeeeee e ©) 158 50
SEALE .. 3) 24 6
FOT@IGN......ciiiiiei ettt 3) 2) —
(15) 180 56
Provision fOr MCOME TAXES .......ccvvievieeeeieeeeeeeeeeee ettt eee e $ 472 $ 352 $ 56
Components of pretax income are as follows (in millions).
Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
DIOMNESTIC ©vvveei ittt ettt ettt et eaeeaeseteereeeee e e s eaaeersesaeesaeennean $ 744 $ 582 $ 142
FOT@IGN ..veivvieiii ettt ettt ree e et e e b e esseessesteenseensens 287 172 —

§ 1,031 $ 754 $ 142

98



The effective income tax rate differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 35% as a result
of the following.

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Computed expected federal taX eXpense ..........cceeeevueerierieeiienienienieeenens 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income taxes, net of federal income taxes........................ 2.0% 2.0% 5.0%
Change in valuation allowance affecting tax expense...........cccceevereennnn (1.0)% (4.0)% (1.0)%
Effect of foreign operations...........ceceecvevevienienenienineneeeereeereneneese e, — 3.0% —
DHC tax on equity method investment in DCH............cccoeoiiiiieiinnnn — 12.0% —
Domestic manufacturing deduction..............cceveeerierieciieienieneee e 2.0)% (1.0)% —
Non-deductible gOOdWill..........cccvroierieiieiieieeeee e, 11.0% — —
(O34 1S) S 1< SRR 1.0% — —
Effective INCOME taX Tate.......c.ceeeiuieriieiieieiie ettt 46.0% 47.0% 39.0%
Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in millions):
As of
December 31,
2009 2008
Current assets:
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ........vvieiievieiietceceetceceeee et $ 7 3 12
Tax attribute carryforward...........ccoooevierierieeeeeee e 10 11
Accrued liabilities and other..........ccccoeoieiiriiienee e 64 33
81 56
Noncurrent assets:
Tax attribute carryforward............ccoeevieierierieiieecie e 60 65
Foreign currency translations ...........c..cceeverreerieecienieseenieenieseeseeeseeeneenns 7 23
Unrealized 10SS 0N derivatives ........cc.eeeerieriieciieieeieseeie e sie e 7 26
LoNG LIV @SSELS .vviiveiieiiiieiiete ettt seesbeebe e e 16 9
Accrued liabilities and Other............coccoiiiiiiiieieeee e 85 56
175 179
Total deferred tax aSSELS........ecueeeirieriee ettt 256 235
Valuation allOWANCE.........eecviiiiieeiieciieeie et eeee et e sveestr e veestee e saeetaeesaeenseas (22) (32)
Net deferred tax aSSELS ......eeieiererererieeteee ettt 234 203
Current liabilities:
Other HabIlIties ....cveevveeiieieeiecie ettt se e e 4) 2)
Noncurrent liabilities:
INtANGIDIE ASSELS.....vecvieiietieiieetierieeie ettt eee et ste e enbeeesessaenrees (128) (138)
CONtENt TIGNTS ..vvieevieeiieiieieeieee et be e e (178) (230)
Unrealized gain on inVEStMENTS..........ccvevvieiereerieeieeeeeeenieereeveeenesseeneen, (15) (20)
Equity method inVeStment ............c.eecveeierierieenieeie e a7 —
Notes receivable from Hasbro ..........ccccevveviieciincienienieeeie e 21) —
L@ 13 1 < OSSPSR (14) (10)
(433) (398)
Total deferred tax HabIlities .........ccccveiiciieeiiieiiieciie e (437) (400)
Net deferred tax Habilities ..........cooveieieieiieieieeceeeee e § (203 $ (@197
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The Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are reported in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows (in
millions):

As of
December 31,
2009 2008
Current deferred tax asset, net of current liabilities...........coovvviivvvviiivinieiiiieeenns $ 71 % 49
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities, net of noncurrent deferred tax assets.......... (274) (246)
Net deferred tax Habilities ........c.cvvveieirieiiririeieececeeee e $§ (203 $ (@197

Discovery’s 2009 effective tax rate differed from the federal income tax rate of 35% due primarily to a permanent difference on
the $252 million gain from the sale and deconsolidation of our ownership interest in Discovery Kids in May 2009, state income taxes
and to a lesser extent, deductions for domestic production activities.

As of December 31, 2009 the Company has federal operating loss carryforwards of $89 million that begin to expire in 2022;
foreign tax credit carryforwards of $28 million that begin to expire in 2018; and state operating loss carryforwards of $331 million in
various state jurisdictions that begin to expire in 2013. The deferred tax asset related to the state operating loss carryforwards of $11
million is subject to a valuation allowance of $10 million. The use of the federal operating loss carryforwards are subject to annual
limitations.

Discovery’s 2008 effective tax rate differed from the federal income tax rate of 35% primarily due to DHC’s recognition of $91
million of deferred tax expense related to its investment in DCH during the period prior to the completion of the Newhouse
Transaction, which was partially offset by the release of an $18 million valuation allowance on deferred tax assets of CSS and the
release of a $10 million valuation allowance on deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards of AMC. Other items
affecting the 2008 effective tax rate include the conversion from deducting foreign taxes to claiming foreign tax credits and
unrecognized foreign tax positions.

In accordance with ASC 810, DHC and DCH are combined in Discovery’s financial statements as if the Newhouse Transaction
had occurred January 1, 2008. This presentation impacts Discovery’s effective tax rate for the year. Prior to the Newhouse
Transaction, DHC’s book basis in DCH was increased by its share of DCH’s net income. However, DHC’s tax basis in DCH remained
the same. This book vs. tax difference required the recognition of a deferred tax expense of $91 million related to DHC’s investment
in DCH (in addition to the tax expense already recognized by DCH prior to the Newhouse Transaction). As a result of the Newhouse
Transaction, the $1.3 billion deferred tax liability relating to the book vs. tax difference in DHC’s basis in its investment in DCH was
reversed to additional paid-in capital.

Pursuant to the Tax Sharing Agreement relating to the Newhouse Transaction, the Company and AMC have each assumed
certain tax liabilities and have indemnified one another for certain tax payments. As of December 31, 2008, the Company received
$17 million from AMC and recorded a $17 million payable under the Tax Sharing Agreement. During 2009, Discovery repaid $5
million to AMC as a result of filing the 2008 tax return, thereby reducing the amount due to AMC to $12 million. The Company will
be required to repay AMC for such payments if and when it realizes the future benefit of the certain tax assets that arose prior to the
Newhouse Transaction.

In 2008, the Company concluded that it would be more beneficial to claim foreign tax credits than to deduct foreign income
taxes on its 2008 federal income tax return based on a combination of current results and revised expectations about future earnings.
The net effect of the conversion from claiming foreign tax credits instead of taking foreign tax deductions was a $24 million benefit in
2008.
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Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the 2009 and 2008 beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits (without related interest
amounts) is as follows (in millions):

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008

Beginning balanCe ............ccooveuiuieveriieeieeieeeeeeeeeee et $ 74 5 —
Newhouse TTanSaCtION ........cccevuerieririririnieieiererese ettt st eenene — 89
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year..........c.cccoeeeeveeruennnne. 2 1
Additions for tax positions Of Prior YEArS.........cceeeuerierieerierieerrereenieeeeseeseeeneeenns 2 10
Reductions for tax positions Of Prior YEAars.........cceceeeververierieeierieseeseeseeeaesnenns (6) ®)
SEUICIMENLS ...ttt ettt et e et esseeseesseesseenseenseesaesseenseensens ) (11)
Reductions as result of statute 1apse........c.eevereeeieriieiieiieece e (1) —
Additions for foreign currency exchange rates .........cceevvereeriervereeneereeseeseenneenns 1 )
ENdiNg DALANCE .......ocviviivieiiciceieeeeetee ettt $ 71 $ 74

DHC had no unrecognized tax benefit as of December 31, 2007. As of January 1, 2009, the Company’s unrecognized tax benefit
(excluding related interest expense) was $74 million. The balance decreased by $3 million (excluding related interest expense) during
the year ended December 31, 2009 to $71 million. The reduction for tax positions of prior years was primarily a result of a
determination that certain revenues were not subject to non-U.S. income tax.

The year end 2009 and 2008 balances include $53 million and $49 million of unrecognized tax benefits, respectively, that if
recognized, would reduce our income tax expense and effective tax rate after giving effect to interest deductions and offsetting
benefits from other tax jurisdictions.

Discovery and its subsidiaries file U.S. federal, state, and foreign income tax returns. With few exceptions, the Company is no
longer subject to audit by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), state tax authorities, or non-U.S. tax authorities for years prior to
2006. The IRS is not currently examining Discovery. Some of the Company’s joint ventures are currently under examination for the
2006 tax year. The Company does not expect any significant adjustments.

It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits related to tax positions could decrease by as much as
$48 million within the next twelve months as a result of settlement of audit issues and/or payment of uncertain tax liabilities. Included
in the balance at December 31, 2009 are $8 million of tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which
there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, other than interest and
penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the
payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company’s policy is to classify tax interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as tax expense. As of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company had accrued approximately $9 million and $8 million of total interest payable related to
uncertain tax positions, respectively. During 2009 and 2008, the Company accrued additional interest of $1 million and $4 million,
respectively.

Subsequent to December 31, 2009, the Company was notified by a tax authority that certain tax years will not be adjusted and,
as a result, the $48 million liability for uncertain tax positions discussed above will be favorably reduced by $28 million in the first
quarter of 2010. The reduction will be treated as a discrete event in the first quarter of 2010.

18. NET INCOME PER SHARE AVAILABLE TO DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. STOCKHOLDERS

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of shares outstanding for the
years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 includes Discovery’s Series A, B, and C common shares, as well as Discovery’s Series A
and C convertible preferred shares. All series of our common and preferred shares are included in the weighted average number of
shares outstanding when calculating both basic and diluted income per share as the holder of each common and preferred series legally
participate equally in any per share distributions whether through dividends or in liquidation.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares outstanding between basic and diluted
net income per share.

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic .........cccceccervereerieneennnnns 423 321 281
Dilutive effect of equity aWards...........cocieiiieiirieiieeeeeeeee e 2 1 —
Weighted average number of shares outstanding — diluted...........c.ccevverririennennenn, 425 322 281

Diluted net income per share adjusts basic net income per share for the dilutive effects of stock options, restricted stock units,
and stock settled stock appreciation rights, only in the periods in which such effect is dilutive. The net income per share calculation for
the year ended December 31, 2009 excludes approximately one million of contingently issuable preferred shares placed in escrow for
which specific conditions have not yet been met. There were no contingently issuable preferred shares placed in escrow for which
specific conditions have not yet been met during the year ended December 31, 2008.

19. VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

The following table presents a summary of the Company’s valuation and qualifying accounts during the years ended
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 (in millions).

Newhouse
Beginning Transaction Other End
of Year (a) Additions Write-offs Utilization (b) of Year
2009:
Allowance for
doubtful accounts... $ 16 $ — 3 4 3 ©6) $ — 3 1 $ 15
Deferred tax valuation
allowance............... 32 — 1 (11) — 22
2008:
Allowance for
doubtful accounts... — 18 6 4 — 4) 16
Deferred tax valuation
allowance............... 34 10 22 3) 31 — 32
2007:
Allowance for
doubtful accounts... — — 1 (1) — — —
Deferred tax valuation
allowance............... 35 — 3 — 4) — 34

(a) Amounts represent DCH balances as of December 31, 2007 recorded by Discovery as of January 1, 2008 in connection with the
Newhouse Transaction disclosed in Note 1.
(b) Amounts primarily include foreign currency translation adjustments.
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20. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Cash Flows

The following tables present a summary of cash payments made and received (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007

Cash payments made for interest eXpense ..........coecvreeeeeerreeeeeeeeensn, § (43§ (258 § —
Cash payments received for interest income(a) .........occeeeeeeverveneeennn 1 7 11
Cash interest payments, NEt ..........coeeeererieieienieierie e, $ (42) $§ (@251 $ 11
Cash payments made for income taxes(b) ...........ccoveveveevrveirerereeenenes, $ 445 $ (1H $§ —
Cash payments received for income tax refunds...........ccccevevevvenninnnnns 1 17 —
Cash taX PAYMENLS, NEL ..........c.cevevereeiereieeeeeeeeeee e ee e eaeans $ 444 3 (1% § —

(a) Cash payments received for interest income includes $5 million and $11 million in payments received by discontinued
operations during the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

(b) Cash payments made for income taxes include $17 million in payments made by discontinued operations during the year ended
December 31, 2008. There were no material income taxes paid by discontinued operations during the year ended December 31,
2007.

The Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows exclude approximately $61 million, $63 million, and $6 million of equipment
purchases that were acquired under capital lease arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The AMC assets and liabilities related to the spin-off, except cash, are also excluded as this was a non-cash transaction.

Accrued Liabilities

The following table presents a detailed list of accrued liabilities (in millions).

As of
December 31,
2009 2008

Accrued liabilities:

Accrued payroll and related benefits ..........ccooevveviiiecieiiieiiiiecceeeceee $§ 199 § 176

Content rights Payable ........cc.eoiiiieiieieeie e 50 53

ACCTUEA INCOME TAXES....cuvieiriieiieerieeree et e ereesreesreesebeesareestseesareessseenseeennes 38 —

ACCTUCA INTETEST......viierieeeiieciieere ettt eeiteeeteeetr e e e teeesaeeesteeeteeesreeeteeeneeenes 25 19

ACCTUEA ONET ..ot 82 102
Total acCrtued HADIIIES .......vevvieieeeeeceeeeeee ettt et $ 394 § 350

Interest Expense, Net

The following table presents a summary of interest income earned and interest expenses (in millions).

Years Ended
December 31,
2009 2008 2007
INEETESt INCOME(A).....viveveveeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeee ettt ee e ee s $ 1S 28 —
INEEIEST EXPEIISE .evvivierieiieeteeeteeeesteesteeteeaeeeeesteebeesseessesseesseessaessesnnas (251) (258) —
Total interest EXPENSE, NEL......cueviveveeeerereeieiereeeeeereeeeeeteeeerereee et $ (250) $ (256) $§ —

(a) Interest income excludes $5 million and $11 million in interest income from discontinued operations during the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Other Non-Operating Income (Expense), Net

The following table presents a summary of the components of Other non-operating income (expense), net (in millions).

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net (Note 11)............... $ 26 $ (22) $ —
Realized losses on derivative instruments, net (Note 11) ......cccoeeevevvereennnns (6) ® —
Realized gains on sales of INVEStMENTS ..........ccecveriieciieieiieieeie e 15 — —
Reduction of liability to HSWi shareholders ............cccceoeiiiiiiiiniiiiie, — 47 —
Equity in earnings (loss) of unconsolidated affiliates (Note 4)..........ccccoc...... 8 (61) —
OHET, NET ..outiiiiieiiciecie ettt be e saeesbe e beesbeeaseessessneens 3 2) 8
Total other non-operating income (€XPeNSe), NE ......c.cvevrvvererreeereereeerinenen, $ 46 $ 47) $ 8

In 2009, the Company sold investments for $24 million, which resulted in a pretax gain of $15 million. Approximately
$6 million of unrealized pretax gains were reclassified from Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income. During the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, AMC, which is reported as discontinued operations, sold investments for $24 million and $28 million,
respectively. There were no gains or losses associated with these sales.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Company recorded a $47 million gain due to the reduction of a liability related to
the value of shares in HSWI to be exchanged to its former shareholders. Additional information is included in Note 6.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into transactions with related parties as described below.

The DirecTV Group, Inc., Liberty Media Corporation, and Liberty Global, Inc.

The Company’s Board of Directors includes two members that currently serve as directors of The DirecTV Group, Inc.
(“DirecTV”), including John C. Malone, the Chairman of the Board of DirecTV, three persons who are currently directors of Liberty
Media Corporation (“Liberty Media”), including Mr. Malone, the Chairman of the Board of Liberty Media, and three members who
serve as directors of Liberty Global, Inc. (“Liberty Global”), also including Mr. Malone, who is Chairman of the Board of Liberty
Global. Mr. Malone beneficially owns stock of Liberty Media representing approximately 35% of the aggregate voting power of its
outstanding stock, owns shares representing approximately 40% of the aggregate voting power of Liberty Global, and owns shares
representing approximately 23% of the aggregate voting power (other than with respect to the election of the common stock directors)
of Discovery’s outstanding stock. Mr. Malone controls approximately 32% of the Company’s aggregate voting power relating to the
election of the eight common stock directors, assuming that the preferred stock held by Advance/Newhouse has not been converted
into shares of Discovery’s common stock. As a result of this common directorship and ownership, transactions with DirecTV, Liberty
Media, and Liberty Global, and their subsidiaries and equity method investees may be considered related party transactions. The
majority of the amounts received under contractual arrangements with DirecTV, Liberty Global, and Liberty Media entities relate to
multi-year network distribution arrangements and network services. Revenues under these arrangements include annual rate increases
and are based on the number of subscribers receiving the related programming.

Ascent Media Corporation

AMC, previously a wholly-owned subsidiary of DHC, was considered a related party through September 17, 2008. As a result
of the AMC Spin-off (refer to Notes 1 and 5), AMC ceased to be a related party effective September 18, 2008. AMC provides
services, such as satellite uplink, systems integration, origination, and post-production, to Discovery. Revenue recorded by AMC for
these services for the period January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008 and for the year ended December 31, 2007 totaled $37
million and $41 million, respectively. These revenues are reported as a component of discontinued operations and are excluded from
the revenue amounts in the table below. AMC continues to provide services to Discovery subsequent to the AMC Spin-off that are
believed to be at fair market rates. Operating costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008 include disbursements of $39
million that DCH made to AMC during the period January 1, 2008 through September 17, 2008, which are included in the cost and
expense amounts in the below table.
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Other Related Parties

Other related parties include the Discovery Japan, Inc. and Discovery Channel Canada joint ventures, through which the
Company distributes certain of its networks and provides content.

The following table presents a summary of balances related to transactions with related parties during the years ended December
31,2009, 2008 and 2007 (in millions).

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007

REVEINUES: ...ttt sttt sttt e b e et e s

DirecTV, Liberty Global, and Liberty Media ...........cccoevirierieiieieiesieeee e $ 238§ 188 § —

(1515, SRS 23 44 —
TOLAL -ttt ettt ettt et h et a bt et e bt bt ebeene st et neenteneens $ 261 $ 232§ —
Operating COStS ANd EXPEISES: . cvvirvierierertierteesteestestestesseesseesesseesseesseessesssesssessaessesssesssessens

DirecTV, Liberty Global, and Liberty Media ............cocoereverereeeeieeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeene, $ 38 4 3 —

OLRET .ttt bbbttt b e bt e b et es 5 56
TOUAL 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt s ettt bbb b sttt s sttt b bbbttt s sttt s s s bbb $ 8 3 60 $

The following table presents a summary of outstanding balances from transactions with related parties as of December 31, 2009
and 2008 (in millions).
As of December 31,

2009 2008
ACCOUNLES TECEIVADIE ...ttt e e ae e ae e e st eeae e e e e eeeseesaeeeneeeeeeeneeeennes $ 51 % 55

The accounts receivable balances as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 were primarily related to those of DirecTV and Liberty
Global and their respective affiliates and equity method investments. Amounts owed to the Company’s related parties were not
significant as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.

22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company and its subsidiaries lease offices, satellite transponders, and certain equipment under capital and operating lease
arrangements. The following table summarizes the Company’s material firm commitments excluding capital lease obligations (refer to
Note 10) as of December 31, 2009 (in millions):

Year Ending December 31,

Future Minimum Payments Leases Content Other Total

2070ttt et et e e et st esabee s baennbeens $ 70§ 238 $ 128 § 436
20T L ettt et e e et et e et e e taeentee s 56 67 79 202
2002 ettt et ettt et e et e taeentee s 49 44 42 135
203 e ettt et e ettt e e bt e e taeentae s 40 42 31 113
20Tttt et st eesabeesebaennaeens 30 — 26 56
TRETEATTET ... 92 — 139 231
] PSSP $ 337§ 391 $ 445 § 1,173

The Company has long-term noncancelable lease commitments for office space and equipment, studio facilities, transponders,
vehicles and operating equipment. Expenses recorded in connection with operating leases, including rent expense were $85 million,
$121 million and $8 million, for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Content commitments of the
Company not recorded on the balance sheet include obligations relating to programming development, programming production and
programming acquisitions and talent contracts. Other commitments include obligations to purchase goods and services, employment
contracts, sponsorship agreements and transmission services. A majority of such fees are payable over several years, as part of the
normal course of business.
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In addition to the amounts disclosed above, the Company has agreed to fund the operations of certain ventures on an as needed
basis (Note 4), has agreed to provide additional consideration to the former shareholders of HSW if certain criteria are achieved (Note
6), and may be required to issue additional shares of its preferred stock under the anti-dilution provisions of its outstanding preferred
stock (Note 13).

In the normal course of business, the Company has pending claims and legal proceedings. It is the opinion of the Company’s
management, based on information available at this time, that none of the current claims and proceedings will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of customers and counterparties engage in similar activities or have similar
economic characteristics that make them susceptible to similar changes in industry conditions, which could affect their ability to meet
their contractual obligations. The increasing consolidation of the financial services industry will increase our concentration risk to
counterparties in this industry, and we will become more reliant on a smaller number of institutional counterparties, which both
increases our risk exposure to any individual counterparty and decreases our negotiating leverage with these counterparties. Based on
our assessment of business conditions that could impact our financial results, we have determined that none of the Company’s
customers or counterparties represent significant concentrations of credit risk.

Derivatives Counterparties

The risk associated with a derivative transaction is that a counterparty will default on payments due to us. If there is a default,
we may have to acquire a replacement derivative from a different counterparty at a higher cost or may be unable to find a suitable
replacement. Our derivative credit exposure relates principally to interest rate derivative contracts. Typically, we seek to manage these
exposures by contracting with experienced counterparties that are investment grade-rated. These counterparties consist of large
financial institutions that have a significant presence in the derivatives market.

Lender Counterparties

The risk associated with a debt transaction is that a counterparty will not be available to fund as obligated under the terms of our
revolver facility. If funding under committed lines of credit are unavailable, we may have to acquire a replacement credit facility from
a different counterparty at a higher cost or may be unable to find a suitable replacement. Typically, we seek to manage these exposures
by contracting with experienced large financial institutions and monitoring the credit quality of our lenders.

The Company manages its exposure to derivative and lender counterparties by continually monitoring its positions with, and the
credit quality of, the financial institutions that are counterparties to its financial instruments and does not anticipate nonperformance
by the counterparties.

Customers

The Company’s trade receivables do not represent a significant concentration of credit risk as of December 31, 2009 due to the
wide variety of customers and markets in which the Company operates and their dispersion across many geographic areas.

23. REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

The Company has three reportable segments: U.S. Networks, consisting principally of domestic cable and satellite television
network programming, web brands, and other digital services; International Networks, consisting principally of international cable and
satellite television network programming; and Commerce, Education, and Other, consisting principally of e-commerce, catalog, sound
production, and domestic licensing businesses. The Company has aggregated certain operating segments into reportable segments.

Prior to the Newhouse Transaction and related AMC spin-off (refer to Note 1), DHC had three reportable segments: Creative
Services Group, which provided various technical and creative services necessary to complete principal photography into final
products such as films, trailers, shows, and other media; Network Services Group, which provided the facilities and services necessary
to assemble and distribute programming content for cable and broadcast networks; and DCH, as a significant equity method investee.
In connection with the Newhouse Transaction, DHC spun-off its interest in AMC, which included the Creative Services Group
segment, except for CSS, and the Network Services Group segment. The discontinued operations of the Creative Services Group and
Network Services Group segments have been excluded from the reportable segment information presented below.

The CSS business, which remained with Discovery subsequent to the Newhouse Transaction and AMC spin-off, is included in
the Commerce, Education, and Other segment. In accordance with ASC 810, the financial results of both DHC and DCH have been
combined in Discovery’s financial statements as if the Newhouse Transaction occurred January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the Commerce,
Education, and Other segment information includes amounts for CSS since January 1, 2008.
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting
policies, except that certain inter-segment transactions that are eliminated at the consolidated level are not eliminated at the segment
level as they are treated similar to third-party sales transactions in determining segment performance. Inter-segment transactions
primarily include the purchase of advertising and content between segments. Inter-segment transactions are not material to the periods
presented. The Company evaluates the operating performance of its segments based on financial measures such as revenues and
adjusted operating income before depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted OIBDA”). Adjusted OIBDA is defined as revenues less
costs of revenues and selling, general and administrative expenses excluding: (i) mark-to-market share-based compensation,

(i1) depreciation and amortization, (iii) amortization of deferred launch incentives, (iv) exit and restructuring charges, (v) impairment
charges, and (vi) gains (losses) on business and asset dispositions. The Company uses this measure to assess operating results and
performance of its segments, perform analytical comparisons, identify strategies to improve performance and allocate resources to
each segment. The Company believes Adjusted OIBDA is relevant to investors because it allows them to analyze the operating
performance of each segment using the same metric management uses and also provides investors a measure to analyze the operating
performance of each segment against historical data. The Company excludes mark-to-market share-based compensation, exit and
restructuring charges, impairment charges, and gains (losses) on business and asset dispositions from the calculation of Adjusted
OIBDA due to their volatility or non-recurring nature. The Company also excludes the amortization of deferred launch incentive
payments because these payments are infrequent and the amortization does not represent cash payments in the current reporting
period. Because Adjusted OIBDA is a non-GAAP measure, it should be considered in addition to, but not a substitute for, operating
income, net income, cash flow provided by operating activities and other measures of financial performance reported in accordance
with U.S. GAAP.

The Company’s reportable segments are determined based on (i) financial information reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM?”), the Chief Executive Officer, (ii) internal management and related reporting structure, and (iii) the basis upon which
the CODM makes resource allocation decisions.

The following tables present summarized financial information for each of the Company’s reportable segments (in millions).

Revenues by Segment

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
LS. NEEWOTKS. vttt et et e et e e et e et et e e et eneeeeaeeaenes $ 2,142 § 2062 $ —
International NetWOTKS .......coovvuuiiiiiiiiiieee e 1,189 1,158 —
Commerce, Education, and Other...........cccoovveiiiiieiiiiiieeeee e 176 196 76
Corporate and inter-segment eliminations ............cccccevveeeerieniereeeeneeneen. 9 27 —
TOLAL TEVENUES. ...ttt et eeee e e e eeeeeeeeeaeenen $ 3,516 $§ 3443 § 76

There were no material intersegment transactions during the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.

Adjusted OIBDA by Segment

Years Ended December 31,
2009 2008 2007
LS. NEEWOTKS .ttt ettt et et et e e et eneee et eneneene $ 1,196 § 1,111 $ —
International Networks ...........c.c.coeevveeennee. 450 387 —
Commerce, Education, and Other 22 13 3
Corporate and inter-segment eliminations..........cccceeeueveeneeneesieneeneennen. (204) (201) ®)
Total adjusted OIBDA ..........cooveuieriieeietieeeeteeeteeteee ettt $§ 1464 § 1,310 § %)
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Reconciliation of Total Adjusted OIBDA to Total Operating Income (Loss)

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
Total adjusted OIBDA ...........coveiivieetiieeeeeteeeeee ettt $§ 1464 § 1,310 $ (%)
Amortization of deferred launch incentives..........c.cccceevveviveciieciieienieennen. (55) (75) —
Mark-to-market shared-based compensation............ccccceevevvierieveneennen. (205) 69 (1)
Depreciation and amortization..............cceeveevveeveeeeeseenreesreereeeeereesreenens (155) (186) 3)
Restructuring and impairment charges .............ceceeeereerenereneneseeeenne (66) (61) —
Gains 0N diSPOSILIONS ......eecvierrierieiieiieeiieiteere e eee e sreesteeaeeeesaeesreenseens 252 — 1
Total operating inCOmME (10SS) .....oevevveeierieieeierieeeeectiet e $§ 1,235 $ 1,057 S ®)
Total Assets by Segment
As of December 31,
2009 2008

LS. NEEWOTKS ..ottt ettt ea e s eaeeaeeaean $ 2,086 $ 1,840

International NetWoOTrKS ........ooiiiiiiiiiieiiii e 1,162 1,043

Commerce, Education, and Other ..............ooocveeiiiiiiieieeceeee e 97 115

COTPOTALE. ...eeteeiiieiteeeite ettt ettt et e s bt e st e e st e st e e sate e st e e sateesabeenaeeas 7,620 7,486

TOLAL ASSELS ..ot et e et ee e e et e et e et eeeae e e et eeaeeeneseneseeneeesneeeeeseeneeens $ 10965 $§ 10484

Total assets allocated to “Corporate” in the above table includes the Company’s goodwill balance as the financial reports
reviewed by the Company’s CODM do not include an allocation of goodwill to each reportable segment. Goodwill by reportable
segment is disclosed in Note 9.

Capital Expenditures by Segment

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
LS. NEEWOTKS ..ottt neneae $ 9 S 19 $ —
International NetWOrKS .......cc.ooeeiuiiiiiiiie e 17 21 —
Commerce, Education, and Other.........cccccooovviviiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 4 3 2
COTPOTALE ..evvveeiieeiieette e eiee et e eteesteeeaeesebeessseessseessseessseessseeseeassanseeas 27 26 —
Total capital eXpPEndItUIES..........cocvevveuiirireeriirieereereeeteet et $ 57 $ 69 §$ 2

Capital expenditures exclude $33 million and $45 million for discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2008
and 2007, respectively.

Revenues by Country

Years Ended December 31,

2009 2008 2007
U S oo $ 2311 $ 2295 $ 76
INOT=U.S oo oo 1,205 1,148 —
TOLAL TEVENUES ...ttt ettt ee e e e e e e e eeaeeeaesanas $ 3,516 $ 3443 §$ 76

Revenues are attributed to country based on the location of the Company’s viewers.
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Property and Equipment by Country

As of December 31,

2009 2008
S ettt h e a e etttk h e e h e st et et et e bt ebeeaeene et et e neeas $ 298 § 327
INONEULS . ettt ettt et e et e bt e bt e ae e bt et st e saeeteeeeeneeens 113 68
Total property and eqUIPMENt, NET ..........cccevieriieriieieeieeierieere et sre b eae e e $ 411 $ 395

Property and equipment allocated to country based on the Company’s country of domicile and location of asset.

24. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following tables present the Company’s selected quarterly financial data, by quarter, for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 (in millions). The selected quarterly financial data set forth below for 2008 reflects the Newhouse Transaction,
including the AMC spin-off, as though it was consummated on January 1, 2008. Accordingly, the selected quarterly financial data
include the results of operations of both DHC and DCH since January 1, 2008. Information regarding the Newhouse Transaction is set
forth in Note 1.

Quarter Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2009(a)(b)(c)(d)
REVEIUES ...ttt s aene s $ 817 $ 881 $ 854 $ 964
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization......... 253 257 257 298
OPErating IMNCOMIE .....eveeveeiiiieeiieieeie ettt 242 486 215 292
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates..............ccccceeeeennen. 1 2 2 3
Income from continuing operations, net of taxes .............ccccceueeee. 123 179 101 156
NEE INCOME ..vieneiieiiieiie ettt eiee et e e tee et e e teesbeeebeesebeessbeeseseessseesnas 123 179 101 156
Less net (income) loss attributable to non-controlling interests .... 4 6 — (1)
Net income attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc......... 119 185 101 155
Stock dividends to preferred interests...........ccovvveveerveeveereereenenne. — 2) ©) —
Net income available to Discovery Communications, Inc. ........... 119 183 95 155
Net income per share available to Discovery Communications,
Inc. stockholders, basic and diluted ............cceeveveveeveeeeeenene. $ 028 $ 043 $ 022 $ 0.36
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:
BASIC 1ottt 422 422 424 425
DU ..o 422 424 427 429
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2008(a)(c)(d)(e)()

REVEIUES ...ttt eses e esens $ 809 § 885 $ 845 $ 904
Costs of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization.... 242 254 262 266
OPErating INCOME ......eeueeruieiieiieiieeiientcete ettt saees 269 208 296 284
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliates............c.ccccerenennen. — (1) (1) (59)
Income from continuing operations, net of taxes............cc........ 74 80 134 114
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes................... — 2 40 1
INEE INCOME. ..ttt s 74 82 174 115
Less net income attributable to non-controlling interests.......... (40) (39) (40) 9
Net income attributable to Discovery Communications, Inc.... 34 43 134 106

Income per share from continuing operations attributable to

Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders,
basic and diluted .............coeeveverieieieiieeceeeeee e $ 012 $ 0.15 $ 0.31 $ 0.25

Income per share from discontinued operations attributable to
Discovery Communications, Inc. stockholders,

basic and diluted ...........cooevevevereeiiecieieeeeeeee e $ — 3 0.01 $ 0.13 $ —
Net income per share available to Discovery

Communications, Inc. stockholders, basic and diluted......... $ 0.12 § 0.16 $ 0.44 $ 0.25
Weighted average number of shares outstanding,

basic and diluted ...........c.ccveiiveieiiieiceeeeeeee e 282 282 302 422

(a) Income per share amounts for the quarters and full years have each been calculated separately. Accordingly, quarterly amounts
may not add to the annual amounts because of differences in the average common shares outstanding during each period and,
with regard to diluted per common share amounts only, because of the inclusion of the effect of potentially dilutive securities
only in the periods in which such effect would have been dilutive.

(b) Results for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 include a pretax gain of $252 million for the sale of a 50% interest in Discovery
Kids. Results for Discovery Kids are included in the operating results through May 21, 2009. After May 21, 2009, the
Company’s portion of the results of Discover Kids are included in Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates.

(¢) Results for the quarters ended June 30, 2009 and December 31, 2009 include pretax impairment charges of $26 million and $6
million, respectively, related to intangibles assets, goodwill, and capitalized software. Results for the quarter ended
December 31, 2008 include pretax impairment charges of $25 million and $5 million related to trademarks and customer
relations, respectively. Additional information regarding impairments is included in Note 9.

(d) Results for the quarters ended March 31, 2009, June 30, 2009, September 30, 2009 and December 31, 2009 include restructuring
charges of $3 million, $14 million, $4 million and $13 million, respectively. Results for the quarters ended June 30, 2008,
September 30, 2008, and December 31, 2008 include restructuring charges of $4 million, $13 million, and $14 million,
respectively. Additional information regarding the restructuring charges is disclosed in Note 16.

(e)  Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliates for the quarter ended December 31, 2008 includes a pretax impairment charge of
$57 million related to the Company’s equity method investment in HSWI. Additional information regarding the impairment
charge is disclosed in Note 4.

(f)  Results for the quarters ended June 30, 2008, September 30, 2008, and December 31, 2008 include gains of $11 million,
$8 million, and $28 million, respectively, related to the reduction in the fair value of the HSWI liability were recorded in Other
non-operating income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Additional information regarding the gains
is disclosed in Note 20.

25. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

On August 12, 2009, DCL issued debt securities that are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company. The securities
were issued under a Registration Statement on Form S-3 with the SEC (the “shelf registration”) to register certain securities, including
debt securities of DCL and DCH that may be issued in the future with full and unconditional guarantees by the Company. DCL or
DCH may in the future issue additional securities that are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the Company under the shelf
registration. Accordingly, set forth below is condensed consolidating financial information presenting the financial position, results of
operations, and cash flows of (i) the Company, (ii) DCL, (iii) DCH, (iv) non-guarantor subsidiaries of DCL on a combined basis,

(v) other non-guarantor subsidiaries of the Company on a combined basis, and (vi) the eliminations and reclassifications necessary to
arrive at the information for the Company on a consolidated basis.

DCL and the non-guarantor subsidiaries of DCL are the primary operating subsidiaries of the Company. DCL’s primary
operations are the Discovery Channel and TLC in the U.S. The non-guarantor subsidiaries of DCL include most of the other U.S.
networks and the international networks along with the commerce and education businesses.

110



The non-guarantor subsidiaries of DCL are wholly owned subsidiaries of DCL with the exception of certain joint ventures and
equity method investments. DCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of DCH. The Company wholly owns DCH through a 33 ' /; % direct
ownership interest and a 66 * /5 % ownership interest through DHC. DHC is included in other non-guarantor subsidiaries of the
Company. CSS is a wholly owned subsidiary of DHC.

Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, Advance/Newhouse owned 33 ' /; % of DCH which is reported as a reduction of DHC’s
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries in the Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2008.

The supplemental condensed consolidating financial information should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements of the Company.

The existing indebtedness of DCL and DCH comprises substantially all of the indebtedness of the Company. The financial
covenants of the respective debt agreements limit DCL and DCH from making distributions to the Company. The terms of DCL’s
private placement senior notes restrict the cumulative payment of dividends over the life of the senior notes to an amount calculated
based on the cumulative equity contributions and net income of DCL less the cumulative distributions to DCL’s owners. In addition,
the terms of DCH’s Term Loan B and Term Loan C allow DCH to pay dividends to the Company to the extent that DCH’s leverage
ratio does not exceed 5 to 1 based upon defined measures of cash flows and indebtedness.

Basis of Presentation

In accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC, the equity method has been applied to (i) the Company’s interest in
DCH and other non-guarantor subsidiaries, (ii)) DCH’s interest in DCL, and (iii) DCL’s interest in non-guarantor subsidiaries. All
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. The Company’s bases in all subsidiaries, including goodwill and
recognized intangible assets, have been “pushed-down” to the applicable subsidiaries.

Prior to the Newhouse Transaction, Discovery had no assets, liabilities, or operations and DCL was not a subsidiary of
Discovery. As a result, all balances related to Discovery and DCL reflect no activity in the condensed consolidating financial
information for the year ended December 31, 2007. The parent company for the periods is DHC. The equity method has been applied
to DHC’s interest in subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2007.
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009. The term “disclosure controls and procedures,”
as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), means controls and
other procedures of a company that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the
SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and
communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing
similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and
management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures. Based on
the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2009, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The report of management of the Company regarding internal control over financial reporting is set forth in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting” and
incorporated herein by reference.

Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report of our independent registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting is
set forth in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm”
and incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2009 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

Certain information required in Item 10 through Item 14 of Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is incorporated herein
by reference to Discovery Communications, Inc.’s (“Discovery” or the” Company”) definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders, which shall be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, within 120 days of the Company’s fiscal year end.

ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

Information regarding directors, audit committee, and audit committee financial experts of the Company is set forth in
Discovery’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Proposal 1: Election of
Directors” and “Committees of the Board of Directors,” respectively, and is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding executive officers is set forth in Item 8 of Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption
“Executive Officers of Discovery Communications, Inc.” as permitted by Form 10-K General Instruction G(3).

Discovery has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (the “Code”) that is applicable to all of its directors, officers and
employees. The Board approved the Code in September 2008 and reviews it regularly. A copy of the Code and any amendments or
waivers that would be required to be disclosed under applicable SEC rules are available on the Company’s website at
www.discoverycommunications.com.
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ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

Information regarding executive compensation, director compensation, compensation committee interlocks and insider
participation, and the compensation committee report is set forth in Discovery’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” “Executive Compensation,” “Board
Compensation,” “Report of the Compensation Committee,” and “Report of the Equity Compensation Subcommittee of the
Compensation Committee,” respectively, and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

Information regarding securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans and security ownership of certain
beneficial owners and management and related stockholder matters is set forth in Discovery’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010
Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans,” “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners of Discovery,” and “Security Ownership of Discovery Management,” respectively, and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions, and director independence is set forth in Discovery’s
definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions,” “Policy Governing Related Person Transactions,” and “Director Independence,” respectively, and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is set forth in Discovery’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 2010
Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Description of Fees” and “Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit
and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent Auditor” and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. The following consolidated financial statements of Discovery Communications, Inc. are filed as part of Item § of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Page
Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 61
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 62
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 63
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 64
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 65
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 66
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 67
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 68
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2. Financial Statement Schedules:

i. All financial statement schedules required to be filed pursuant to Item 8 and Item 15(c) of Form 10-K have been omitted as
the required information is not applicable, not material, or is set forth in the consolidated financial statements or notes
thereto.

ii. The following separate consolidated financial statements of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC are filed in Part IV of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”’) Regulation S-X Rule 3-09,
Separate Financial Statements of Subsidiaries not Consolidated and 50 Percent or Less Owned Persons:

Page

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirM..........ccvevviiiieiiieiieniieie e 127
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting FirM..........ccoeoiioieiiieiieniieie et 128
Consolidated Balance Sheet of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC as of December 31, 2007 ...................... 129
Consolidated Statement of Operations of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC for the period from May 15,

2007 through December 31, 2007 ........ccvciiiveieriiieierisieeeetee ettt ettt ete st et ete b eseetessessetessessesessessesesbessesessessesesseseas 130
Consolidated Statement of Operations of Discovery Communications, Inc. (the predecessor entity to Discovery

Communications Holding, LLC and not the current registrant) for the period from January 1, 2007 through

IMAY 14, 2007 ..ottt ettt b et et b et b et h et e ket a ket b e bt et e st bt e st eh et e st bt et et naene e 130
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC for the period from May 15,

2007 through December 31, 2007 .....c.ccoeiiieieiieieiesieeetestettetetete st etestesteteste st etesseseesesseseesessesessessensesessensasesseneas 131
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows of Discovery Communications, Inc. (the predecessor entity to Discovery

Communications Holding, LLC and not the current registrant) for the period from January 1, 2007 through

MAY 14, 2007 ..ottt ettt ettt sttt stttk ekttt e et h e et h etk a et et et et naene e 131
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members’ Equity of Discovery Communications Holding, LLC for the

period from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 ......cooveveviiiiierieieierieeeeeeteet ettt senas 132
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Deficit of Discovery Communications, Inc. (the predecessor entity to

Discovery Communications Holding, LLC and not the current registrant) for the period from January 1, 2007

throUGh MAY 14, 2007 ...ocviieiietiieeieteee ettt ettt ettt et et ete et et eteebesseteeb e st eteebesseteebessetsssessesessessesessessesessessetessesnas 132
Notes to Consolidated Financial StatemeENts ...........ccocieiiriiiiieiieieee ettt ettt et eeee s eeeen 133
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3. The following exhibits are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Item 601 of SEC Regulation S-K and
Item 15(b) of Form 10-K:

Exhibit
No.

Document

3.1

32
4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12

Form of Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No. 2 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-4, SEC File No. 333-151586 (“Amendment No. 27))

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the 8-K filed on November 16, 2009 (SEC File No. 1-34177))

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant’s Series A common stock, par value $.01 per share (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, SEC File No. 333-151586 (the “Registration
Statement”))

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant’s Series B common stock, par value $.01 per share (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement)

Specimen certificate for shares of the Registrant’s Series C common stock, par value $.01 per share (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement)

Form of Registration Rights Agreement, by and between Discovery Communications, Inc. and Advance/Newhouse
Programming Partnership (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration Statement)

Form of Rights Agreement, by and between Discovery Communications, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A.,
as rights agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Registration Statement)

Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement between Discovery Communications, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A. dated December 10, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the 8-K filed on December 11, 2008)

Amendment and Restatement Agreement regarding $700,000,000 Senior Unsecured Notes, dated as of November 4,
2005, between Discovery Communications, Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein, and attached thereto, the
Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2005, between Discovery Communications,
Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein as Purchasers (the “2001 Note Purchase Agreement”) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Registration Statement)

First Amendment to 2001 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2007, between Discovery Communications,
Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein as Noteholders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the Registration
Statement)

Amendment and Restatement Agreement regarding $290,000,000 Senior Unsecured Notes, dated as of November 4,
2005, between Discovery Communications, Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein, and attached thereto, the
Amended and Restated Note Purchase Agreement dated as of November 4, 2005, between Discovery Communications,
Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein as Purchasers (the “2002 Note Purchase Agreement”) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Registration Statement)

First Amendment to 2002 Note Purchase Agreement dated as of April 11, 2007, between Discovery Communications,
Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein as Noteholders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to the Registration
Statement)

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2005, between Discovery Communications, Inc. and the Holders of
Notes listed therein as Purchasers (the “2005 Note Purchase Agreement”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to
the Registration Statement)

First Amendment to 2005 Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 11, 2007, between Discovery Communications,
Inc. and the Holders of Notes listed therein as Noteholders (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to the Registration
Statement)
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Exhibit
No.

Document

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Credit, Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of May 14, 2007, among Discovery Communications Holding, LLC, as
Borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Syndication Agent, The
Royal Bank of Scotland, plc, Toronto Dominion (Texas), Inc., and Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Document
Agents, Banc of America Securities LLC and J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint
Bookrunners, and the other lenders that are parties thereto (the “Credit Agreement) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.17 to the Registration Statement)

Amendment No. 1 dated May 14, 2009 to the Credit Agreement dated May 14, 2007, among Discovery Communications,
LLC, as Borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and the lenders that are party thereto (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2009)

Credit Agreement Supplement No. 1 dated May 14, 2009, among Discovery Communications, LLC, as Borrower, Bank
of America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and the lenders that are party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to the Form 10-Q filed on August 4, 2009)

Indenture dated as of August 19, 2009 among Discovery Communications, LLC, Discovery Communications, Inc. and
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Form 8-K filed on August 19,
2009)

Supplemental Indenture dated as of August 19, 2009 among Discovery Communications, LLC, Discovery
Communications, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the
Form 8-K filed on August 19, 2009)

Discovery Communications U.S. Executive Relocation Policy (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Registration Statement)

Discovery Communications Executive Benefit Summary (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration
Statement)

Discovery Communications Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Registration
Statement)

Amended and Restated Discovery Communications, LLC Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 8-K filed on November 19, 2009)

Amended and Restated Discovery Appreciation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the 8-K filed on
December 11, 2008)

Form of Discovery Communications, Inc. 2005 Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. 2)

Discovery Holding Company 2005 Non-Employee Director Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective August
15, 2007) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Discovery Holding
Company for the quarter ended September 30, 2007 (File No. 000-51205) as filed on November 7, 2007)

Discovery Holding Company Transitional Stock Adjustment Plan (As Amended and Restated Effective August 15, 2007)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Discovery Holding Company for the
quarter ended September 30, 2007 (File No. 000-51205) as filed on November 7, 2007)

Employment Agreement, dated as of November 28, 2006, between David Zaslav and Discovery Communications, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-4, SEC File No.
333-151586 (“Amendment No. 1))

Addendum to Employment Agreement dated September 9, 2009 between David Zaslav and Discovery Communications,
Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the 10-Q filed on November 3, 2009)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of April 2, 2008, between Bruce Campbell and Discovery
Communications, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Amendment No. 1)
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Exhibit

No. Document

10.12 Equity Stake Transition Agreement, dated as of November 5, 2008, between John Hendricks and Discovery
Communications (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
February 26, 2009)

10.13 Letter Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2008, between John Hendricks and the Compensation Committee of Discovery
Communications, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Amendment No. 2)

10.14 Employment Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2008, between Brad Singer and Discovery Communications, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Amendment No. 2)

10.15 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated July 1, 2009 between Brad Singer and Discovery Communications, LLC
(incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q filed on November 3, 2009)

10.16 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of March 6, 2008 by and between Discovery Communications,
LLC and Adria Alpert-Romm (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed on May 4, 2009)

10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of March 7, 2008 by and between Discovery Communications,
LLC and Joseph A. LaSala, Jr. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Form 10-Q filed on May 4, 2009)

10.18 Form of Escrow Agreement, by and among Discovery Communications, Inc., Advance/Newhouse Programming
Partnership, and the escrow agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Amendment No. 2)

10.19 Brad Singer Option Agreement (standard terms) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the 8-K filed on
October 7, 2008)

10.20 Form of John Hendricks Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the 8-K filed on
October 7, 2008)

10.21 Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the 8-K filed on October 7, 2008)

10.22 Form of Cash-Settled Stock Appreciation Right Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the 8-K filed on
October 7, 2008)

10.23 Form of 7-year Stock Appreciation Right Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the 8-K filed on
October 7, 2008)

10.24 Form of Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Form 8-K filed on March 9, 2009)

10.25 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Form 10-Q filed on
August 4, 2009)

10.26 Form of Performance Restricted Stock Agreement

10.27 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Grant Agreement

10.28 Form of Cash-Settled Stock Appreciation Right Agreement

10.29 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant Agreement

12 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Ratio of Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred
Stock Dividends

21 List of Subsidiaries of Discovery Communications, Inc.

23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

23.2 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

233 Consent of KPMG LLP

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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Exhibit

No. Document

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as
Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF = XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Members of
Discovery Communications Holding, LLC:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations, of changes
in members’ equity and of cash flows, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Discovery Communications
Holding, LLC (Successor Company) and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2007 and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the period from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 14, 2008

127



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Discovery Communications, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, of changes in stockholders’ deficit and of cash flows,
present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Discovery Communications, Inc. (Predecessor
Company) and its subsidiaries for the period from January 1, 2007 to May 14, 2007 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for
uncertain tax positions effective January 1, 2007.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

McLean, Virginia
February 14, 2008

128



DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Successor

As of
December 31, 2007

(Amounts in millions,
except unit amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVALENTS ..........cccuiiiiiiieiieieceece ettt ettt ettt e bt et e et e ebeetaesteesaeesbeesseesseessesssesseenseenne, $ 45
Receivables, 1eSS alloWance OF $22 .......oooviiiiiiiiieeeieeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt et e et e eveenaeereeeaeens 742
IIVEIEOTICS ...t ettt e ettt e oottt e e e et e e e eta e e e eeaaeeeeeaaeaeeeataeeeeeaaseeeetaeeeeaateeeeeteeaeeateeeeeraeen, 10
CONLENE TIZNES, TIET ..eevvieiiiiieieeierie ettt ettt et e e testesteesteebeesaeestesseeseesseasseessessaesseessessseesseasseessessseseensennse, 79
DEfeITEA INCOIMIE TAXES ....cvviiieiieeiie et ettt ecte e ettt ettt ettt e eteeee e e e eteeeeteeeeteeeeaseeetseeeaseeetsesesseensseeesseeteeensseensseenseeen, 104
Prepaid expenses and Other CUITENT ASSELS ........cuievirierreeriierieeteiteieesteesseeseeseeseesseesseesseessesssesseessesssesseesseenns 97
TOtA] CUITENE @SSELS ..oeoeieeriiiieeeieieieeeeee e eeeeee et e e e ettt e e e e eeseaaaaeeeeeeeeaataaeeeeeeeaaatareeeeseeaassaaaseeeeessansaasseeseessnnsreaneeeees, 1,077
IIIVESTIMICIIES ...ttt e e e e ettt e e et e e e et e e e eetaeeeeeateeeeeataeeeetaeeeeasseeeeeaseaeeasseeeeasteeeeenseeeeennseeeennens 101
Noncurrent CONTENt TIZRNES, TEL........uiiuiiiieiieieetee ettt ettt e bt e bt et e st esb e e beestesetesbeesbeenbeenaeeneeeaeen, 1,048
Deferred 1aunCh INCENTIVES .........oiviiiiiiiiii ettt ettt et et e et e et e e e aeeetbeesaseeeaseesaseeeaseesaseeeaseesaseesaseesareenans 243
Property and ©qQUIPIMENT, NET .......ccueiiiriieiiiieiieiterie et ete et e st esteebeebeseaesteesseesseesseessesssesseesseessesseessenssenssenssesssessnenns 397
GOOAWILL ... e e e et e et e e e et e e e et e e e eaaeeeeetaeeeeenseeeeesseeeeetseeeennseeeeennsesennneeeennees 4,870
INtANGIDIE ASSELS, TIEL.....eieuiieeieiieiieie ettt ettt st et et e et e et e ss e et e e s seenseesaesseeseenseensesnseensesssesseenseensennsennsesnsesseenns 182
OtNET NONCUITENE ASSEES....cuvvieitieeitiieiieeetieeitteeetteestaeeeteeestreestaeestaeesseeestseaasesesseassesesssasssensssenssesaseesnseesnsesensesssesansen, 42
TOTAL ASSEES....eveeieeie ettt ettt ettt e et e e et e et e e et e e eaa e e eaaeesaaeeeaseeeaaeeeaseeeaaeeeeteeeabeeeaaeeeaaeeeae e e et e e et e e st eeenteesnaeennns $ 7,960

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued Habilities. .........coeiuiiiiiiiiieieee e $ 268
Accrued payroll and employee DENETILS .........ccoeieieiiriiiie et 184
CoNtent TIZNLS PAYADIE. ... c.iiuiiiieieee ettt ettt ettt e aeest e s et et e be s bt ebeeseeneensentenbesneeneens 56
Launch iNCentives PAYADIE ........c.cccviiiiiiiiiciieiceteste ettt ettt te e aeseesaeesteebeesseesbeessesseenseessesssessnessnenns 1
INCOME tAXES PAYADIC ....vieviieiiieiieciiecieee ettt ettt et et e et eetaesteesbe e beessessbesstesseesseesseessesseesseensennse, 24
DEfOITEA TEVEIUES.....c..eveiieiiiiiitirteetert ettt ettt ettt b e bt bt ettt et bt sa e bt ebeebe e bt et et entenbesbesbeens 78
Current portion of long-term incentive plan lability...........cocvvcerieriiiieie e, 141
Current portion of 1ong-term dEDL ..........ccceerieiiiiiiiiieieeee ettt e st e e te e e e sseesseenseenee, 32
Other CUITENt HADIIITIES ... eeiveeeieie ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e e e e e seesseesaee st eneeeneeeneeeseanseenseenee, 66
TOtal CUITENE LHADILILIES ...ttt ettt b e bbbt et et et s b e bt ebeeb e st et enbeneesbesbe e 850
Derivative financial instruments, 1€SS CUITENT POTLION ......cvievirieriieriieieiieseeseeieeteseesseeseesreeseesseesseessesssesssesseenns 49
Content rights payable, 1€SS CUITENt POTION.........eciertiertieieeiertieieeteeteeeesteeteetessaesseesseesesseesseesseensesssesseenseensennen, 2
Launch incentives payable, 168 CUITENT POTTION ......eevieuiireieeiieiieieeiesieseesie et eteete st e et ebeeneeeseesseesseessesnsessnesseenns 6
o) oY 3 ' 0 Lo U PTRURRR 4,109
DEferred INCOME TAXES ......eeeeiitieiieieeiie ettt ee sttt ettt et e st e et e et e eate et ee bt e teeatesmeesmeesseesseenseenseeneeeseanseenseenseenseeneesneenns 11
Other NONCUITENT HHADIIIEIES ......eoueeiiiiitieie ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e seesseesaeeaeeneeeneeeneenseenseenee, 176
TOtAL HADIIIEIES .....vvveee ettt e et e e et e e et e e e eaa e e e eesaeeeeenaaeesesaeesenneeeesannneesenteeesenneeeeeennneeen, 5,203
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)
Redeemable interests iN SUDSIAIAIIES. ......c.uevetirirtiririerieet ettt ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt sbe bt et et ebeseesbesbe e 49
Members’ equity:
Members’ units (51,119 units issued, less 13,319 units repurchased and retired)...........ccocevverieiinceneencn, 2,533
REtAINEA CAITINES ....eeuveeiiieieeiieeie ettt ettt ettt et et e e b e b e et e tesaeesaeesaeesaeeneeemeeeneeeseeseenseenseeneesneesneenns 185
Accumulated other COMPreNENSIVE LOSS ......oouieiiiriiiiieiieieeee et (10)
TOtal MEMDETS” ©QUILY ..eeuveiiieitieiieii ettt ettt ete et e st este et e s aeesate s st esseesseessesseenseenseessessaesseesseenseenseenseessenseeseensennse, 2,708
Total liabilities and MEMDETS” EQUILY.......cetertiierteitiete ettt ettt sttt se et et et e st e be st e ebeseeeteeseeneensensesaeseeebeenen, $ 7,960

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
(Amounts in millions)

Revenues:

DISTEIDULION. 1.ttt ettt b et s e s s e s sese e esese e esesensenas $ 930 $ 547

AQVEITISIIZ ..e.eveeeieiieiieie et eteste st e teesteeteeetesaee s st e st enseenseessessaesseenseensesnsesnsesseeseansennns 875 470

ONCT ...ttt ettt ettt b ettt 223 82
TOLAL TEVEIIUCS ......eeeeeeieeeeeee et et e e et e e e et e e e e e e e etaeeeeeaneeeeeneeeeenaneeenn 2,028 1,099
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenues, excluding depreciation and amortization listed below..................... 792 375

Selling, general and admMiNiStrAtiVE ..........ccceeruierieiiieieriereee e 823 473

Depreciation and amortization EXPEeNSE..........ceeerurerueerureereienreenteeeeeneeseeseeesseesseeneeenes 83 48

ASSEt IMPAITINENLS ......eieetieeieetieeteeie ettt eee ettt et et ent e st e st e e beenteentesneesneesneesseeneeenes — 26

EXit and reStruCturing COSES ......ovirierirriieiieeieriereerieeteeteeetesseeseessesesesseesseeseensesneesnns 9 11

Gain on business diSPOSILION ......cc.eevreierieriieiieeieeeestesteetesteseeseeeeeeseesseeeeensesssenseens (135) —
Total operating CoStS and EXPENSES ......ccueeuieueeieeieetierteerteerteeaeseeseeesteeseeenteeneeeneesneesseesseennes 1,572 933
OPEIALING INCOIMNC. ....veevveieieiiieteetieteesteettesseesteesseessessaesseesseesseassesseesssesseessesssesssesseessesssesssessees 456 166
Other (expense) income:

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates ...........cccecveeverierierinciiiiececeee e 5 4

Realized and unrealized (losses) gains from non- hedged derivative

TISTIUITIEIIES, TIEL...eveveeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt eeae e e e e ee et et e e eeeeeseesesaeereseeeeeteseenenaeenenns an 2

IMINOTILY TNEETESS 1ovviriveiiesiieteeieeiestesttesteesteeteeseesseeteesseesseessessaesseeseessesssesseesseensennns @) €]

INEETESt EXPENSE, NEL ...eeiiuiieeiiieiiieeiee et etee et e et e st e et e st e et esabeesabeesabeesnbeesnbeesnseesnnes (180) (69)

OthET, NMET....iiiiiiieieeie ettt ettt ettt et e e e e s aesaeesteesbeesseesbeessesssesaenseensesssensnas (1) —
Total Other EXPENSE, NMET....cccueruieriieiieieeieeieie et ete et et e st et e e e ssee st enseenseesaesseesseenseensennnes (194) (64)
Income from continuing operations before inCOME taXes ..........ceevveereerreerieneererie e 262 102
Provision fOr iNCOME tAXES.......cuuiiiuieeiieiieeriierteereeesteesteeesteeeteeebeeseseesseesaseessseessseessseenseeas (25) (52)
Income from CONtINUING OPEIALIONS .....ecvieeveeereriierieeieeeesiesteeaeesreseeesseesseesseessesseesseesesssesses 237 50
Loss from discontinued operations, NEt Of taX ......c.eccvverviieiiienieeiieeie et eee e sve e (52) (13)
NEEINCOITIC ...ttt ettt ettt et et e s s e b et e e s et e st e b et e st s esen e b eseneeseseneesesaneesesans $ 185 $ 37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating Activities

INEE INICOIMIE ...t ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeaaeeeeeneeeesaeeeeensseeeeenseeeeenneeeensneeeennns

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortiZation EXPENSE..........eevereerrrerurerereuerseenreesseessessseseesseesseessennns
Amortization of deferred launch incentives and representation rights..............cceeue...
ASSEt IMPAITINENLS ......veeeieeeeeeiieiieteeieetestestessee st eseeseessessaesseenseesseensesssesseesseesseenseenes
Gain on business diSPOSILION ......cc.eeverierieriieiieeiesiesteste e steseeeneeeeessaesseeseensesssenseens
Provision for 10sses on reCeivables..........occveiieiirierieriieie et
Long-term incentive plan EXPeNSE.......ccuieuirierierieriieieeteeiesreesreesessesseesseesseesesseenens
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates ............ccccccevvvevieriiiceeiieneec e
Deferred INCOME LAXES ....c.ververreriiriietieieeiietetete ettt ettt ettt sbe bbb e et e nee

Realized and unrealized losses (gains) from non- hedged derivative

INSTIUIMEIES, T1ET.....eiiieevieeeeieie et e ettt e et e eeae e e e et e e e enteeeeeeaaeeeeeaaeeesenteeesenneessrnneeeas
IMINOTIEY TNECTESES ...vvevvieeveeeieeeieiieieeteetestesttesaeeaeeeeenaesseesseenseensessseansesseenseensesnsesnsennns
Other charges (INCOME) ......ccuveruieriieiieiieieetieseesteetesteste st e et eee et e esaesseeseenseensesnnesneas

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of business acquisitions and dispositions:
RECEIVADIES. ...ttt et
TIIVEIEOTIES ..ttt ettt et ettt st s e eae e
CONtENE TIZNES, ML ..evviieiiieieitieii ettt ettt st seeste e beesteesseesaesteesseesseessesssesanas
Deferred 1aunch iNCENtIVES ......cc.eiuiiiiiiieieriiesc e e
ONET @SSELS ..eeventenieieeteet ettt ettt st e b et et et be bbbt et e e e e e b e
Accounts payable and accrued lHabilities.........ccoocverierieriieiieierieiceie e
Long-term incentive plan Hability ........ccccccovverieriiiciiiiereccceee e

Cash provided by (used in) Operating aCtiViti€S ........c.eeverreerrerierierierieereeeeseeeeeeeeseenseeneens

Investing Activities

Purchases of property and €qUIPIMENt ..........ccceeieieiierierieie ettt
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired ...........c..cceveevieciieiiieiicceee e
Redemption of interests in SUDSIAIAIIES. ........cceevuieiieiiiieeiecre ettt
Cash used in INVESHNGZ ACLIVITIES .....eueruiiuieeieiieieie ettt ettt sttt ese e eeseeseesee e

Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt..........cccccveviieiieiiniiiieiceee e
Payments of long-term debt and capital [eaSes ..........cceeveveieriirierierieeeie e
Deferred financing fES.......cuvvuierieiieieeie ettt st nes
Repurchase of MembeErs” ISt ........cveiierieieeieeiereee ettt seeesaeeseennesnne e
Other fINancing aCtiVITIES, NET........ccuerieriieiieieiieieeseesteetesee st esreebeessesseesseeseessesssesssesseesses

Cash (used in) provided by financing aCtivities ..........cecveveeriierireiienierieeee e
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents...........ccocooevvenenencncneneenee.

Change in cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS .........ceecveiiiriiiiee e
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period..........cccoeceevierierieciieienieneee e

Cash and cash equivalents, end of Period ...........cocoeeiiriiiiieniee e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007

(Amounts in millions)

185 | $ 37
83 51
58 37
28 26

(135) —

— 2
78 63
(5) 4)

(71) 11
11 )

7 1
2 @)

(46) (29)
22 5

111 3)

(26) (198)
28 24)

120 (93)

(76) (8)

374 (132)

(56) (25)

(306) —

— (44)

(362) (69)
1,286 211
(12) ()
(5) —
(1,284) —
(17) @)
(32) 207
3 4

(17) 10
62 52
45 |'$ 62




DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Additional Accumulated Total
Paid-in Other Stockholders’
Capital/ Retained Comprehensive Deficit/
Members’ (Deficit) Income Members’
Equity Earnings (Loss) Equity
(Amounts in millions)
Predecessor:
Balance as of December 31, 2006............ccccoeveverieveeirirerennne. $ 21§ (306) $ 24 3 (261)
Net income for the period January 1, 2007 through
May 14, 2007..c.coeeieieieieeeeese e — 37 — 37
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of
tAX OF $5 it — — 8 8
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax of $1................... — — 1 1
Comprehensive INCOME.........ccvverveevieeeereerreereeeeereesreereeenesenes — — — 46
Cumulative effect for the adoption of FIN 48...........c.cceeu..ee. — (5) — (5)
Balance as of May 14, 2007 ........c.ccoceveeereieiereeeeereeerenenans $ 21 $ 274) $ 33 % (220)
Successor:
Formation of Successor Company Pushdown of investor
DASIS. cvvveveeeiisisiietetet ettt bbbttt $ 4392 § —  § — 3 4,392
Net income for the period May 15, 2007 through
December 31, 2007......oviueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 185 — 185
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of
X OF B4 — — 7 7
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax of $2................... — — 3 3
Changes from hedging activities, net of tax of $12............. — — (20) (20)
Comprehensive INCOME.........evvverriervereerrenieereesenreesreesensesses — — — 175
Repurchase of members’ interest...........ccceeveeeveeeenienreenenenenne. (1,859) (1,859)
Balance as of December 31, 2007.........cccceveeeeienienenenenennenn $ 2,533 § 185 § (10) $ 2,708

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING, LLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Description of Business

Discovery Communications Holding, LLC (“Discovery” or the “Company”) is a global media and entertainment company that
provides original and purchased cable and satellite television programming across multiple platforms in the United States and over
170 other countries. Discovery also develops and sells proprietary merchandise, other products and educational product lines in the
United States and internationally. Discovery operates through three divisions: (1) U.S. Networks, (2) International Networks, and
(3) Commerce and Education.

Basis of Presentation

Discovery was formed through a conversion completed by Discovery Communications, Inc. (the predecessor entity to
Discovery Communications Holding, LLC, and not the current registrant) (“DCI” or “the Predecessor Company’’) on May 14, 2007.
As part of the conversion, DCI became Discovery Communications, LLC (“DCL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Discovery, and the
former shareholders of DCI, including Cox Communications Holdings, Inc. (“Cox”), Advance/Newhouse Programming Partnerships,
and Discovery Holding Company (“DHC”’) became members of Discovery. Subsequent to this conversion, each of the members of
Discovery held the same ownership interests in Discovery as their previous capital stock ownership interest had been in DCI.

The formation of Discovery required “pushdown” accounting and each shareholder’s basis has been pushed down to Discovery.
The pushdown of the investors’ bases resulted in the recording of approximately $4.6 billion of additional goodwill, which had been
previously recorded on the investors’ books. No other basis differentials existed on the investors’ books; therefore, no other assets or
liabilities were adjusted. The application of push down accounting represents the termination of the predecessor reporting entity, DCI,
and the creation of the successor reporting entity, Discovery. Accordingly, the results for the year ended December 31, 2007 are
required to be presented as two distinct periods. The “Predecessor” period refers to the period from January 1, 2007 through May 14,
2007, and the “Successor” period refers to the period from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007. Accordingly, a vertical black
line is shown to separate the Company financial statements from those of the Predecessor Company for the period January 1, 2007
through May 14, 2007. As the entire pushdown was associated with non-amortizable goodwill, there was no adjustment to the income
statement during the Successor period as a result of this transaction.

Subsequent to the formation of Discovery, Cox exchanged its 25% ownership interest in Discovery for all of the capital stock of
a subsidiary of Discovery that held the Travel Channel and travelchannel.com (collectively, the “Travel Business”) and approximately
$1.3 billion in cash. Discovery retired the membership interest previously owned by Cox. The distribution of the Travel Business,
which was valued at $575 million, resulted in a $135 million tax-free gain included in continuing operations. The gain was net of
$280 million in reporting unit goodwill and $160 million in net assets. The net impact to goodwill as a result of the pushdown of
investor basis and disposition of the Travel Business was $4.3 billion.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all majority-owned and controlled subsidiaries. In addition, the
Company evaluates its relationships with other entities to identify whether they are variable interest entities as defined by Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB
No. 51, as revised in December 2003 (“FIN 46R”) and to assess whether it is the primary beneficiary of such entities. Variable Interest
Entities (“VIEs”) are generally entities that lack sufficient equity to finance their activities without additional financial support from
other parties or whose equity holders possess rights not proportionate to their ownership. The equity method of accounting is used for
affiliates over which the Company exercises significant influence but does not control.

All inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results
may differ from those estimates and could have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities — including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115 (“FAS 159”). FAS 159 gives entities the
irrevocable option to carry most financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in earnings.

FAS 159 is effective for the Company as of the beginning of the Company’s 2008 fiscal year. The Company expects to adopt fair
value accounting for its equity investment in HSWi (see Note 4). The impact could be material to the financial statements depending
upon changes in fair value. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect of FAS 159 on its other assets and liabilities.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value Measurements
(“FAS 157”). FAS 157 defines fair value and establishes a framework to make the measurement of fair value in generally accepted
accounting principles more consistent and comparable. FAS 157 requires expanded disclosures about the extent to which fair value is
used to measure assets and liabilities, the methods and assumptions used to measure fair value and the effect of fair value measures on
earnings. FAS 157 will be effective for the Company’s 2008 fiscal year. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect of
FAS 157 on its financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (revised 2007), Business
Combinations (“FAS 141R”). FAS 141R replaces Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business Combinations
(“FAS 141”), although it retains the fundamental requirement in FAS 141 that the acquisition method of accounting be used for all
business combinations. FAS 141R establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer in a business combination
(a) recognizes and measures the assets acquired, liabilities assumed and any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, (b) recognizes
and measures the goodwill acquired in a business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase and (c) determines what information
to disclose regarding the business combination. FAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the Company’s 2009 fiscal year.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, Non-controlling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (“FAS 160). FAS 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling
interest in a subsidiary, commonly referred to as minority interest. Among other matters, FAS 160 requires (a) the non-controlling
interest be reported within equity in the balance sheet and (b) the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to
the non-controlling interest to be clearly presented in the statement of income. FAS 160 is effective for the Company’s 2009 fiscal
year. FAS 160 is to be applied prospectively, except for the presentation and disclosure requirements, which shall be applied
retrospectively for all periods presented. The Company is currently assessing the potential effect of FAS 160 on its financial
statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues from three primary sources: (1) distribution revenues from cable system and satellite operators
(distributors), (2) advertising revenues for commercial spots aired on the Company’s networks and websites), and (3) other revenues,
which is largely e-commerce and educational sales.

Distribution revenues are recognized over the service period, net of launch incentives and other vendor consideration.
Adbvertising revenues are recorded net of agency commissions and audience deficiency liabilities in the period advertising spots are
broadcast. E-commerce and educational product revenues are recognized either at the point-of-sale or upon product shipment.
Educational service sales are generally recognized ratably over the term of the agreement.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs of $108 million and $72 million were incurred from
May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments with original maturities of ninety days or less are recorded as cash equivalents. Restricted cash of
$8 million is included in other current assets as of December 31, 2007. Book overdrafts representing outstanding checks in excess of
funds on deposit are recorded as a component of accounts payable and totaled $11 million as of December 31, 2007.
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Derivative Financial Instruments

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,
(“FAS 133”), requires every derivative instrument to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value as either an asset or a liability. The
statement also requires that changes in the fair value of derivatives be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met. The Company uses financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges. The effective changes in fair
value of derivatives designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). Amounts are
reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as interest expense is recorded for debt. The Company uses the
cumulative dollar offset method to assess effectiveness. To be highly effective, the ratio calculated by dividing the cumulative change
in the value of the actual swap by the cumulative change in the hypothetical swap must be between 80% and 125%. The ineffective
portion of a derivative’s change in fair value is immediately recognized in earnings. The Company uses derivatives instruments
principally to manage the risk associated with the movements of foreign currency exchange rates and changes in interest rates that will
affect the cash flows of its debt transactions. Refer to Note 16 for additional information regarding derivative instruments held by the
Company and risk management strategies.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method.

Content Rights

Costs incurred in the direct production, co-production or licensing of content rights are capitalized and stated at the lower of
unamortized cost, fair value, or net realizable value. The Company evaluates the net realizable value of content by considering the fair
value of the underlying produced and co-produced content and the net realizable values of the licensed content quarterly.

The costs of produced and co-produced content airing on the Company’s networks are capitalized and amortized based on the
expected realization of revenues, resulting in an accelerated basis over four years for developed networks (Discovery Channel, TLC
and Animal Planet) in the United States, and a straight-line basis over no longer than five years for developing networks (all other
networks in the United States) and all networks in the International division. The cost of licensed content is capitalized and amortized
over the term of the license period based on the expected realization of revenues, resulting in an accelerated basis for developed
networks in the United States, and a straight-line basis for all International Networks, developing networks in the United States and
educational ventures. The costs of content for electronic, video and hardcopy educational supplements are amortized on a straight-line
basis over a three to five year period.

All produced and co-produced content is classified as long-term. The portion of the unamortized licensed content balance that
will be amortized within one year is classified as a current asset. The Company’s co-production arrangements generally represent the
sharing of production cost. The Company records its share of costs gross and records no amounts for the portion of costs borne by the
other party as the Company does not share any associated economics of exploitation.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of three to seven years for equipment, furniture and fixtures, five to forty years for building structure and
construction, and six to twelve years for satellite transponders. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
lesser of their estimated useful lives or the terms of the related leases, beginning on the date the asset is put into use. Equipment under
capital lease represents the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, net of accumulated
depreciation.

Capitalized Software Costs

All capitalized software costs are for internal use. Capitalization of costs occurs during the application development stage. Costs
incurred during the pre and post implementation stages are expensed as incurred. Capitalized costs are amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of one to five years. Unamortized capitalized costs totaled $57 million at December 31, 2007.
Software costs of $9 million and $7 million were capitalized from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1,
2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. Amortization of capitalized software costs totaled $13 million and $7 million from May 15,
2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. There were no write-offs for
capitalized software costs during 2007.
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Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill, and Intangible Assets

The Company annually assesses the carrying value of its acquired intangible assets, including goodwill, and its other long-lived
assets, including deferred launch incentives, to determine whether impairment may exist, unless indicators of impairment become
evident requiring immediate assessment. Goodwill impairment is identified by comparing the fair value of the reporting unit to its
carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is recorded to the extent that the
implied fair value of the goodwill within the reporting unit is less than its carrying value. Intangible assets and other long-lived assets
are grouped for purposes of evaluating recoverability at the lowest level for which independent cash flows are identifiable. If the
carrying amount of an intangible asset, long-lived asset, or asset grouping exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized. Fair
values for reporting units, goodwill and other asset groups are determined based on discounted cash flows, market multiples, or
comparable assets as appropriate. During the Predecessor period, DCI recorded asset impairments of $26 million for education assets
related to its consumer business. During the Successor period, the Company recorded a $28 million write-off of leasehold
improvements related to store closures which is included in loss from discontinued operations.

The determination of recoverability of goodwill and other intangibles and long-lived assets requires significant judgment and
estimates regarding future cash flows, fair values, and the appropriate grouping of assets. Such estimates are subject to change and
could result in impairment losses being recognized in the future. If different reporting units, asset groupings, or different valuation
methodologies had been used, the impairment test results could have differed.

Deferred Launch Incentives

Consideration issued to cable and satellite distributors in connection with the execution of long-term network distribution
agreements is deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis as a reduction to revenue over the terms of the agreements. Obligations
for fixed launch incentives are recorded at the inception of the agreement. Following the renewal of a distribution agreement, the
remaining deferred consideration is amortized over the extended period. Amortization of deferred launch incentives and interest on
unpaid deferred launch incentives was $61 million and $39 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from
January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. During 2007, in connection with the settlement of terms under a pre-existing
distribution agreement, Discovery completed negotiations for the renewal of long-term distribution agreements for certain of its U.K.
networks and paid a distributor $196 million, most of which is being amortized over a five year period.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s foreign subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date,
while results of operations are translated at average exchange rates for the respective periods. The resulting translation adjustments are
included as a separate component of stockholders’ deficit/members’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
Intercompany accounts of a trading nature are revalued at exchange rates in effect at each month end and are included as part of
operating income in the consolidated Statements of Operations.

Long-term Incentive Plans

Under the Company’s long-term incentive plans, eligible employees receive cash settled unit awards indexed to the price of
Class A DHC stock. As the units are indexed to the equity of another entity, the Company treats the units similar to a derivative, by
determining their fair value each reporting period. The Company attributes compensation expense for the new awards on a straight-
line basis; the Company attributes compensation expense for the initial grant of partially vested units by continuing to apply the FASB
Interpretation No. 28, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“FIN 28”) model that was utilized over the awards’ original vesting
periods. Once units are fully vested, the Company recognizes all mark-to-market adjustments to fair value in each period as
compensation expense. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107, Share-Based Payment (“SAB 107”), regarding the classification of compensation expense associated with share-
based payment awards. By applying the provisions of SAB 107, all long term incentive compensation expense is recorded as a
component of selling, general and administrative expenses.

The Company classifies as a current liability the lesser of 100% of the intrinsic value of the units that are vested or will become
vested within one year or the Black-Scholes value of units that have been attributed. Upon voluntary termination of employment, the
Company distributes 100% of unit benefits if employees agree to certain provisions. Prior to a plan amendment in August 2007, the
Company classified as a current liability 75% of the intrinsic value of vested units or units vesting within one year, as this amount
corresponded to the value potentially payable should all participants separate from the Company. Upon voluntary termination of
employment, the Company distributed 75% of unit benefits. The remainder was paid at the one-year anniversary of termination date.
The August 2007 plan amendment eliminated the deferral of the final 25%. As such, employees are paid 100% of their vested amount
upon separation from the Company.
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Redeemable Interests in Subsidiaries

For those instruments with an estimated redemption value, redeemable interests in subsidiaries are accreted or amortized to an
estimated redemption value ratably over the period to the redemption date. Accretion and amortization are recorded as a component of
minority interest expense. For instruments with a specified rate of return, DCI records interest expense as incurred. Cash receipts and
payments for the sale or purchase of redeemable interests in subsidiaries are included as a component of investing cash flows.

Minority Interests

In addition to the accretion and amortization on redeemable minority interests, the Company records minority interest expense
for the portion of the earnings of consolidated entities which are applicable to the minority interest partners.

Treasury Units

Treasury units are accounted for using the cost method by DCI, the Predecessor. The repurchased units are held in treasury and
are presented as if retired. There was no treasury unit activity from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007. Discovery, the Successor,
purchased and retired the membership units owned by Cox. (Refer to Note 1 Description of Business and Basis of Presentation.)

Discontinued Operations

In determining whether a group of assets disposed of should be presented as a discontinued operation, the Company makes a
determination as to whether the group of assets being disposed of comprises a component of the entity, which requires cash flows that
can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the entity. The Company also determines whether the cash flows associated with the
group of assets have been or will be significantly eliminated from the ongoing operations of the Company as a result of the disposal
transaction and whether the Company has no significant continuing involvement in the operations of the group of assets after the
disposal transaction. If these determinations can be made affirmatively, the results of operations of the group of assets being disposed
of (as well as any gain or loss on the disposal transaction) are aggregated for separate presentation apart from continuing operating
results of the Company in the consolidated financial statements. The Company has elected not to segregate the cash flows from
discontinued operations in its presentation of the Statements of Cash Flows.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Deferred income taxes reflect the
net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not such
assets will be unrealized.

Effective January 1, 2007, DCI adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a
company’s financial statements, and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. In instances where the Company has taken
or expects to take a tax position in its tax return and the Company believes it is more likely than not that such tax position will be
upheld by the relevant taxing authority upon settlement, the Company may record the benefits of such tax position in its consolidated
financial statements. The tax benefit to be recognized is measured as the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50% likely of
being realized upon ultimate settlement. Upon adoption of FIN 48, DCI recorded a $5 million net tax liability recorded directly to
accumulated deficit.

3. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007

(Amounts in millions)
Cash paid for acquisitions:
Fair value of assets acquired ..........occveveveveeeveveveeerereeeeeeneans $ 419 $ —

Fair value of liabilities assumed (113) —
Cash paid for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired......... $ 306 $ —
Cash paid for INtETESt.......cocveveeriieeierieeeeereeeeetee et $ 180 $ 78
Cash paid for income taxes $ 58 $ 17
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4. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

On December 17, 2007, Discovery completed its acquisition of HowStuffWorks.com (“HSW”), an on-line source of
explanations of how the world actually works. This acquisition provides an additional platform for Discovery’s library of video
content and positions its brands as a hub for satisfying curiosity on both television and on-line. The results of operations have been
included in the consolidated financial statements since December 17, 2007. The aggregate purchase price was $265 million, including
$15 million of transaction costs. The Company also assumed net working capital of $1 million, content of $9 million, and deferred tax
liabilities of $45 million. As of December 31, 2007, $5 million of the purchase price has not yet been paid. Of the $270 million of
acquired intangibles, $96 million was ascribed to intangibles subject to amortization with useful lives between two and five years and
the balance of $174 million to non-tax deductible goodwill. Acquired intangibles include trademarks, customer lists, and other items
with weighted average useful lives of four years. The Company funded the purchase through additional borrowings under its credit
facilities. HSW’s content is highly ranked by the world’s leading search engines and provides a natural link to the Company’s video
library. The purchase provides the Company with an expanded platform for content, additional ad sales outlet, and brand
enhancement.

As part of the transaction, Discovery acquired approximately 49.5% of HSW International, Inc. (“HSW1i”) outstanding shares,
resulting in an investment balance of $79 million. Discovery has gained voting rights which are capped at 45% of the outstanding
votes, three non-controlling board seats and certain other governance rights. As a result of its noncontrolling interest, the Company has
recorded its investment in HSWi under the equity method. Discovery will hold approximately 77% of these shares over a period of at
least one to two years. Per terms of the agreement, the Company may distribute the HSWi stock or sell and distribute substantially all
of the proceeds to former HSW shareholders. The Company initially recorded a liability of $54 million at closing, which represents its
estimated obligation to the HSW shareholders. The Company has estimated the fair value of its investment and associated liability
with information from an investment bank. The Company will adjust the liability each period to fair value through adjustments to
earnings. The valuation considers forecasted operating results and market valuation factors. The estimated liability at December 31,
2007 is unchanged from December 17, 2007. HSWi has a perpetual royalty free license to exploit HSW content in certain foreign
markets.

On July 31, 2007, the Company acquired Treehugger.com, an eco-lifestyle website for $10 million. As of December 31, 2007,
$2 million of this purchase price has not yet been paid. The results of operations have been included in the consolidated financial
statements since that date. The acquisition furthers the Company’s goal of developing original programming related to the
environment, sustainable development, conservation and organic living. The Company also has certain contingent considerations in
connection with this acquisition payable in the event specific business metrics are achieved totaling up to $6 million over two years,
which could result in the recording of additional goodwill.

Subsequent to the formation of Discovery, the Company acquired an additional 5% interest in Animal Planet L.P. (“APLP”)
from Cox for $37 million. This transaction increased the Company’s ownership interest in APLP from 80% to 85% and has been
recorded as a step acquisition. The $37 million has been recorded as brand intangibles of $7 million, affiliate relationships of
$10 million, and goodwill of $20 million. The brand intangibles and affiliate relationships will be amortized over ten years.

The following table summarizes the combined estimated fair values of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the dates
of acquisition in 2007 for HSW, Animal Planet additional 5% interest and Treehugger.com. The HSW fair value allocation of assets
and liabilities is preliminary because the acquisition closed December 17, 2007 and the fair value determination of assets and
liabilities are subject to finalization.

HSW, Animal Planet and

Asset (Liability) Treehugger, Combined
(Amounts in millions)

Current assets and CONLENL...........eeieeiiieiieierierie et $ 23
Investment in HSWi StOCK......cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinccccceccccee e, 79
Other tan@ible ASSELS .....ccuvevuieriieieeiesieieeie ettt e sseeseenes 1
Finite-lived intangibles (including brand names, customer lists and

trAAEMATKS) ... viiciiieciie ettt et e e e e e e e e eb e e enaeeenree e 119
GOOAWILL...eee ettt ettt et et b et neenens 198
Liabilities aSSUMEd........c.eieviieiiiieeiieeiieeeeeiee et esveesve e sbeesaneesenes (15)
DETRITEA LAXES ..eouvvieeiieiiieeiie et ettt ete et sre e esbe e s e e sbeesaseesabeesasessnnens (45)
Estimated redemption liability to HSW shareholders ............cccccevevervennnnnee, (54)
Cash paid, net of cash acquired.........c.coveevieiiiiiinieii e $ 306
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During February 2006, DCI acquired 98% of DMAX (formerly known as XXP), a free-to-air network in Germany for
$60 million primarily in cash. The results of operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements since that date.
The acquisition of a free-to-air network is intended to support strengthening global presence. During 2007, Discovery acquired the
remaining 2% in conjunction with the return of purchase escrow balances, for a net cash return amount of $8 million.

In 2006, DCI acquired Petfinder.com, a facilitator of pet adoptions and PetsIncredible, a producer and distributor of pet-training
videos. During 2007, the former owners earned payment of certain contingent consideration in connection with this acquisition,
resulting in the addition of $11 million in goodwill.

In 2006 DCI also acquired Academy123, Inc., a provider of on-line supplemental, educational content focusing largely on
mathematics and sciences. In May 2007, Discovery recorded an asset impairment of $21 million, including $12 million of goodwill,
for goodwill and intangible assets established during 2006 related to Academy 123, Inc. The business had not been integrated into the
education reporting unit, and management decided to scale back its education business to consumers

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Following a comprehensive strategic review of its businesses, the Company decided to close its 103 mall based and stand alone
Discovery Stores (Retail) in the third quarter of 2007. The Company will continue to leverage its products through retail arrangements
and its e-commerce platform. As there is no continuing involvement in the retail stores or significant migration of retail customers to
e-commerce, the results of the Retail business are accounted for as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements for
the periods presented herein, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment and Disposal of Long-lived Assets (“FAS 144”).

The following amounts related to Retail have been segregated from continuing operations and included in loss from
discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of income:

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
(Amounts in millions)

REVEIIUE .....oviiiiieieieieteeieetete ettt b et enens $ 30 $ 27
Loss from discontinued operations before income taxes................. $ (81) $ (18)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ..........ccoeevvevervenennns, $ (52) $ (13)

No interest expense was allocated to discontinued operations for the periods presented herein since there was no debt
specifically attributable to discontinued operations or required to be repaid following the closure of the retail stores. For the Successor
period, the loss from discontinued operations includes $31 million in lease terminations and other exit costs, $9 million for severance
and other employee-related costs, and $28 million in asset impairment charges, along with normal business operations. Summarized
balance sheet information for discontinued operations for Retail is as follows:

Successor

December 31, 2007

(Amounts in millions)

CUITENE SSEES....ueeveevieeeeeereereeeteeete et e eee et e eteeereereereeetseeseenseenneeneeaneas $ —
TOLAL @SSELS ...veevvieeeeereecteecte ettt ettt ettt et e et e eaeenaeeraeeaees $ —
Current Habilities .......ccvevvieriieiieie et $ (6)
Total HADIIEIES .. ..cveevieeieeieieieceieee ettt $ (6)
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6. CONTENT RIGHTS

Successor

Content Rights December 31, 2007

(Amounts in millions)
Produced content rights:

COMPIELEd ..ottt ebe e $ 1,347

T-PIOCESS -ttt 195
Co-produced content rights:

ComPIEed .......eeeieiieieei e 499

TN-PIOCESS -ttt 54
Licensed content rights:

ACUITEA. ...t 209

Prepaid ..co.oeeeieeeeee e 22
Content rights, at COST....couiiriiriiiiiiereeeeee e 2,326
Accumulated amoOTtization...........c..ccveeeerreerreeieeieseere e (1,199)
Content FIGNLS, NEt.......ccvevieriieiieie ettt 1,127
LesS: CUTEeNt POTLION ......eevvverieiieiieeiierieeie et estee e esre e saaesseeseeenas (79)
NON-CUITENT POTTION ....vrevreeierieriesieieeteeteereeeeeeeeeeeseessessessesessensessenas $ 1,048

Amortization of content rights is recorded as a component of cost of revenues and was $558 million and $257 million from
May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. Amortization of content
rights includes incremental amortization for certain programs to net realizable value of $172 million and $2 million from May 15,
2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The $172 million of incremental
amortization includes an impairment charge of $129 million at U.S. Networks, where new programming leadership evaluated the
networks’ programming portfolio assets and identified certain programming which no longer fit the go forward strategy of the
network. The Company wrote off those assets no longer intended for use.

The Company estimates that approximately 96% of unamortized costs of content rights at December 31, 2007 will be amortized
within the next three years. The Company expects to amortize $434 million of unamortized content rights, not including in-process,
not released, and prepaid productions, during the next twelve months.

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Successor
Property and Equipment December 31, 2007
(Amounts in millions)

Equipment and SOftWare..........ccceceveveiiieniieiicieceeeeeeee e $ 479
LA ..ot eeaas 29
BUIlAINGS ..ottt 154
Furniture, fixtures, leasehold improvements and other..................... 151
ASSEES TN PIOZIESS ..veenveenteriieitienieeieeteeitesteenteeteestesieesbeenbeebeesaeseeenaes 14
Property and equipment, at COSt.......coevverieriiecreeienieieereseesie e 827
Accumulated depreciation and amortization............ccceeeveeevereenennen. (430)
Property and equipment, NEt ...........cecvevverreriererreereeeeiereieiesaeneenes $ 397

The cost and accumulated depreciation of equipment under capital leases was $53 million at December 31, 2007. Depreciation
and amortization of property and equipment, including equipment under capital lease was $57 million and $40 million from May 15,
2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. Depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment for Retail discontinued operations was $3 million from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, exclusive of
impairment write-downs.
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8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Successor
Goodwill and Intangible Assets December 31,2007
(Amounts in millions)
GOOAWILL ... $ 4,870
Trademarks, net of accumulated amortization of $2.........ccccoveeene.... $ 62
Customer lists, net of accumulated amortization of $77.................. 68
Other, net of accumulated amortization of $77 .....cccccovvvivviveneeenen. 52
Intangible assets, NEt........cevveirierieinieieiirieeeesteteeee e $ 182

During 2007, changes in the net carrying amount of goodwill were as follows:

Reconciliation of net carrying amount of goodwill (Amounts in millions)

Balance at January 1, 2007 (Predecessor)..........c.ccuevveieverierieriernene $ 365
Impairment (Predecessor) (INOtE 4)........ccveveeeenieenieecienrenieieeee e (12)
Translation (Predecessor) ......oviriirierieniieieeeeeee et 2
Push down of investor basis (Successor) (Note 1)......ccccceeveervennnne. 4,591
Disposals (Successor) (INOtE 1)....c.cceerieriieierieiieieeeesieenieeve e (280)
Acquisitions (Successor) (NOte 4) .....covevviereeienierieeieeieseesieene e 198
Translation (SUCCESSOT) ....vervieriiiierieriieiieieeeesieereereeeeesreesseesesenas 6
Balance at December 31, 2007 (SUCCESSOT)......cveverrerereieieieeennas $ 4,870

In April 2007, DCI completed a strategic analysis of the Education business and does not expect to generate revenue from the
assets acquired from the Academy 123, Inc. acquisition. Goodwill of $12 million and intangible assets of $9 million were written-off
as a component of amortization expense.

Goodwill is not amortized. Trademarks are amortized on a straight-line basis over three to ten years. Customer lists are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of three to seven years. Non-compete assets are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the contractual term of one to seven years. Other intangibles are amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of three to ten years. The weighted-average amortization period for intangible assets is 5.1 years.

Amortization of intangible assets totaled $22 million and $37 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from
January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The Company estimates that unamortized costs of intangible assets at
December 31, 2007 will be amortized over the next five years as follows: $53 million in 2008, $41 million in 2009, $37 million in
2010, $20 million in 2011, and $12 million in 2012.
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9. INVESTMENTS

The following table outlines the Company’s less than wholly-owned ventures and the method of accounting during 2007:

Accounting
Affiliates: Method
Joint Ventures with the BBC:
JV Programs LLC (“JVP”) Consolidated
Joint Venture Network LLC (“JVN”) Consolidated
Animal Planet Europe Consolidated
Animal Planet Latin America Consolidated
People & Arts Latin America Consolidated
Animal Planet Asia Consolidated
Animal Planet Japan Consolidated
Animal Planet Canada Equity
Other Ventures:
Animal Planet United States (Note 11) Consolidated
Discovery Canada Equity
Discovery Japan Equity
Discovery Health Canada Equity
Discovery Kids Canada Equity
Discovery Civilization Canada Equity
HSWi (Note 4) Equity

Joint Ventures with the BBC

The Company and the BBC have formed several cable and satellite television network joint ventures, JVP, a venture to produce
and acquire factual-based content, and JVN, a venture to provide debt funding to these joint ventures.

In addition to its own funding requirements, the Company has assumed the BBC funding requirements, giving the Company
preferential cash distribution with these ventures. The Company controls substantially all of the BBC ventures and consolidates them
accordingly. As the BBC does not have risk of loss, no BBC cumulative losses were allocated to minority interest for consolidated
joint ventures with the BBC, and the Company recognizes both its and the BBC’s share of cumulative losses in the equity method
venture with the BBC. After December 31, 2006, JVP obtained a level of cumulative profitability. Minority interest expense of
$4 million and $1 million for the BBC’s share of earnings in JVP was recognized from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and
from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively.

Other Ventures

The Company is a partner in international joint venture cable and satellite television networks. The Company also acquired an
equity interest in HSWi stock as a result of its acquisition of HSW. DCI provided no funding to the equity ventures in 2007. At
December 31, 2007, the Company’s maximum exposure to loss as a result of its involvement with the equity joint ventures is the
$47 million investment book value and future operating losses, should they occur, of the equity joint ventures that the Company is
obligated to fund.
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10. DEBT

Successor
December 31, 2007

(Amounts in millions)

$1.0 billion Term Loan A due quarterly December 2008 to October 2010....... $ 1,000
$1.6 billion Revolving Loan, due October 2010 ..........ccoeeerieeninieeninieeens 338
€260 million Revolving Loan, due April 2009 ..........cccooveiieinieiieeeieeeene 94
$1.5 billion Term Loan B due quarterly September 2007 to May 2014............ 1,492
8.06% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due March 2008............................. 180
7.45% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due September 2009 ...................... 55
8.37% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due March 2011............................. 220
8.13% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due September 2012...................... 235
Floating Rate Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due December 2012 ........... 90
6.01% Senior Notes, semi-annual interest, due December 2015....................... 390
£10 million Uncommitted Facility, due August 2008 ...........cccccvervevercrenrennnne 9
Obligations under capital 1€aSEs ........ccuevveriierieriieiierieie et 37
Other NOtes PAYADIC.........c.eeieeiieiieieeie et 1
SUBLOTAL ...ttt ettt ettt st et ne st nnenean 4,141
LesS: CUITENt POTLION ....eeeuiiiiieiieieeie ettt st et (32)
Total 1onG-term debt.........cveviieieeiieieiiieieiceteeeeeee et $ 4,109

In May 2007, Discovery entered into a $1.5 billion seven year term loan credit agreement. Borrowings under this agreement
bear interest at London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus an applicable margin of 2.0% or the higher of (a) the Federal Funds
Rate plus '/2 of 1% or (b) “prime rate” set by Bank of America plus an applicable margin of 1.0%. The Company capitalized
$5 million of deferred financing costs as a result of this transaction. At the end of 2007 there was $1.5 billion outstanding under the
term loan agreement (net of mandatory principal repayments) with a weighted average interest rate of 6.83%. The average interest rate
under this credit agreement was 7.44% for the period May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007.

In September 2007, the Company’s United Kingdom subsidiary, Discovery Communications Europe Limited (“DCEL”)
executed a £10 million uncommitted facility to supplement working capital requirements. The facility is available through August 1,
2008 and is guaranteed by Discovery. At December 31, 2007 there was £4 million (approximately $9 million) outstanding under this
facility.

In March 2006, DCEL entered into a €70 million three year multicurrency revolving credit agreement (“U.K. credit agreement’)
which enables the Company to draw Euros and British Pounds. In April 2006, the U.K. credit agreement was amended and restated to
provide for syndication and to increase the revolving commitments to €260 million. The Company guarantees DCEL’s obligations
under the U.K. credit agreement. Borrowings under this agreement bear interest at LIBOR plus an applicable margin based on the
Company’s leverage ratios. The cost of the U.K. credit agreement also includes a fee on the revolving commitments (ranging from
0.1% to 0.3%) based on the Company’s leverage ratio. DCEL capitalized £1 million (approximately $1 million) of deferred financing
costs as a result of this transaction. At the end of 2007 there was £48 million (approximately U.S. $94 million) outstanding under the
multicurrency credit agreement with a weighted average interest rate of 6.75%. The interest rate averaged 7.05% and 6.42% from
May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The U.K. credit agreement
matures April 2009.

At the end of 2007 there was $1.3 billion outstanding ($1.0 billion Term A and $338 million Revolving Loan) under the facility
with a weighted average interest rate of 5.61%. The amount available under the facility was $1.2 billion, net of amounts committed for
standby letters of credit of $3 million issued. The average interest rate under the U.S. Credit Facility was 6.11% and 6.22% from
May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The Company’s debt
agreements have certain restrictions on the payment of dividends from subsidiaries.

The Company uses derivative instruments to modify its exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its debt. The Term Loans,
Revolving Facility, and Senior Notes contain covenants that require the Company to meet certain financial ratios and place restrictions
on the payment of dividends, sale of assets, borrowing level, mergers, and purchases of capital stock, assets, and investments.
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Future principal payments under the current debt arrangements, excluding obligations under capital leases and other notes
payable, are as follows: $266 million in 2008, $539 million in 2009, $915 million in 2010, $235 million in 2011, $340 million in 2012
and $1.8 billion thereafter. Of the $266 million of principal payments due in 2008, $243 million is excluded from the current portion
of long-term debt as of December 31, 2007 because the Company has the intent and ability to refinance its obligations on a long-term
basis.

Future minimum payments under capital leases are as follows: $9 million in 2008 and 2009, $7 million in 2010, $6 million in
2011, $3 million in 2012, and $10 million thereafter.

11. REDEEMABLE INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Animal Planet LP

As of December 31, 2006, one of the DCI’s stockholders held 44,000 senior preferred partnership units of Animal Planet LP
(“APLP”) that had a redemption value of $44 million and carried a rate of return ranging from 8.75% to 13%. APLP’s senior preferred
partnership units were called by DCI in January 2007 for $44 million plus accrued interest of $1 million. Preferred returns were
recorded as a component of interest expense based on a constant rate of return of 10.75% through the full term and aggregated
$5 million in 2006. DCI reversed $5 million of accrued interest upon exercise of the call.

People & Arts Latin America and Animal Planet Channel Group

The BBC has the right, upon a failure of the People & Arts Latin America or the Animal Planet Channel Group (comprised of
Animal Planet Europe, Animal Planet Asia, and Animal Planet Latin America), the Channel Groups, to achieve certain financial
performance benchmarks to put its interests back to the Company for a value determined by a specified formula every three years
which commenced December 31, 2002. The Company accretes the mandatorily redeemable equity in a subsidiary to its estimated
redemption value through the applicable redemption date. The redemption value estimate is based on a contractual formula
considering the projected results of each network within the channel group.

Based on the Company’s calculated performance benchmarks, the Company believes the BBC has the right to put their interests
as of December 2005. The BBC has 90 days following the valuation of the Channel Groups by an independent appraiser to exercise
their right. During 2006 DCI was notified that the BBC is evaluating whether to execute their rights under the agreement. As of
December 31, 2007, the BBC and the Company are assigning a valuation firm to formally assess the performance benchmarks and the
BBC’s right to put. The Company has accreted to an estimated redemption value of $49 million as of December 31, 2007, based on
certain estimates and legal interpretations. Changes in these assumptions could materially impact current estimates. Accretion to the
redemption value has been recorded as a component of minority interest expense of $2 million and $1 million from May 15, 2007
through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Successor
Year Ending December 31,
Future Minimum Payments Leases Content Other Total
(amounts in millions)
2008 ...ttt et ettt e sae $ 81 $ 269 $ 106 $ 456
2009 .. ettt et 66 67 86 219
20T0 1ttt et e e 57 41 71 169
1 SRR 41 40 24 105
0 USSP 35 41 4 80
TRETEATTET. ...t 134 41 — 175
TOLALL .ttt $ 414 $ 499 $ 291 § 1,204

Expenses recorded in connection with operating leases, including rent expense, for continuing and discontinued operations were
$91 million and $53 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007,
respectively. Expenses recorded in connection with operating leases, including rent expense, for discontinued operations were
$37 million and $9 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007,
respectively. The Company receives contributions from certain landlords to fund leasehold improvements. Such contributions are
recorded as deferred rent and amortized as reductions to lease expense over the lease term. Certain of the Company’s leases provide
for rental rates that increase or decrease over time. The Company recognizes operating lease minimum rentals on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The Company’s deferred rent balance was $24 million at December 31, 2007. Approximately $7 million of
Discovery’s deferred rent balance was written off and included in discontinued operations following the closure of the retail stores.
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Discovery has certain contingent consideration in connection with the acquisition of Treehugger.com payable in the event
specific business metrics are achieved totaling up to $6 million over two years (refer to Note 4).

The Company is involved in litigation incidental to the conduct of its business. In addition, the Company is involved in
negotiations with organizations holding the rights to music used in the Company’s content. As global music rights societies evolve,
the Company uses all information available to estimate appropriate obligations. During 2005, DCI analyzed its music rights reserves
and recorded a net reduction to cost of revenue of approximately $11 million. The Company believes the reserves related to these
music rights are adequate and does not expect the outcome of such litigation and negotiations to have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s results of operations, cash flows, or financial position.

13. EMPLOYEE SAVINGS PLANS

The Company maintains employee savings plans, defined contribution savings plans and a supplemental deferred compensation
plan for certain management employees, together the “Savings Plans.” The Company contributions to the Savings Plans were
$6 million and $6 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007,
respectively.

14. LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLANS

In October 2005, DCI established a new long-term incentive plan. At inception of the plan, eligible participants in one of DCI’s
previously established long-term incentive plans chose to either continue in that plan or to redeem their vested units at the
December 31, 2004 valuation and receive partially vested units in the new plan. Substantially all participants in the previously
established plan redeemed their vested units and received partially vested units in the new plan. Certain eligible employees were
granted new units in the new plan.

Units partially vested in the new plan have vesting similar to units in the previously established plan. New units awarded vest
25% per year. The units in the new plan are indexed to the market price of Class A DHC stock. On August 17, 2007, the Company
amended the plan so that each year 25% of the units awarded will expire and the employees will receive a cash payment for the
increase in value. Prior to the amendment, units were paid out every two years over an eight year period. The Company has authorized
the issuance of up to 32 million units under this plan.

Prior to October 2005, DCI maintained two unit-based, long-term incentive plans with substantially similar terms. Units were
awarded to eligible employees following their one-year anniversary of hire and vested 25% per year thereafter. Upon exercise,
participants received the increase in value from the date of issuance. The value of the units was based on changes in DCI’s value as
estimated by an external investment-banking firm utilizing a specified formula of DCI business metrics. The valuation also included a
business group specific discount rate and terminal value based on business risk. The intrinsic value for unit appreciation had been
recorded as compensation expense over the period the units were outstanding. In August 2005, DCI discontinued one of these plans,
which resulted in the full vesting and cash redemption of units at the December 31, 2004 valuation, including a 25% premium on
appreciated value.

Upon voluntary termination of employment, the Company distributes the intrinsic value of the participant’s vested units, if
participants agree to comply with post-employment obligations for one year in order to receive remaining benefits. The Company’s
cash disbursements under the new plan aggregated $76 million and $8 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and
from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively.

The fair value of the units issued under the new plan has been determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The
expected volatility represents the calculated volatility of the DHC stock price over each of the various contractual terms. As a result of
the limited trading history of the DHC stock, this amount for units paid out after two years is determined based on an analysis of
DHC’s industry peer group over the corresponding periods. The weighted average assumptions used in this option-pricing model were
as follows:

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007

through through
Weighted Average Assumptions December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
Risk-free interest rate ..........ccoveeveeeeeneeeneceeneeennenen, 3.20% 4.72%
Expected term (Years) ......coecvevvereeeneeeieeneenieeieeeeneeens 1.48 3.87
Expected volatility ......ccccovevvereenieeieeieeeeeeeeeeen 27.93% 23.78%
Dividend yield........ccovevvroieiierieeeeeeeeeee e 0% 0%
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The weighted average grant date fair values of units granted was $29.65 and $18.66 from May 15, 2007 through December 31,
2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. Compensation expense in connection with the new plan was
$79 million and $63 million from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007,
respectively.

The following table summarizes information about unit transactions (units in millions) for the new plan:

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
Weighted ‘Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Units Price Units Price
Outstanding at Beginning of period ........... 26.7 $ 16.01 263 S 15.00
Units granted..........ccooeevereeneeneencnicneene. 6.4 29.65 7.8 18.66
Units eXercised.....ccecveerieervienieerieeeeeene (1.1) 15.69 (2.3) 14.01
Units redeemed/cancelled .......................... (5.2) 15.29 (5.1) 15.82
Outstanding at end of period...................... 26.8 19.42 26.7 16.01
Vested at Period-end ...........ccoeveveueveurenennee. 6.6 $ 13.97 65 $ 13.84

The Company classified as a current liability the entire long term incentive plan liability of $141 million. At December 31,
2007, there was $137 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested units, which the Company expects to recognize
over a weighted average period of 2.4 years. The weighted average remaining years of contractual life for outstanding and vested unit
awards was 1.48 and 0.75, respectively, for unit awards outstanding as of December 31, 2007. The aggregate intrinsic value of units
outstanding at December 31, 2007 is $228 million. The vested intrinsic value of outstanding units was $94 million at December 31,
2007.

15. INCOME TAXES

Domestic and foreign income before income taxes and discontinued operations is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
Income from Continuing Operations before Taxes December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
(Amounts in millions)

DOIMESTIC 1.vvvereeeraiireeeeteteteteeesesese st aeseseseseneneseeesesnas $ 255 | § 87
FOT@IgN...oeieiiieiieeee e 7 15
Income from continuing operations before taxes............... $ 262 | $ 102
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Income tax expense from continuing operations for the periods May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and January 1, 2007
through May 14, 2007 is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
May 15, 2007 January 1, 2007
through through
Income Tax Expense December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
(Amounts in millions)
Current
Federal.....oc.ovovieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 52 $ 20
SEALC ..eeevieeie ettt et e aee e 7 5
FOI@igN.....iiiiieiieeceeee e 28 17
Total current income tax ProviSion ..........cccceeevveeereereveencneenns 87 42
Deferred
Federal .......c.oovieiiiiieiieecece e (65) 5
SEALE ..eeevieereeiieeeie et rte et e e 10 9
FOT@IgN.cc.iiiiiiiiiiieee e 2 3
Total deferred income tax (benefit) expense..........ccccuvenneneen. (53) 17
Change in valuation allowance ............cccceeeeverierreecieneennenns ) @)
Total iNCOME taX EXPENSE.....cveveerirrereerireereriireeeeresreseeresseaeenas $ 25 $ 52

Components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Successor
December 31, 2007

Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities Current Non-current

(Amounts in millions)

Assets:
L0SS Carry-TOrWardS .......cevevivieieiiieieierereereteeeeceee e, $ 223 21
COMPENSALION. ...evvieeieeereeiiieerireesiteestteesiaeestreeereesaeeessaeenseeesaeesseesnsneanns 59 10
ACCTUCA EXPENSES...eurieerieriiieriiienieeeieerteesreesaeesreesseessseessseessseessseens 11 13
Reserves and alloWances...........cccvevvievieieeeenieeieeeeceece e, 9 —
Derivative financial iINStruments ...........ccceeeveeerieecieeseeeieesieeeve e, — 7
TNVESTMENLS ....eviiiiieeiieciee ettt et e e et e e eebeesereeeabeeensans — 14
DePIeCIAtION ...e.eveeieiieiieie ettt s — 16
INtANGIDIES ... — 68
Successor
December 31, 2007
Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities Current Non-current
(Amounts in millions)
Uncertain taX POSItIONS ........ccceerueerireieeieriieneeieeieeee e sieeeeeans — 28
L@ 71513 SRR 4 17
105 194
Valuation alloWancCe .........cceeceeeeiieecieeeciieeiie e esre e eeeeeesiee e — (10)
Total deferred INCOME taX ASSELS ....cvevverrieriieiieiesiierieere e eeeseeesieenns 105 184
Liabilities:
Content rights and deferred launch incentives..............cceen......, — (157)
Foreign currency translation ............cocceeveeeeeeieieiecienienienennenns — 6)
Unrealized gains on inVeStmMents ...........cceceeevervenieeseerveseenneenns — (25)
L@ 711 T<) SRR (1) @)
Total deferred income tax liabilities.........cccvveveeeeriierieenieeieeee e, (1) (195)
Deferred income tax assets (liabilities), n€t .......c.ccevvevreecreeveneennenn, $ 104 § (11)
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Income tax benefit (expense) from continuing operations differs from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. Federal
income tax rate of 35.0% as a result of the following:

Successor Predecessor
May 15,2007 January 1, 2007
through through
Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate from Continuing Operations December 31, 2007 May 14, 2007
Federal statutory rate.........ccoceeeeeeieneenienesee e 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (decrease) in tax rate arising from:
State income taxes, net of Federal benefit .......... 2.4 1.9
Foreign income taxes, net of Federal benefit..... 7.5 12.8
Non-taxable gain.........cceceerieierereneieeeeeeeeeane (17.9) —
Travel deferred tax liabilities............ccoceveeurennenn. (20.4) —
Change in U.S. IeSeIve ......ooeveereeneeneeieeeenne 33 —
Non-deductible goodwill write-off ................... — 39
Domestic production deduction...........c..c.......... (1.1) (1.8)
Other ... 0.8 (0.6)
Effective Income tax rate.........ccoevvereerveereeeeeneenieennenns 9.6% 51.2%

The disposal of the Travel Business resulted in a gain of $135 million for book purposes, but the transaction was not recognized
for tax purposes under Internal Revenue Code Sections 355 and 368. The transaction also resulted in a reduction of the Company’s
deferred tax liabilities related to the Travel Channel of $54 million.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company has federal operating loss carry-forwards of $93 million that begin to expire in 2021
and state operating loss carry-forwards of $297 million in various state jurisdictions available to offset future taxable income that
expire in various amounts through 2025. In 2007, the Company acquired federal operating loss carry-forwards of $90 million. The
state operating loss carry-forwards are subject to a valuation allowance of $5 million. The change in the valuation allowance from
prior year reflects the elimination of fully reserved state operating loss carry-forwards upon disposal of the Retail business.

Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance relating to the state tax benefits attributable to net operating losses in
certain jurisdictions where realizability is not more likely than not.

The Company’s ability to utilize foreign tax credits is currently limited by its overall foreign loss under Section 904(f) of the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company has no alternative minimum tax credits.

The Company files U.S. federal, state, and foreign income tax returns. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
audit by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”), state tax authorities, or non-U.S. tax authorities for years prior to 2003.

It is reasonably possible that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits related to tax positions taken (or expected to be
taken) on 2006 and 2007 non-U.S. tax returns could decrease by as much as $33 million within the next twelve months as a result of
settlement of audit issues and/or payment of uncertain tax liabilities, which could impact the effective tax rate.

The IRS is not currently examining the Company’s consolidated federal income tax return. However, some of the Company’s
joint ventures are under examination for the 2004 tax year. The Company does not expect any significant adjustments.

As aresult of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company recognized an increase of $36 million in its liability for unrecognized
tax benefits, which was offset in part by a corresponding increase of $31 million in deferred tax assets. The remaining $5 million was
accounted for as a reduction to the January 1, 2007 balance of retained earnings. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount
of unrecognized tax benefits (without related interest amounts) is as follows:

Reconciliation of Unrecognized Tax Benefits (Amounts in millions)
Balance at January 1, 2007 (Predecessor)........ccocvereeeieneeneeneeeenen. $ 91
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year
(SUCCESSOT).ueviiiiiieeiiecteeee ettt e sre e sae e saaeesta e e ebeenenas 12
Additions for tax positions of prior years (Successor).........c..ce..c..... 17
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (Successor) ................... (29)
Settlements (SUCCESSOT) .....viiiuierrieriierriesireeereesteesire e esereeseaeeneeas 2)
Balance at December 31, 2007 (SUCCESSOT)......ccverveerreeresrereenrennn $ 89

148



Included in the balance at December 31, 2007 are $10 million of tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly
certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting,
other than interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but
would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

FIN 48 requires uncertain tax positions to be recognized and presented on a gross basis (i.e., without regard to likely offsets for
deferred tax assets, deductions, and/or credits that would result from payment of uncertain tax amounts). On a net basis, the balance at
December 31, 2007 is $45 million (including related interest amounts) after offsetting deferred tax assets, deductions, and/or credits
on the Company’s tax returns.

The Company’s policy is to classify tax interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as tax expense. Interest
expense related to unrecognized tax benefits recognized was approximately $2 million and $1 million from May 15, 2007 through
December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The Company had accrued approximately
$6 million of total interest payable in the tax accounts as of December 31, 2007. Additional interest of $1 million was accrued upon
adoption of FIN 48 in the first quarter of its fiscal year 2007, with a corresponding reduction to retained earnings.

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to modify its exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates and
foreign exchange rates. The Company does not hold or enter into financial instruments for speculative trading purposes.

The Company’s interest expense is exposed to movements in short-term interest rates. Derivative instruments, including both
fixed to variable and variable to fixed interest rate instruments, are used to modify this exposure. These instruments include swaps and
swaptions to modify interest rate exposure. The variable to fixed interest rate instruments have a notional principal amount of
$2.3 billion and have a weighted average interest rate of 4.68% at December 31, 2007. The fixed to variable interest rate agreements
have a notional principal amount of $225 million and have a weighted average interest rate of 9.65% at December 31, 2007. At
December 31, 2007, the Company held an unexercised interest rate swap put with a notional amount of $25 million at a fixed rate of
5.44%. As a result of unrealized mark-to-market adjustments, ($10) million and $1 million in (losses) gains on these instruments were
recorded from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively.

The fair value of these derivative instruments, which aggregate ($50) million at December 31, 2007, is recorded as a component
of long-term liabilities and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of these derivative
instruments are recorded as a component of operating cash flows.

Of the total of $2.3 billion, a notional amount of $1.5 billion of these derivative instruments are 100% effective cash flow
hedges. The value of these hedges at December 31, 2007 was ($33) million with changes in the mark-to-market value recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes. Should any portion of these instruments become ineffective due to a
restructuring in the Company’s debt, the monthly changes in fair value would be reported as a component of other income on the
Statement of Operations. The Company does not expect any hedge ineffectiveness in the next twelve months.

The foreign exchange instruments used are spot, forward, and option contracts. Additionally, the Company enters into non-
designated forward contracts to hedge non-dollar denominated cash flows and foreign currency balances. At December 31, 2007, the
notional amount of foreign exchange derivative contracts was $174 million. As a result of unrealized mark-to-market adjustments,
($3) million and ($1) million in (losses) gains were recognized on these instruments from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007
and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. The fair value of these derivative instruments is recorded as a
component of long-term liabilities and other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. These derivative instruments did not
receive hedge accounting treatment.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and accounts payable approximate their carrying values. Marketable
equity securities are carried at fair value and fluctuations in fair value are recorded through other comprehensive income (loss). Losses
on investments that are other than temporary declines in value are recorded in the statement of operations.

The carrying amount of the Company’s borrowings was $4.1 billion and the fair value was $4.2 billion at December 31, 2007.

The carrying amount of all derivative instruments represents their fair value. The net fair value of the Company’s short and
long-term derivative instruments is ($51) million at December 31, 2007; 4%, 11%, 61%, 23%, and 1% of these derivative instrument
contracts will expire in 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and thereafter, respectively.
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The fair value of derivative contracts was estimated by obtaining interest rate and volatility market data from brokers. As of
December 31, 2007, an estimated 100 basis point parallel shift in the interest rate yield curve would change the fair value of the
Company’s portfolio by approximately $45 million.

Credit Concentrations

The Company continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of, the financial institutions that are counterparties
to its financial instruments and does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties. In addition, the Company limits the amount
of investment credit exposure with any one institution.

The Company’s trade receivables and investments do not represent a significant concentration of credit risk at December 31,
2007 due to the wide variety of customers and markets in which the Company operates and their dispersion across many geographic
areas.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company identifies related parties as investors in their consolidated subsidiaries, the Company’s joint venture partners and
equity investments, and the Company’s executive management. Transactions with related parties typically result from distribution of
networks, production of content, or media uplink services. Gross revenue earned from related parties was $21 million and $47 million
from May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively. Accounts receivable
from these entities were $7 million at December 31, 2007. Purchases from related parties totaled $55 million and $32 million from
May 15, 2007 through December 31, 2007 and from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007, respectively; of these purchases,
$5 million and $3 million related to capitalized assets from January 1, 2007 through May 14, 2007 and May 15, 2007 through
December 31, 2007, respectively. Amounts payable to these parties totaled $1 million at December 31, 2007.
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